Management Report

Directors’ Report
following applicable accounting standards and that no material
departures have been made from the same;

To,
The Members of
Zee Learn Limited
b)
Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the Tenth Annual Report of the
Company together with Audited Financial Statements for the year ended
March 31, 2020. This report states compliance as per the requirements of the
Companies’ Act, 2013 (“the Act”), the secretarial standards, the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) and other rules and regulations as
applicable to the Company.

Accounting policies selected were applied consistently and the
judgments and estimates related to these financial statements have
been made on a prudent and reasonable basis, so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, and,
of the profits of the Company for the year ended on that date;

There have been no material changes and commitments that have occurred
after close of the financial year till the date of this report, which affect the
financial position of the Company. Based on the internal financial control
framework and compliance systems established in the Company, the work
performed by Statutory, Internal, Secretarial Auditors and reviews performed
by the management and/or relevant Audit and other Committees of the Board,
your Board is of the opinion that the Company’s internal financial controls
were adequate and working effectively during financial year 2019-20.

DIVIDEND

c)

Proper and sufficient care has been taken for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, to safeguard the assets of the Company and to prevent and
detect fraud and other irregularities;

With a view to conserve financial resources in an environment of heightened
uncertainty caused by COVID-19 Pandemic, the Board of Directors of the
Company has not proposed any dividend for the year ended March 31, 2020.
Your Company has not paid any Interim Dividend during the financial year
under review.

Pursuant to Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), in relation to
the Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year 2019-2020, your
Directors confirm that:

d)

Requisite internal financial controls to be followed by the Company were
laid down and that such internal financial controls are adequate and
operating effectively; and

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

a)

e)

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Financial Statements of the Company - comprising of the Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2020 and the Statement of Profit & Loss for the
year ended on that date, have been prepared on a going concern basis

Proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and such systems are adequate and
operating effectively.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
The Financial performance of your Company for the year ended March 31, 2020 is summarized below:

Standalone – Year ended

( ` In Lakhs)
Consolidated – Year ended

Particulars
Revenue from Operations
Other Income
Total Income
Total Expenses
Operating Profit/Loss
Less: Finance Cost
Less: Depreciation
Profit/Loss before Tax & exceptional items
Less : Exceptional items
Profit/Loss before Tax
Provision for Taxation (Net)
Profit/Loss after Tax
Less : Appropriations
Transferred to Debenture Redemption Reserve
Interim/ Final Equity Dividend
Tax on Interim / Final Equity Dividend
Balance Carried To Balance Sheet
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March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

19,437.24
2,393.32
21,830.56
9,391.17
12,439.39
2,451.91
872.08
9,115.40
9,115.40
2,253.48
6,861.92

20,977.80
1,683.96
22,661.76
11,618.99
11,042.77
1,997.13
377.19
8,668.45
8,668.45
2,498.86
6,169.59

51,482.78
4,155.40
55,638.18
34,643.74
20,994.44
5,904.91
6,410.60
8,678.93
3,114.65
5,564.28
3,052.81
2,511.47

51,724.64
3,200.46
54,925.10
35,954.00
18,971.10
4,730.99
2,788.54
11,451.57
11,451.57
3,114.22
8,337.35

203.13
326.09
67.03
6,265.67

406.25
326.07
67.02
5,370.25

203.13
326.09
67.03
1,915.22

406.25
326.07
67.02
7,538.01

With the motto of building the nation through education, your Company is
constantly contributing in the field of education across age groups, all the
while maintaining its core values of integrity, ownership, leadership, trust and
continuous learning. We believe that every child has a unique and infinite
potential and we are committed to help children realise their capabilities.
FY20 was a landmark year for Kidzee as it continued its growth story and
crossed 1967 operational centres. During FY20, Mount Litera Zee Schools
(MLZS) continued its growth story with 139 operational schools.
Your Company delivered on its promise of sustained profitability and
improving on margins and has shown growth in profit after tax. Company
registered Standalone Revenue of Rs. 1,943.7 Mn in FY20 compared to Rs.
2,097.8 Mn in FY19. Operating EBITDA stood at 1004.6 Mn in FY20,
compared to Rs. 935.9 Mn in FY19 (up by 7%). EBIDTA % to operating
revenue increases to 52% in FY20 from 45% in FY 19. PBT stood at Rs. 911.5
Mn in FY20, compared to Rs. 866.8 Mn in FY19 (up by 5 %). PAT stood at Rs.
686.2 Mn in FY20, compared to Rs. 616.9 Mn in FY19 (up by 11 %). PAT % to
operating revenue increases to 35% in FY20 from 29% in FY19.
Company registered Consolidated Revenue of Rs. 5,563.8 Mn in FY20,
compared to Rs. 5,492.5 Mn in FY19. Operating EBITDA stood at Rs.
1,683.9 Mn in FY20, compared to Rs. 1,577.1 Mn in FY19 (up by 7%).
EBIDTA % to Operating Revenue increases to 33% in FY 20 from 30% in FY
19. PBT stood at Rs. 867.9 Mn in FY20, compared to Rs. 1145.2 Mn in FY19.
PAT stood at Rs. 251.1 Mn in FY20, compared to Rs. 833.7 Mn in FY19.
The improved performance is a result of sustained growth in the business,
despite of tough economic conditions. Numerous innovative and state-of-the
art technological measures were undertaken for driving efficiencies in running
its preschool and K-12 school operations, under the brand names of ‘Kidzee’
and ‘Mount Litera Zee School’ respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL
During the year under review, your Company had allotted 14,000 Equity
Shares of Re. 1/- each upon exercise of Stock Options by the Option grantees
under the Employee Stock Option Scheme. This has resulted an increase in
the paid-up equity share capital of the Company from Rs. 32,60,78,725/- to
Rs. 32,60,92,725/- comprising of 32,60,92,725 equity shares of Re. 1/- each.

NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES
Your Company had allotted 650 (Six Hundred Fifty) Rated, Unlisted,
Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures (“Debentures” Or “NCDs”) of the
Face Value of Rs. 10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Lakhs Only) Each, for cash,
aggregating upto Rs. 65,00,00,000/- (Rupees Sixty Five Crores Only) in terms
of the Information Memorandum circulated on Private Placement Basis on
which Credit Analysis & Research Limited (CARE) has revised the rating from
CARE AA+ (CE) (credit watch with negative implications) to CARE AA (CE)
(credit watch with negative implications).

GLOBAL DEPOSITORY RECEIPTS
During the Financial year 2013-14, Global Depository Receipts (GDRs) offer
of the Company for 56,17,977 GDRs opened for subscription at an issue price
of US$ 3.56 per GDR representing 5,61,79,770 fully paid Equity Shares Re.
1/- each of the Company (each GDR representing 10 Equity Shares). Upon
subscription of the GDR, the Company Issued and allotted 5,61,79,770 fully
paid Equity Shares of Rs. 19.50 per share underlying Global Depository
Receipts (“GDRs”) on May 21, 2013. 5,61,79,770 Global Depository Receipts
have been listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange since May 24, 2013. As
at March 31, 2020, no GDRs have remained outstanding, as all the GDRs
have been converted into the underlying equity shares w.e.f. January 15, 2018
which forms part of the existing paid up share capital of the Company.

EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION SCHEME
Your Company has implemented an ESOP scheme called ZLL ESOP 2010
–AMENDED 2015 Scheme in accordance with the SEBI (Share Based
Employees Benefits) Regulations, 2014 for grant of stock options to its eligible
employees of the Company and its Subsidiary/ies. The Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company, inter alia,
administers and monitors the Employee Stock Option Scheme of the Company.
The applicable disclosures under Regulation 14 of the SEBI (Share Based
Employees Benefits) Regulations, 2014, relating to the Scheme are posted in
Investor Relations section on the Company’s website www.zeelearn.com.
During the year under review, 39,62,181 Stock Options were granted on
October 22, 2019. These options when vested as per the terms and conditions
of the Scheme entitled the option holder to apply for and be allotted equal
number of equity shares of face value of Rs. 1/- each at an exercise price of
Rs. 18.70 per share respectively being the closing market price of the equity
shares of the Company on the National Stock Exchange of India
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Limited as on October 18, 2019. Since the options have been granted at the
market price, the intrinsic value at grant is Nil and hence there is no charge to
the Profit and Loss account. These options will vest in a phased manner over
a period of 3 years beginning 2020, and may be exercised within a maximum
of four years from the date of vesting, subject to terms and conditions of the
Scheme and the grant letter. Your Directors believe this Scheme will help
create long term value for shareholders and operate as long term incentive to
attract and retain senior managerial talent.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY/IES
As at March 31, 2020, your company had three wholly owned subsidiaries,
namely, Digital Ventures Private Limited; Academia Edificio Private Limited;
and Liberium Global Resources Private Limited, one subsidiary MT Educare
Limited and seven step down subsidiaries.
In compliance with Section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013, a statement
containing requisite details including financial highlights of the operations of
all subsidiaries is annexed to this report.
In accordance with Indian Accounting Standard AS110 – Consolidated
Financial Statements read with Indian Accounting Standard AS 28 –
Accounting for Investments in Associates, and Indian Accounting Standard
111 – Financial Reporting of Interests in Joint Ventures, the audited
Consolidated Financial Statements are provided in and forms part of this
Annual Report as per Ind As format.
In accordance with Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the audited
financial statements including the consolidated financial statements and
related information of the Company and audited accounts of each of the
subsidiaries are available on the website of the Company
www.zeelearn.com. These documents will also be available for inspection
during business hours at the Registered Office of the Company.

Material Subsidiary:
The Board has adopted a Policy for determining Material Subsidiaries in
accordance with the requirements of Regulation 16(1)(C) of the Listing
Regulations. The Policy, as approved by the Board, is uploaded on the
Company’s corporate website www.zeelearn.com. In terms of the criteria laid
down in the Policy and as per the definition of material subsidiary provided in
Regulation 16(1)(c) of the Listing Regulations, Digital Ventures Private
Limited and MT Educare Limited is identified as ‘Material’, based on the
Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements for FY 2019-20.

Business Responsibility Report
In terms of Regulations 34 of the Listing Regulations, Business Responsibility
Report for FY 2019-20 detailing various initiative taken by the Company on
the environmental, social and governance front in prescribed format forms
part as a separate section of this Annual Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE & POLICIES
Your Company is in compliance with the Corporate Governance
requirements mentioned in Listing Regulations. In terms of Schedule V of
Listing Regulations, a detailed report on Corporate Governance along with
Compliance Certificate issued by Mrs. Mita Sanghavi, Practicing Company
Secretary is attached and forms an integral part of this Annual Report. All
Board members and senior management personnel have affirmed
compliance with the Code of Conduct for the year 2019-20. A declaration to
this effect signed by the Chief Executive Officer of the company is contained
in this Annual Report. The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
have certified to the Board with regard to the financial statements and other
matters as required under Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI LODR Regulations
and the said certificate is contained in this Annual Report. Management
Discussion and Analysis Report as per Listing Regulations are presented in
separate sections forming part of the Annual Report.
In compliance with the requirements of Section 178 of the Companies Act,
2013, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee of your Board had fixed
various criteria for nominating a person on the Board which inter alia include
desired size and composition of the Board, age limits, qualification /
experience, areas of expertise and independence of individual. Your
Company has also adopted a Remuneration Policy; salient features whereof
is annexed to this report.
In compliance with the requirements of Companies Act, 2013 and Listing
Regulations, your Board has approved various Policies including Code of
Conduct for Directors & Senior Management, Material Subsidiary Policy,
Insider Trading Code, Document Preservation Policy, Material Event
Determination and Disclosure Policy, Fair Disclosure Policy, Whistle Blower
and Vigil Mechanism Policy, Related Party Transaction Policy and
Remuneration Policy. All these policies and codes have been uploaded on
Company’s corporate website www.zeelearn.com. Additionally, Directors
Familiarisation Programme and Terms and Conditions for appointment of
Independent Directors can be viewed on Company’s corporate website
www.zeelearn.com.

CSR at Zee Learn is all about creating sustainable programs that actively
contribute to and support the social and economic development of the
society. In line with this intent, your Company has adopted a unified approach
towards CSR at Essel Group level, wherein CSR contributions of eligible
Essel group entities are pooled in, to fund high cost long-term projects that
help build Human capital and create lasting impact on the society. The Report
on CSR activities is given at Annexed to the Directors’ Report.

I Care Seminars for creating awareness about prevention of
child abuse
Through the year, Zee Learn continued its commitment of standing for
‘What’s Right For Child’ through its Child Abuse Prevention initiative “I Care”.
It’s a module designed to educate adults about child abuse, it teaches to
recognise incidence and prevent it further.
As a policy, all adults in the centre including teachers and support staff are
trained under I Care. This is further taken to parents and this year, Zee Learn
took this initiative to the community at large by conducting events at RWAs
and Corporates.
The entire Zee Learn network comprising of preschools and schools across
the country aims to sensitise maximum adults in their catchments about the
incidence of Child Abuse thereby aiming to create an abuse-free and
nurturing environment for every child.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
The Company has a balanced Board with combination of Executive and NonExecutive Directors. Your Board currently comprises of 6 Directors including
4 (four) Independent Directors, 1 (one) Non-Executive Director and 1 (one)
Executive Director. Independent Directors provide their declarations both at
the time of appointment and annually confirming that they meet the criteria of
independence as prescribed under Companies Act, 2013 and Listing
Regulations. During FY 2019-2020, your Board met 4 (four) times details of
which are available in Corporate Governance Report annexed to this report.
During the year under review:

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
In compliance with requirements of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013,
your Company has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
(CSR Committee). The CSR Committee as on March 31, 2020 comprised of
Dr. Manish Agarwal, Independent Director as Chairman, Mr. Roshan Lal
Kamboj, Independent Director, Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar, Independent Director
and Ms. Nanette D’sa, Independent Director as Members.
The said Committee has been entrusted with the responsibility of formulating
and recommending to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy
indicating the activities to be undertaken by the Company, monitoring the
implementation of the framework of the CSR Policy and recommending the
amount to be spent on CSR activities.

1.

Ms. Sangeeta Pandit resigned as Independent Director with effect from
October 1, 2019 citing health issues and increasing personal
commitments.

2.

Mr. Himanshu Modi resigned as Chairman and Non-Executive Director
with effect from January 7, 2020

3.

Dr. Manish Agarwal ceased to be an Independent Director with effect
from business closing hours of March 31, 2020 on completion of his
term as an Independent Director.

4.

Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj was appointed as an Additional Director in the
category of Independent Director with effect from May 17, 2019.

5.

Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar was appointed as an Additional Director in the
category of Independent Director with effect from December 30, 2019.

6.

Ms. Nanette D’sa was appointed as an Additional Director in the
category of Independent Director with effect from March 31, 2020.

The Independent Directors who resigned during the year have confirmed that
there were no other material reasons other than those provided in their
resignation letter(s).
Subsequent to March 31, 2020 following changes took place to the Board:
1.

Mr. Ajey Kumar resigned as Managing Director with effect from closing
hours on August 18, 2020.

2.

Mr. Surender Singh was appointed as Additional Director in the
category of Non-Executive Director with effect from July 31, 2020.

3.

Mr. Vikash Kumar Kar was appointed as Additional Director of the
Company with effect from August 19, 2020. He was also appointed as
Executive Director designated as Whole-Time Director for a period of
5(five) years with effect from August 19, 2020 subject to approval of
members at the ensuing AGM.

Your Board places on record its appreciation for contribution of Mr. Ajey
Kumar, Ms. Sangeeta Pandit, Mr. Himanshu Modi and Dr. Manish Agarwal as
Directors.
None of the Directors are liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting of the Company. Based on the recommendations made by
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board appointed Mr. Roshan
Lal Kamboj as an Additional Director in the category of Non-Executive
Independent Director for a period of three (3) years w.e.f. May 17, 2019. The
members of the Company at their 9th Annual General Meeting held on
September 26, 2019 approved appointment of Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj as
Non-Executive Independent Directors for a term of three (3) years w.e.f. May
17, 2019 upto May 16, 2022.
As per Section 161 of the Act, Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar, Ms. Nanette D’sa, Mr.
Surender Singh and Mr. Vikash Kumar Kar shall hold office as Directors of the
Company till ensuing AGM. Your company has received notice from
member(s) proposing their appointment and requisite proposals seeking
your approval for the appointment of these Directors forms part of the Notice
of ensuing AGM. Your Board recommends these proposals for approval of the
shareholder’s.
The information as required to be disclosed under the Listing Regulations in
case of appointment / re-appointment of the director, if any, is provided in
Report on Corporate Governance annexed to this report and in the notice of
the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
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The disclosure in pursuance of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 and
SEBI Listing Regulations pertaining to the remuneration, incentives etc. to the
Directors is given in the Corporate Governance Report.

Changes in Key Managerial Personnel:
During the year under review Mr. Umesh Pradhan resigned from the post of
Chief Financial Officer w.e.f. the close of business hours of October 7, 2019.
Accordingly, the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company as on March 31,
2020 comprises of Mr. Ajey Kumar, Managing Director, Mr. Debshankar
Mukhopadhyay, Chief Executive Officer and Mr. Bhuatesh Shah, Company
Secretary and Compliance Officer.
Subsequent to March 31, 2020 following changes took place in Key
Managerial Personnel:
1.

Mr. Debshankar Mukhopadhyay ceased to be Chief Executive Officer of
the Company with effect from April 23, 2020.

2.

Mr. Vikash Kumar Kar was appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the
Company with effect from April 24, 2020.

3.

Mr. Rakesh Agarwal was appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the
Company with effect from April 7, 2020.

4.

Mr. Bhautesh Shah ceased to be Company Secretary with effect from
May 12, 2020.

5.

Mr. Prashant Parekh was appointed as Company Secretary with effect
from July 31, 2020

6.

Mr. Ajey Kumar ceased to be Managing Director with effect from closing
hours on August 18, 2020.

7.

Mr. Vikash Kumar Kar was appointed as Additional Director in the
category of Executive Director designated as Whole-Time Director with
effect from August 19, 2020.

BOARD EVALUATION
In a separate meeting of Independent Directors, performance of nonindependent directors, performance of the board as a whole and performance
of the Chairman was evaluated. Based on such report of the meeting of
Independent Directors and taking into account the views of directors the
Board had evaluated its performance on various parameters such as Board
composition and structure, effectiveness of board processes, effectiveness of
flow of information, contributions from each Directors, etc.

BOARD COMMITTEES
In compliance with the requirements of Companies Act, 2013 and Listing
Regulations, your Board had constituted various Board Committees including
Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders
Relationship Committee and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.
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Details of the constitution of these Committees, which are in accordance with
regulatory requirements, have been uploaded on the website of the Company
viz. www.zeelearn.com. Details of scope, constitution, terms of reference,
number of meetings held during the year under review along with attendance
of Committee Members therein form part of the Corporate Governance
Report annexed to this report.

AUDITORS
STATUTORY AUDITOR
M/s. MGB & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.
101169W/W-100035) were appointed as statutory auditors of the company,
since inception i.e. from FY 2009-10. In terms of their appointment made at
the 9th AGM held on September 26, 2019, they are holding office of the
auditors up to the conclusion of the ensuing 10th AGM and hence, would retire
at the conclusion of the forthcoming 10th AGM.
As per provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), no
listed Company shall appoint or re-appoint an audit firm as auditor for more
than two terms of five consecutive years. It further provides that an audit firm
which has completed its two terms of five consecutive years, shall not be
eligible for re-appointment as auditor in the same company for five years from
the completion of such term.
Since, M/s. MGB & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, will complete its two
terms of five consecutive years as Statutory Auditors of the Company at the
ensuing AGM, the Company required to appoint a new auditor in place of
retiring auditors for the Financial Year 2020-21.
Accordingly, as per the said requirements of the Act, M/s. Ford Rhodes Parks &
Co. LLP., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 102860W/W100089)
are proposed to be appointed as Statutory Auditors for a period of a term of 5
years commencing from the conclusion of ensuing AGM till the conclusion of
the AGM to be held for the financial year 2024-25, subject to approval of the
Members.
M/s. Ford Rhodes Parks & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, have consented
to the said appointment and confirmed that their appointment, if made, would
be within the limits specified under Section 141(3)(g) of the Act. They have
further confirmed that they are not disqualified to be appointed as statutory
auditors in terms of the provisions of Section 139(1), Section 141(2) and
Section 141(3) of the Act and the provisions of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014.
The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors have recommended the
appointment of M/s. Ford Rhodes Parks & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants,
as statutory auditors of the Company from the conclusion of the ensuing AGM
till the conclusion of the AGM to be held for the financial year 2024-25, to the
shareholders.

Report of Statutory Auditors’

Compliance of the Secretarial Standards

For the FY 2019-20, the Auditors of the Company have issued modified
opinion in its report on the Financial Statements of the Company and forms
part of this Annual Report.

The Company has complied with applicable Secretarial Standards on Meeting
of the Board of Directors and on General Meetings issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India.

During the year the Statutory Auditors had not reported any matter under
Section 143 (12) of the Act, therefore no detail is required to be disclosed
under Section 134 (3) (ca) of the Act.

DISCLOSURES
I

Particulars of loans, guarantees and investments made by the Company
required to be disclosed in the Annual Accounts of the Company
pursuant to Para A of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations and under
section 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013 are contained in Note No. 40
to the Standalone Financial Statements which forms part of this Annual
Report.

COST AUDITOR
Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Cost Records and Audit) Rules, amended rules, 2014, the cost audit records
maintained by the Company in respect of its education services, other than
such similar services falling under philanthropy or as part of social spend
which do not form part of any business is required to be Audited.

ii.
Your Directors had, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee and on
ratification of its Members appointed M/s Vaibhav P Joshi & Associates, Cost
Accountants (Firm Registration No 101329) for conduct of audit of the cost
records of the Company for the financial year 2020-21.

The Secretarial Auditor has conducted an audit as per the applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 24A of the Listing Regulations.

iii. Risk Management:
The Company’s approach to addressing business risks is
comprehensive and includes periodic review of such risks and a
framework for mitigating controls and reporting mechanism of such risks.

iv. Internal Financial Controls:
Internal Financial Controls includes policies and procedures adopted by
the company for ensuring orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and timely
preparation of reliable financial information.

The Secretarial Audit Report given by the Secretarial Auditor in Form No. MR-3
as per the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rules framed thereunder for the financial year ended March 31, 2020 has
been annexed to this Board Report and forms part of the Annual Report.

The Company has in place a proper and adequate Internal Financial
Control System with reference to financial statements. During the year,
such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the
design or operation was observed.

Annual Secretarial Compliance Report
In compliance with the Regulation 24A of the Listing Regulations and the SEBI
circular CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019 dated February 8, 2019, the Company has
undertaken an audit for the Financial Year 2019-20 for all applicable
compliances as per Securities and Exchange Board of India Regulations and
Circulars/Guidelines issued thereunder. The Annual Secretarial Compliance
Report duly issued by Mrs. Mita Sanghavi. Practicing Company Secretaries
has been submitted to the Stock Exchanges within the prescribed timelines.
The report of Secretarial Auditor and Annual Secretarial Compliance Report
do not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer
or modified opinion.

Transactions with Related Parties :
None of the transactions with related parties fall under the scope of
Section 188(1) of the Act. Information on material transactions with
related parties pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Act, read with rule
8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, in Form AOC-2 is
annexed to this report.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014, the Board of Directors has appointed Mrs. Mita Sanghavi, Practicing
Company Secretaries to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company.

Particulars of loans, guarantees and investments :

v.

Deposits:
The Company has not invited or accepted any deposits within the meaning
of Sections 73 and 74 of the Act read with the Companies (Acceptance of
Deposits) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or reenactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), from public during the
year under review. Therefore, no amount of principal or interest was
outstanding, as on the balance sheet closure date.
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vi. Extract of Annual Return:
The extract of Annual Return in Form MGT-9 as required under Section
92(3) of the Act read with Companies (Management & Administration)
Rules, 2014 is annexed to this report.

a) Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or
otherwise.
b) Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the
Company under any scheme save and except ESOP referred to in this
Report.

vii. Sexual Harassment:
The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace
and has adopted a Policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of
sexual harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder. During the year under
review no complaints on sexual harassment was received.

viii. Regulatory Orders:
No significant or material orders were passed by the regulators or courts
or tribunals which impact the going concern status and Company’s
operations in future.

ix. Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is
required in respect of the following items as there were no
transactions on these items during the year under review:

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO:
During the year under review, there were no Foreign Exchange Earnings and the particulars of Foreign Exchange out go is given in Note no. 50 of the Notes to
Accounts forming part of the Annual Accounts.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

c) Neither the Managing Director nor the Whole-time Directors of the
Company received any remuneration or commission from any of its
subsidiaries.

Requisite disclosures in terms of the provisions of Section 197 of the Act read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 along with statement showing names and other particulars of the employees drawing remuneration in excess of the limits prescribed
under the said rules is annexed to this report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Your Company is engaged in the business of delivering learning solutions and
training to entire spectrum of the society from toddler to teens through its
multiple products. Since this business do not involve any manufacturing
activity, most of the information required to be provided under Section
134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not applicable. However, the information as
applicable are given hereunder:

Your Board takes this opportunity to place on record their appreciation for the dedication and commitment of employees shown at all levels, Franchisees and
Business Partners that have contributed to the success of your Company. Your Directors also express their gratitude for the valuable support and co-operation
received from the Central and State Governments including Ministry of Human Resource Development and other stakeholders including Bankers, Financial
Institutions, Investors, Service Providers as well as regulatory and government authorities.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT:
Statements in the Board’s Report and the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the company’s objectives, projections, estimates and expectations
may constitute ‘forward looking statements’ within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results may differ materially from those either expressed
or implied. Important factors that could affect the company’s operations include significant political and / or economic environment in India, tax laws, litigations,
interest and other costs.

For and on behalf of the Board

Conservation of Energy:
(i)
(ii)

Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy
Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy

Your Company being a service provider requires minimal energy consumption
and every endeavor has been made to ensure optimal use of energy and
avoid wastages and conserve energy as far as possible.

Place: Mumbai
Date: October 7, 2020

Vikash Kumar Kar
Whole-Time Director & CEO
DIN:07418787

Nanette D’sa
Director
DIN:05261531

(iii) Capital investment on energy conservation equipment’s

Technology Absorption:
(i)

The efforts made towards technology absorption

(ii)

The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction,
product development or import substitution

(iii) In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years
reckoned from the beginning of the financial year)
a.
b.
c.
d.

In its endeavor to deliver the best to its users and business partners, your
Company has been constantly active in harnessing and tapping the latest and
best technology in the industry.

The details of technology imported
The year of import
Whether the technology been fully absorbed
If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and
the reasons thereof

(iv) The expenditure incurred on Research and Development
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ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)
ACTIVITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2019-20

STATEMENT CONTAINING SALIENT FEATURES OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF SUBSIDIARIES/ASSOCIATE
COMPANIES/JOINT VENTURES AS PER THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020
( in lakhs)
Name of the Subsidiary
Share capital

Digital Ventures
Private Limited

Academia Edificio
Private Limited

Liberium Global
Resources
Private Limited

MT Educare
Limited
(Consolidated)

1

A brief outline of the company’s CSR policy, including overview of
projects or programs proposed to be undertaken and a reference to
the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs.

CSR activities at Zee Learn are carried out as per the CSR Policy with primary
focus on Education, Health Care, Women Empowerment and Sports.

2

The Composition of the CSR Committee as on March 31, 2020.

1.
2.
3.
4.

3

Average net profit of the company for last three financial years
(Amount in Rs. )

Rs. 54,42,32,340

4

Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount as in item 3
above) (Amount in Rs.)

Rs. 1,08,84,647

5

Details of CSR spent during the financial year:
(1) Total amount to be spent for the Financial Year
(2) Amount unspent , if any;
(3) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year :

501.00

0.10

0.10

7222.81

31082.85

(2.99)

701.04

(1229.90)

0

0

0

16231.25

Total assets

75161.43

1.06

1911.19

40361.71

Total Liabilities

42577.58

3.94

1210.05

25360.36

0

0

409.16

643.12

3504.90

0

8735.64

20516.47

Profit/(loss) before taxation and exceptional items

202.38

(0.88)

333.25

(719.17)

Profit/(loss) before taxation

202.38

(0.88)

333.25

(3833.82)

0

0

88.55

710.78

Profit after taxation

202.38

(0.88)

244.70

(4544.60)

Proposed Dividend

0

0

0

0

100%

100%

100%

59.12%

Reserves & surplus
Non-Controlling Interest

Investments
Turnover (Revenue from Operations)

Provision for taxation

% of shareholding

6

Reason for not spending entire CSR amount

Dr. Manish Agarwal, Independent Director (Chairman)
Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj , Independent Director
Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar, Independent Director
Ms. Nanette D’sa, Independent Director

Rs. 1,08,84,647
Rs. 1,08,84,647
Please refer note 6 below
Due to non-availabilitity of suitable CSR proposals during the year in line with
the CSR policy of the company, the amount of CSR unspent shall be carried
forward to the next financial year and shall be spent for funding suitable CSR
projects in future.

Notes:
The CSR committee certifies that the implementation and monitoring of the CSR policy is in compliance with the CSR objectives and policy of the company.

1. The Company does not have any Associate/Joint Venture.
For and on behalf of the Board
Place: Mumbai
Date: October 7, 2020
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Director
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PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION OF EMPLOYEES

Sl.
No.

{Pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014}
A.

Remuneration of each Director and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) along with particulars of increase in remuneration during the financial year, ratio of
remuneration of Directors to the median remuneration of employees and comparison of remuneration of each KMP against Company’s standalone
performance:

Name of Director/ Key
Managerial Personnel

Remuneration
Total (` In Lakhs)

% increase in
Remuneration

Ratio of Director's
remuneration to
median remuneration

Comparison of remuneration
of each KMP against
Company’s Performance
% of Turnover

**Manish Agarwal$

5.00

9%

0.7 : 1

NA

***Roshan Lal Kamboj$

4.37

NA

0.6 : 1

NA

NA

5.00

11%

0.7 : 1

NA

NA

^Dattatraya Kelkar$

1.27

NA

0.2 : 1

NA

NA

^^Nanette D'sa$

0.01

NA

0:1

NA

NA

200.16

NA

28 : 1

1.03%

2.20%

Managing Director
*Ajey Kumar

The Percentage increase in median remuneration of employees in
Financial Year

8 %*

2

Number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company

289 (as on March 31, 2020)

3.

Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees
other than the managerial personnel in the last financial year and its
comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial
remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any
exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration

The average annual increase in the salaries of employees other than
managerial personnel during the year was 12.62% while the average increase
in managerial remuneration during the year was not comparable due to
proportionate earnings.

4.

Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the
Company.

The Company affirms that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy
of the Company.

NA

Nandita Agarwal Parkar$

Key Managerial Personnel
@Debshankar Mukhopadhyay

77.07

5.32%

NA

0.40%

0.85%

# Umesh Pradhan

55.99

NA

NA

0.29%

0.61%

&Bhautesh Shah

17.86

1.13%

NA

0.09%

0.20%

$ Independent Directors remuneration represents Commission and excludes Sitting Fees

Disclosure

1

% of Net Profit
Before Tax

Non- Executive Directors

Requirments

*Perquisite values on ESOP exercised by employees have not been included for this calculation

B. Particulars of Employees whose remuneration exceeded Rs. 1.02 crore per annum or Rs. 8.5 lakhs per month during FY 2019-20
1.
Sr.
No.

Employed throughout the year and in receipt of remuneration aggregating Rs. 1.02 crore or more per annum.
Qualification

Total
Exp

B.E, M.B.A

25

Employee Name

Age

1.

Ajey Kumar

48

2.

Employed part of the year and in receipt of remuneration aggregating Rs. 8.5 lakhs or more per month

Designation
Managing Director

Remunerations
2,00,16,352

Last Employment Name
Essel Corporate
Resources LLP

There are no employees who were employed part of the year and in receipt of remuneration aggregating Rs. 8.5 lakhs or more per month.

* Mr. Ajey Kumar was re-designated/appointed as Managing Director from Executive Director w.e.f. October 1, 2018. No remuneration was paid to him as
Executive Director upto October 1, 2018 during FY 2018-19. The remuneration paid to him during FY 2019-20 is for the entire year and hence % increase in
remuneration for 2019-2020 is not comparable with earnings of previous FY 2018-19 since he was paid remuneration for a part period only in FY 2018-19. The
Managing Director was working in the capacity of Professional Director and hence is not governed, to that extent, by the applicable limits prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder, as amended from time to time. The remuneration also constitutes the value of perquisite calculated upon
exercise of ESOPs during the year, if any. Mr. Ajey Kumar resigned as Managing Director w.e.f. closing business hours on August 18, 2020.
** Dr. Manish Agarwal ceased to be Director w.e.f. closing business hours on March 31, 2020
***Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj was appointed w.e.f. May 17, 2019. Hence % increase in remuneration not calculated.
^Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar was appointed w.e.f. December 30, 2019. Hence % increase in remuneration not calculated.
^^ Ms. Nanette D’sa was appointed w.e.f. March 31, 2020. Hence % increase in remuneration not calculated.
@Mr. Debshankar Mukhopadhyay ceased to be CEO and KMP w.e.f. April 23, 2020.
# Mr. Umesh Pradhan ceased to be CFO and KMP w.e.f. October 7, 2020. His % increase in remuneration has not been calculated as he has worked only for part
of the year.
& Mr. Bhautesh Shah ceased to be Company Secretary and KMP w.e.f. May 12, 2020.
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3.
Sr.
No

Details of Remuneration# of Top ten Employees for the year 2019-20
Employee Name

Age

Designation

Qualification

PARTICULARS OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Total
Remunerations
Exp

Form AOC-2

Last Employment Name

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
1

*Debshankar
Mukhopadhyay

50

Chief Executive Officer

B.Com, PGDBM

23

77,06,774

Manipal Global Education Service

2

$Umesh A Pradhan

51

Chief Financial Officer

B.Com, ICWA

30

55,98,968

Balaji Telefilms

3

Vikash Kumar Kar

41

Chief Human Resources
Officer

B.Sc, MBA

19

52,02,012

MSCI Services Private Limited

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:
The Company has not entered into any contract or arrangement or transaction with its related parties which is not at arm’s length during financial year 2019-20.

4

Brijesh Jadia

47

Head - Supply Chain
& Commercial

B.E, MBA

23

36,00,503

Ingersoll Rand International

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:
The Company has not entered into any material contracts or arrangements or transactions with its related parties which is at arm’s length basis during financial
year 2019-20.

5

Vivek Bhanot

46

Business Head - SAT

B.Sc, MBA

24

29,49,286

Millennium Education
Management Pvt. Ltd.

6

Santosh Gupta

43

Head Information Technology

M.Com, MCA

22

28,80,271

Capgemini India Pvt Ltd

7

~Sumit Mishra

47

Business Head - MLZS

B.Tech, PGDM

21

28,22,725

Millennium Education
Management Pvt. Ltd.

8

@Shyam Sunder
Gudimella

41

Head Content and Curriculum

B.Sc, PGDM

18

27,67,334

Reliance Jio Infocomm Ltd

9

Sandeep Shetty

47

Head - Vocational Business

B.Sc

25

24,10,903

APG Learning

10

^Avinash Kundalia

47

National Franchise
B.com, MBA
Development Manager - Kidzee

26

20,91,158

ICICI Bank Ltd

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto:

For and on behalf of the Board
Place: Mumbai
Date: October 7, 2020

Vikash Kumar Kar
Whole-Time Director & CEO
DIN:07418787

Nanette D’sa
Director
DIN:05261531

# The sum includes the value of perquisite calculated upon exercise of ESOPs during the year, if any.
* Debshankar Mukhopadhyay (Chief Executive Officer) left the Company w.e.f. July 22, 2020.
$ Umesh Pradhan (Chief Financial Officer) left the Company w.e.f. October 7, 2019.
~ Sumit Mishra (Business Head - MLZS ) left the Company w.e.f. January 20, 2020.
@ Shyam Sunder Gudimella (Head Content and Curriculum ) left the Company w.e.f. December 31, 2019.
^Avinash Kundalia (National Franchise Development Manager – Kidzee) left the Company w.e.f. October 7, 2019.
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allowances such as education allowances, white goods and
information technology goods allowance, helper allowance,
professional development allowance, personal allowances, books
and periodical allowance, entertainment allowance, business travel
allowances, subscription allowances, provident fund, superannuation,
national pension scheme, gratuity, leave encashment and any other
allowances etc. as may be recommended by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee / Board of Directors and approved by the
Members of the Company from time to time.

EXTRACT OF REMUNERATION POLICY
The Board has approved a policy for Remuneration for Director(s) and
Employees of the Company which inter alia includes:
I

Objective:
This Policy aims to attract, retain and motivate the Members of the
Board of Directors, Senior Managers viz: CEO, and other employees
who are at one level below the Key Managerial Personnel or
Functional Heads of the Company, by remunerating them reasonably
and sufficiently so as to run the operations of the Company
successfully. The Policy reflects the Company's objectives for good
corporate governance as well as sustained long-term value creation
for shareholders.

ii)

However, the overall remuneration of executive member(s) on the
Board, where there are more than one, shall not exceed 10% of the net
profit calculated in the manner provided under the Companies Act,
2013 and Rules framed thereunder, and shall not exceed 5% in case
there is only one executive member on the Board. In the event of loss
or inadequacy of profit in any financial year during the currency of
tenure of services of an executive member of the Board, the payment
of remuneration shall be governed by the applicable limits prescribed
under the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder, as
amended from time to time, however such applicable limits will not
apply to Executive Directors working in the capacity of Professional
Directors, to that extent.

Guiding Principles:
The guiding principle of this Policy is that the remuneration and other
terms of engagement / employment shall be competitive enough to
ensure that the Company is in a position to attract, retain and motivate
right kind of human resource(s) for achieving the desired growth set by
the Company’s management year on year thereby creating long-term
value for all stakeholders of the Company.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee believes that a
successful remuneration policy must ensure that a significant part of
the remuneration package should be linked to the achievement of
corporate performance targets and a strong alignment of interest with
stakeholders.
iii)

Remuneration of Executive Members on the Board :
Any Executive Member(s) on the Board shall be paid remuneration
which shall comprise of fixed monthly basic salary, perquisites such as
House Rent Allowance or furnished / unfurnished housing
accommodation in lieu thereof, personal allowance, car with or without
chauffeur, telephone for office as well as personal use, reimbursement
of medical expenses, children education allowance, medical
insurance, life insurance, meal and gift vouchers, personal accident
insurance, communication and IT equipment, leave travel allowance,
club membership, stock options, statutory and non-statutory

98

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee will from time to time
consider proposals concerning the appointment and remuneration of
the Key Managerial Personnel and ensure that the proposed
remuneration is in line with industry standards in comparable
companies. Such proposals then shall be submitted to the Board for
approval. The remuneration of the members of the Executive
Management may consist of the following components:

The Non-Executive Directors shall be eligible for ESOPs as per the
ESOP Scheme of the Company as approved by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee from time to time.
Independent Directors of the Company shall not be entitled to any stock
option issued or proposed to be issued by the Company.
v)

Remuneration of Executive Management comprising of Senior
Management & Key Managerial Personnel:
The Company believes that a combination of fixed and performancelinked pay to the Executive Management shall ensure that the company
can attract and retain key employees. The performance-linked
incentive based on Company performance and performance of the
employee concerned each year shall be considered and approved by
the Nomination & Compensation Committee, annually inter-alia for the
Executive Management. Additionally, subject to appropriate approval of

•
•
•
•

Basic salary and Allowances
Performance linked incentive / bonus
Stock options
Perquisites as per rules of the Company including Company car,
telephone etc.
Executive Management shall not be eligible to receive any
remuneration, including sitting fees, for directorships held in any of the
Essel Group of Companies, whether listed or otherwise.

Executive Members of the Board including the Managing Director, if
any, shall be employed under service contracts for a period not
exceeding 5 (five) years at a time, on the terms & other conditions and
remuneration as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and approved by the Members of the Company at the
General Meeting(s). Executive members of the Board shall not be
eligible to receive any sitting fees for attending any meeting of the
Board of Directors or Committee thereof.

While designing the remuneration package, efforts are to be made to
ensure that the remuneration matches the level in comparable
companies, whilst also taking into consideration requisite
competencies, qualifications, industry experience, efforts required
and the scope of the work.
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee while considering a
remuneration package shall ensure balance between fixed and
incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives
appropriate to the working of the company and its goals.

shareholders, the Company may consider issuance of stock options to
Senior Management.

calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and relevant rules framed thereunder. The performance of the
non-executive members of the Board shall be reviewed by the Board on
an annual basis.

iv)

Remuneration of Non-Executive Members of the Board:
The remuneration payable to Non-Executive Directors will be decided
by Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the
Board from time to time.
The Non –Executive members / Independent Directors of the Board
shall be eligible for sitting fees for attending the meetings of the Board
and/ or Committees thereof, excluding Stakeholders Relationship
Committee and Finance Sub- committee and reimbursement of
expenses for participation in the Board and other meetings.
The remuneration payable to the Non-Executive member(s) /
Independent Directors of the Board shall be limited to a fixed amount of
Commission each year, as may be determined and approved by the
Board based on the time devoted, contribution made in the progress
and guiding the Company for future growth. Aggregate of such sum
shall not exceed 1% of net profit of the year on a stand-alone basis or
such sum as may be prescribed by the Government from time to time,
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Form MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Sl No

As on the ﬁnancial year ended on March 31, 2020
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014

I.

C

Stepdown Subsidiary Companies

1

MT Education Services Private Ltd.
220, 2nd Floor, “FLYING COLORS”, Pandit Din Dayal Upadhyay Marg,
L.B.S. Cross Road, Mulund (West), Mumbai – 400080
CIN U80301MH2010PTC199012

REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS
I

CIN

L80301MH2010PLC198405

ii)

Registration Date

04.01.2010

iii)

Name of the Company

Zee Learn Limited

iv)

Category / Sub-Category of the Company

Company Limited by Share / Indian Non – Government Company

v)

Address of the Registered ofﬁce and contact details

Continental Building, 135, Dr. Annie Besant Road
Worli, Mumbai - 400 018
Tel No: +91-22-40343900 / Fax No: +91-22-26743422

vi)

Whether Listed

II.

2

3

Yes

vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar
and Share Transfer Agent

M/s Link Intime India Private Limited
C-101, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli West, Mumbai- 400083
Tel No: +91-22-49186000 Fax No: +91-22-49186060
Email : rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

Name, Address & CIN of the Company

4

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

Lakshya Forrum For Competitions Private. Ltd
(Formerly known as Lakshya Educare Pvt. Ltd.)
220, 2nd Floor, “FLYING COLORS”, Pandit Din Dayal Upadhyay Marg,
L.B.S. Cross Road, Mulund (West), Mumbai – 400080.
CIN: U80301MH2012PTC238011
Chitale’s Personalised Learning Private Ltd.
1/14, Shefalee Co-op Society, Phiroze Shah Road,
Santacruz (West), Mumbai 400054.
CIN: U80301MH2009PTC197141
Sri Gayatri Educational Services Private Ltd
220, 2nd Floor, “FLYING COLORS”, Pandit Din Dayal Upadhyay Marg,
L.B.S. Cross Road, Mulund (West), Mumbai – 400080.
CIN: U80904MH2014PTC255536

% of shares held

Applicable Section

-

2(87)

-

2(87)

-

2(87)

-

2(87)

-

2(87)

-

2(87)

-

2(87)

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:5
Sl. No.

Name and Description of
main products/ services

NIC Code of the main
products/ services

1.

Education support services

99929200

% to total turnover
of the company
100%
6

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Sl No

Name, Address & CIN of the Company

% of shares held

Applicable Section
7

A

Holding Company
Nil

B

Subsidiary Companies

1

Digital Ventures Private Limited
Continental Building, 135, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai – 400 018
CIN U72900MH2006PTC165215

100%

2(87)

Academia Ediﬁcio Private Limited
Continental Building, 135, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai – 400 018
CIN U45400MH2016PTC272078

100%

2(87)

Liberium Global Resources Private Limited
18th Floor, Marathon Futurex, N. M. Joshi Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai – 400013.
CIN U74999MH2017PTC293021

100%

2(87)

59.12%

2(87)

2

3

4

100

MT Educare Limited
220, 2nd Floor, “FLYING COLORS”, Pandit Din Dayal
Upadhyay Marg,L.B.S. Cross Road, Mulund (West), Mumbai – 400080
CIN: L80903MH2006PLC163888

D

Robomate EduTech Private Ltd
220, 2nd Floor, “FLYING COLORS”, Pandit Din Dayal Upadhyay Marg,
L.B.S. Cross Road, Mulund (West), Mumbai – 400080.
CIN: U74999MH2016PTC286570
Letspaper Technologies Private Ltd.
220, 2nd Floor, “FLYING COLORS”, Pandit Din Dayal Upadhyay Marg,
L.B.S. Cross Road, Mulund (West), Mumbai – 400080.
CIN: U74999MH2016PTC289017
Labh Ventures India Private Ltd.
Cedar tower No.4/3102, M. G. Link Road, Nahur, Bhandup (West),
Mumbai – 400 078
CIN: U74999MH2015PTC262045
Associate Company
NIL
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IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN ( EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL BREAKUP AS PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL EQUITY)

Foreign Nationals

I) Category wise Shareholding

20,727

274

21,001

Trusts88

0

88

0.00

Trust Employees

0

0

0

38,51,456

98,894

39,50,350

1.21

Non Resident Indians
No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year
Sl.
No.

Category of
Shareholders
Demat

Physical

A. Promoters
(1) Indian
Individual/HUF
0
0
Bodies Corp.
18,06,45,073
0
Sub-total (A) (1):18,06,45,073
0
(2) Foreign
Bodies Corp.
57,97,315
0
Sub-total (A) (2):57,97,315
0
Total shareholding
(A) = (A)(1)+(A)(2)
18,64,42,388
0
B. Public Shareholding
(1). Institutions
Mutual Funds
0
274
Banks / FI
4,67,023
0
Insurance
Companies
FIIs
Foreign Portfolio
Investors
7,93,75,862
3013
Sub-total (B)(1):7,98,42,885 3,287
(2). Non-Institutions
a) Bodies Corp.
Indian
1,63,27,740
0
b) Individuals
Individual shareholders
holding nominal
share capital
upto Rs. 1 Lac
2,73,49,433 90,175
Individual Shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in excess of
Rs. 1 lac
83,48,951
0
c) NBFCs registered
with RBI
1,55,555
0
d) Others
Overseas
Corporate Bodies
123
0

102

% of Total
Shares

Total

0
18,06,45,073
18,06,45,0733

0
55.39
55.39

No. of Shares held at the end of the year

Demat

0
15,75,68,150
15,75,68,150

Physical

0
0
0

% of Total
Shares

Total

0
15,75,68,150
15,75,68,150

0
48.32
48.32

Change*

0.00
-7.07
-7.07

1.79
1.79

2,88,74,238
2,88,74,238

0
0

2,88,74,238
2,88,74,238

8.85
8.85

7.07
7.07

18,64,42,388

57.18

18,64,42,388

0

18,64,42,388

57.18

0.00

274
4,67,023

0.00
0.14

0
5,556

274
0

274
5,556

0.00
0.00

0.00
-0.14

7,68,58,633
7,68,64,189

3013
3,287

7,68,61,646
7,68,67,476

23.57
23.57

C.

5.01

1,68,25,708

0

1,68,25,708

5.16

8.42

2,79,14,657 83,930

2,79,98,587

8.59

0.00

0.00

83

0

83

0.00

0.00

0.00

27

0

27

0.00

0.00

48,52,570

96,155

49,48,725

1.52

0.31

HUF

13,96,932

0

13,96,932

0.43

12,80,222

0

12,80,222

0.39

-0.04

17,30,943

0

17,30,943

0.53

16,50,443

0

16,50,443

0.50

-0.03

Clearing Member

4,18,874

0

4,18,874

0.13

1,80,301

0

1,80,301

0.05

-0.08

Sub-total (B)(2):-

5,96,00,822

1,89,343

5,97,90,165

18.34

6,26,02,502 1,80,359

6,27,82,861

19.26

0.92

Total Public
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2)

13,94,43,707

1,92,630 13,96,36,337

42.82

13,94,66,691 1,83,646 13,96,50,337

42.82

0

32,58,86,095

1,92,630 32,60,78,725

100.00

183646 32,60,92,725 100.00

0

Shares held by
Custodian for
GDRs

-0.77
-0.92

0.15

Shareholding at the beginning of the
year i.e. April 1, 2019

2.56

98,65,527

0

98,65,527

3.02

0.46

1,55,555

0.05

3514

0

3,514

0.00

-0.05

Shareholding at the end of the
year i.e. March 31, 2020

%

% of shares
pledged/
encumbered
to Capital

No.of
shares

7,68,75,375

23.58

18.77

6,12,10,000

18.77

18.05

-4.81

Asian Satellite Broadcast
Private Limited

6,30,52,512

19.34

16.61

5,73,93,250

17.60

16.61

-1.74

3

Jayneer Enterprises LLP

1,50,00,000

4.60

4.59

1,50,00,000

4.60

4.59

-

4

Essel Media Ventures Private
Limited

1,28,61,036

3.94

3.94

1,28,61,036

3.94

3.94

-

Sprit Infrapower & Multiventures
Private Limited

1,11,03,864

3.40

3.40

1,11,03,864

3.41

3.40

0.01

Sl.
No.

1

0.17

83,48,951

32,59,09,079

II) Shareholding of Promoters

5
2,74,39,608

29,601

Note:
* The change in percentage of share capital is due to change in total paid up capital of the company, post ESOP allotment.

2
1,63,27,740

274

%

57,97,315
57,97,315

24.34
24.49

29,327

Other Directors

Grand Total (A+B+C)

7,93,78,875
7,98,46,172

0.00

Name of Promoters

No.of
shares

Jayneer Infrapower &
Multiventures Private Limited

% of shares
pledged/
encumbered
to Capital

%

%
Change*

6

Essel Infraprojects Limited

17,52,286

0.54

0.00

0

0

0

-0.54

7

Essel Holdings Limited

57,97,315

1.78

0.00

2,88,74,238

8.85

0.00

7.07

18,64,42,388

57.18

47.31

18,64,42,388

57.18

46.59

-

Total

Change in total paid up Capital of the Company, post ESOP Allotment.
* During the year there is change in Promoters holding due to inter-se transfer of shares between Promoters

123

0.00

123

0

123

0.00

0.00
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III) Change In Promoters' Shareholding

V)
Shareholding at the beginning of the year

Cumulative shareholding during the year

Particulars
% of total shares
of the Company

No. of
Shares
At the beginning of the year

18,64,42,388

57.18

No. of
Shares
-

Name of Directors / KMP

-

At the end of the year

18,64,42,388

57.18

Change in total paid up Capital of the Company, post ESOP Allotment.
IV) Shareholding pattern of top ten shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs & ADRs)

Shareholding at the end
of the year (March 31, 2020)

Name of Shareholders
% Equity Shares
Capitals

No. of
Shares

% Equity Shares
Capitals

Moon Capital Trading Pte Ltd.

$

2,09,55,327

6.43

2,09,55,327

6.43

Polus Global Fund

$

2,08,56,608

6.40

2,06,27,966

6.32

Morgan Stanley Asia (Singapore) Pte

$

1,13,18,127

3.47

1,38,04,546

4.23

Copthall Mauritius Investment Limited

$

81,05,371

2.49

81,05,371

2.49

Vyoman Tradelink India Private Limited

@

0

0

49,49,506

1.51

UBS Principal Capital Asia Ltd.

$

46,34,088

1.42

46,34,088

1.42

Veena Investments Pvt. Ltd.

$

34,49,013

1.06

34,49,013

1.06

Tarra Fund

$

24,62,530

0.76

24,62,530

0.76

Hornbill Orchid India Fund

$

31,60,000

0.97

22,93,464

0.70

JM Financial Services Limited

@

80,659

0.02

22,74,338

0.70

Norfolk Media Solutions Private Limited

@

0

0

21,51,220

0.65

Vittoria Fund-Sr, L.P.-Asia Portfolio

$

31,20,619

0.96

19,70,566

0.60

Notes:
The shares of the Company are substantially held in dematerialised form and are traded on a daily basis and hence date wise increase/decrease in shareholding
is not indicated.
$ denotes common top 10 shareholders as on April 1, 2019 and March 31, 2020
@ denotes common top 10 shareholders only as on March 31, 2020

*Mr. Ajey Kumar
Managing Director
** Dr. Manish Agarwal
Independent Director
Ms. Nandita Agarwal Parker
Independent Director
Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj
Independent Director
Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar
Independent Director
Ms. Nanette D’sa
Independent Director
^ Mr. Debshankar Mukhopadhyay
Chief Executive Ofﬁcer
^^ Mr. Bhautesh Shah
Company Secretary

%.of Share
Capital

Cumulative shareholding
during the year

Changes

Date

No.of
Shares

Reasons

No.of
Shares

%.of Share
Capital

16,00,943
49,500

0.49
0.01

-

-

-

16,00,943
49,500

0.49
0.01

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

* Mr Ajey Kumar resigned as Managing Director of the Company w.e.f. closing hours on August 18, 2020
** Dr. Manish Agarwal ceased to be Director w.e.f. closing hours on March 31, 2020
^ Mr. Debshankar Mukhopadhyaya ceased to be CEO w.e.f. April, 23, 2020
^^Mr. Bhautesh Shah ceased to be Company Secretary w.e.f. May 12, 2020

VI) INDEBTEDNESS
( In Lakhs)

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Particulars excluding deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of FY i.e., April 01, 2019
(i) Principal Amount
(ii) Interest due but not paid
(iii) Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ii+iii)
Change in Indebtness during the Financial Year
•
Addition including IND AS adjustments
•
Reduction including IND AS adjustments
Net Change
Indebtedness at the end of FY i.e., March 31, 2020
(i.) Principal Amount
(ii) Interest due but not paid
(iii) Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ii+iii)
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Shareholding at the beginning
of the year i.e. April 1, 2019
No.of
shares

-

No. of
Shares

Details of changes in the shareholding of Directors of the Company who held/ hold Equity Shares of the Company are as mentioned herein. None of the
other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company held any Equity Shares of the Company either at the beginning of the year i.e. April 1, 2019 or at
the end of the year i.e. March 31, 2020 or dealt in the Equity Shares of the Company during ﬁnancial year ended March 31, 2020:

% of total shares
of the Company

Date wise Increase/ Decrease in promoters
share holding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase/ decrease

Shareholding at the beginning
of the year (April 1, 2019)

Change in Shareholding of Directors & KMP

Secured Loans

Unsecured Loans

Deposits

Total Indebtedness

13,569.91
25.31
3,040.01
16,635.23

970.91
514.94
1,485.85

9,140.16
9,140.16

23,680.98
25.31
3,554.95
27,261.23

1,633.71
(8,084.64)
(6,450.93)

6,210.50
(35.00)
6,175.50

(1,535.76)
(1,535.76)

7,844.21
(9,655.40)
(1,811.19)

9,768.70
34.92
380.68

6,690.91
970.44

7,604.40
-

24,064.01
34.92
1351.11

10,184.29

7,661.35

7,604.40

25,450.04

105

Management Report

VII) REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/ Manager/ WTD

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time Directors and/ or Manager

(Amount in `)

( In Lakhs)

Gross Salary (As per Income Tax Act) to Mr. Ajey Kumar@
Perquisites

-

Proﬁts in lieu of salary

-

Total Stock Options Granted during the year

Key Managerial Personnel

Particulars of Remuneration

190.73

* Debshankar
Mukhopadhyay
CEO

25,75,597

# Mr. Umesh
Pradhan - CFO
(upto October 7, 2019)

^ Bhautesh Shah
Company Secretary

Total

Stock Options Exercised during FY

-

Sweat Equity

-

Gross Salary (As per Income Tax Act)

7,431,998

5,464,049

1,701,245

14,597,292

Commission as % of Proﬁt

-

Salary

7,431,998

5,464,049

1,701,245

14,597,292

Perquisites -

-

-

-

Proﬁts in lieu of salary

-

-

-

-

Others (contribution to Provident Fund)

9.43

TOTAL (A)

200.16

Ceiling as per the Companies Act,

Within the ceiling of the Companies Act, 2013

@Mr. Ajey Kumar resigned as Managing Director of the Company w.e.f. closing hours on August 18, 2020. He was working in the capacity of professional director
and hence is not governed, to the extent, by the applicable limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder, as amended from time
to time. The remuneration also constitutes the value of perquisite calculated upon exercise of ESOPs during the year, if any.

Commission

Others

Total

* Dr. Manish Agarwal

2,40,000

5,00,000

-

7,40,000

** Dr. Sangeeta Pandit

1,00,000

-

-

1,00,000

60,000

5,00,000

-

5,60,000

1,40,000

4,37,158

-

5,77,158

80,000

1,27,049

-

2,07,049

-

1,366

-

1,366

6,20,000

15,65,573

-

21,85,573

Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj
Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar
Ms. Nanette D’sa
Total
Overall Ceiling as per Act

-

13,250

48,250

-

-

-

-

Sweat Equity

-

-

-

-

Commission-

-

-

-

274,776

134,919

85,176

494,871

7,706,774

5,598,968

1,786,421

15,092,163

Others (Contribution to Provident Fund)

(Amount in )
Sitting Fees

Ms. Nandita Agarwal Parker

35,000

Stock Options Exercised during FY

Total

B. Remuneration to other Directors
Name of Directors

Total Stock Options Granted

* Mr. Debshankar Mukhopadhyaya ceased to be CEO w.e.f. April, 23, 2020
# Mr. Umesh Pradhan ceased to be CFO w.e.f. October 7, 2019
^ Mr. Bhautesh Shah ceased to be Company Secretary w.e.f. May 12, 2020

VIII)

PENALTIES/ PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: None
For and on behalf of the Board

1% of Net Proﬁts as per Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013

* Dr. Manish Agarwal ceased to be Director w.e.f. closing hours on March 31, 2020

Place: Mumbai
Date: October 7, 2020

Vikash Kumar Kar
Whole-Time Director & CEO
DIN:07418787

Nanette D’sa
Director
DIN:05261531

** Dr. Sangeeta Pandit ceased to be Director w.e.f. closing hours on October 01, 2019
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COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATION MADE BY THE AUDITORS

Further, the Auditors of the Company in their Report have also given certain qualification on Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2020. The qualified opinion of the Statutory Auditors and management reply thereto is as under:-

The Directors wish to state that the Statutory Auditors of the Company has given modified opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2020. The qualification in the Standalone Financial Statement and management response to the aforesaid
qualification is given as under:-

Auditors’ Qualification
a)

b)

c)

Due to the prevailing unprecedented Covid19
pandemic situation and the uncertainty
connected to it, the Company has not been
able to carry out a detailed and comprehensive
assessment of the asset in accordance with the
principles of Indian Accounting standard – 36
“Impairment of Assets” and hence no
adjustments have been considered by the
Company to the carrying value of this noncurrent investment as at 31 March, 2020.

The Company has not complied with the provisions of Regulation 33 of Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015 relating to the
submission of the results for the quarter ended 31 March 2020 to Securities and Exchange Board
of India (SEBI) within the stipulated time. Penalties on account of such non compliances are
presently not ascertainable and not provided for in the books of account. Consequently, we are
unable to comment on the impact, if any, on the standalone financial statements.

The delay was due to non-consolidation of
accounts of one of our subsidiary MT Educare
Limited, in which Zee Learn Limited holds
59.12% stake. MT Educare has not been able
to submit its audited results to us because of
unavoidable situation arising due to COVID-19.

Emphasis of Matter

Considering the fact that the situation is
exceptional and is changing dynamically, the
Company is not in a position to gauge with
certainty, the future impact on its operations.
However, the Company is confident about
adapting to the changing business
environment and respond suitably to fulfill the
needs of its business partners.
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Management’s Reply

a)

The consolidated financial statements as at March 31, 2020 include goodwill having carrying value
of Rs 31,323.64 lakhs on acquisition of its subsidiary company viz MT Educare Ltd (MTEL). Due to
the prevailing unprecedented Covid19 pandemic situation and the uncertainty connected to it, the
Company has not been able to carry out a detailed and comprehensive assessment of the asset in
accordance with the principles of Indian Accounting standard – 36 “Impairment of Assets” and hence
no adjustments have been taken by the Company to the carrying value of goodwill as at March 31,
2020. In the absence of sufficient and appropriate evidence by way of such detailed and
comprehensive assessment due to the current Covid19 pandemic situation, we are unable to
comment upon adjustments, if any, that may be required to the carrying value of goodwill.

Due to the prevailing unprecedented Covid19
pandemic situation and the uncertainty connected
to it, the Company has not been able to carry out a
detailed and comprehensive assessment of the
asset in accordance with the principles of Indian
Accounting standard – 36 “Impairment of Assets”
and hence no adjustments have been taken by the
Company to the carrying value of goodwill as at
March 31, 2020.

b)

In one of the subsidiaries viz. MT Educare Limited (MTEL), the other auditor who audited the
consolidated financial statements of the subsidiary reported that the subsidiary has recognized net
deferred tax assets of Rs 8,154.54 Lakhs based on the estimate that sufficient taxable profits would
be available in future years against which deferred tax asset can be utilized. In the opinion of the
other auditor, due to uncertainty over the estimated profits for the future years arising out of the
outbreak of COVID -19 and the existence of unutilized tax losses available, it is highly uncertain that
MTEL and its subsidiaries would have sufficient taxable profits in future against which deferred tax
asset can be utilized. Accordingly, the other auditor is unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to corroborate the Management’s assessment of recognition of deferred tax assets as at
31 March 2020. Had the deferred tax asset not been recognized, the profit for the year ended 31
March 2020 and Total Equity would have been lower by Rs. 8,154.54 lakhs.

The subsidiary viz. MT Educare Limited has
prepared the future projections based on the
business plan after discussions with various
stakeholders. It is quite confident there will be
sufficient taxable profits in future years against
which deferred tax asset can be utilized.

c)

The Group has not complied with the provisions of Regulation 33 of Securities and Exchange Board The delay was due to get audited results
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015 relating to the because of unavoidable situation arising due to
submission of the results for the quarter ended 31 March 2020 to Securities and Exchange Board of COVID-19.
India (SEBI) within the stipulated time. Penalties on account of such non compliances are presently
not ascertainable and not provided for in the books of account. Consequently, we are unable to
comment on the impact, if any, on the Statement.

Management’s Reply

The Company has non-current investment in its subsidiary company viz MT Educare Limited
(MTEL) with a carrying value at cost of Rs 27,812.22 Lakhs. MTEL on a consolidated basis has a
positive net worth as at 31 March 2020. Due to the prevailing unprecedented Covid19 pandemic
situation and the uncertainty connected to it, the Company has not been able to carry out a detailed
and comprehensive assessment of the asset in accordance with the principles of Indian
Accounting standard – 36 “Impairment of Assets” and hence no adjustments have been
considered by the Company to the carrying value of this non-current investment as at 31 March,
2020. In the absence of sufficient and appropriate audit evidence by way of such detailed and
comprehensive assessment due to the current COVID-19 pandemic situation, we are unable to
comment upon adjustments, if any, that may be required to the carrying value of this non-current
investment on the standalone financial statements.

We draw attention to note 46 to the accompanying Statement that state that the management has
made an assessment of the impact of COVID-19 on the Company’s operations, financial
performance, and position as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020 and has concluded that
there is no impact which is required to be recognized in the financial results. Accordingly, no
adjustments have been made to the standalone financial statements. However, the extent of the
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the Company’s result is dependent upon future
developments.

Auditors’ Qualification

d) 1. Emphasis of Matter

(i.) considering the fact that the situation is
exceptional and is changing dynamically,
(i) We draw attention to note 46 to the accompanying Statement that state that the management
the Company is not in a position to gauge
has made an assessment of the impact of COVID-19 on the Company’s operations, financial
with
certainty, the future impact on its
performance, and position as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020 and has concluded that
operations.
However, the Company is
there is no impact which is required to be recognized in the financial results. Accordingly, no
confident
about
adapting to the changing
adjustments have been made to the standalone financial statements. However, the extent of the
business
environment
and respond
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the Company’s result is dependent upon future
suitably
to
fulfill
the
needs
of its business
developments.
partners.
(ii) We draw attention to note --- of a subsidiary viz MT Educare Limited to the consolidated financial
statements which states that the contracts for revenue from management services has been (ii) The reversal is due to renegotiation of
negotiated and the new arrangement is applicable from retrospective effect. Consequently, the
contracts with customers which has
revenue from management services recorded during the quarter ended 31 December 2019
resulted in the reversal of income
amounting to Rs 910.00 lakhs has been re-measured based on renegotiation of contracts with
pertaining to quarter ended 31 December
customers which has resulted in the reversal of revenue amounting to Rs 745.33 lakhs by the
2019 in the current quarter.
management in the quarter ended 31 March 2020.
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Business Responsibility Report

5. List of activities in which expenditure in 4 above has been incurred:
Not Applicable.

SECTION D: BR INFORMATION
1. Details of Director/Directors responsible for BR:

As per Regulation 34(2)(f) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
SECTION C: OTHER DETAILS
SECTION A: GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

1. Does the Company have any Subsidiary Company/Companies?

1.

Corporate Identity Number (CIN)

: L80301MH2010PLC198405

2.

Name of the Company

: Zee Learn Limited

3.

Registered Address

: Continental Building, 135, Dr. Annie Besant Road,
Worli, Mumbai – 400018

4.

Website

: www.zeelearn.com

5.

Email id

: investor_relations@zeelearn.com

6.

Financial Year reported

: April 1, 2019 – March 31, 2020

7. Sector(s) that the Company is engaged in (industrial activity codewise):

As at March 31, 2020, the Company has 3 wholly owned subsidiaries, namely
Digital Ventures Private Limited; Academia Edificio Private Limited and
Liberium Global Resources Private Limited, one subsidiary MT Educare
Limited and seven step down subsidiaries.
2. Do the Subsidiary Company/Companies participate in the BR
initiatives of the parent Company? If yes, then indicate the number of
such subsidiary company(s).
No. As of now, subsidiary companies are not engaged in BR initiatives process
of the Company.

The Group also offer a Teacher Training Programme that help budding
teachers to deliver preschool programmes successfully for desired
developmental outcomes.

The Company is mainly engaged in the business of Education Support
Services i.e. our service in core education segment range of services from
Preschool to K-12 Schools and vocational education – NIC code of main
products/Services (2008) - 9992900.

In the Training and manpower area, our offering Liberium provides innovative
and customized manpower solutions to corporates thereby helping them
focus on their core business issues better.

8. Three key products/services that the Company manufactures/
provides (as in balance sheet):

9. Total number of locations where business activity is undertaken by
the Company:

The Company along with its subsidiaries ("Group") is one of the most
diversified premium education Group which has made its presence felt in the
areas of core and supplementary education. The Group’s services in core
segment range from Preschools to K-12 Schools and vocational education.
Under Preschool, the Group has Kidzee – Asia’s largest preschool chain,
Ankurum and Mount Litera World Preschool. Under the K-12 category the
Group operates through Mount Litera Zee School and Mount Litera School
International, which provides outstanding education through the holistic
based curriculum. In the Higher Education area, we are associated with the
leading state private university in Dehradun called the Himgiri Zee University.
The offerings under supplementary education range from vocational to test
preparation to tutorials. Mahesh Tutorials helps students with Secondary
Education & foundation courses for competitive exams. While brands
Lakshya, MT Science, MT Commerce, Mahesh PU College, Sri Gayatri
Academy help students with higher secondary education and entrance exams.
In the areas of vocational and skilling, the offerings are towards getting
students industry ready. Zee Institute of Creative Art (ZICA), Zee Institute of
Media Arts (ZIMA) and Design Art (ZIDA) are premier Animation, VFX, Film
making, Journalism and design Institute with more than 20 years of
experience.

110

a)

3. Do any other entity/entities (e.g. suppliers, distributors etc.) that the
Company does business with participate in the BR initiatives of the
Company? If yes, then indicate the percentage of such entity /entities
(Less than 30 %, 30-60%, More than 60%):

Details of the Director/Directors responsible for implementation of the BR policy/policies:

Sr. No.

Particulars

Details

1

DIN Number

07418787

2

Name

Vikash Kar

3

Designation

CEO & Whole Time Director

4

Telephone Number

+91 22 4034 3900

5

Email Id

compliances@zeeleran.com

b)
Sr. No.

Details of the BR head:
Particulars

Details

1

Name

Rakesh Agarwal

2

Designation

Chief Financial Officer

3

Telephone Number

+91 22 4034 3900

4

Email Id

compliances@zeeleran.com

No, other business partners of the Company do not directly participate in the
Company’s BR initiatives. The Company endeavors to encourage its
franchisees/suppliers/distributors (wherever possible) to participate in the
initiative towards BR and to adopt practices which would help them to carry out
business in fair manner.

(i) Number of International locations:
5 Kidzee Centers in Nepal
(ii) Number of National Locations:
750 + for Kidzee and 110 + for MLZS
10. Markets served by the Company:
Preschool, K-12, Vocational and Test-Prep
Section B: FINANCIAL DETAILS OF THE COMPANY
(STANDALONE OPERATIONS)
1. Paid up Capital

: Rs. 32,60,92,725

2. Total Revenue

: Rs. 21,830.56 Lakhs

3. Total Profit after taxes : Rs. 6,861.92 Lakhs
4. Total Spending on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) as
percentage of Profit after tax (%):
Due to non-availability of suitable CSR proposals during the year the
Company has not spent any amount towards CSR. However, in line with CSR
policy of the Company, the amount of CSR unspent shall be carried forward to
the next financial year and shall be spent for funding suitable CSR projects in
future.
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2. Principle-wise (as per NVGs) BR Policy/policies

b. If answer to the question at Sr. No 1 against any principle, is “No”, please explain why:

a. Details of Compliance (Reply in Y/N)

Sr.
No.

Questions

Public &
Product
Employee Shareholders Human Environment
Business
Regulatory CSR Customer
Responsibility
Wellbeing
Rights
Engagement
Protection
Relation
Ethics
Policy
P1

P2

P3

P4

P5

P6

P7

P8

P9

1.

Do you have a Policy/
policies for

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

2.

Has the Policy been formulated
in consultation with the relevant
Stakeholders?

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

3.

Does policy conform to any
national/ international standard

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

Has the policy been approved
by the board? If yes has it been
signed by MD/ CEO/
appropriate Board Director?
Does the Company have a
specified committee of the Board/
Director/ Official to oversee
implementation of the policy?

Has the policy been formally
communicated to all relevant
internal and external
stakeholders?
Does the Company have in
house structure to implement
the policy

Has the Company carried out
independent audit/ evaluation of
10.
the working of this policy by an
internal or external agency?

Questions

Public &
Product
Employee Shareholders Human Environment
Business
Regulatory CSR Customer
Responsibility
Wellbeing
Rights
Engagement
Protection
Relation
Ethics
Policy
P1

1.
2.

P2

P3

P4

P5

P6

P7

P8

P9

The Company has not
understood the principles
The Company is not at a
stage where it finds itself in
a position to formulate and
implement the policies on
specified principles

Policies are prepared ensuring adherence to applicable regulatory requirements and industry standards
3.

The Company does not
have financial or manpower
resources available for the
task

4.

It is planned to be done
within next six month

5.

It is planned to be done
within next one year

6.

Any other reason (Please
specify)

Policies mandated under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 are approved by
the Board and other policies are approved by CEO

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Most of the relevant policies are disseminated and uploaded for information of relevant stakeholders and
Indicate the link for the policy to
employees either on Company’s intranet site or on corporate website. Mandatory policies viz. CSR policy,
be viewed online
Insider Trading Policy, Code of Conduct, Whistle Blower and Vigil Mechanism Policy etc are available on
Company’s website www.zeelearn.com

Does the Company have a
grievance redressal mechanism
9. related to the policy to address
stakeholders grievances related
to the policy?
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Sr.
No.

Yes, wherever applicable

3. Governance related to BR
•

Yes

Yes

Not Applicable

Indicate the frequency with which the Board of Directors, Committee of the Board or CEO assesses the BR performance of the Company. Within 3
months, 3-6 months, Annually, More than 1 year –
The overall BR performance of the Company is accessed annually by the Management/Board of Directors and its committees, while the varied aspects of BR
performance of each department/unit are assessed by the respective department/units heads on a regular basis. This is the first business responsibility report
being published by the Company as part of Annual Report. The Report can also be accessed at company’s website at www.zeelearn.com

•

Does the Company publish a BR or sustainability Report? What is hyperlink for viewing this report? How frequently it is published?
The BR report is/shall be available as part of Annual Report on www.zeelearn.com.

This one is our first BR for FY 2019-20. Policy implementation will be reviewed in the subsequent reporting
periods.
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SECTION E: PRINCIPLE-WISE PERFORMANCE
Principle 1: Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with
Ethics, Transparency and Accountability
A company’s governance practices have a direct bearing on its sustainable
growth. Ethics and transparency are fundamental pillars which underline our
business activities. As a responsible organization, the Company does its
business with utmost integrity and adheres to best governance practices. The
Company’s Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management
Executives serves as a guiding tool and ensures that principles get translated
into consistent practice, thereby leading the Company towards high
standards of business conduct.
A Whistle Blower Policy/ Vigil Mechanism is also in place which provides a
channel to the employees and Directors to report to the management,
promptly and directly, concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or
suspected fraud or any irregularity in the Company practices or violation of its
codes and policies. The Code, policies and standards communicate our zero
tolerance approach to ethical violations, and communicate our commitment
and requirement for legal compliance and ethical good practice.
To ensure that all employees are well-versed with the Code, a mandatory
training is provided for new recruits, and refresher workshops on anticorruption policies and procedures are conducted for all the employees at
various levels.
1. Does the policy relating to ethics, bribery and corruption cover only
the Company? Yes/No. Does it extend to the Group/Joint Ventures/
Suppliers/ Contractors/NGOs/ Others?
The policies are applicable to the employees at all levels, including
subsidiaries. Though the Company’s policies do not apply to external
stakeholders including suppliers, contractors, NGOs etc., the Company
follows zero tolerance on any acts of bribery, corruption etc. by such
agencies during their dealings with the Company and or with any of its
employees.
2. How many stakeholders’ complaints have been received in the past
financial year and what percentage was satisfactorily resolved by the
management? If so, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.
As mentioned in the Corporate Governance Report, 1 complaint was
received from Shareholders during FY 2019-20, and the same have been
resolved. Additionally, on an ongoing basis the complaints/ grievances/
views/ suggestions from all stakeholders are dealt with by respective
functions within the Company. During the financial year, no complaints
were received from any of the Company’s stakeholders on ethics,
transparency and accountability.
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Principle 2: Businesses should provide goods and services that are
safe and contribute to sustainability throughout their life cycle
The Company’s business is in compliance with applicable regulations
issued by various regulatory authority from time to time.
1. List up to 3 of your products or services whose design has incorporated social or environmental concerns, risks and/or
opportunities.
The Company is engaged in the business of providing Education Support
Services across India, and it addresses social and environmental
concerns.
2. For each such product, provide the following details in respect of
resource use (energy, water, raw materials etc.) per unit of product
(optional) including
a) Reduction during sourcing/production/distribution
throughout the value chain and b) Reduction during usage by
consumers (energy, water) has been achieved since the previous
year?
Considering nature of business of the Company the said questions are
not applicable to the Company.

Principle 3: Business should promote the well-being of all employees
1. Please indicate the total number of employees: 289
2. Please indicate the total number of employees hired on temporary/
contractual /casual basis: 32
3. Please indicate the number of permanent women employees: 119
4. Please indicate number of permanent employees with disabilities: Nil
5. Do you have employee association that is recognized by
management?

6. What percentage of your permanent employees are members of this
recognized employee association? :
Not Applicable
6. What percentage of your permanent employees are members of this
recognized employee association? :
Not Applicable
7. Please indicate the number of complaints relating to child labour,
forced labour, involuntary labour, sexual harassment in the last
financial year and pending as on the end of the financial year.

Since the Company is not involved in the manufacturing activity, the
reporting on sustainable sourcing is not applicable.

During the year under review, the Company had not received any
complaints relating to child labour, forced labour, involuntary labour,
sexual harassment at workplace.

4. Has Company taken any steps to procure goods and services from
local and small producers, including communities surrounding
their place of work? If yes, what steps have been taken to improve
the capacity and capability of local and small vendors

8. What percentage of your above-mentioned employees were given
safety and skill up-gradation training in the last year?

The Company wherever practically possible procure goods and services
from local and small producers, which has contributed to their growth.

The Company organizes various training sessions in-house on a regular
basis for its employees and also sponsors its employees to attend training
sessions organized by external professional bodies to facilitate
upgradation of skill, of employees handling relevant functions.

Since the Company is not involved in the manufacturing activity, it does
not discharge any effluent or waste. However mindful of the need for
recycling products and waste, the Company has been directing its efforts
in reducing use of plastic bottles, recycling used plastic bottles etc.

Yes, the Company has identified and is responsive to the needs of all its
stakeholders, especially those who are disadvantaged, vulnerable and
marginalized.
3. Are there any special initiatives taken by the Company to engage
with the disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized stakeholders?
If so, provide details thereof
No

The Company does not have an employee association. However,
mechanism is in place for employees to represent their issues, if any, and
the same is resolved amicably.

3. Does the Company have procedures in place for sustainable
sourcing (including transportation)? If yes, what percentage of your
inputs was sourced sustainably?

5. Does the Company have a mechanism to recycle products and
waste? If yes what is the percentage of recycling of products and
waste. (Separately as <5%, 5-10%, >10%). Also, provide details
thereof, in about 50 words or so.

2. Out of the above, has the Company identified the disadvantaged,
vulnerable and marginalized stakeholders?

Principle 4: Businesses should respect interest of, and be responsive
towards all stakeholders, especially those who are disadvantaged,
vulnerable and marginalized
1. Has the Company mapped its internal and external shareholders?

Principle 5: Business should respect and promote human rights
As a socially responsible organization, the Company is committed to
protect and safeguard human rights. The Company has adopted several
policies viz. Code of Conduct, Policy against Sexual harassment, Whistle
Blower and Vigil Mechanism Policy etc which ensures that there is no
violation of human rights in its conduct externally or internally.
1. Does the policy of the Company on human rights cover only the
Company or extend to the Group/Joint ventures/ suppliers/
contractors/ NGOs/Others?
The Company has put in place a Code of Conduct and expect its
stakeholders to adhere and uphold the standards contain therein.
2. How many stakeholder complaints have been received in the past
financial year and what percent was satisfactorily resolved by the
Management?
There were no complaints reported on violation of any human rights
during the financial year 2019-20.
Principle 6: Business should respect, protect, and make efforts to
restore the Environment
The Company’s business of providing Education Support Services have
minimal impact on the environment.
1. Does the policy related to principle 6 cover only the Company or
extend to the Group/Joint ventures/ suppliers/ contractors/ NGOS/
Others?
The Company’s environmental, health and safety policy extends to all
employees and group companies.

Yes. The Company has identified students, recruiters, franchise partners,
suppliers, vendors, landlords, employees, regulatory bodies, shareholders
and community at large, including the disadvantage groups and vulnerable
sectors like children/women and the civil society as its stakeholders
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2. Does the Company have strategies/initiatives to address global
environmental issues such as climate change, global warming,
etc.? Y/N. If yes, please give hyperlink for webpage etc.
No
3. Does the company identify and assess potential environmental
risks? Y/N
No
4. Does the Company have any project related to Clean Development
Mechanism? If so, provide details thereof in about 50 words or so.
Also, if Yes, whether any environmental compliance report is filed?
No
5. Has Company undertaken any other initiatives on – clean
technology, energy efficiency, renewable energy etc? Y/N. If yes,
please give hyperlink to web page etc.
No
6. Are the Emissions/Waste generated by the Company within
permissible limits given by CPCB/SPCB for the financial year being
reported?

2. Have you advocated/lobbied through above associations for
advancement or improvement of public good? Yes/No; If yes,
specify the broad areas
No
Principle 8: Businesses should support inclusive growth and equitable
development
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) at Zee Learn is all about engaging
in long term sustainable programs that actively contribute to and support
the social and economic development of the society. Accordingly, as a
unified approach towards CSR at Essel Group level and with an intent to
support long term projects focused on developing and empowering
society.
1. Does the Company have specified programmes/initiatives/projects
in pursuit of the policy related to Principle 8?

5. Have you taken steps to ensure that this community development
initiative is successfully adopted by the community?
Yes
Principle 9: Business should engage with and provide value to their
customers and consumers in a responsible manner
The Company is committed to providing the best learning experience to
its students and fulfilling the business needs of its franchise partners to
the utmost level. All activities of the Company are targeted to provide
value to its customers.
1. What percentage of customer complaints/ consumer cases are
pending as on the end of financial year?
There are no consumer cases / customer complaints outstanding as at
the end of financial year.

2. Does the Company display product information on the product
label, over and above what is mandated as per local laws?
Information is furnished as per applicable local laws
3. Is there any case filed by any stakeholder against the Company
regarding unfair trade practices, irresponsible advertising and or
anticompetitive behavior during the last five years and pending as
of end of financial year?
None
4. Did your Company carry out any consumer survey/consumer
satisfaction trends?
The Company has dedicated customer service department to monitor
and address consumer issues and resolve them.

CSR activities at Zee Learn are carried out as per the CSR Policy with
primary focus on Education, Health Care, Women Empowerment and
Sports.
2. Are the programmes/projects undertaken through in-house team/
own foundation/ external NGO/government structures/any other
organisation?

Not applicable
7. Number of show cause/legal notices received from CPCB/SPCB
which are pending (i.e. not resolved to satisfaction) as of end of
financial year.

To facilitate identifying long-term CSR projects and monitoring
implementation, the CSR Committee of the Company was reconstituted
which oversees and monitor CSR spends of the Company.
3. Have you done any impact assessment of your initiative?

Nil
Principle 7: Business, when engaged in influencing public and
regulatory policy, should do so in a responsible manner
1. Is your Company a member of any trade and chambers or
association? If yes, name only those major ones that your business
deals with.

The CSR activities are placed before the CSR Committee for its review
and assessment.
4. What is Company’s direct contribution to community development
projects-Amount in INR and the details of the projects undertaken?
Refer details of CSR contributions in the Annual report on CSR forming
part of this Annual Report.

No
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FORM NO MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the financial Year ended March 31, 2020
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule no.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To,
The Members,
Zee Learn Limited
CIN No-L80301MH2010PLC198405
I have conducted secretarial audit for the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Zee Learn
Limited (hereinafter called ‘the company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in
a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conduct/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.
Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books,
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company, the
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, the explanations and
clarification given to me and the representations made by the Management
and considering the relaxations granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
and Securities and Exchange Board of India warranted due to the spread of
the COVID19 pandemic, I hereby report that in my opinion, the company has,
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2020,
generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also
that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance-mechanism
in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:
I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records made available to me and maintained by the Company for the
financial year ended on March 31, 2020 according to the provisions of:
I

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

ii.

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules
made thereunder;

iii.

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed
thereunder;

iv.

v.

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations
made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas
Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings, if any in the
Company;
The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the
Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial
Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
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b.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015;

c.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing
Regulations’);

d.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 – Not applicable
during the Audit Period

e.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based
Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;

f.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of
Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 – Not applicable during the
Audit Period

g.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an
Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993, regarding
the Companies Act and dealing with client;

h.

vi.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of
Securities) Regulations, 1998 - Not applicable during the Audit
Period

I have also examined compliance with the applicable requirements of the
following:
a.

Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India with respect to board and general meetings.

b.

The Listing Agreements entered by the Company with National Stock
Exchange of India Ltd and BSE Limited read with the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Adequate notice was given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings,
agenda and detailed notes on agenda were generally sent at least seven days
in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information
and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting for meaningful
participation at the meeting. As represented by the Management and
recorded in the Minutes the decision at the Board Meetings were taken
unanimously.

During the Audit period under review, based on the said verifications and as
per representations and clarifications provided by the management, I confirm
that the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the
Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to
monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines etc.

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc. as mentioned hereinabove. I further
report that compliance of applicable financial laws including Direct and
Indirect Tax laws by the Company has not been reviewed in this Audit since
the same has been subject to review by the Statutory Auditors and other
designated professionals.

I further report that during the Audit Period, the Company had allotted 14,000
Equity Shares to a Non-Executive Non-Independent Director upon exercise
of Stock Option as Company’s ESOP Scheme approved by the Shareholders
earlier.

I further report that as confirmed by Company Management, the Company is
under no obligation to comply with the provisions of Right to Education Act
2005 and the said provisions are required to be complied by franchisees as
per the franchise agreement(s).

MITA SANGHAVI
Practicing Company Secretary
FCS No.7205
CP No. 6364
UDIN F007205B000864006

I further report that:
As at March 31, 2020, the Board of Directors of the Company was duly
constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in composition of Board of
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Date : 7th October 2020
Place : Mumbai
This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as
Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report.

The following laws specifically applicable to the industry to which the
Company belongs, as identified, and compliance whereof as
confirmed, by the management:
a.

Employee Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act,
1952

b.

Employee State Insurance Act, 1948

c.

Employees Liability Act, 1938

d.

Employees Remuneration Act, 1938

e.

Maternity Benefits Act, 1961

f.

Minimum Wages Act, 1948

g.

Payment of Bonus Act, 1965

h.

Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

i.

Payment of Wages Act, 1936 and other applicable Laws

j.

The Bombay Shop Establishments Act, 1948

k.

Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

ANNEXURE A
To,
The Members,
Zee Learn Limited
CIN No-L80301MH2010PLC198405
My Secretarial Audit report for financial year ended on March 31, 2020, of even date is to be read along with this letter.
i.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial
records based on audit.

ii.

I have followed the audit practices and the processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the
secretarial records. The verification, including verification of electronic record, was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records. I believe that the processes and practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

iii. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company. Further the compliance of applicable
financial laws including Direct and Indirect Tax laws by the Company has not been reviewed in this Audit since the same has been subject to review by the
Statutory Auditors and other designated professionals.
iv. Wherever required, I have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.
v.

The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of the management. My
examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

vi. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management
has conducted the affairs of the Company.

MITA SANGHAVI
Practicing Company Secretary
FCS No.7205
CP No. 6364
UDIN- F007205B000864006
Date: 7th October 2020
Place: Mumbai

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,
The Members of
ZEE LEARN LIMITED
Continental Building,
135, Dr. Annie Besant Road,
Worli, Mumbai – 400018
Maharashtra - India
I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Zee Learn Limited having CIN
L80301MH2010PLC198405 and having registered office at Continental Building, 135, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai Maharashtra 400018 India
(hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3)
read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal
www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board
of the Company, as stated below as at March 31, 2020 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such Authority.

Sl. No.

Name of the Director

Category

Director
Identification
Number

Date of
Appointment

1.

Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar

Independent Director

00118037

30/12/2019

2.

Ms. Nandita Agarwal Parker

Independent Director

00189131

15/01/2018

3.

Mr. Roshan Lal Khamboj

Independent Director

01076066

17/05/2019

4.

Ms. Nanette D’sa

Independent Director

05261531

31/03/2020

5.

Mr. Ajey Kumar $

Managing Director

02278096

28/10/2015

6.

Dr. Manish Agarwal #

Independent Director

02069969

01/04/2017

Note:
$ Mr. Ajey Kumar was re-designated/appointed as Managing Director from Executive Director w.e.f. October 1, 2018. Mr. Ajey Kumar Resigned as
Managing Director & Director w.e.f. closing hours on 18/08/2020
# The term of office of Dr. Manish Agarwal as Independent Director ended at the close of business hours on 31/03/2020
Ensuring the eligibility of, for the appointment / continuity of, every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility
is to express an opinion on these based on verification of Company’s records and records available on public domain. This certificate is neither an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Mrs. Mita P. Sanghavi
Practicing Company Secretary
Membership No.: 7205 C P No. : 6364
UDIN NO-F007205B000863962
Place : Mumbai
Date : October 7, 2020
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Annexure A

FORM NO MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the financial Year ended March 31, 2020
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule no.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To,
The Members,
DIGITAL VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN No- U72900MH2006PTC165215
I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable
statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Digital
Ventures Private Limited (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit
was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my
opinion thereon.
Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books,
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and
also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, the
explanations and clarification given to me and the representations made by
the Management and considering the relaxations granted by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs warranted due to the spread of the COVID19 pandemic, I
hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period
covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2020, generally complied with
the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has
proper Board processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in
the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:
I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st
March, 2020 according to the provisions of:
1.

The Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under

2.

Laws specifically applicable to the industry to which the Company
belongs, as identified and compliance whereof as confirmed by the
management, that is to say:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.
g.
h.
i.
j.

Employee Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952
Employees Liability Act, 1938
Employees Remuneration Act, 1938
Maternity Benefits Act, 1961
Minimum Wages Act, 1948
Payment of Bonus Act, 1965
Payment of Gratuity Act 1972
Payment of Wages Act, 1936 and other applicable Laws
The Bombay Shop Establishments Act, 1948
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013

I have relied on the representation made by the Company, its officers and
Reports of the Statutory Auditor for systems and mechanism framed by the
Company for compliances under other Acts, Laws and Regulations
applicable to the Company as listed in point 2.
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I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the
Secretarial Standards 1 & 2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India.
During the Audit period under review, based on the said verifications and as
per representations and clarifications provided by the management, I confirm
that the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc. as mentioned hereinabove, subject
to the following observations:
Apart from delay in filing few E-forms during the year, the Company had
inadvertently missed out filing of E-form MGT 14 in connection with
Board resolution dated February 3, 2020 approving placement of Inter
Corporate Deposit. We have been informed that the same shall be filed
by the Company in due course.
I further report that
-

-

the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. Adequate
notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda
and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance
in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act and Secretarial
Standard, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting
and for meaningful participation at the meeting.
there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor
and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

I further report that during the Audit Period, the Board of Directors had on April
9, 2019 approved appointment of Ms. Heena Raj Patangaia, Chartered
Accountant as Statutory Auditor, to fill casual vacancy caused due to death of
erstwhile Statutory Auditor Mr. Sridhar Iyer. Further at the 13th Annual
General Meeting held on September 27, 2019, the said Statutory Auditor was
re-appointed by the Shareholders for the period from conclusion of 13th
Annual General Meeting till conclusion of 17th Annual General Meeting.

To,
The Members,
DIGITAL VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN No- U72900MH2006PTC165215
My Secretarial Audit report for financial year ended on March 31, 2020, of even date is to be read along with this letter.
i.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these
secretarial records based on audit.

ii. I have followed the audit practices and the processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the
secretarial records. The verification, including verification of electronic record, was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
iii. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company. Further the compliance of
applicable financial laws including Direct and Indirect Tax laws by the Company has not been reviewed in this Audit since the same has been subject to
review by the Statutory Auditors and other designated professionals.
iv. Wherever required, I have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.
v. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of the management. My
examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.
vi. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the
management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

MITA SANGHAVI
Practicing Company Secretary
FCS No.7205
CP No. 6364
UDIN- F007205B000684981
Date: 9th September, 2020
Place: Mumbai

MITA SANGHAVI
Practicing Company Secretary
FCS No.7205
CP No. 6364
UDIN- F007205B000684981
Date : 9th September 2020
Place : Mumbai
This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as
Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report
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Report on Corporate Governance
COMPANY'S GOVERNANCE PHILOSOPHY
Corporate Governance is about our commitment to human values in business
which translates into ethical corporate conduct. Corporate Governance is an
integral element of Company’s value system, management ethos, and
business practices. Corporate Governance practice are reflection of one’s
value, culture, policies and the manner in which it deals with various
stakeholders. Timely and accurate disclosure of information regarding the
financial situation, performance, ownership and governance of the Company
is an important part of Corporate Governance. When adhered to and
implemented in the best of spirit, Corporate Governance positively impact the
activities, processes and policies of an organization, portray a positive vision
to investors and enhance the trust and confidence of the stakeholders. It can
also influence its immediate corporate environment and the society at large in
a positive way and have a healthy impact on the national economy.
Your Company has laid strong foundation for making Corporate Governance a
way of life by constituting a Board with a balanced mix of professionals of
eminence and integrity from within and outside the business, forming a core
group of top executives, inducting competent professionals across the
organization and putting in place appropriate system, process and technology.
The Company’s Code of Business Conduct and its well structured internal
financial control systems which are subjected to regular assessment for its
effectiveness, reinforces integrity of Management and fairness in dealing with
the Company’s stakeholders. Your Company has enabled to earn the trust and
goodwill of its investors, business partners, employees and the communities
in which it operates. In its endeavor to improve on the Corporate Governance
practices.

POLICIES
In compliance with the requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’), and Companies Act,
2013, the Board of Directors of the Company has approved various policies, as
detailed herein:

Whistle Blower & Vigil Mechanism Policy
As per Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of Listing
Regulations, a comprehensive Whistle Blower and Vigil Mechanism Policy
has been approved and implemented within the organization. The policy
enables the employees and directors to report instances of any unethical act
or suspected incidents of fraud or violation of Companies Code of conduct.
This mechanism/Policy provides adequate safeguards to whistle blowers
against reprisals or victimization. The Copy of the Policy has been uploaded
on the Company’s Website viz. www.zeelearn.com
Code of Conduct
The Company has also adopted a Code of Conduct for the Members of the
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Board of Directors and Senior Management, and all the Directors and senior
functionaries as defined in the Code provide their annual confirmation of
compliance with the Code. Copy of the Code is available on the website of the
Company www.zeelearn.com.
A declaration affirming compliance with the Code of Conduct by the
Members of the Board and Senior Management personnel is given below:

Declaration
[Pursuant to Part D of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015]
I, Vikash Kumar Kar, Chief Executive Officer of Zee Learn Limited declare that
all the Members of the Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel
have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct for the year ended March
31, 2020
Vikash Kumar Kar
Chief Executive Officer
Mumbai, April 24, 2020
Related Party Transaction Policy
In compliance with the requirements of Regulation 23 of Listing Regulations,
the Board of Directors of the Company has approved a Related Party
Transaction Policy, to facilitate management to report and seek approval for
any Related Party Transaction proposed to be entered into by the Company.
The said Related Party Transaction Policy can be viewed on
www.zeelearn.com.

Independent Directors are familiarized with their roles, rights and
responsibilities in the Company as well as with the nature of industry and
business model of the Company through induction programs at the time of
their appointment as Directors. While review and approval of quarterly and
annual financial statements of the Company are taken up, detailed
presentation covering inter alia economy and industry overview, key
regulatory developments, strategy and performance of individual profit
centres is made to the Board.

Composition of the Board as on March 31, 2020
Category of Directors

16.67

Non-Executive Independent Directors

5

83.33

Other Non-Executive Director

0

0.00

Total

6

100.00

Particulars of Directors, their attendance at the Annual General Meeting and
Board Meetings held during the financial year 2019-20 and also their other
directorships / memberships held in Indian Public Companies (excluding
Foreign Companies and Section 8 Companies of Companies Act, 2013) and
Membership/Chairmanship of Audit Committee and Stakeholder Relationship
Committee of other Public Companies as at March 31, 2020 are as under:

Composition & Category of Directors
Zee Learn Limited is in compliance with the Board composition requirements
of the Listing Regulations. Independent Directors of the Company provide
appropriate annual certifications to the Board confirming satisfaction of the
conditions of their being independent as laid down in Section 149(6) of the

Attendance at
Board Meeting
(Total 4 Meetings)

1

% to total No. of
Directors

During the financial year under review, 4 (Four) meetings of the Board were
held May 17, 2019, August 14, 2019, November 14, 2019 and February 12,
2020. The annual calendar of meetings in connection with approval of
quarterly and annual financial statements of the Company is broadly
determined at the beginning of each financial year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Name of Director

No. of
Directors

Executive Director

Apart from the above policies, the Board has in accordance with the
requirements of Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations approved and
adopted Policy for determining Material Subsidiary, Remuneration Policy,
Material Events Determination and Disclosure Policy and Document
Preservation Policy. These policies can be viewed on Company’s website at
www.zeelearn.com.

Policies & Code as per SEBI Insider Trading Regulations
In accordance with SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015,
the Company has formulated and approved (i) an Insider Trading Code to
regulate dealing in the securities of the Company by designated persons in
compliance with the regulations; and (ii) a Policy for Fair Disclosure of
Unpublished Price Sensitive Information.

Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations. In
the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions
specified in the Listing Regulations and are Independent of the Management.

Familiarization Program for Independent Directors

9th AGM held on
September 26,
2019

No. of Directorship
in other Public
Companies

No. of Committee
positions held in
other public Companies

Member

Chairman

Member

Chairman

Non- Executive Chairman
# Mr. Himanshu Mody

3

Yes

NA

NA

NA

NA

4

Yes

-

-

-

-

Managing Director
@ Mr. Ajey Kumar
Non- Executive Independent Director

Mr. Prashant Parekh, Company Secretary of the Company is Compliance
Officer for the purposes of Insider Trading Code, while Mr. Rakesh Agarwal,
Chief Financial Officer of the Company has been appointed as Chief Investor
Relations Officer for the purpose of Fair Disclosure policy.
In line with the amendment to SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015, the Insider Trading Code and Policy for Fair Disclosure of
Unpublished Price Sensitive Information was revised with effect from April 1,
2019. The revised code and Policy can be viewed on Company’s website
www.zeelearn.com

# # Dr. Manish Agarwal

4

Yes

1

-

1

-

# # # Dr. Sangeeta Pandit

2

Yes

NA

NA

NA

NA

Ms. Nandita Agarwal Parker

3

Yes

-

-

-

-

*Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj

3

Yes

1

-

-

2

**Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar

1

NA

1

-

2

-

NA

NA

1

1

2

1

***Ms. Nanette D’sa

125

Management Report

#resigned w.e.f. January 7, 2020
##ceased to be Director w.e.f. April 1, 2020
###resigned w.e.f. October 1, 2019
*appointed w.e.f. May 17, 2019
**appointed w.e.f. December 30, 2019
***appointed w.e.f. March 31, 2020
@resigned as Managing Director w.e.f. closing hours on August 18, 2020

All the Independent Directors on the Board of your Company have confirmed
that they meet the criteria of independence as mentioned in amended
Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations read with Section 149(6) of the
Act and they are not aware of any circumstance or situation, which exists or
may be reasonably anticipated, that could impair or impact their ability to
discharge their duties with an objective independent judgment and without
any external influence.

Notes:
The number of Directorship (s), Committee Membership(s) / Chairmanship (s) of all Directors is/are within the respective limits prescribed under
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations.
Details of other Directorships of Directors in the Listed entities as at March 31, 2020 are as under:
Sr. No.

Name of the Director

Directorship in other Listed Companies

Category of Directorship

1

* Mr. Ajey Kumar

-

-

2

** Dr. Manish Agarwal

MT Educare Limited

Independent Director

3

Ms. Nandita Agarwal Parker

-

-

4

Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj

MT Educare Limited

Independent Director

5

Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar

MT Educare Limited

Independent Director

6

Ms. Nanette D’sa

Vidli Restaurants Limited
MT Educare Limited

Independent Director
Independent Director

*resigned as Managing Director w.e.f. closing hours on August 18, 2020
**ceased to be Director w.e.f. April 1, 2020
Compliance with Directorship limits
None of the Directors of your Company is a Director in more than twenty companies (including ten public companies) or acts as an Independent Director in more
than seven listed companies, or three listed companies in case they serve as a Whole-time Director in any listed company.
Compliance with Committee positions
Disclosures have been made by the Directors regarding their Chairmanships/Memberships of mandatory Committees of the Board and the same are within the
permissible limits as stipulated under Regulation 26(1) of the Listing Regulations. Accordingly, none of the Directors on the Board of your Company is a member of
more than ten Committees and Chairperson of more than five Committees, across all Indian public limited companies in which he/ she is a Director.
Inter-se relationship between Directors
None of the Directors of the Company are inter-se related to each other.
Shares and Convertible Instruments held by Non-Executive Directors
As on March 31, 2020, the Company does not have any convertible instruments. The details of shares held by Non-Executive Directors as on March 31, 2020 are
as follows:
Name of Director

Category

Number of Shares held

Ms. Nandita Agarwal Parker

Non-Executive Independent Director

Nil

Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj

Non-Executive Independent Director

Nil

Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar

Non-Executive Independent Director

Nil

Ms. Nanette D’sa

Non-Executive Independent Director

Nil

* Dr. Manish Agarwal

Non-Executive Independent Director

49,500

*ceased to be Director w.e.f. April 1, 2020
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letter dated October 1, 2019, confirmed that there were no material reason
other than those mentioned in her resignation letter.

Declaration from Independent Directors

Board Procedures
Schedule of the Board meetings for approval of quarterly and annual financial
results each year are decided well in advance and communicated to the
Directors. Board meetings are generally held at Mumbai. The agenda
alongwith the explanatory notes are sent to the Directors well in advance to
enable them to take informed decisions. Senior management personnel are
normally invited to the Board meetings to provide necessary insights into the
working of the Company and for discussing corporate strategies.

The Board of your Company has carried out an assessment of declarations
and confirmations submitted by the Independent Directors of the Company
and after undertaking due assessment of the veracity of the same, is of the
opinion that the Independent Directors of your Company fulfil the conditions
specified in the Listing Regulations and the Act and are independent of the
management.

The Board periodically reviews certificates in respect of compliance of various
laws and regulations applicable to the Company.
BOARD COMMITTEES

Ms. Sangeeta Pandit resigned as Independent Director before expiry of her
term with effect from October 1, 2019 citing health issues and increasing
personal commitments. The said independent Director had vide resignation

Audit Committe

Particulars of Meetings of Board Committees held during the year along with
details of Directors attendance at such Committee Meeting(s) are detailed
herein:

Nomination &
Remuneration Committee

Stakeholders
Relationship Committee

Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee

No. of Meetings held
Directors attendance

4

3

4

1

#Mr. Himanshu Mody

3

2

3

NA

##Dr. Manish Agarwal

4

3

NA

1

###Dr. Sangeeta Pandit

2

1

2

NA

Ms. Nandita Agarwal Parker

NA

NA

2

NA

*Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj

2

1

2

1

**Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar

1

1

1

1

***Ms. Nanette D’sa

-

-

-

-

Note: N.A. denotes the director is not a Member of such Committee.
#Mr. Himanshu Mody ceased to be member w.e.f. January 7, 2020
##Mr. Manish Agarwal ceased to be member w.e.f. April 1, 2020
### Ms. Sangeeta Pandit ceased to me member w.e.f. October 1, 2019
*Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj appointed member of committees w.e.f. October 3,
2019
**Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar appointed member of committees w.e.f. January 28,
2020
***Ms. Nanette D’sa appointed member of committees w.e.f. March 31, 2020

Independent Directors Meeting and Board Evaluation Process
In compliance with requirements of Regulation 25 of the Listing Regulations
and Section 149 read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Independent Directors of the Company met on February 12, 2020 to review
the performance of Chairman and Non-Independent Directors, evaluate
performance of the Board of Directors and its Committees and review flow of
information between the management and the Board.

The evaluation process was carried out based on an assessment sheet
structured in line with ICSI guidance note and the guidance note issued by
SEBI in this regard.
The parameters for evaluation of performance of the Board & Board
Committees include the structure & composition, contents of agenda, quality
and timelines of information provided, decision-making process & review
thereof, attention to the Company’s long-term strategic issues, evaluation of
strategic risks, overseeing and review of major plans of action, acquisitions
etc. Outcome of such evaluation exercise was discussed at subsequent board
meeting. The performance of each of the Independent Directors was also
evaluated taking into account the time devoted, attention given to professional
obligations for independent decision making, contribution towards providing
strategic guidance, determining important policies, utilising their expertise,
independent judgment that contributes objectively in the Board’s
deliberations.

127

Management Report

Skills, Expertise and Competencies of Directors
Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the Listing Regulations,
the Board has identified the key skills, expertise and competencies required in
the context of the Company’s business for its effective functioning which are
currently available with the Board.
The identified skills/expertise/competencies as identified in the context of the
Company’s business are Leadership qualities, Industry knowledge and

experience, Understanding of relevant laws, rules, regulations and policies,
Strategic thinking, Financial expertise, Business & HR Strategy, Operational
excellence, Organization capability building, Public administration, Business
experience and general administration, Governance and risk management.
The Directors of your Company comprises of qualified individuals who
collectively possess the above skills, competencies and experience across
diverse fields that enable them to make effective contributions to the Board
and its Committees.

•

Review and recommend for approval of the Board quarterly, half
yearly and annual financial statements before submission to the
Board for approval.

•

Review internal audit reports, related party transactions, company’s
financial and risk management policies and functioning of Whistle
Blower & Vigil Mechanism Policy.

•

Review with the management performance of Statutory and Internal
Auditors, the adequacy of internal control systems including
computerized information system controls and security.

•

Recommend to the Board the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the Statutory Auditor and Cost Auditor, fixation of audit fee
and approval of payment of fees for any other services.

depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment
of declared dividends) and creditors.
•

Review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism.

•

Approve appointment of Chief Financial Officer after assessing the
qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the candidate.

•

Review the utilization of loans and/or advances from/investment in the
subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 Crore or 10% of the asset size of the
subsidiary, whichever is lower including existing loans/advances/
investments.

•

The committee shall mandatorily review the following information:

-

Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and
results of operations;

-

Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the
audit committee), submitted by management;

-

Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by
the statutory auditors;

-

Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and

-

The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief
internal auditor shall be subject to review by the audit committee.

-

Statement of deviations:

Further, the information in terms of Para C(2)(h)(ii) of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations is mentioned below:
Sr. No.
1

2

Name of Director
Mr. Vikash Kumar Kar

Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj

Skills / competences / experience possessed
Leadership qualities, Business & HR Strategy, Industry knowledge and experience, Operational excellence,
Organization capability building, Understanding of relevant laws, rules, regulations and policies, Governance and
risk management.
Leadership qualities, Understanding of relevant laws, rules, regulations and policies, Strategic thinking, Business
experience and general administration.

3

Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar

Leadership qualities, Understanding of relevant laws, rules, regulations and policies, Strategic thinking, Business &
HR Strategy, Business experience and general administration.

4

Mr. Surender Singh

Leadership qualities, Understanding of relevant laws, rules, regulations and policies, Business experience and
general administration, Public administration.

5

Ms. Nandita Agarwal Parker

Leadership qualities, Understanding of relevant laws, rules, regulations and policies, Strategic thinking, Financial
expertise, Business experience and general administration, Governance and risk management.

6

Ms. Nanette D’sa

•

Leadership qualities, Industry knowledge and experience, Understanding of relevant laws, rules, regulations and
policies, Strategic thinking, Operational excellence, Business experience and general administration.

Details of Board Committees are as mentioned herein:
Audit Committee
Constitution
As on April 1, 2019, the Audit Committee comprised of Dr. Sangeeta Pandit,
Independent Director as Chairperson, Mr. Himanshu Mody, Non-Executive
Director; and Dr. Manish Agarwal, Independent Director as Members of the
Audit Committee. Subsequently on October 3, 2019 the Audit Committee was
reconstituted by induction of Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj, Independent Director as
Chairman, Mr. Himanshu Mody, Non-Executive Director; and Dr. Manish
Agarwal, Independent Director as Members of the Audit Committee. Ms.
Sangeeta Pandit ceased to be member of the Audit Committee w.e.f. closing
hours of October 1, 2019.
Further on January 28, 2020 the Audit Committee was reconstituted by
induction of Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar Independent Director as member, Mr.
Roshan Lal Kamboj, Independent Director as Chairman and Dr. Manish
Agarwal, Independent Director as Members of the Audit Committee. Mr.
Himanshu Mody, Non-Executive Director ceased to be member of the Audit
Committee w.e.f. closing hours of January 7, 2020.
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•

Further, the Board of Directors vide Circular Resolution dated March 31, 2020
reconstituted the Audit Committee by induction of Ms. Nanette D’sa,
Independent Director as Member of the Audit Committee w.e.f. March 31, 2020.

Review the adequacy of internal audit function including approving
appointment and remuneration payable to Internal Auditor, including
the structure of the internal audit department, staffing and seniority of
the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and
frequency of internal audit.
Review, with the management, the statement of uses / application of
funds raised through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential
issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than
those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report
submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of
proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate
recommendations to the board to take up steps in this matter.

•

Review and monitoring the auditor‘s independence and performance,
and effectiveness of audit process.

•

Approve or any subsequent modification of transactions of the
Company with related parties.

•

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments.

As at March 31, 2020, the Audit Committee of the Board comprises of Four (4)
Directors, including Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj, Independent Director as
Chairman, Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar Independent Director; Dr. Manish Agarwal,
Independent Director and Ms. Nanette D’sa, Independent Director as
Members of the Audit Committee.

•

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is
necessary.

•

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management
systems.

During the year under review, four (4) meetings of the Audit Committee were held
on May 17, 2019, August 14, 2019, November 14, 2019, and February 12, 2020.

•

Review the findings of any internal investigations by the internal
auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a
failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting
the matter to the board.

•

Discuss with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about
the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to
ascertain any area of concern.

Terms of reference
The role and the powers of the Audit Committee is as set out in Part C of
Schedule II of the Listing Regulations and Section 177 of the Companies Act,
2013. The terms of reference of Audit Committee broadly includes:
• Review Company’s financial reporting process and disclosure of
financial information to ensure that the financial statement is correct,
sufficient, accurate, timely and credible.

•

Look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the

(a) quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of
monitoring agency, if applicable, submitted to stock exchange(s) in
terms of Regulation 32(1).
(b) annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than
those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice in terms of
Regulation 32(7).
The Audit Committee also reviews adequacy of disclosures and
compliance with all relevant laws. In addition to these, in compliance
with requirements of Regulation 24 of Listing Regulations, the Audit
Committee reviews operations of Subsidiary Companies viz., its
financial statements, to grant omnibus approval for related party
transactions which are in the ordinary course of business and on an
arm’s length pricing basis and to review and approve such
transactions subject to the approval of the Board, statement of
investments and minutes of meetings of its Board and Committees.
Audit Committee Meetings are generally attended by the Chief
Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, and representative of the
Statutory Auditors of the Company. Internal Auditors have attended
Audit Committee Meetings wherein the Internal Audit reports are
considered by the Committee. The Company Secretary acts as the
secretary to the Audit Committee.
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Amount in `
Nomination & Remuneration Committee
Constitution
As on April 1, 2019 the Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprised
of Dr. Manish Agarwal, Independent Director as Chairman, Mr. Himanshu
Mody, Non-Executive Director and Dr. Sangeeta Pandit, Independent
Director as members of the Committee.
Subsequently on October 3, 2019 the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee was reconstituted by induction of Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj,
Independent Director as Member, Mr. Himanshu Mody, Non-Executive
Director; and Dr. Manish Agarwal, Independent Director as Chairman of the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee. Ms. Sangeeta Pandit ceased to be
member of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee w.e.f. closing hours of
October 1, 2019.
Further on January 28, 2020 the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
was reconstituted by induction of Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar Independent Director
as member, Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj, Independent Director as Member and Dr.
Manish Agarwal, Independent Director as Chairman of the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee. Mr. Himanshu Mody, Non-Executive Director
ceased to be member of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee w.e.f.
closing hours of January 7, 2020.
Further, the Board of Directors vide Circular Resolution dated March 31, 2020
reconstituted the Nomination & Remuneration Committee by induction of Ms.
Nanette D’sa, Independent Director as Member of the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee w.e.f. March 31, 2020.
As at March 31, 2020, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee comprises
of Dr. Manish Agarwal, Independent Director as Chairman, Mr. Roshan Lal
Kamboj, Independent Director, Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar, Independent Director
and Ms. Nanette D’sa, Independent Director as members of the Committee.
The Company Secretary of the Company acts as Secretary of Nomination &
Remuneration Committee.
During the year under review, the Committee met 3 (Three) times on May 17,
2019, October 22, 2019 and February 12, 2020.
Terms of reference
Terms of reference of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee include:
• Identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may
be appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria
laid down, recommend to the Board their appointment and removal
and shall carry out evaluation of every director’s performance.
• Formulate the criteria for determining qualification, positive attributes
and independence of a Director and recommend to the Board a
policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors, key managerial
personnel and other employees.
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• Ensure the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and
sufficient to attract, retain and motivate directors of the quality
required to run the Company successfully.
• Ensure that relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and
meets appropriate performance benchmarks.
• Formulate policy with regard to remuneration to directors, key
managerial personnel and senior management involving a balance
between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term
performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company
and its goals.
• Approve the remuneration policy and other matters relating thereto
as applicable to directors and senior management and other
employees of the Company and administer Employee Stock Option
Scheme of the Company.

Remuneration payable to Non-Executive Director

Name of Director

Non-Executive Directors, except Mr. Himanshu Mody, were entitled to sitting
fees of Rs. 20,000/- per meeting of the Board and Committees thereof, other
than Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee and Finance Sub-Committee.

*Dr. Manish Agarwal
Independent Director

The Independent Directors are additionally entitled to remuneration up to an
aggregate limit of 1% of net profits of the Company by way of Commission for
each financial year, as approved by the Members by way of Postal Ballot on
18th December 2015. Commission payable to the Independent Directors is
determined by the Board based on various criteria including contribution
made by each Director, performance of the Company, etc. The details of
Commission payable and Sitting Fees paid to the Non-Executive Directors
during FY 2019-20 are as mentioned herein:

• Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who
may be appointed in senior management in accordance with the
criteria laid down, and recommend to the board of directors their
appointment and removal.
• Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the
Independent Director, on the basis of the report of performance
evaluation of Independent Directors.
Remuneration Policy
The guiding principle of the remuneration policy of the Company is that the
remuneration and other terms of engagement / employment shall be
competitive enough to ensure that the Company is in a position to attract,
retain and motivate right kind of human resource(s) for achieving the desired
growth set by the Company’s management year on year thereby creating
long-term value for all stakeholders of the Company. An extract of the
Remuneration Policy approved by the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee of the Board has been included as an Annexure to Directors
Report and can be accessed at www.zeelearn.com.
Remuneration to Executive Director:
The details of the remuneration paid to Mr. Ajey Kumar, Managing Director of
the Company during the year ended March 31, 2020 is provided in Directors
Report forming part of this Annual Report.

Sitting Fees

5,00,000

2,40,000

7,40,000

Nil

1,00,000

1,00,000

5,00,000

60,000

5,60,000

Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj
Independent Director

4,37,158

1,40,000

5,77,158

Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar
Independent Director

1,27,049

80,000

2,07,049

1,366

-

1,366

15,65,573

6,20,000

21,85,573

** Dr. Sangeeta Pandit
Independent Director
Nandita Agarwal Parker
Independent Director

Ms. Nanette D’sa
Independent Director
Total

Total

*ceased to be Director w.e.f. April 1, 2020
** resigned as Director w.e.f. October 1, 2019

• Formulate criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent
Directors and the board of directors;
• Devising a policy on diversity of Board of Directors;

Commission

In addition to this, the Directors are also granted Stock Options (except Independent Directors) [each convertible into equivalent number of equity shares of Re.
1/- each of the Company] at closing Market Price of Equity Shares of Company of Previous Closing day as on the date of respective grant of Option, in terms of the
SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014.
Particulars of Stock Options granted under the ESOP scheme to the Directors and their outstanding as at March 31, 2020, are as under:

Name of Director
* Mr. Ajey Kumar
Managing Director

No. of Stock Options granted at

` 26.05 ` 14.50 ` 20.85 ` 35.25

` 31.80

` 34.15

` 42.20

` 18.70

Options
Vested

Options
Exercised

NA

NA

NA

NA

64,02,980

8,46,214

NA

25,75,597

72,49,194

46,73,597

30,000

30,000

30,000

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

90,000

90,000

Ms. Nandita Agarwal Parker
Independent Director

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj
Independent Director

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar
Independent Director

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

Ms. Nanette D’sa
Independent Director

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

** Dr. Manish Agarwal
Independent Director

*resigned as Managing Director w.e.f. closing hours on August 18, 2020
**ceased to be Director w.e.f. April 1, 2020
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During the year under review, no new Stock Options have been granted to the
Independent Directors of the Company.
The Non-Executive Directors of the Company do not have any other material
pecuniary relationships or transactions with the Company or its Directors,
Senior Management, Subsidiary or Associate, other than in normal course of
business.
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee
Constitution
As on April 1, 2019, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Board
comprised of Dr. Sangeeta Pandit, Independent Director as Chairperson and
Mr. Himanshu Mody, Non-Executive Director and Ms. Nandita Agarwal
Parker, Independent Director as the members.
Subsequently on October 3, 2019 the Stakeholders Relationship Committee
was reconstituted by induction of Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj, Independent
Director as Chairman, Mr. Himanshu Mody, Non-Executive Director; and Ms.
Nandita Agarwal Parker, Independent Director as Members of the
Stakeholders Relationship Committee. Ms. Sangeeta Pandit ceased to be
member of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee w.e.f. closing hours of
October 1, 2019.
Further on January 28, 2020 the Stakeholders Relationship Committee was
reconstituted by induction of Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar Independent Director as
member, Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj, Independent Director as Chairman and Ms.
Nandita Agarwal Parker, Independent Director as Member of the
Stakeholders Relationship Committee. Mr. Himanshu Mody, Non-Executive
Director ceased to be member of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee
w.e.f. closing hours of January 7, 2020.
Further, the Board of Directors vide Circular Resolution dated March 31, 2020
reconstituted the Stakeholders Relationship Committee by induction of Ms.
Nanette D’sa, Independent Director as Member of the Stakeholders
Relationship Committee w.e.f. March 31, 2020.
As at March 31, 2020, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Board comprises
of Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj, Independent Director as Chairman, Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar,
Independent Director, Ms. Nandita Agarwal Parker, Independent Director and
Ms. Nanette D’sa, Independent Director as the members.
During the year under review, Stakeholder Relationship Committee met four (4)
times on May 9, 2019, June 19, 2019, November 14, 2019 and February 12, 2020.
Terms of Reference
The terms of reference of Stakeholder Relationship Committee revised
effective from April 1, 2019 include the following:
• Resolve the grievances of the shareholders of the Company
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including complaints related to transfer/transmission of shares, nonreceipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of
new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.
• Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by
shareholders.
• Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the
Company in respect of various services being rendered by the
Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

Other Board Committees
In addition to the above, the Board has constituted following Committees to
exercise powers delegated by the Board as per the scope mentioned herein:
i)

Mr. Prashant Parekh, Company Secretary has been appointed as
Compliance Officer. The designated email for investor service and
correspondence is investor_relations@zeelearn.com.
Investor Complaints
During FY 2019-20, the Company had received 1 complaint from
shareholders/investors, as tabulated below, which were resolved to their
satisfaction. There were no complaints pending as at the end of the year.
Status of Shareholders’ Complaints as on March 31, 2020 and reported under
Regulation 13(3) of the Listing Regulations is as under:
No. of Shareholders’ complaints pending at the beginning of the
year i.e. as on April 1, 2019

0

No. of Shareholders’ Complaints received during the year

1

No. of Shareholders’ Complaints resolved during the year

1

No. of Shareholders’ Complaints pending as on March 31, 2020

0

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
In compliance with requirements of Section 135 read with Schedule VII of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Board has constituted Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee, as on March 31, 2020 committee comprising of Dr.
Manish Agarwal, Independent Director as Chairman, Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj,
Independent Director, Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar, Independent Director and Ms.
Nanette D’sa, Independent Director as its Members.

iii)

ESOP Allotment Sub-Committee

ii)

The Finance Sub-Committee and Corporate Management Committee
meet as and when required to deliberate and decide on various matters
within their respective scope or powers delegated by the Board.
iv)

Finance Sub-Committee
The Finance Sub-Committee of the Board as on March 31, 2020
comprised of Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj, Independent Director as the
Chairman, Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar, Independent Director and Ms. Nanette
D’sa, Independent Director as its member.
With a view to facilitate monitoring and expediting any debt fund raising
process, approve financing facilities offered and / or sanctioned to the
Company by various Banks and /or Indian Financial Institutions from

Corporate Management Committee
The Board has also constituted a Corporate Management Committee
comprising of Senior Executives of the Company to review, approve
and/or grant authorities for managing day-today affairs of the Company
within the powers delegated by the Board.

In order to process and facilitate allotment of Equity Shares, from time to
time, upon exercise of Stock Options granted under Company’s ESOP
Scheme, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee has constituted
ESOP Allotment Sub-Committee. As on March 31, 2020, the Committee
comprises of Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj, Independent Director as
Chairman, Mr. Debshankar Mukhopadhyay, Chief Executive Officer, Mr.
Vikash Kumar Kar, Chief Human Resources Officer and Mr. Bhautesh
Shah, Company Secretary of the Company as its members.

• Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the
Company for reducing the quantum of unclaimed dividends and
ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory
notices by the shareholders of the company.
The Committee has delegated various powers including approving requests
for transfer, transmission, rematerialisation & dematerialisation etc. of Equity
shares to the Executives of the Company and the Company Secretary, being
the compliance officer, is entrusted with the responsibility, to specifically look
into the redressal of the shareholders and investors complaints jointly with
representative (s) of Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company and
report the same to Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

time to time, in the form of Term Loans, Working Capital facilities,
Guarantee facilities etc., including the acceptance of terms and
conditions of such facilities being offered and exercising other
authorities as may be delegated by the Board from time to time, the
Board has constituted a Finance Sub-Committee.

During the year under review, CSR Committee met once on February 12, 2020.

Issue & Allotment Sub- Committee
In order to facilitate the process of approving Company’s Offering
Document for issue of Global Depository Receipts (GDRs) etc,
appointment of various intermediaries, approving various agreements,
deciding on the terms of issue along with timing thereof, obtaining
approval of Stock Exchange(s) and/or other regulatory / statutory /
administrative authorities etc., the Board has constituted an Issue and
Allotment Committee as on March 31, 2020 comprising of Mr. Roshan
Lal Kamboj, Independent Director as Chairman and Mr. Dattatraya
Kelkar Independent Director as its member.

GENERAL MEETINGS
The Tenth Annual General Meeting of the Company for the financial year 2019-20 will be held through VC/OAVM on Wednesday, December 30, 2020 at 04.00
P.M.
The location, day, date and time of the Annual General Meetings held during last three years along with Special Resolution(s) passed at these
meetings are as follows:

Year

Day and Time

2016 - 2017

Thursday, September 28,
2017 at 3.30 p.m.

Special Resolutions passed
a) To approve Investments, Loans, Guarantees and
Security in excess of limits specified under Section 186.
b) Maintenance of register of members at the office of
Registrar & Share Transfer Agent instead of Registered
office of the Company.

2017 - 2018

Monday, September 24,
2018 at 11.30 a.m.

a) Alteration of Articles of Association in compliance with
Companies Act, 2013
b) Re-designation/ appointment of Mr. Ajey Kumar,
Executive Director as the Managing Director of the
Company and to confirm his terms of remuneration.

2018 - 2019

Thursday, September 26,
2019 at 11.30 a.m.

None

Venue
The Hall of Culture, Nehru Centre, Dr.
Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai –
400 018.

R a v i n d r a N a t y a M a n d i r, P L
Deshpande Kala Academy, Near
Siddhivinayak Temple, Sayani Road,
Prabhadevi, Mumbai 400025

‘The Hall of Culture’, Nehru Centre, Dr.
Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai 400 018
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All the above resolutions were passed with requisite majority.

Commodity price risk, foreign exchange risk and hedging activities

None of the resolutions proposed at the ensuing Annual General Meeting
needs to be passed by Postal Ballot.

Since the Company is engaged in Education business, there is no risk
associated with Commodity Price and therefore the disclosure relating to
Commodity Price risk and Commodity hedging activities is Not applicable.

Postal Ballot
No Resolutions passed by way of Postal Ballot during financial year 2019-20.
DISCLOSURES
Your Company discloses to the Stock Exchanges, all information required to
be disclosed under Regulation 30 read with Part ‘A’ of Schedule III of the
Listing Regulations including material information having a bearing on the
performance / operations of the Company and other price sensitive
information, if any. All information is filed electronically on BSE Corporate &
Listing Centre (Listing Centre), online portal of BSE and on NSE Electronic
Application Processing System (NEAPS), the online portal of NSE.

Certificate from Company Secretary in Practice
Your Board hereby confirms that the Company has obtained a certificate from
Mrs. Mita Sanghavi (FCS No:7205 CP No. 6364) a Company Secretary in
Practice confirming that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company
have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as
Directors by SEBI, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other statutory
authority.
Credit Rating

Whistle Blower Policy

The credit ratings during the financial year 2019-20 for the Debt Instrument,
Overdraft Term Loan and Working Capital Demand Loan of the Company from
CARE Rating Ltd and Brickworks are as follows:

The Whistle Blower & Vigil Mechanism Policy approved by the Board has
been implemented and no personnel have been denied access for making
disclosure or report under the Policy to the Vigilance Officer and/or Audit
Committee.

Debt Instrument: The rating revised from CARE AA+ (CE) [Double A Plus
(Credit Enhancement)]; Continues on Credit watch with negative implications
to CARE AA (CE) [Double A (Credit Enhancement)] (Credit watch with
negative implications).

Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions

Overdraft Term Loan: No change in credit rating during the financial year. The
rating reaffirmed is BWR A (Pronounced as BWR A) Credit Watch with
Developing Implications

There are no materially significant related party transactions between the
Company and its promoters, directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their
relatives, having any potential conflict with interests of the Company at large.
Details of Transactions with related parties as specified in Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS 24) have been reported in the Financial Statements.
Policy on Materiality of and dealing with Related Party Transactions and
Policy on Material Subsidiaries

Pursuant to Regulation 46 of SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company
Publishes its Quarterly, Half-yearly and Annual Financial results, Annual
Reports and post such results on Company’s website www.zeelearn.com.

The Company has complied with the requirements prescribed under
Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation
46 of the Listing Regulations 2015. The Auditors’ Certificate that the Company
has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance is annexed to the
Directors’ Report.

Official press releases and presentations made to institutional investors or to
the analysts, if any, are displayed on Company’s website www.zeelearn.com.
Management Discussion and Analysis Report forming part of this Annual
Report is annexed separately.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

General Shareholders Information

The Company has promptly reported all material information including
declaration of quarterly financial results, press releases etc., to the Stock

The required information is provided in Shareholders Information Section.

Fees to Statutory Auditors

The Company‘s Policy on Materiality of Related Party Transactions and on
dealing with Related Party Transactions and Policy on Material Subsidiary is
put on Company’s website www.zeelearn.com.
Statutory Compliance, Penalties and Strictures

Recommendation of Committees:

There has not been any non-compliance by the Company and no penalties or
strictures have been imposed by SEBI or Stock Exchanges, or any other
statutory authority on any matter relating to capital markets during last it
should be during last three financial years

All recommendations / submissions made by various Committees of the
Board during the financial year 2019-20 were accepted by the Board.

134

DISCLOSURES OF COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REQUIREMENTS SPECIFIED IN REGULATION 17 TO 27 AND
REGULATION 46(2)

Working Capital Demand Loan: The Credit rating assigned during the year is
BWR A (Pronounced as BWR A) Credit Watch with Developing Implications

During the FY 2019-20, the Company and its subsidiary (viz. Academia
Edificio Private Limited) on a consolidated basis, paid to Statutory Auditor,
M/s. MGB & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, an aggregate remuneration of
Rs. 24.95 Lakhs which is bifurcated as Rs. 17.20 Lakhs paid as Audit fees, Rs.
2.00 Lakhs as Tax Audit Fees and Rs. 5.75 Lakhs as fees for certification and
tax representation. The total fees paid by the Company to M/s. MGB & Co.
LLP, Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors of the Company are also
detailed in the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company forming part
of this Annual Report.

In Compliance with the requirements of Regulation 23 of Listing Regulations,
the Board of Directors of the Company has approved Related Party
Transaction Policy, to facilitate management to report and seek approval for
any Related Party transaction proposed to be entered into by the Company.

Your Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at workplace
and has adopted a Policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual
harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013
and the Rules thereunder. There was no complaint on sexual harassment
during the year under review.

Exchanges where the shares of the Company are listed. Such information is
also simultaneously displayed on the Company’s website www.zeelearn.com.
The quarterly, half yearly and annual financial results and other statutory
information were communicated to the shareholders by way of advertisement
in an English newspaper ‘Business Standard / Daily News and Analysis (DNA)’
and in a vernacular language newspaper ‘Mumbai Lakshadeep / The Global
Times / Punya Nagari / Free Press Journal (Marathi)’ as per the requirements
of Listing Regulations. The financial and other information are filed by the
Company on electronic platforms of NSE (NEAPS) and BSE Listing Centre.

Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013
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Auditor’s Certificate on Corporate Governance
To,
The Members of
ZEE LEARN LIMITED
Continental Building,
135, Dr. Annie Besant Road,
Worli, Mumbai – 400018
Maharashtra - India
I have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Zee Learn Limited (‘the Company’) for the year ended March 31, 2020 as stipulated in
Regulation 17 to 27 and Clause (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and para C and D of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Listing Regulations’)
Management’s Responsibility:

Shareholders’ Information
1

Date, Time and Venue of Shareholder’s Meeting

Meeting
Day & Date
Time
Venue

2

Financial Year

April 1, 2019 till March 31, 2020

3

Date of Book Closure

From Thursday, December 24, 2020 to Wednesday, December 30, 2020

4

Dividend Payment Date

NA

5

Address for Correspondence

Registered Office:
Continental Building, 135, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400 018.
Tel: +91-22-2483 1234, Fax: +91-22-2495 5974
Website : www.zeelearn.com

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company’s Management. This responsibility includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of procedures by the Company for ensuring the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance stipulated in SEBI Listing
Regulations.

Corporate Office:
513/A, 5th Floor, Kohinoor City, Kirol Road, Off. L.B.S Marg, Kurla (West),
Mumbai - 400070
Tel: +91-22-4034 3900, Fax: +91-22-2674 3422

Auditor’s Responsibility:
My responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of conditions of
Corporate Governance stipulated in SEBI Listing Regulations. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on financial statements of the Company.
I have examined relevant records and documents maintained by the Company for the purpose of providing reasonable assurance of the compliance with
Corporate Governance requirements by the Company.

6

Corporate Identity Number

L80301MH2010PLC198405

7

Listing on Stock Exchanges

National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE)
Exchange Plaza, 5th Floor, Plot No. C/1, G Block, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (E),
Mumbai - 400 051

Opinion:
Based on examination of relevant records and according to the information and explanation provided to me and representations provided by the Management, I
certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Regulation 17 to 27 and Clause (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2)
and para C and D of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations.
I state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.
Mrs. Mita P. Sanghavi
Practicing Company Secretary
Membership No.: 7205 C P No. : 6364
UDIN: F007205B000864039

BSE Limited (BSE)
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 001
8

Stock Code

NSE : ZEELEARN
BSE : 533287

9

ISIN No.

INE565L01011 (Equity shares of `. 1/- each, fully paid up)

10

Global Depository Receipts (GDRs) Details

As at March 31, 2020, none of the Global Depository Receipts have remained outstanding
as all the GDRs have been converted into the underlying shares of the Company as on
January 15, 2018 which forms part of the existing paid up share capital of the Company.

a. Listed at

Societe DE LA Bourse De Luxembourg
Societe Anonyme,
35A, Boulevard Joseph II
L- 1840,Luxembourg

b. ISIN Code

US9892181028

Place : Mumbai
Date : October 7, 2020
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: Tenth Annual General Meeting
: Wednesday, December 30, 2020
: 04 : 00 P. M.
: The Company is conducting meeting through VC/OAVM pursuant to MCA
circular dated May 5, 2020 and such there is no requirement of having a
venue for the AGM.
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c.

Overseas Depository & Domestic Custodian
As at March 31, 2020, none of the Global Depository Receipts have remained outstanding as all the GDRs have been converted into the underlying shares
of the Company as on January 15, 2018, thus the services of the Overseas Depository and Domestic Custodian has been discontinued.

d.

17. Unclaimed Shares
As per Regulation 39 of Listing Regulations, details in respect of the physical shares, which were issued pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement and lying in
the Suspense account, is as under:

Market Data Relating to GDRs Listed on Luxembourg Stock Exchange
All the Global Depository Receipts have been converted into the underlying shares of the Company as on January 15, 2018 hence the figures of market data
are not mentioned.

11. Registrar & Share Transfer Agent
Link Intime India Private Limited
C-101, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg,
Vikhroli West, Mumbai- 400083 Tel No: +91-22-49186000 Fax No: +91-22-49186060
Email id: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in
12. Investor Relations Officer
The Company Secretary
Zee Learn Limited
Continental Building, 135, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400 018.
Tel: +91-22-40343900 Fax: +91-22-26743422
E-mail: investor_relations@zeelearn.com
13. Listing Fee:
Company has paid the Annual Listing fees for the Financial Year 2020-21 to the stock exchanges where the shares of the Company are listed (viz NSE & B S E ) .
The Company had also paid the Annual Maintenance Fee for the Year 2020 to the Luxembourg Stock Exchange where the GDRs of the Company are
listed.
14. PAN & Change of Address
Members holding equity share in physical form are requested to notify the change of address/dividend mandate, if any, to the Company’s Registrar & Share
Transfer Agent, at the address mentioned above.
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities
market. Members holding Shares in dematerialized form are requested to submit their PAN, notify the change of address including e-mail address/ dividend
mandate, if any, to their respective Depository Participant (DP). Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN, notify the change of
address including e-mail address/ dividend mandate, if any, to the Company/ Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.
15. Share Transfer System
Equity Shares sent for physical transfer or for dematerialisation are generally registered and returned within a period of 15 days from the date of receipt of
completed and validly executed documents. Further, in compliance with Notification No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/24 issued by SEBI, the Company has
ceased to accept physical transfer of shares w.e.f. April 1 2019, except in case of transmission of securities.
16. Dematerialisation of Equity Shares & Liquidity
To facilitate trading in demat form the Company has made arrangements with both the depositories viz. National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and
Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). Shareholders may open account with any of the Depository Participant registered with any of these two
depositories. As on March 31, 2020, 32,59,09,079 equity shares constituting 99.94% of the outstanding shares were held in dematerialized form. Entire
Equity shareholding of the promoters in Company is held in dematerialized form.

Description

Number of
shareholders

Number of
Equity Shares

Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense account as
at April 1, 2019

219

39427

Fresh undelivered cases during the Financial Year 2019-2020

NIL

NIL

Number of shareholders who approached the Company for transfer of shares from suspense
account till March 31, 2020

2

548

Number of shareholders to whom shares were transferred from the Suspense account
till March 31, 2020

2

548

Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense account lying
as on March 31, 2020

217

38879

The voting rights on the Equity shares outstanding in the suspense account as on March 31, 2020 shall remain frozen till the rightful owner of such shares
claims the shares.
18. Transfer of Unclaimed dividend / Shares to Investor Education Protection Fund
Section 124 and Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and
Refund) Rules, 2016 (‘the Rules’) mandates that companies transfer dividend that has remained unclaimed for a period of seven years from unpaid dividend
account to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). Further, the Rules mandate the transfer of shares with respect to the dividend, which has not
been paid or claimed for seven consecutive years or more to IEPF. Accordingly, the dividend for the years mentioned as follows will be transferred to the
IEPF on the respective dates if the dividend remains unclaimed for seven years, and the corresponding shares will also be transferred to IEPF if dividend is
unclaimed for seven consecutive years. The shareholders are requested to claim the unclaimed dividend amount immediately in order to avoid the transfer
of shares to IEPF.
Year

Type of Dividend

Dividend Per Share
(in `)

Date of declaration
of dividend

Due Dates for transfer
to IEPF

2016-17

Interim

0.05

21.10.2016

20.11.2023

2016-17

Final

0.05

28.9.2017

27.10.2024

2017-18

Final

0.10

24.9.2018

23.10.2025

2018-19

Final

0.10

26.09.2019

25.10.2026

Shareholders who have not yet encashed their dividend warrants for the previous years may approach with unencashed dividend warrants to the Company,
at its Corporate Office for revalidation / issue of duplicate dividend warrants.
19. Shareholders’ Correspondence
The Company has attended to all the investors’ grievances/ queries/ information requests. It is the endeavor of the Company to reply to all letters/
communications received from the shareholders within a period of 5 working days.
All correspondence may please be addressed to the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent at the address given above. In case any shareholder is not satisfied
with the response or do not get any response within reasonable period, they may approach the Investor Relations Officer at the address given above.
20. Outstanding Convertible Securities
There are no outstanding warrants or any other convertible instruments which are likely to impact the equity capital of the Company as on March 31, 2020.
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21.

Share Capital Build- up
Particulars

No. of Shares issued

Date of Issue

Particulars

No. of Shares issued

Date of Issue

Issued to Subscribers

50,000

20.01.2010

Sub- Division of Shares from `. 10/- each to `. 1/- each

5,00,000

22.01.2010

Issued to ZEEL Shareholders pursuant to Scheme

12,22,38,599

14.10.2010

Issued to Essel Entertainment Media Limited Shareholders pursuant to Scheme

14,00,00,000

01.07.2011

Allotment under ESOP

2,12,000

30.11.2012

Allotment under ESOP

59,650

13.03.2013

5,61,79,770

21.05.2013

Allotment under ESOP

2,49,993

02.02.2017

Allotment under ESOP

18,500

14.08.2013

Allotment under ESOP

3,14,650

14.02.2017

Allotment under ESOP

52,500

25.10.2013

Allotment under ESOP

24,723

20.02.2017

Allotment under ESOP

54,700

30.01.2014

Allotment under ESOP

2,64,825

28.02.2017

Allotment under ESOP

15,925

24.03.2014

Allotment under ESOP

1,58,525

02.03.2017

Allotment under ESOP

30,200

12.05.2014

Allotment under ESOP

1,96,650

14.03.2017

Allotment under ESOP

28,250

11.06.2014

Allotment under ESOP

2,17,250

21.03.2017

Allotment under ESOP

36,550

25.08.2014

Allotment under ESOP

1,37,500

23.03.2017

Allotment under ESOP

2,39,189

24.09.2014

Allotment under ESOP

1,06,850

27.03.2017

Allotment under ESOP

1,35,950

07.10.2014

Allotment under ESOP

2,17,606

24.04.2017

Allotment under ESOP

74,663

29.10.2014

Allotment under ESOP

6,00,000

25.04.2017

Allotment under ESOP

52,500

02.12.2014

Allotment under ESOP

25,067

28.04.2017

Allotment under ESOP

15,488

02.01.2015

Allotment under ESOP

20,158

18.05.2017

Allotment under ESOP

18,975

11.02.2015

Allotment under ESOP

14,806

25.05.2017

Allotment under ESOP

37,688

23.03.2015

Allotment under ESOP

2,45,238

07.06.2017

Allotment under ESOP

64,788

30.04.2015

Allotment under ESOP

2,35,000

08.06.2017

Allotment under ESOP

20,600

11.06.2015

Allotment under ESOP

3,11,190

19.07.2017

Allotment under ESOP

29,000

06.08.2015

Allotment under ESOP

20,400

21.07.2017

Allotment under ESOP

33,535

24.09.2015

Allotment under ESOP

31,425

07.09.2017

Allotment under ESOP

45,188

03.11.2015

Allotment under ESOP

4,10,820

23.10.2017

Allotment under ESOP

85,799

09.12.2015

Allotment under ESOP

82,634

02.11.2017

Allotment under ESOP

5,591

18.12.2015

Allotment under ESOP

24,925

06.12.2017

Allotment under ESOP

16,035

19.12.2015

Allotment under ESOP

3,57,747

22.12.2017

Allotment under ESOP

1,22,289

21.12.2015

Allotment under ESOP

6,56,075

31.01.2018

Global Depository Receipt

Allotment under ESOP

78,906

26.09.2016

Allotment under ESOP

51,248

08.11.2016

Allotment under ESOP

45,000

18.11.2016

Allotment under ESOP

7,606

19.12.2016

Allotment under ESOP

64,025

16.01.2017

Allotment under ESOP

1,21,269

20.01.2016

Allotment under ESOP

52,004

19.01.2016

Allotment under ESOP

1,70,000

21.06.2018

Allotment under ESOP

62,294

04.02.2016

Allotment under ESOP

13,253

29.11.2018

Allotment under ESOP

16,035

10.02.2016

Allotment under ESOP

14,000

08.08.2019

Allotment under ESOP

49,106

01.09.2016

Issue & Paid- up Capital as on 31.03.2020

140

32,60,92,725
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22.

Stock Market Data Relating to Shares Listed in India

Monthly high and low quotations and volume of Equity Shares traded on BSE and NSE for the financial year 2019 - 2020:
BSE
Months

23.

High (`)

Low (`)

NSE

Closing Monthly Price VS Closing Monthly Sensex

Volume of
shares traded

High (`)

Low (`)

Volume of
shares traded

42,000
40,000

28
26

April 2019

29.90

26.00

1,59,214

28.80

25.90

22,03,280

May 2019

29.45

21.15

4,72,683

29.00

21.35

60,20,296

June 2019

28.50

22.25

1,40,866

28.50

22.40

16,74,575

July 2019

25.20

19.00

2,81,211

25.15

19.60

30,00,026

36,000

20

August 2019

25.30

19.00

2,77,534

25.25

19.40

29,79,865

34,000

18

September 2019

24.20

20.00

1,58,927

25.80

19.80

18,61,833

October 2019

25.00

14.50

5,26,504

23.25

14.50

38,77,121

24
38,000

November 2019

28.45

19.35

3,69,883

27.95

19.05

52,54,491

December 2019

21.00

18.00

1,68,595

20.90

18.00

23,12,983

28,000

20.90

17.90

1,67,324

20.50

17.60

26,72,069

February 2020

19.20

15.20

4,07,928

19.25

15.05

34,09,910

March 2020

16.00

11.70

6,78,396

16.20

11.25

88,39,787

16

32,000
30,000

January 2020
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Relative Performance of the Equity Shares Vs. BSE Sensex & Nifty Index

24.

Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2020
No. of Equity Shares

Closing Monthly Price VS Closing Monthly Nifty

Share Holders
Number

No. of Shares

% of Holders

Number

% of Capital

28

12,500
12,000
11,500
11,000
10,500
10,000
9,500
9,000
8,500
8,000

26

Up to 500

87,378

90.7937

53,67,818

1.6461

24

501 - 1000

4,040

4.1979

33,80,077

1.0365

22

1001 - 2000

2,083

2.1644

31,94,651

0.9797

20

2001 - 3000

843

0.876

21,73,067

0.6664

18

3001 - 4000

375

0.3897

13,49,678

0.4139

4001 - 5000

388

0.4032

18,47,168

0.5665

5001 -10000

568

0.5902

43,71,616

1.3406

10001 and Above

563

0.585

30,44,08,650

93.3503

96,238

100.00

32,60,92,725

100.00

16
14
12
19
pr-

A

Ma

9
y-1

Ju

9
n-1

Ju

9
l-1

9
g-1

Au

9
p-1

Se

Nifty 50
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9

g-1

Au

12

9
t-1

Oc
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9
v-1

9
c-1

De

Ja

0
n-2

Fe

0
b-2

M

20
ar-

Total
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25.

Categories of Equity Shareholders as on March 31, 2020

27. Credit Rating

Category
% of shareholding

No. of shares held

Promoters

57.17

Individuals

11.63

3,79,13,614

5.16

1,68,25,708

23.56

7,68,39,883

Non Resident Indians

0.81

26,48,318

Others

1.67

54,22,814

100.00

32,60,92,725

Body Corporate
Foreign Portfolio Investors

Total
26.

The credit ratings during the financial year 2019-20 for the Debt Instrument, Overdraft Term Loan and Working Capital Demand Loan of the Company from
CARE Rating Ltd and Brickworks are as follows:

March 31, 2020

18,64,42,388

Debt Instrument: The rating revised from CARE AA+ (CE) [Double A Plus (Credit Enhancement)]; Continues on Credit watch with negative implications to
CARE AA (CE) [Double A (Credit Enhancement)] (Credit watch with negative implications).
Overdraft Term Loan: No change in credit rating during the financial year. The rating reaffirmed is BWR A (Pronounced as BWR A) Credit Watch with
Developing Implications
Working Capital Demand Loan: The Credit rating assigned during the year as BWR A (Pronounced as BWR A) Credit Watch with Developing Implications

Particulars of Shareholding
a)

Promoter Shareholding as on March 31, 2020

Sr. No.

Name of Shareholder

% of shareholding

1

(Jayneer Infrapower & Multiventures Pvt. Limited)

6,12,10,000

18.77

2

Asian Satellite Broadcast Pvt. Ltd

5,73,93,250

17.60

3

Jayneer Enterprises LLP

1,50,00,000

4.60

4

Essel Media Ventures Private Limited

1,28,61,036

3.94

5

Sprit Infrapower & Multiventures Private Limited
(Formerly Sprit Textiles Pvt. Ltd.)

1,11,03,864

3.41

6

Essel Infraprojects Limited

0.00

0.00

7

Essel Holdings Limited

2,88,74,238

8.85

18,64,42,388

57.17

Total
b)
Sr. No.

Top ten (10) Public Shareholding as on March 31, 2020
Name of Shareholder

No of Shares held

% of shareholding

1

Moon Capital Trading Pte. Ltd.

2,09,55,327

6.43

2

Polus Global Fund

2,06,27,966

6.33

3

Morgan Stanley Asia (Singapore) Pte.

1,38,04,546

4.23

4

Copthall Mauritius Investment Limited

81,05,371

2.49

5

Vyoman Tradelink India Private Limited

49,49,506

1.52

46,34,088
34,49,013
24,62,530
22,93,464
22,74,338
8,35,56,149

1.42
1.06
0.76
0.70
0.70
25.64

6
7
8
9
10

144

No of Shares held

UBS Principal Capital Asia Ltd
Veena Investments Private Limited
Tarra Fund
Hornbill Orchid India Fund
JM Financial Services Limited
Total
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Certification on Financial Statements of the Company

Independent Auditor’s Report

We, the undersigned, in our capacities as the “Chief Executive Officer” and “Chief Financial Officer” of Zee Learn Limited (“the Company”), certify that:
1. We have reviewed the Financial Statements and Cash Flow Statement of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2020 and that to the best of our
knowledge and belief:
(i) these Statement do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;
(ii) these Statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable
laws and regulations.
2. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2020 which are fraudulent,
illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct;
3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control
systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation
of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps taken or proposed to be taken to rectify these deficiencies;
4. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee that during the year:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)

there has not been significant changes in internal control over financial reporting;
there have not been any significant changes in accounting policies; and
there have been no instances of significant fraud of which we are aware that involve the management or other employees, having significant role in the
Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

To
The Members of
Zee Learn Limited
Report on the audit of standalone financial statements
1. Qualified Opinion
We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Zee Learn Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March
2020, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(herein after referred to as “standalone financial statements”).
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the possible effects of the matters specified in the
Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2020, and its profit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on
that date.
2. Basis for Qualified opinion
a)

The Company has non-current investment in its subsidiary company viz MT Educare Limited (MTEL) with a carrying value at cost of Rs 27,812.22
Lakhs. MTEL on a consolidated basis has a positive net worth as at 31 March 2020. Due to the prevailing unprecedented Covid19 pandemic situation
and the uncertainty connected to it, the Company has not been able to carry out a detailed and comprehensive assessment of the asset in accordance
with the principles of Indian Accounting standard – 36 “Impairment of Assets” and hence no adjustments have been considered by the Company to the
carrying value of this non-current investment as at 31 March, 2020. In the absence of sufficient and appropriate audit evidence by way of such detailed
and comprehensive assessment due to the current COVID-19 pandemic situation, we are unable to comment upon adjustments, if any, that may be
required to the carrying value of this non-current investment on the standalone financial statements.

b)

The Company has not complied with the provisions of Regulation 33 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulation 2015 relating to the submission of the results for the quarter ended 31 March 2020 to Securities and Exchange Board of India
(SEBI) within the stipulated time. Penalties on account of such non compliances are presently not ascertainable and not provided for in the books of
account. Consequently, we are unable to comment on the impact, if any, on the standalone financial statements.

For Zee Learn Limited
Vikash Kumar Kar
Zee Learn Limited
Chief Executive Officer
Place : Mumbai
Date : October 7, 2020

Rakesh Agarwal
Chief Financial Officer

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.
3. Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2020. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.
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Description of Auditor’s Response

Description of Key Audit Matter
Accuracy of recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosures of
revenues and other related balances in view of Ind AS 115 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers”
•

Sales are recognized when the control of the goods and services is
transferred to the customer.

•

Revenue is recognized at the amount that reflects the considerations to
which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to customer.

•

Revenue is recognized over a time or point in time.

•

The Company focuses on revenue as a key performance measure
which could create an incentive for revenue to be recognized before the
control.

Principal Audit Procedures
We assessed the Company’s process of identifying the revenue accounting.
Our audit approach consisted testing of the design and operating
effectiveness of the internal controls and substantive testing as follows:
•

Evaluated the design of internal controls relating to implementation of
the revenue accounting standard.

We draw attention to note 46 to the accompanying Statement that state that
the management has made an assessment of the impact of COVID-19 on the
Company’s operations, financial performance, and position as at and for the
year ended 31 March 2020 and has concluded that there is no impact which is
required to be recognized in the financial results. Accordingly, no adjustments
have been made to the standalone financial statements. However, the extent
of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the Company’s result is
dependent upon future developments.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.
5. Other information
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Management
Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board
Report and Chairman’s Statement but does not include the standalone
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone
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In preparing the standalone financial statements, the management is
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

•

Assessing the application of Company’s accounting policies over
revenue recognition and comparing the Company’s accounting policies
over revenue recognition with applicable accounting standards.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting process.

•

Identifying the nature of the revenues and identification of any unusual
contract terms.

7. Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements

•

Testing the revenue recognized including testing of Company’s control
on revenue recognition, when applicable. Our testing included tracing
the information to agreements and payments.

•

Assessing the revenue recognized with substantive analytical
procedures, and

•

Assessing the Company’s disclosure on revenue recognition.

Our procedures did not identify any material exceptions.

4. Emphasis of Matter

may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
standalone financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
•

6. Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with
Governance for the Standalone Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in
Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and

•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i.) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by management.

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that

•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
standalone financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
8. Report on other Legal and Regulatory requirements
I.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”),
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of
the Act, we give in the “Annexure A”, a statement on the matters specified
in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable

II. As required by Section143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a) we have sought and except for the possible effects of the matters
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, obtained all
the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;
b) except for the possible effects of the matters described in the
Basis for Qualified Opinion section, in our opinion, proper books of
account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books;
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c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the statement of cash flows and the statement
of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account;
d) except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for
Qualified Opinion section, in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone
financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133 of
the Act;;
e) The matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph
above, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of
the Company;
f)

On the basis of written representations received from the directors of the
Company as on 31 March 2020 and taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2020 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.
h)

With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197 (16) of the act, as
amended:

i)

i.

directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of Section
197of the Act.

Annexure - A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:

Annexure referred to in paragraph 8(II) under “Report on other Legal and
Regulatory requirements” of our report of even date to the members of
the Company on the standalone financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2020

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its
financial position in its standalone financial statements- refer note 35 to
the standalone financial statements;

I

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts having any material foreseeable losses; and
iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be
transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
Company during the year.
For MGB & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 101169W/W-100035
Sanjay Kothari
Partner
Membership Number 048215
Mumbai, 7 October 2020

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its

UDIN : 20048215AAAAGM6270

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full
particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed
assets.
(b) During the year, the fixed assets of the Company have been
physically verified by the management and as informed, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification is reasonable having regard to the size of
the Company and the nature of its assets.
(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on
the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the title
deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the
Company.

ii. The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the
year. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable. As
informed, no material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification
carried out during the year.
iii. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Act.
iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186

Name of the Statute

Nature of
the Dues

The Central Sales
Tax Act, 1956

Sales Tax

The Maharashtra Value
Added Tax Act, 2002

Amount
(In lakhs)

of the Act, in respect of loan given and investments made and
guarantees and securities provided during the year.
v. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the
meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act.
vi. The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central
Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act and rules
thereunder. We have broadly reviewed such records and are of the
opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been
made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed
examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are
accurate or complete.
vii. According to the records of the Company examined by us and information
and explanations given to us:
(a) Undisputed statutory dues including employees’ state insurance,
income tax, sales tax, service tax, goods and services tax ,duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax , cess and others as
applicable have generally been regularly deposited with the
appropriate authorities except few delays in case of payments of
advance income tax and goods and service tax. There are no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of aforesaid dues
outstanding as at 31 March 2020 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.
(b) There are no amounts on account of goods and service tax, duty of
customs and duty of excise which are yet to be deposited on account
of any dispute. The disputed dues of service tax, sales tax and value
added tax which have not been deposited as under:

Period to which the
amount relate

Forum where dispute is pending

49.95

F.Y. 2005 - 2006

Deputy Commissioner of
Sales Tax, Appeals

Sales Tax

90.81

F.Y. 2010 - 2011

Joint Commissioner of Sales Tax

Sales Tax

50.49

F.Y. 2012 - 2013

Joint Commissioner of Sales Tax

Value Added Tax

74.64

F.Y. 2005 - 2006

Deputy Commissioner of
Sales Tax , Appeals

Value Added Tax - Penalty 46.55
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Value Added Tax

42.85

F.Y. 2010 - 2011

Joint Commissioner of Sales Tax

Value Added Tax

41.08

F.Y. 2012 - 2013

Joint Commissioner of Sales Tax
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Name of the Statute

Nature of
the Dues

Amount
(In lakhs)

Finance Act 1994

Service Tax

17.90

Service Tax

7.24

Service Tax

19.49

Forum where dispute is pending

F.Y 2009 - 2010 to
F.Y. 2011- 2012

Central Excise and Service
Tax Appellate Tribunal

F.Y. 2012 - 2013

Central Excise and Service
Tax Appellate Tribunal

F.Y 2007 - 2008 to
F.Y. 2010 - 2011

Central Excise and Service
Tax Appellate Tribunal

Service Tax

1.61

F.Y. 2011- 2012

Central Excise and Service
Tax Appellate Tribunal

Service Tax

2.66

F.Y. 2012 - 2013

Central Excise and Service
Tax Appellate Tribunal

Service tax

512.33

F.Y. 2011 - 2012 to
F.Y. 2014 -2015

Central Excise and Service
Tax Appellate Tribunal

Service Tax - Penalty

553.97

Service Tax

602.73

F.Y. 2016 – 2017 to
F.Y. 2017-2018

Commissioner of Central Goods
and Service Tax

viii. According to the records of the Company examined by us and the
information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted
in repayment of loans or borrowings to banks and debenture holders. The
Company has availed to defer scheduled Term Loan / Overdraft servicing
payments as per RBI Circular of 27 March 2020 and 23 May 2020 on
Moratorium for debt servicing for period 1 March 2020 till 31 August 2020.
Accordingly, the Company has deferred interest on term loan amounting
to Rs. 14.47 lakhs and interest on bank overdraft facility amounting to
Rs.20.45 lakhs which shall be repayable not later than 31 March 2021 and
the same has been converted into Funded Interest Term Loan which shall
be repayable not later than 31 March 2021 . Also, the tenure of term loan /
working capital limits has been extended by six months from their original
dates of maturity. The Company does not have any loans from Government.
ix. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or
further public offer (including debt instruments) .The Company has not
raised any term loans raised during the year.
x. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the
Company, carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing
practices in India, and according to the information and explanations
given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud
by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed
or reported during the year, nor have been informed of any such case by
the Management.
xi. According to the records of the Company examined by us, and
information and explanations given to us, the Company has
paid/provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act.
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Period to which the
amount relate

xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company is not a Nidhi company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are
not applicable to it.
xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on
our examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act,
and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the standalone
Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable Accounting
Standards.
xiv. According to the records of the Company examined by us, and
information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year.
xv. According to the records of the Company examined by us, and
information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered
into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.
xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
For MGB & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 101169W/W-100035
Sanjay Kothari
Partner
Membership Number 048215
Mumbai, 7 October 2020
UDIN: 20048215AAAAGM6270

Annexure - B to the Independent Auditor’s Report
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section
3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) as referred to in
paragraph 8(II)(g) under “Report on other Legal and Regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date to the members of the
Company on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2020
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Zee
Learn Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2020 in conjunction with our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on “Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting” (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed
under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal
financial controls system over financial reporting.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March
2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.
For MGB & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 101169W/W-100035
Sanjay Kothari
Partner
Membership Number 048215
Mumbai, 7 October 2020
UDIN : 20048215AAAAGM6270
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Note
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment
(b) Right-of-use asset
(c) Capital work-in-progress
(d) Investment property
(e) Intangible assets
(f) Intangible assets under development
(g) Financial assets
(i) Investments
(ii) Loans
(iii) Other financial assets
(h) Deferred tax assets (net)
(i) Income tax assets (net)
(j) Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets
Current assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial assets
(i) Investments
(ii) Trade receivables
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above
(v) Loans
(vi) Other financial assets
(c) Other current assets
Total current assets
Total Assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital
(b) Other Equity
Total Equity
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Lease liabilities
(iii) Others
(b) Provisions
(c) Other liabilities
Total non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Lease liabilities
(iii) Trade payables
(1) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(2) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities
(b) Other current liabilities
(c) Provisions
(d) Current tax liabilities (net)
Total current liabilities
Total Liabilities
Total Equity and Liabilities
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements
As per our attached report of even date
For MGB & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN - 101169W/W100035
Sanjay Kothari
Partner
Membership Number 048215
Place: Mumbai
Date: 7 October 2020
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31 March 2020


( lakhs)

31 March 2019
Note

3
4
3
5
6
6

603.98
1,913.55
5.85
154.29
12.61

449.65
100.57
5.85
102.63
50.86

7
8
9
10
11
12

50,602.76
15,724.46
218.10
503.57
174.85
121.87
70,035.89

50,601.73
253.64
463.53
142.33
150.90
52,321.69

13

1,769.93

1,314.48

14
15
16 (A)
16 (B)
8
9
12

9,572.00
1,800.30
107.32
57.12
983.93
202.02
14,492.62
84,528.51

9,572.00
2,284.61
967.80
27.21
9,067.90
874.56
328.06
24,436.62
76,758.31

3,260.93
44,492.12
47,753.05

3,260.79
38,015.30
41,276.09

17
18

19
20
21 (B)
22
23

19
20
21 (A)
21 (B)
23
22
24

11,508.25
1,486.86
738.76
196.88
6,911.52
20,842.27

Vikash Kumar Kar
Whole-Time Director & CEO

12,436.60
799.38
164.93
8,301.62
21,702.53

4,384.66
549.70

4,361.52
-

476.49
1,098.11
4,585.89
4,578.24
30.51
229.59
15,933.19
36,775.46
84,528.51

467.67
1,897.81
3,362.93
3,655.73
33.90
0.13
13,779.69
35,482.22
76,758.31

1-53
For and on behalf of the board

Rakesh Agarwal
Chief Financial Officer

( lakhs)

Nanette D'sa
Director
Prashant Parekh
Company Secretary

Income
Revenue from operations
Other income

31 March 2020

25
26
Total Income

19,437.24
2,393.32
21,830.56

20,977.80
1,683.96
22,661.76

27
28
29
30
31
Total Expenses

3,364.82
3,058.86
2,451.91
872.08
2,967.49
12,715.16

4,826.39
2,951.65
1,997.13
377.19
3,840.95
13,993.31

9,115.40

8,668.45

Total Tax Expenses

2,314.18
(25.29)
(35.41)
2,253.48

2,525.82
45.74
(15.38)
(57.32)
2,498.86

(A)

6,861.92

6,169.59

(13.45)
-

17.13
-

(B)

(13.45)

17.13

(A+B)

6,848.47

6,186.72

2.10
2.10

1.89
1.89

Expenses
Operational cost
Employee benefits expense
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses

Profit before tax
Less : Tax expense
Current tax - current year
- earlier period
Deferred tax (including MAT credit entitlement) - current year
- earlier period

32

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income / (loss) (including tax effect)
(.i.) Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss
(.ii.) Items that will be reclassified to statement of profit and loss
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year
Earnings per equity share (face value ` 1 each)
Basic (`)
Diluted (``)

47

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements

1-53

As per our attached report of even date

31 March 2019

For and on behalf of the board

For MGB & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN - 101169W/W100035
Vikash Kumar Kar

Nanette D'sa

Whole-Time Director & CEO

Director

Sanjay Kothari
Partner
Membership Number 048215
Rakesh Agarwal

Prashant Parekh

Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: 7 October 2020
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( lakhs)
A.

Equity share capital
Balance as at 01 April 2018
Changes in equity share capital
Balance as at 31 March 2019
Changes in equity share capital
Balance as at 31 March 2020

Note
17a
17a

( Lakhs)
3,258.95
1.84
3,260.79
0.14
3,260.93

B. Other equity

A.

( Lakhs)
Securities
premium

Balance as at 01 April 2018
Profit for the year
Re-measurement gains / (losses)
on defined benefit plans (net of tax)
Total comprehensive income for the year

31 March 2020

Debenture
redemption
reserve

Reserves and surplus
Share based
General
payment
reserve
reserve

Retained
earnings

Total other
equity

12,447.58
-

812.50
-

523.04
-

13,971.80
-

4,354.55
6,169.59

32,109.47
6,169.59

12,447.58
Transferred from Statement of Profit and Loss Account
Dividend paid
Dividend distribution tax paid
Excercise of shares options
74.80
Share options outstanding account
-

812.50
406.25
-

523.04
(18.84)
56.23

13,971.80
-

17.13
6,186.72
10,541.27
(406.25)
(326.06)
(67.02)
-

17.13
6,186.72
38,296.19
(326.06)
(67.02)
55.96
56.23

12,522.38
-

1,218.75
-

560.43
-

13,971.80
-

9,741.94
6,861.92

38,015.30
6,861.92

12,522.38
Transferred from Statement of Profit and Loss Account
Dividend paid
Dividend distribution tax paid
Excercise of shares options
4.63
Share options outstanding account
4.63
Balance as at 31 March 2020
12,527.01

1,218.75
203.13
203.13
1,421.88

560.43
(1.85)
18.69
16.84
577.27

13,971.80
13,971.80

(13.45)
6,848.47
16,590.41
(203.13)
(326.09)
(67.03)
(596.25)
15,994.16

(13.45)
6,848.47
44,863.77
(326.09)
(67.03)
2.78
18.69
(371.65)
44,492.12

Balance as at 31 March 2019
Profit for the year
Re-measurement gains / (losses)
on defined benefit plans (net of tax)
Total comprehensive income for the year

1)
2)
3)
4)

Securities premium is used to record premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013.
Debenture redemption reserve is created out of the profits which is available for payment of dividend for the purpose of redemption of debentures.
Share option outstanding account is related to share options granted by the Company to its employee under its employee share option plan.
General Reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. General Reserve includes `/Lakhs 8,881.25
(`/Lakhs 8,881.25) pursuant to the scheme of Amalgamation, sanctioned by the Hon'ble Court of Bombay and shall not be used for the purpose of declaring
dividend.
5) Retained earnings represent the accumulated earnings net of losses if any made by the Company over the years.
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements

1-53

As per our attached report of even date

For and on behalf of the board

For MGB & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN - 101169W/W100035
Sanjay Kothari
Partner
Membership Number 048215
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Cash flow from operating activities
Net Profit before tax
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Liabilities no longer required / excess provision written back
Employee share based payment expenses
Net gain on Investments measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
(Profit) / Loss on sale / discard of property, plant and equipment / intangibles
Interest expenses
Allowances of doubtful debts
Amortization of anciliary borrowing cost
Unwinding of discount on security deposit
Dividend income
Interest income

9,115.40

8,668.45

872.08
(88.02)
18.70
(4.21)
0.67
2,447.78
242.21
6.26
378.64
(0.01)
(1,461.45)

377.19
(57.01)
56.24
(4.49)
1,958.89
218.86
6.26
394.50
(17.72)
(892.20)

Operating profit before working capital changes

11,528.05

10,708.97

Changes in working capital :
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories
(Increase) / Decrease in trade and other receivables
Increase / (Decrease) in trade and other payables
Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid (net)

(455.45)
202.84
(1,060.28)
10,215.16
(2,091.94)

(380.34)
(1,821.33)
4,178.48
12,685.78
(2,810.93)

8,123.22

9,874.85

(346.31)

(547.33)

Net cash flow from operating activities (A)
B.

Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment / intangible assets /
investment property / capital work-in-progress
Sale of property, plant and equipment / intangible assets
Proceed from/(Investments) in deposits with bank
Proceed from/(Investments) in margin money deposit with bank
Sale of current investments
Purchase of current investments
Loans given to others
Loans given to subsidiary companies
Receipt of loans given to subsidiary companies

Rakesh Agarwal
Chief Financial Officer

Prashant Parekh
Company Secretary

22.64
248.09

30.31

(33.25)

1,000.00

1,277.45

(1,000.00)

(7,813.24)

(83.90)

-

(6,364.71)

(13,044.67)

1,094.21

5,414.00

-

0.01

Dividend received from others

-

17.71

Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B)
Nanette D'sa
Director

(29.91)

Dividend received from subsidiary company
Interest received

Vikash Kumar Kar
Whole-Time Director & CEO

31 March 2019

160.07

355.53

(5,540.24)

(14,103.06)
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( lakhs)

31 March 2020
C.

2.92

57.80

Proceeds from non-current borrowings

5,755.00

6,723.13

Repayment of non-current borrowings

(3,839.57)

(6,475.50)

-

4,361.52

Payment of lease liabilities

(696.91)

-

Dividend paid (including dividend distribution tax)

(393.12)

(381.13)

Interest paid

(4,271.78)

(687.24)

Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities ( C.)

(3,443.46)

3,598.58

(860.48)

(629.63)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

967.80

1,597.43

Net cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

107.32

967.80

57.12

27.21

164.44

995.01

Proceeds from current borrowings

Net cash flow during the year (A+B+C)

Add : Balances earmarked
Cash and bank balances at the end of the year
Notes

2.
3.
4.
5.

The separate financial statements of the company for the year ended 31
March 2020, were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors at their
meeting held on 7 October 2020.
2

Significant Accounting Policies

a

Basis of preparation

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Cash and cash equivalents
Bank Balances

107.32
57.12

967.80
27.21

Total

164.44

995.01

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been
rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule III
(except per share data), unless otherwise stated. Zero '0' denotes
amount less than ` 50,000/-.
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It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

•

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

•

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting period.
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

b

Nanette D'sa
Director

c

Property, plant and equipment
(i)

Freehold land is carried at cost. Other property, plant and
equipment acquired are measured on initial recognition at cost.
Subsequent to initial recognition, property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the
cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing
costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria
are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates
them separately based on their specific useful lives. The carrying
amount of the replaced part accounted for as a separate asset
previously is derecognised. Likewise, when a major inspection is
performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the
plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria
are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised in statement of profit and loss when incurred. The
present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an
asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if
the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

(ii)

Capital work-in-progress comprises cost of property, plant and
equipment and related expenses that are not yet ready for their
intended use at the reporting date.

Prashant Parekh
Company Secretary

•

Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal
operating cycle

•

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

•

Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period,
or

•

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used

Investment property
Investment property is land held for capital appreciation. Investment
property is measured initially at cost including purchase price. It is
measured and carried at cost.

Current non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on
current/ non-currentclassification. An asset is classified as current when it is:

Rakesh Agarwal
Chief Financial Officer
Place: Mumbai
Date: 7 October 2020

•

These standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees,
which is also the company's functional currency.

For MGB & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN - 101169W/W100035
Sanjay Kothari
Partner
Membership Number 048215

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

Functional and Presentation currency

For and on behalf of the board

Vikash Kumar Kar
Whole-Time Director & CEO

•

These financial statements have been prepared and presented under
the historical cost convention, on the accural basis of accounting except
for certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair
values at the end of each reporting period, as stated in the accounting
policies stated out below."

As required by Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”, a reconciliation between opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arising
from financing activities is given in note 52 "
The above cash flow statement has been prepared in accordance with the " Indirect Method " as set out in the Ind AS -7 on " Cash Flow Statements".
The impact of non-cash transactions have not been given in the above cash flow statement details of which are
given in note 52
Previous year's figures have been regrouped, recast wherever necessary.
As per our attached report of even date

All other assets are classified as non-current.A liability is classified as
current when:

"These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) as
notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, as and when amended and other
relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed there under and
guidelines issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI).

( lakhs)

Component of cash and cash equivalents as follows

to settle a liability for at leasttwelve months after the reporting period.

Corporate Information
Zee Learn Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated in State of
Maharashtra on 4 January, 2010. The Company is one of the most
diversified premium education companies which delivers learning
solutions and training through its multiple products viz. Kidzee, Mount
Litera Zee Schools, Mount Litera World Preschool, Zee Institute of
Media Arts (ZIMA), Zee Institute of Creative Arts (ZICA) and E Learning Online Education and Testing.

Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity shares (including securities premium)

1.

1

31 March 2019

d

Intangible assets/Intangible assets under development
Intangible assets acquired or developed are measured on initial
recognition at cost and stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment loss, if any. Expenditure incurred on acquisition /
development of intangible assets which are not put / ready to use at the
reporting date is disclosed under intangible assets under development.
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e

intangibles / investment property is derecognised on disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The
gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant
and equipment / intangibles is measured as the difference between the
net disposal in proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the item is
derecognised.

Depreciation / amortisation on property, plant and equipment /
intangible assets
Depreciable amount for property, plant and equipment / intangible
assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less
its estimated residual value.

(i)

(ii)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment(except freehold land
which is stated at cost) is provided on straight-line method as per the
useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.
Leasehold Improvements are amortised over the period of Lease.

(iii) Intangible assets are amortized on straight line basis over their
respective individual useful lives estimated by the management.
The useful lives of intangible assets are 3 years.
f

Impairment of Property, plant and equipment / intangible assets
The carrying amounts of the Company’s property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If there are indicators of
impairment, an assessment is made to determine whether the asset’s
carrying value exceeds its recoverable amount. Where it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating
unit to which the asset belongs.
An impairment is recognised in statement of profit and loss whenever
the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of net
selling price, defined as the fair value less costs to sell, and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market rates and risks specific to the asset.
An impairment loss for an individual asset or cash generating unit are
reversed if there has been a change in estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised and
is only reversed to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised. Impairment loss are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss.

g

Derecognition of property, plant and equipment / intangibles /
investment property
The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment /
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h

Leases

(I)

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for
building premises. The Company assesses whether a contract
contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess
whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use
of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease
and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.
At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a
right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for all
lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term
of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For
these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the
lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease.
Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate
the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease
liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they
will be exercised.
The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial
direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. The lease liability is initially
measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate


implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental
borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease
liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the
related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if
whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

I

(i)

Transition:
Ind AS 116 Lease is applicable for financial reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 April 2019 and replaces existing lease accounting
guidance, namely Ind AS 17 Leases. Ind AS 116 introduces a single, onbalance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognises
a Right-of-Use (“ROU”) asset representing its right to use the
underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make
lease payments. The nature of expenses related to those leases will
change as Ind AS 116 replaces the operating lease expense (i.e., rent)
with depreciation charge for ROU assets and interest expense on lease
liabilities. There are recognition exemptions for short-term leases and
leases of low-value items. Lessor accounting remains similar to the
current standard – i.e. lessors continue to classify leases as finance or
operating leases.
Accordingly, the Company has adopted Ind AS 116 - Leases and
applied it to all lease contracts existing on April 01, 2019 using the
modified retrospective method. Consequently, the cumulative
adjustment has been taken on the date of initial application i.e. April 01,
2019. As permitted under the specific transitional provisions in the
standard, the Company is not required to restate the comparative
figures. On transition, due to the adoption of the new Ind AS, it resulted
in recognition of Right-of-Use asset (ROU) of `/lakhs 2,605.24 and a
lease liability of `/lakhs 2,569.87. Since the company has adopted
modified restrospective method , no impact would arise in the opening
retained earnings.
(ii) Operating lease / Short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets
The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of rented premises (i.e., those leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the
lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of
office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at
banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

(ii)

j

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents consist of cash at bank and on hand, short-term
deposits and balances earmarked, as defined as they are
considered s integral part of company's cash management.
Inventories
Educational goods and equipments are valued at lower of cost or
estimated net realizable value. Cost comprises cost of purchase, freight
and other expense incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Costs are taken on weighted average basis and
specific identification method.

k

Fair value measurement
The Company has an established control framework with respect to the
measurement of fair values. The management regularly reviews
significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments.
All financial assets and financial liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:
Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable, or
Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.
If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall
into different levels of a fair value hierarchy, then the fair value
measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair
value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurement.
The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value
hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has
occurred.
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Financial instruments
Financial instruments is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of
one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
(i)

Initial recognition and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities
Financial assets are recognized when the company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the financial instruments.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are recognised
immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

(ii) Subsequent measurement
For the purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets
are classified in four categories:
i)

Debt instruments measured at amortised cost

ii)

Debt instruments measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

iii)

Debt instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL)

iv)

Equity instruments measured at FVTOCI or FVTPL

(A) Financial assets
Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories:
amortised cost, financial assets ‘at Fair value through profit and loss'
(FVTPL), ‘Fair value through other comprehensive income' (FVTOCI).
The classification depends on the Company's business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of cash flows.
(B) Debt instrument
(a) Amortised cost
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised
cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to
hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
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specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
This category generally applies to trade and other
receivables.

and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive
income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value
gains and losses to statement of profit and loss. Dividends from
such investments are recognised in statement of profit and loss
as other income when the Company's right to receive payment
is established.

(b) Fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI)

Investment in subsidiaries

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of
the following criteria are met:
a)

The objective of the business model is achieved both
by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets.

b)

The asset’s contractual cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest.

Investment in subsidiaries are carried at cost less impairment
loss in accordance with IND AS 27 on ""Separate Financial
Statements"". Refer note 7 for list of investments.
(iii) Derecognition of financial assets

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are
measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value.
Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive
income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest
income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange
gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of
the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified from the equity to statement of profit and loss. Interest
earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as
interest income using the EIR method.
( c) Fair value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt
instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as
at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. In
addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument,
which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at
FVTPL. However, such election is considered only if doing so
reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). Debt
instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at
fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit
and loss.
(d) Equity investments
The Company measures equity investments other than its
subsidiaries at fair value through profit and loss. Where the
Company's management has elected to present fair value gains

A financial asset is derecognised only when
a)

b)

The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or the rights have expired or
The Company retains the contractual rights to receive the cash
flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients in an
arrangement

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates
whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is
derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial
asset is not derecognised.

i)

Trade receivables

ii)

Financial assets measured at amorised cost (other than trade
receivables)

iii)

Financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

In case of trade receivables, the company follows a simplified
approach wherein an amount equal to lifetime ECL measured and
recognised as loss allowance. Loss allowances for trade receivable
are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses
that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. 12 month expected credit losses are the portion
of expected credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period
if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).
In case of other assets, the company determines if there has been a
significant increased in credit risk of the financial assets since initial
recognition. If the credit risk of such assets has not increased
significantly, an amount equal to 12 months ECL is measured and
recognised as loss allowance. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, an amount equal to lifetime ECL is measured and
recognised as loss allowance.
(vi) Financial liabilities
Classification
Financial liabilties are recognized when company becomes party to
contractual provisions of the instrument. The Company classifies all
financial liabilities at amortised cost or fair value through profit or loss.

(iv) Impairment of financial assets
Subsequent measurement
The Company measures the expected credit loss associated with its
assets based on historical trend, industry practices and the business
enviornment in which the entity operates or any other appropriate
basis. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk.
Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and
deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments.
(v) Expected credit loss :
The company applies expected credit losses (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of loss allowance on the following.

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR
amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fee or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.
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outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle such obligation and the amount of such obligation can be reliably
estimated. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a
possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not
require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the
amount of such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is a
possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which likelihood
of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, no
provision or disclosure is made.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
trading are recognised in the profit or loss.
Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability
is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability
is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.
(vii) Determination of fair value

m

(ii)

n

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or
receivable. Revenue is recognised only when it can be reliably measured
and it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company.
Transaction price is accounted net of GST. Since GST is not received by
the company on its own account, rather, it is collected by the Company on
behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

(ii)

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Arrangements with Multiple Performance Obligations
The Company’s contracts with customers may include multiple
performance obligations. For such arrangements, the Company
allocates revenue to each performance obligation based on its
relative standalone selling price, which is generally determined
based on the price charged to customers.

C.

p

Sales - Educational goods and equipments /content is recognised
upfront at the point in time when the goods/ equipments/ content is
delivered to the customer via online/offline delivery, wherever
applicable, while the Company retains neither managerial
involvement nor the effective control.

The Company operates both defined benefit and defined
contribution schemes for its employees.
For defined contribution schemes the amount charged as
expense is equal to the contributions paid or payable when
employees have rendered services entitling them to the
contributions.
For defined benefit plans, actuarial valuations are carried out at
each balance sheet date using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
All such plans are unfunded.

Services
a)

Course fees and Royalty income is recognized over the
duration of the course and as per agreed terms

b)

Franchise fees is recognized as per the agreed terms of the
agreement.

c)

Revenue from other services is recognised as and when such
services are completed/performed.

(iii) Interest income from financial asset is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

r

Accounting for taxes on income
Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax.
(i)

(ii)

Short term employee benefits:
All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of
rendering the service are classified as short term employee
benefits and they are recognized in the period in which the
employee renders the related service. The Company recognizes
the undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for services rendered as a
liability.

q
(i)

Current tax
Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable in respect of
taxable profit for a period. Current tax for current and prior periods
is recognized at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered
from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Retirement and other employee benefits
(i)

Foreign currency monetary items are translated using the
exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Exchange
differences arising on settlement of monetary items or on
reporting such monetary items at rates different from those at
which they were initially recorded during the period, or reported in
previous financial statements are recognised as income or as
expenses in the period in which they arise.

(iii) Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at historical cost
and translated at the exchange rate prevelant at the date of the
transaction.

Contract assets and liabilities
Contract assets relate primarily to the Company’s rights to
consideration for work completed but not billed at each reporting
date. Contract assets are transferred to receivables when the rights
become unconditional. This usually occurs when the Company
issues an invoice to a customer. Contract liabilities primarily relate
to consideration received in advance from customers, for which
the performance obligation is yet to be satisfied.

A. Revenue

Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of
qualifying assets till the time such assets are ready for intended use are
capitalised as part of cost of the assets. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period they occur.

B.

Revenue recognition

(i)

The Company recognizes provisions when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event exists and it is probable that an
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(ii)

(iv) Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive
dividend is established.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements, however
they are disclosed where the inflow of economic benefits is probable.
When the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset
is no longer a contingent asset and is recognised as an asset.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an ordinary transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. In determining the fair value of its financial
instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and assumptions
that are based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting
date. The methods used to determine fair value include discounted cash
flow analysis and available quoted market prices. All methods of
assessing fair value result in general approximation of value, and such
value may never actually be realized.

(.i.) Borrowings are initially recognised at net of transaction costs incurred
and measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds
(net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of the borrowings
using the EIR.



(ii)

Deferred tax
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the financial statements except
when the deferred tax arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability that effects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss at the time of transition. Deferred tax assets are reviewed
at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Transactions in foreign currencies

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable
income in the years in which those temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled.

The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupees (“ ` ”).

Presentation of current and deferred tax

Foreign currency transactions are accounted at the exchange
rate prevailing on the date of such transactions.

Current and deferred tax are recognized as income or an expense
in the statement of profit and loss, except to the extent they relate
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Employee stock options The fair value of the options granted under
the “"Employee Stock Option scheme (ZLL ESOP 2010) to ZLL ESOP
2010 - AMENDED 2015"" is recognised as an employee benefits
expense with a corresponding increase in equity. The total amount to
be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted:-

to items recognized in other comprehensive income, in which
case, the current and deferred tax income / expense are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
(iii) Minimum alternate tax (MAT)
Paid in accordance with tax laws, which give rise to future
economic benefits in the form of adjustment of future tax liability, is
recognised as an asset only when, based on convincing evidence,
it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with it
will flow to the Company and the assets can be measured reliably.
s

Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of non financial assets are reviewed at each
balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on
internal/external factors. An asset is treated as impaired when the
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable value. The recoverable
amount is the greater of an asset’s or cash generating unit's, net selling
price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to the present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money
and risks specific to the assets. An impairment loss is charged to the
statement of profit and loss in the year in which an asset is identified as
impaired. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised
carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life. The
impairment loss recognized in prior accounting periods is reversed by
crediting the statement of profit and loss if there has been a change in
the estimate of recoverable amount.

t

Including any market performance conditions- excluding the impact of
any service and non-market performance vesting conditions, andincluding the impact of any non-vesting conditions. The total expense is
recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of
the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each
period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates,
if any, in the statement of profit and loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.
v

Business combinations have been accounted for using the acquisition
method under the provisions of Ind AS 103, Business Combinations.
The cost of an acquisition is measured at the fair value of the assets
transferred, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or
assumed at the date of acquisition, which is the date on which control is
transferred to the Company. The cost of acquisition also includes the
fair value of any contingent consideration. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair value on the date of
acquisition.

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is computed and disclosed using the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Dilutive
earnings per share is computed and disclosed using the weighted
average number of equity and dilutive equity equivalent shares
outstanding during the period, except when the results would be antidilutive.

u

Share based payments
The Company recognizes compensation expense relating to sharebased payments in net profit using fair-value in accordance with Ind AS
102, Share-Based Payment. The estimated fair value of awards is
charged to statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over
the requisite service period for each separately vesting portion of the
award as if the award was in-substance, multiple awards with a
corresponding increase to share based payment reserves.
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Business combinations

Business combinations between entities under common control is
accounted for at carrying value. Transaction costs that the Company
incurs in connection with a business combination such as finder’s fees,
legal fees, due diligence fees, and other professional and consulting
fees are expensed as incurred.
w

Dividend
Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared on or before
the end of the reporting period but remaining undistributed at the end of
the reporting period, where the same has been appropriately
authorised and is no longer at the discretion of the entity.

x

Contributed equity
Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly


ii

attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as
a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
y

Exceptional items
Certain occassions, the size, type, or incidences of the item of income or
expenses pertaining to the ordinary activities of the Company is such
that its disclosure improves the understanding of the performance of the
Company, such income or expenses is classified as an exceptional item
and accordingly, disclosed in the financial statements.

z

d

Critical accounting judgment and estimates
The preparation of financial statements requires management to
exercise judgment in applying the Company’s accounting policies. It
also requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the
accompanying disclosures including disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, with
revisions recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised
and in any future periods affected.
a

Contingencies
In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise
from litigation and other claims against the Company. Potential
liabilities that have a low probability of crystallising or are very
difficult to quantify reliably, are treated as contingent liabilities.
Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not provided for in
the financial statements. There can be no assurance regarding
the final outcome of these legal proceedings.

b

Useful lives and residual values
The Company reviews the useful lives and residual values of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at each
financial year end.

c

Impairment testing
i

Judgment is also required in evaluating the likelihood of
collection of customer debt after revenue has been
recognised. This evaluation requires estimates to be made,
including the level of provision to be made for amounts with
uncertain recovery profiles. Provisions are based on historical
trends in the percentage of debts which are not recovered, or
on more detailed reviews of individually significant
balances.

e

Determining whether the carrying amount of these assets has
any indication of impairment also requires judgment. If an
indication of impairment is identified, further judgment is
required to assess whether the carrying amount can be
supported by the net present value of future cash flows forecast
to be derived from the asset. This forecast involves cash flow
projections and selecting the appropriate discount rate.

Tax
i

The Company’s tax charge is the sum of the total current and
deferred tax charges. The calculation of the Company’s total tax
charge necessarily involves a degree of estimation and judgment
in respect of certain items whose tax treatment cannot be finally
determined until resolution has been reached with the relevant tax
authority or, as appropriate, through a formal legal process.

ii

Accruals for tax contingencies require management to make
judgments and estimates in relation to tax related issues and
exposures.

iii

The recognition of deferred tax assets is based upon whether it is
more likely than not that sufficient and suitable taxable profits will
be available in the future against which the reversal of temporary
differences can be deducted. Where the temporary differences
are related to losses, the availability of the losses to offset against
forecast taxable profits is also considered. Recognition therefore
involves judgment regarding the future financial performance of
the particular legal entity or tax Company in which the deferred tax
asset has been recognized.
Defined benefit obligation
The costs of providing pensions and other post-employment
benefits are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in
accordance with Ind AS 19 ‘Employee benefits’ over the period
during which benefit is derived from the employees’ services. The
costs are assessed on the basis of assumptions selected by the
management. These assumptions include salary escalation rate,
discount rates, expected rate of return on assets and mortality
rates. The same is disclosed in Note 48-, ‘Employee benefits’.
Recent accounting pronouncements
The standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet
effective up to the date of issuance of the financial statements are
disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these standards,
if applicable, when they become effective.
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On 24th July, 2020 the Ministry of Corporate Affair (MCA) vide
notification dated 24th July, 2020 has exercised the powers
conferred by section 133 read with section 469 of the Companies
Act, 2013, the Central Government, in consultation with the
National Financial Reporting Authority, hereby makes the
following rules further to amend the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs notifying amendments to Ind AS
116 “Leases ”, Ind AS 103 "Business Combination" , Ind AS 107
"Financial Instruments Disclosures", Ind AS 109" Financial
Instruments ", Ind AS 1 " Presentation of Financial Statements",
Ind AS 8 “Accounting policies, Changes in Accounting, Estimates
and Errors ”, Ind AS 10 " Event after the Reporting Period, Ind AS
34" Interim Financial Reporting "and Ind AS 37" Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets", and these above
amendments are applicable to the Company w.e.f. 1 April 2020.


3

Property, plant and equipment
(` Lakhs)
Description of Assets

Furniture and
Fixtures

I. Gross carrying amount as at 01 April 2018

Vehicles

Office
Equipments

Computers

Leasehold
Improvements

Total

13.46

-

86.22

146.04

57.98

303.70

Additions during the year

19.10

21.57

146.34

100.10

96.06

383.17

Disposals during the year

-

-

0.98

100.61

-

101.59

Balance as at 31 March 2019

32.56

21.57

231.58

145.53

154.04

585.28

Additions during the year

19.69

-

153.77

60.04

113.68

347.18

Disposals during the year

0.35

-

6.40

0.09

-

6.84

51.90

21.57

378.95

205.48

267.72

925.62

8.86

-

29.12

55.77

20.61

114.36

2.32

0.78

30.09

49.18

22.33

104.70

-

-

0.62

82.81

-

83.43

11.18

0.78

58.59

22.14

42.94

135.63

4.66

2.70

67.62

69.56

47.64

192.18

-

-

6.08

0.09

-

6.17

15.84

3.48

120.13

91.61

90.58

321.64

Balance as at 31 March 2020

36.06

18.09

258.82

113.87

177.14

603.98

Balance as at 31 March 2019

21.38

20.79

172.99

123.39

111.10

449.65

Balance as at 31 March 2020
Accumulated depreciation
II. Depreciation upto 01 April 2018
Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals during the year
upto 31 March 2019
Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals during the year
upto 31 March 2020
Net carrying value

Details of Capital work-in-progress
Particulars
Opening balance
Add : Addition during the year
Less : Capitalized during the year
Closing balance

Net carrying value
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

100.57
100.57

4.98
95.59
-

-

100.57

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

603.98

449.65

-

100.57

For details of property, plant and equipment pledged as security, refer note 51
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Right-of-use asset

5

Investment property

(` Lakhs)
Description of Assets
I.

Total

Description of Assets

5.85

5.85

-

Additions during the year

-

-

Additions during the year

-

-

Disposals during the year

-

-

Disposals during the year

-

-

Balance as at 31 March 2019

-

-

Balance as at 31 March 2019

5.85

5.85

2,605.24

2,605.24

Additions during the year

-

-

Additions during the year

100.34

100.34

Disposals during the year

-

-

Disposals during the year

186.38

186.38

5.85

5.85

2,519.20

2,519.20

Amortization upto 01 April 2018

-

-

Depreciation upto 01 April 2018

-

-

Amortisation for the year

-

-

Depreciation charge for the year

-

-

Disposals during the year

-

-

Disposals during the year

-

-

upto 31 March 2019

-

-

upto 31 March 2019

-

-

Depreciation charge for the year

-

-

Amortisation for the year

620.62

620.62

Disposals during the year

-

-

Disposals during the year

14.97

14.97
upto 31 March 2020

-

-

605.65

605.65
Balance as at 31 March 2020

5.85

5.85

Balance as at 31 March 2019

5.85

5.85

Balance as at 31 March 2020

12.34

12.34

Balance as at 31 March 2019

11.95

11.95

upto 31 March 2020

Gross carrying amount as at 01 April 2018

Total

-

Balance as at 31 March 2020

I.

Freehold Land #

Gross carrying amount as at 01 April 2018

Assets created on transition date

II.

Leased Premises

(` Lakhs)

Balance as at 31 March 2020
II.

Net carrying value

Net carrying value
Balance as at 31 March 2020

1,913.55

1,913.55

Balance as at 31 March 2019

-

-

Fair value *
Net carrying value
Right-of-use asset

170

31 March 2020
1,913.55

31 March 2019
#

Mortgaged against the Secured Debentures.

*

The fair value of the Company’s investment property has been arrived by the management on the basis of a appropriate ready reckoner value. The fair
value measurement is categorised as Level 3.
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Intangible assets

7

Non-current investments- Unquoted

(` Lakhs)
Description of Assets
I.

Content Development

Software

Total

Gross carrying amount as at 01 April 2018
Additions during the year
Disposals during the year

799.17
8.65
-

50.87
107.52
-

850.04
116.17
-

Balance as at 31 March 2019

807.82

158.39

966.21

Additions during the year
Disposals during the year

101.78
-

9.17
-

110.95
-

Balance as at 31 March 2020

909.60

167.56

1,077.16

II. Amortization upto 01 April 2018

548.08

42.99

591.07

Amortisation for the year
Disposals during the year

249.81
-

22.70
-

272.51
-

upto 31 March 2019

797.89

65.69

863.58

21.43
-

37.86
-

59.29
-

819.32

103.55

922.87

Amortisation for the year
Disposals during the year
upto 31 March 2020

(` Lakhs)
31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Investments carried at cost
Investment in Equity instruments
In wholly owned subsidiaries
5,010,000 (5,010,000) Equity shares of ` 10/- each of Digital Ventures Private Limited
(Refer below note 1)
1,000 (1,000) Equity shares of ` 10/- each of Academia Edificio Private Limited
1,000 (1,000) Equity shares of ` 10/- each of Liberium Global Resources Private Limited

10,601.00
0.10
0.10

10,601.00
0.10
0.10

In subsidiaries - Others
42,701,173 (42,701,173) Equity shares of ` 10/- each of MT Educare Limited
(extent of holding) 59.12% (59.12%) (Refer note 43)

27,812.22

27,812.22

11,328.67

11,327.64

860.67

860.67

50,602.76

50,601.73

Investment in Convertible Debentures
In wholly owned subsidiaries-unquoted
11,324,045 (11,324,045) 0.01 %, Compulsorily Convertible Debentures of ` 100/- of
Digital Ventures Private Limited (Refer below note 2)
Others - In wholly owned subsidiaries
Fair value of financial guarantee issued
Total

Net carrying value
Balance as at 31 March 2020
Balance as at 31 March 2019

90.28
9.93

64.01
92.70

154.29
102.63

Details of Intangible Assets under Development
Particulars

31 March 2020

(All the above securities are fully paid up)
1

Non disposal undertaking for 51% shares held by the Company for loan taken by subsidiary Company viz Digital Ventures Private Limited.

2

0.01 %, Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCD) of ` 100 each fully paid up are compulsorily convertible into equity shares at a conversion
rate to be decided based on fair value of equity shares any time from the date of allotment but not later than 10 years from the date of allotment.

31 March 2019
31 March 2020

Opening balance
Add : Addition during the year
Less : Capitalized during the year

50.86
38.25

24.99
25.87
-

Closing balance

12.61

50.86

Net carrying value
IntangibleAssets
Intangible Assets under Development

172

31 March 2020

Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments

50,602.76

31 March 2019
50,601.73

31 March 2019

154.29

102.63

12.61

50.86
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Loans


(` Lakhs)

Non-Current
31 March 2020
31 March 2019
Unsecured and considered good (refer note 40)
- to related parties
- to others
Total

12

Current
31 March 2020
31 March 2019

15,640.56
83.90

-

-

9,067.90
-

15,724.46

-

-

9,067.90

Capital advances (unsecured)
Other advances (unsecured)
- Considered good
- Credit impaired

For transactions relating to related party, refer note 49.
9

(` Lakhs)

Other assets

Less: Allowances for credit losses

Other financial assets

Prepaid expenses
Balance with government authorities
- Advance indirect taxes

(` Lakhs)
Non-Current
31 March 2020
31 March 2019

Current
31 March 2020
31 March 2019

Total
13

Deposit with banks having maturity period of more
than twelve months (refer note 16 B)

4.16

34.47

-

31 March 2020

Non-Current
31 March 2019

31 March 2020

Current
31 March 2019

20.77

44.60

-

-

33.71
33.71
(33.71)
0.83

33.71
33.71
(33.71)
6.03

91.90
91.90
91.90
73.31

205.32
205.32
205.32
85.93

100.27
121.87

100.27
150.90

36.81
202.02

36.81
328.06
(` Lakhs)

Inventories

Educational goods and equipments (refer note below)

Advances and deposits - unsecured and considered good
- to related parties
- to others
Premium on redemption of Preference shares - related parties
Claims receivable
Dividend receivable - related parties
Total

15.24
198.70

15.25
203.92

90.00
29.81

88.54
43.01

-

-

863.00
1.10
0.02

723.00
20.00
0.01

983.93

874.56

218.10

253.64

Total

14
A]

Deferred tax assets (net)
The components of deferred tax balances are as under:

Deferred tax assets
Employee benefits obligation
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for doubtful debts
Disallowance under section 40(a)
Difference in Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
Deferred tax assets net
11

31 March 2019

58.27
222.89
169.16
12.66
40.59

57.90
257.92
121.69
26.02
-

503.57

463.53

Income tax assets (net)

(` Lakhs)
31 March 2020

- Direct taxes (net of provisions for taxes)
Total

174

174.85

142.33

174.85

142.33

1,314.48

1,769.93

1,314.48

(` Lakhs)

Investment at amortised cost
Investment in preference shares
Wholly owned subsidiaries - unquoted
100,000(100,000) 0.1%, Non-Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference
Shares of ` 10/- each of Digital Ventures Private Limited *

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

9,572.00
9,572.00

9,572.00
9,572.00

9,572.00

9,572.00

(All the above securities are fully paid up)
Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments
*

0.1% Non-Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares will be redeemable anytime at the request of the investor on or before 31 March
2022 at a premium of ` 10,705 per share. In case of early redemption the premium will be decided by mutual consent on the date of redemption.
15 Trade receivables
(` Lakhs)
31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Unsecured
Considered good
Significant increase in credit risk
Credit impaired

1,260.88
599.42
600.11

2,284.61
417.90

Less: Allowances for credit losses

2,460.41
(660.11)

2,702.51
(417.90)

1,800.30

2,284.61

31 March 2019

Balances with government authorities

1,769.93

Current investments

Total

(` Lakhs)
31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Inventories were written down to net realisable value by ` /lakhs 407.68 (` /lakhs 612.56)

For transactions relating to related party, refer note 49.
10

31 March 2020

Total
For transactions relating to related party receivables, refer note 49.
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and the credit period extended to them is 0-180 days.
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Cash and bank balances

(` Lakhs)
31 March 2020

A

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks - In Current accounts
Cash on hand

967.74
0.06

107.32

967.80

23.42
33.70
4.16
61.28
(4.16)

11.96
15.25
34.47
61.68
(34.47)

Total (B)

57.12

27.21

Total (A+B)

164.44

995.01

Bank balances other than 16(A) above
Balances with banks - Unclaimed dividend account - Bank balance @
- In deposits with banks having maturity period upto twelve months #
- In deposits with banks having maturity period of more than twelve months #
Disclosed under "Other non-current financial assets

c)

31 March 2019

104.63
2.69
Total (A)

B



Equity Shares allotted as fully paid for consideration other than cash,
pursuant to Scheme(s) of Amalgamation / Arrangement
d)

262,238,599

262,238,599

31 March 2020
Number of
equity shares

Jayneer Capital Private Limited
Asian Satellite Broadcast Private Limited
Essel Holdings Limited
Polus Global Fund
Moon Capital Trading Pte. Ltd

% Shareholding

61,210,000
57,393,250
28,874,238
20,627,966
20,955,327

18.77%
17.60%
8.85%
6.33%
6.43%

31 March 2019
Number of
equity shares

% Shareholding

76,875,375
63,052,512
57,97,315
20,856,608
20,955,327

23.58%
19.34%
1.78%
6.40%
6.43%

(` Lakhs)

Authorised
1,000,000,000 (1,000,000,000) Equity Shares of ` 1/- each
Issued, subscribed and paid up
326,092,725 (326,078,725) Equity Shares of ` 1/- each fully paid up
Total

31 March 2019

10,000.00

10,000.00

10,000.00

10,000.00

3,260.93

3,260.79

3,260.93

3,260.79

e)

Employees Stock Option Scheme (ESOP)
The Company has amended its Employee Stock Option Scheme (ZLL ESOP 2010) to ZLL ESOP 2010- AMENDED 2015 to align the scheme with provisions
of Companies Act 2013 and the SEBI (Shared Bases Employee Benefits) Regulations 2014 for issuance of upto 16,007,451 stock options (increased from
6,136,390) convertible into equivalent number of equity shares of ` 1 each not exceeding the aggregate of 5% of the issued and paid up capital of the
Company to the employees of the Company and its susbsidiary viz Digital Ventures Private Limited as amended in board resoultion dated 30 September
2016 at the market price determined as per the SEBI (Shared Bases Employee Benefits) Regulations 2014. The said Scheme is administered by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board.

f)

Summary of options granted under the Scheme

Reconciliation of number of Equity shares and Share capital
31 March 2020

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Number of
equity shares

` Lakhs

Number of
equity shares

` Lakhs

At the beginning of the year
Add : Allotted on exercise of Employee Stock Option

326,078,725
14,000

3,260.79
0.14

325,895,472
183,253

3,258.95
1.84

Outstanding at the end of the year

326,092,725

3,260.93

326,078,725

3,260.79

b)

31 March 2019

As per the records of the Company, including its register of shareholders / members and other declaration received from shareholders regarding beneficial
interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

Equity share capital
31 March 2020

a)

31 March 2020

Details of Equity Shareholders holding more than 5 % of the aggregate Equity shares
Name of the Shareholders

@ The Company can utilise these balances only towards settlement of unclaimed dividend.
# Lien for Government authorities ` /lakhs 0.50 ( ` /lakhs 0.50) Lien for others ` /lakhs 33.10 (` /lakhs 43.10)
17

The Company has not issued any bonus shares or bought back equity shares during the five years preceding 31 March 2020. Details of aggregate
number of shares issued for consideration other than cash during the five years preceding 31 March 2020 is as under:
(` Lakhs)

Terms / rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 1 each. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The final
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Average exercise price
per share option `
Opening balance
Granted during the year
Exercised during the year (Refer Note (i) below)
Forfeited during the year

31.56
18.70
30.49
30.62

31 March 2019
Number of
options
5,172,625
3,962,181
14,000
1,453,110

Average exercise price
per share option `
34.96
36.90
31.54
36.82

Number of
options
5,694,720
25,000
183,253
363,842

Closing balance

7,667,696

5,172,625

Vested and exercisable

3,858,717

3,730,205

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
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g)

Expiry date and exercise prices of the share options outstanding at the end of the year:
Grant date
27/Jan/2011
30/Jan/2012
9/Oct/2013
2/Apr/2014
29/Sep/2014
28/Oct/2015
25/Jul/2016
30/Sep/2016
15/Jan/2018
19/Feb/2018
9/Aug/2018
22/Oct/2019

Expiry date

Scheme

Exercise price
`

27/Jan/2018
30/Jan/2019
9/Oct/2020
2/Apr/2021
29/Sep/2021
28/Oct/2022
25/Jul/2023
30/Sep/2023
15/Jan/2025
19/Feb/2025
9/Aug/2025
22/Oct/2026

26.05
14.50
20.85
27.55
35.25
31.80
31.40
34.15
46.50
42.20
36.90
18.70

Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at end of period

47,367
467,286
2,152,490
50,000
1,271,299
25,000
1,134,183
25,000
5,172,625

6.08

6.05

12th Grant

9/8/2018

22/10/2019

Weighted average fair value of options granted `

11.99

10.05

Exercise price `

36.90

18.70

Share price at the grant date `

36.90

17.80

35.02%

79.00%

Risk free interest rate

Expected volatility

7.98%

6.30%

Dividend yield

0.00%

0.00%

3.86

3.72

Expected life of the options (years)

The expected price volatility is based on the historic volatility (based on the remaining life of the options), adjusted for any expected changes to future
volatility due to publicly available information.
.i)

Expense arising from share based payments transactions

Gross expense / (reversal) arising from share based payments

Scheme

Less: Options granted/(forfeited) to/(from) employees of subsidiaries recognised as
deemed investment in subsidiaries

1st Grant

2nd Grant

3rd Grant

4th Grant

5th Grant

27/Jan/2011

30/Jan/2012

9/Oct/2013

2/Apr/2014

29/Sep/2014

Weighted average fair value of options granted `

23.82

6.89

7.98

400.48

13.3

Exercise price `

26.05

14.50

20.85

27.55

35.25

Employee share based payment expense /(reversal)
recognised in statement of profit and loss (Refer note 28)

Share price at the grant date `

24.70

14.50

22.25

26.85

35.30

Notes:

41.56%

38.53%

36.90%

37.02%

38.82%

Risk free interest rate

6.89%

6.93%

7.01%

7.10%

7.15%

Dividend yield

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.66

0.92

1.72

1.92

2.25

6th Grant

7th Grant

8th Grant

9th Grant

10th Grant

28/Oct/2015

25/Jul/2016

30/Sep/2016

15/Jan/2018

19/Feb/2018

3.03

200.24

4.80

922.16

15.15

Exercise price `

31.80

31.40

34.15

46.50

42.20

Share price at the grant date `

32.15

31.35

35.20

46.80

42.75

38.87%

37.56%

35.81%

35.05%

35.05%

Risk free interest rate

7.21%

6.36%

6.38%

7.04%

7.04%

Dividend yield

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

2.79

2.57

2.75

3.3

3.4

Expected volatility

Expected life of the options (years)

Scheme
Grant date
Weighted average fair value of options granted `

Expected volatility

Expected life of the options (years)

(` Lakhs)
31 March 2020

The fair value of each option granted is estimated on the date of grant using the black scholes model with the following assumptions

Grant date

178

9,701
135,637
2,152,490
50,000
905,134
712,703
3,702,031
7,667,696

11th Grant

Grant date

Share options
31 March 2020
31 March 2019

Total

h)



31 March 2019

18.70

56.24

-

-

18.70

56.24

(.i.) The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of options exercised during the year ended 31 March 2020 was ` 30.49 ( ` 31.54).
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Other equity

(` Lakhs)
31 March 2020

Reserves and surplus
Securities premium
As per last Balance sheet
Add: On issue of shares under Employee stock option plan
Debenture redemption reserve
As per last Balance sheet
Add: Transferred from statement of profit and loss account

31 March 2019

12,522.38
4.63
12,527.01

12,447.58
74.80
12,522.38

1,218.75
203.13
1,421.88

812.50
406.25
1,218.75

560.44
18.70
(1.85)
577.29

523.04
56.24
(18.84)
560.44

13,971.80
13,971.80

13,971.80
13,971.80

9,741.93
6,861.91
(13.45)

4,354.55
6,169.59
17.13

General reserve
As per last Balance Sheet
Retained earnings
Opening balance
Add : Profit for the year
Re-measurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit plans (net of tax)
Less : Appropriations
Transferred to Debenture redemption reserve
Dividend paid
Dividend Distribution tax paid

(203.13)
(326.09)
(67.03)
15,994.14
44,492.12

Total

(406.25)
(326.07)
(67.02)
9,741.93
38,015.30

Borrowings

(` Lakhs)
Non-Current

Debentures (Refer note (i) below)
Intercorporate deposits - Unsecured (Refer note (ii) below)
[(Including interest `/lakhs 455.50, (` /lakhs 186.24)]
Total (A)
Others - Secured
Term loan from banks (Refer note (iii), (vi) and (vii) below)

Current

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

3,484.18
7,661.35

9,540.01
1,485.85

890.22
-

-

11,145.53

11,025.86

890.22

-

362.72

1,410.74

1,062.51

1,322.92

-

800.70

Working Capital Loan (Refer note (iv) below)
Bank overdraft facility (Refer note (v) and (vii) below)
Less: Amount disclosed under the head
Other current financial liabilities" (Refer Note 21 b)
Total (B)
Total (A+B)

(i.) Debentures
400 (650) 10.40% Rated, Unlisted, Secured, Redeemable Non- Convertible Debentures (NCD) of Rs. 10.00 lakhs each fully paid up aggregating to `/lakhs
4,374.40 (`/lakhs 9,540.01) [including interest of `/lakhs 374.40 (`/lakhs 3,040.01), are issued for a period of 5 years and 3 months from the date of
allotment. Debentures will be redeemed on 8 July 2020 in single tranche. Part of it repaid during the year. The terms of the Debentures have been revised
dated 14 July 2020. As per the revised terms 400, 10.02% (revised coupon rates) NCD of Rs. 6.85 lakhs (revised face value) will be redeemable by 13
January 2022 in 3 installments starting from 13 January 2021. The debentures are secured by first pari passu charge on all the fixed and current assets, all
the rights, titles and interests to provide security cover of 1.1 times on outstanding amount and DSRA Undertaking by a related party.
(ii) Intercorporate deposits - Unsecured

Share options outstanding account
As per last Balance Sheet
Add: Share options outstanding account
Transfer to Securities Premium on allotment of shares

19



-

-

4,384.66

3,560.82

362.72
11,508.25

1,410.74
12,436.60

(1,952.73)
3,494.44
4,384.66

(1,322.92)
4,361.52
4,361.52

The loan carries Interest @12.5% p.a and is repayable on or before 31 March 2023.
(iii) Term loan from Development Credit Bank (DCB) `/lakhs 1,408.22 (`/lakhs 2,712.67) [including interest of `/lakhs 8.22 (`/lakhs 25.31) is secured by way of
first ranking charge over movable assets including current assets, loans & advances with minimum coverage of 1.25x for entire tenor of the facility which
includes charge on the accounts that receive cash from franchisee/revenue of the Company plus DSRA equivalent to 1 months interest to be maintained
upfront and one immediate installment to be maintained one month prior to its schedule payment. The loan carries interest of 9.95% and is repayable in 12
quarterly installments beginning from financial year 2018-19.
(iv) Working capital loan from YES Bank Nil ( `/lakhs 800.00) Secured by way of first pari passu charge on all movable assets including current assets, loans
and advances with minimum coverage of 1.25% for the entire tenor facility which includes charge on the accounts that receives cash revenue from
franchisee, plus DSRA equivalent to 1 month interest to be maintained up front and one immediate installment to maintained one month prior to its schedule
payment. The loan carries interest of 10.20% and is repayable in 90 days on demand. The loan has been fully repaid during year and charge has been
satisfied.
(v) Overdraft from YES Bank and Development Credit Bank (DCB) `/lakhs 4384.66 (`/lakhs 3560.82) is secured by way of first pari passu charge on all the movable
assets (including current assets, loans and advances) of the company and cross collateralization of pledge of shares given for term loan. The loan carries
interest rates ranges from 10.20% to 12%.
(vi) Vehicle loan from Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited `/lakhs 17.01 (`/lakhs 20.99) is secured against hypothecation of respective vehicle. The rate of interest is
8.92% p.a and repayable upto 05 February 2023.
(vii) The Company has availed to defer scheduled Term Loan / Overdraft servicing payments as per RBI Circular of 27 March 2020 and 23 May 2020 on
Moratorium for debt servicing for period 1 March 2020 till 31 August 2020. Accordingly, the Company has deferred interest on term loan amounting to `/lakhs
72.83 and interest on bank overdraft facility amounting to `/lakhs 232.35 and shall be repayable not later than 31 March 2021 . Also, the tenure of term loan /
working capital limits has been extended by six months from their original dates of maturity.

For transactions relating to related party, refer note 49.
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Lease liabilities

(` Lakhs)
Non-Current
31 March 2020
31 March 2019

Lease liabilities (refer note 34)
Total
21

B

-

549.70

-

1,486.86

-

549.70

-

Other liabilties

Trade payables (refer note 39)
(1) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises
(2) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises
Total (A)
Other financial liabilities
Current maturities of long-term borrowings
Deposits payable - Customers
Deposits payable - Others
Financial guarantee obligation
Unclaimed dividend payable
Employee benefits payable
Creditors for capital expenditure
Other payables (Refer note 39)
(1) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises
(2) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises

Non-Current
31 March 2019

31 March 2020

Current
31 March 2019

Total

-

-

10.45
467.14
261.17
-

10.45
484.23
304.70
-

476.49

467.67

1,098.11
1,574.60

1,897.81
2,365.48

1,952.73
2.00
23.42
37.89
40.64

1,322.92
2.00
11.96
48.31
91.48

Non-Current
31 March 2019

31 March 2020

Current
31 March 2019

-

8,301.62

4,145.10
219.85
213.29

2,937.55
376.33
341.85

6,911.52
6,911.52

8,301.62

4,578.24

3,655.73

24 Current tax liabilities
31 March 2020

Total
25

(` Lakhs)
31 March 2019

229.59

0.13

229.59

0.13

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

8,348.30
989.25
77.46
9,917.89
104.34

7,562.52
1,167.03
113.97
12,063.69
70.59

19,437.24

20,977.80

Revenue from operations

(` Lakhs)

Services
- Course fees/Royalty
- Franchisee fees
- Others
Sales - Educational goods and equipments
Other operating revenue
Total
For transactions relating to related party payables refer Note 49.

20.44

7.01

2,508.77

1,879.25

738.76

799.38

4,585.89

3,362.93

Total (A+B)

738.76

799.38

6,160.49

5,728.41

Provisions

(` Lakhs)

Total

31 March 2020

Provision for taxation (net of advances)

Total (B)

Provision for employee benefits
- Gratuity
- Leave benefits

(` Lakhs)

Contract liabilities (refer note 42)
Statutory dues payable
Deferred deposit

(` Lakhs)

Financial liabilities

For transactions relating to related party payables refer Note 49.
Trade payable and others are non-interest bearing and the credit term the for same is generally in the range of 0-90 days.
22

23

Current
31 March 2020
31 March 2019

1,486.86

31 March 2020
A



31 March 2020

Non-Current
31 March 2019

31 March 2020

Current
31 March 2019

136.85
60.03
196.88

112.26
52.67
164.93

11.93
18.58
30.51

15.79
18.11
33.90
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(` Lakhs)

Other income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost
- on bank deposits
- on loans and advances to related parties
- on loans and advances to others
Interest income others
- on debentures of related party
- others
Dividend income on financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
Dividend income from related party on preference shares
Premium on redemption of Preference shares - related party
Gain on Sale of Current Investments
Financial guarantee commission from related parties
Unwinding of discount of Interest free deposits / Financial guarantee obligation
Profit on sale of Property, Plant & Equipment (net)
Reversal of provision / liabilities no longer required
Miscelleneous income
Total

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

5.11
1,453.70
0.06

274.48
616.19
-

1.14
1.46
0.01
140.00
4.21
282.00
378.64
88.02
38.97
2,393.32

1.13
0.40
17.71
0.01
140.00
178.04
394.50
4.49
57.01
1,683.96

For transactions relating to related party, refer Note 49.
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a)

Operational cost

(` Lakhs)

Educational goods and equipments
Opening - Inventory
Add: Purchases
Less: Closing - Inventory
Total (A)

b)

Other educational operating expenses
- Rent
- Electricity
- Manpower cost and other professional fees
- Others
Total (B)
Total (A) + (B)

28

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

1,314.48
3,236.56
(1,769.93)
2,781.11

934.14
4,328.18
(1,314.48)
3,947.84

29.80
42.72
380.87
130.32
583.71
3,364.82

440.44
16.60
281.26
140.25
878.55
4,826.39
(` Lakhs)

Employee benefits expense

Salaries and allowances
Share based payment expense
Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff welfare expenses
Total
29



31 March 2020

31 March 2019

2,697.62
18.70
197.46
145.08

2,630.99
56.24
148.57
115.85

3,058.86

2,951.65

Finance costs

(` Lakhs)

Interest expenses on financial liabilities at amortised cost
- Borrowings
Net Interest on net defined benefit liability
Interest on lease liability
Other interest cost
Unwinding of discount on interest free deposits
Other financial charges
Total

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

1,985.05
8.17
238.74
92.50
123.32
4.13

1,808.70
8.25
91.53
50.41
38.24

2,451.91

1,997.13
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Other expenses

(` Lakhs)
31 March 2020

Rent
Repairs and maintenance - others

31 March 2019

51.49

237.89

403.08

305.08

Insurance

33.21

31.39

Rates and taxes

24.99

53.17

Electricity and water charges

33.09

45.04

Communication expenses

83.11

97.77

Printing and stationery

90.45

92.25

Travelling and conveyance expenses

481.65

606.58

Legal and professional charges

216.74

399.06

24.56

21.30

773.79

902.84

5.54

5.20

Payment to auditors (refer note 38)
Freight and packing charges
Directors sitting fees

0.67

-

Provision for allowances for credit losses

Loss on sale / discard of property, plant and equipments

242.21

218.86

Marketing, advertisement and publicity expenses

487.01

772.73

15.90

51.79

2,967.49

3,840.95

Miscellaneous expenses
Total
For transactions relating to related party, refer Note 49.

For transactions relating to related party, refer Note 49.
30

Depreciation and amortisation expense

(` Lakhs)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of right-of-use assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
Total

184

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

192.18
620.62
59.28

104.68
272.51

872.08

377.19
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Tax expense
The major components of income tax for the year are as under:


Reconciliation of deferred tax assets / (liabilities) net:
(` Lakhs)

Income tax related to items recognised directly in the statement of profit and loss
Current tax - current year
- earlier period
Deferred tax (including MAT credit entitlement) - current year
- earlier period
Total
Effective tax rate

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

2,314.18
(25.29)
(35.41)
2,253.48
24.72

2,525.82
45.74
(15.38)
(57.32)
2,498.86
28.83

Opening balance
Deferred tax (charge)/credit recognised in
- Statement of profit and loss
- Recognised in other comprehensive income
Total
33

31 March 2020
9,115.40

31 March 2019
8,668.45

2,335.88

2,524.25

160.73
(207.72)
(35.41)
2,253.48

173.95
(121.48)
(15.38)
(57.32)
(5.16)
2,498.86

Employee retirement benefits obligation

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

4.63

(7.04)

The applicable tax rate is the standard effective corporate income tax rate in India. The tax rate is 25.63% (29.12%) for the year ended 31 March 2020.
During the year, the Company elected to exercise the option permitted under section 115BAA of the Income-tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the Taxation
Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019. Accordingly, the Company has recognized provision for income tax for the year ended 31 March 2020 and remeasured its net deferred tax liabilities basis the rate prescribed in the said section.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where the Company has a legally enforceable right to do so. For analysis of the deferred tax balances (after
offset) for financial reporting purposes refer note 10.
The Company does not have any temporary differences in respect of unutilized tax losses.
Deferred tax recognized in statement of profit and loss
For the year ended 31 March
Employee benefits obligation
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for expected credit losses
Difference in Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
Other temporary difference
Total
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31 March 2020

31 March 2019

4.27
35.03
(47.47)
(40.59)
13.35

(1.41)
64.86
(52.81)
(26.02)

(35.41)

(15.38)

463.53

455.19

35.41
4.63
503.57

15.38
(7.04)
463.53

Leases
Operating leases:

Lease rental charges for the year
Future lease rental obligation payable (under non-cancellable lease)
Not later than one year
Later than one year but not later than five years
Later than five years
34

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

79.79

389.97

-

564.15
501.54
-

Disclosure as per Ind-AS 116 (Leases)
Right of Use Asset (ROU)
(a) ROU asset' comprises leased assets of office/branch premises that do not meet the definition of investment property.

Deferred tax recognized in statement of other comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 March

31 March 2019

The Company has taken office, residential facilities and plant and machinery (including equipments) etc. under cancellable/non-cancellable lease
agreements that are renewable on a periodic basis at the option of both the Lessor and the Lessee. The initial tenure of the lease generally is for 11 months to
60 months.
(` Lakhs)

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before income tax at statutory rate to the income tax expense at Company’s effective income tax
rate for the year ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 is as follows:

Profit before tax
Income tax
Statutory income tax rate of 25.63 % (29.12%) on profit
Undistributed earnings of subsidiaries
Tax effect on non-deductible expenses
Additional allowances for tax purposes
Other temporary difference
MAT Credit entitlement - earlier period
Effect of exempt income and income tax at lower rates
Tax expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss

31 March 2020

Opening Balance
Assets created on transition date
Additions during the year
Depreciation charged / Amortisation during the year
Disposal during the year
Closing Balance

(` Lakhs)

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

2,605.24
100.34
620.62
171.41
1,913.55

-

The aggregate depreciation charged / amortisation expense on right-of-use asset is included under depreciation and amortisation expense in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.
Effective 1 April, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard to all lease contracts existing on 1 April 2019 using the modified
retrospective method on the date of initial application. Consequently, the Company recorded the lease liability and right of use at the present value of the
lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate.
On transition to Ind AS 116, the Company recognised `/lakhs 2,605.24 of right-of-use assets and `/lakhs 2,569.87 of lease liabilities. When measuring lease
liabilities, the Company discounted lease payments using its incremental borrowing rate at 1 April 2019. The weighted-average rate applied is 10.65%
(b)

The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities
(` Lakhs)

Current
Non current lease liabilities
Total

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

549.70
1,486.86

-

2,036.56

-
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(c)

The following is the movement in lease liabilities

Opening Balance (As on the date of transition)
Additions
Interest on lease liability
Payment of lease liabilities
Disposal / Dereognition of Lease Liability
Closing Balance
(d)

35


(` Lakhs)

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

2,569.87
100.34
238.74
696.91
175.48
2,036.56

-

Lease liabilities Maturity Analysis

37

Salary and allowances (refer a and b below)
Perquisites (refer note c below)
Total

31 March 2019

Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flows
Less than one year
One to five years
More than five years

765.44
1,747.37
-

-

Total undiscounted lease liabilities

2,512.81

-

(e)

Lease rentals of `/lakhs 79.79 pertaining to short term leases and low value asset has been charged to statement of profit and loss

a)

Contingent liabilities

38

a)
b)
c)
d)

(i)
(ii)
@

b)

36

46.98
2,114.32

46.98
2,129.93

15,000.00

15,000.00

47,000.00

47,000.00

Amount represents the best possible estimates. The Company has engaged reputed professionals to protect its interest and has been advised that it
has firm legal position against such disputes.
The company has received legal notices of claims/law suits filed against it relating to other matters. In the opinion of the management, no material
liability is likely to arrive on account of such claims/law suits.
Company has provided Corporate guarantees to various trusts pursuant to the long term partnership arrangement entered. Corporate Guarantee is
utilised for business purposes.

The Company has withdrawn the merger with Tree House Education and Accessories Limited (THEAL) and has reserved its rights for suitable actions
against adverse allegations by THEAL. The company has received and filed legal notices of claims. The management is of the view that no material liability
is likely to arrive on account of these claims.
Capital and other commitments
a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account not provided for (net of advances) is Nil (`/lakhs 142.15)
b)
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Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts (Refer note (i) and (ii) below)
Disputed indirect taxes
Corporate guarantee to wholly owned Subsidiary to the extent of loans availed/
outstanding `/lakhs 10,937.00 ( `/lakhs 11,784.96)@
Corporate guarantee to others to the extent of loans
availed/outstanding `/lakhs 38,687.62 (`/lakhs 40,530.55)

31 March 2019

31 March 2019

190.73

51.09

-

0.17

190.73

51.26

Payment to auditors

(` Lakhs)

Audit fees (including limited review)
Tax audit fees
Tax representation
Certification and Others

(` Lakhs)
31 March 2020

31 March 2020

Notes :
a) Mr. Ajey Kumar, was designated from Executive Director to Managing Director with effect from 01 October 2018, and has resigned from the position of
Managing Director w.e.f. 18 August 2020.
b) Salary and allowances include basic salary, house rent allowance, leave travel allowance, provident fund and performance bonus but excluding leave
encashment and gratuity provided on the basis of acturial valuation.
c) Perquisites consists of value arrived upon exercise of ESOPs during the year.

(` Lakhs)
31 March 2020

Managerial remuneration
Remuneration paid or provided in accordance with Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 to Executive Director and Manager, included in Note 28
"Employee benefits expense" is as under :
(` Lakhs)

Total
39

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

17.00
2.00
1.27
4.29

17.00
2.00
1.27
1.03

24.56

21.30

Micro, small and medium enterprises
Trade and other payables - Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMEDA), which came into force from 2 October
2006, certain disclosures are required to be made relating to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises. On the basis of information and records available with
the management, the following disclosures are made for the amounts due to the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, which have registered with the
competent authorities.
(` Lakhs)
31 March 2020

31 March 2019

519.08

800.41

51.36

80.26

c) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made
to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

-

-

d) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified
under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

-

-

131.62

80.26

-

-

a) The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year
b) The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year

e) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year
f) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such
date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of
disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

Non disposal undertaking for 51% shares held by the Company in Digital Ventures Private Limited for loan taken by subsidiary Company.
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I.

Disclosures as required by Schedule V (A) (2) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(a) Loan given to wholly owned Subsidiary company (Loanee)
Balance as at
31 March 2020


Revenue Disaggregation by Industrial Vertical & Geography is as follows :
(` Lakhs)
Revenue by offerings :

Maximum amount
outstanding during the year

31 March 2019

31 March 2020

Educational Services / India

31 March 2019

Total

Digital Venture Private Limited
15,495.15
9,065.85
15,495.15
9,065.85
Academia Edificio Private Limited
3.67
2.05
3.67
2.05
Liberium Global Resources Private Limited
141.75
715.85
The loan has been given for general business purpose of the entity and carries interest @12.5% p.a. The above figures are including interest accrued.

Services transferred at point in time
Services transferred over period in time
Total

i)

Loans given

Digital Ventures Private Limited
Academia Edificio Private Limited
Liberium Global Resources Private Limited
Mount Litera Education Foundation

iii)

20,977.80

19,437.24

20,977.80

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

11,088.94
8,348.30

13,415.28
7,562.52

19,437.24

20,977.80

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

4,145.10
1,800.30

2,937.54
2,284.61

Contract balances

(` Lakhs)
31 March 2019

Given

Repaid

31 March 2020

9,065.85
2.05
9,067.90

6,948.66
1.62
723.45
83.90
7,757.63

519.36
581.70
1,101.06

15,495.15
3.67
141.75
83.90
15,724.47

The loan has been given for general business purpose of the entity and carries interest @12.5% p.a. The above figures are including interest accrued.
Investments made
There are no investments made during the year except those mentioned in Note 7 and Note 14 of financial statements.
Guarantees given

Advances received and unearned revenue (contract liabilities) as at
Trade receivables as at

Management expect that 100 % of the transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied contracts as of 31 March 2020 will be recognised as revenue till
the year ended 31 March 2021.
Explanation for contract assets/contract liabilities.
a)

Revenue earned from customers but yet to be billed is initially recognised as contract assets and classified to trade receivables when right to
considerations becomes unconditional.

b)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer services to customer for which the company has received consideration ( or an amount of consideration
is due) from the customer.

(` Lakhs)

Name of the party

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

15,000.00
47,000.00

15,000.00
47,000.00

62,000.00

62,000.00

To secure obligations of wholly owned Subsidiary - Guarantees to Banks
To secure obligations of others - Guarantees to Banks
Total
iv)

Securities given
The Company has given securities of `/lakhs 5406.51 ( `/lakhs 5406.51) for loan taken by wholly owned subsidiary.
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Dividend
No Dividend on equity shares declared by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on 07 October 2020. Final dividend on equity shares for the year ended
on 2019: ` 0.1 per equity share which aggregates to `/lakhs 393.12/- (including DDT)

42

Disclosures as required by Ind AS 115
Revenue consists of following :

Management expect that 100 % of the transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied contracts as of 31 March 2020 (`/lakhs 4,145.10) will be
recognised as revenue during the year ended 31 March 2021.
43

Acquisition
During the previous year, the Company has acquired 3,19,64,200 shares @ 62.57 [including premium of `.52.57] through Share Subscirpiton agreement
and 1,07,36,973 Shares @ 72.76 [including premium of `. 62.76] through Open offer of "MT Educare Limited" and subsequently MT Educare Limited has
become subsidiary (extent of holding 59.49% ) of the Company with effect from 25 May 2018.

44

Corporate social responsibility (CSR)
As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a CSR Committee has been formed by the Company. The Company is required to spend `/lakhs 108.85
(`/Lakhs 55.37) for the year against which NIL (Nil) has been spent on activities specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

45

Segment information
The Company has presented Segment information on the basis of the consolidated financial statements as permitted by Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments.

Services
- Course fees/Royalty
- Franchisee fees
- Others
Sales - Educational goods and equipments
Other operating revenue
Total
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19,437.24

Information required under Section 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013

Name of the party

ii)

31 March 2019

Timing of Revenue Recognition :
Revenue by offerings :

(b) The loanee has not made investments in the shares of the Company.
II.

31 March 2020

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

8,348.30
989.25
77.46
9,917.89
104.34
19,437.24

7,562.52
1,167.03
113.97
12,063.69
70.59
20,977.80
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Covid 19 - Impact
The World Health Organisation announced a global health emergency because of new strain of coronavirus (COVID-19) and classified its outbreak as a
pandemic on 11 March 2020. The outbreak of COVID -19 globally and in India continues to cause significant disruption in the operations which has resulted
in slowdown in the economic activity. Due to nation wide lockdown announced by the Government, the Company’s offices, educational schools and learning
centers had to be closed and physical services were suspended since then. However during the period the Company adopted varied measures to ensure
seamless delivery of learning needs and further strengthen its commitment to education delivery by, enhanced Blended Learning, Robust Learning
Management Systems, enhanced use of digital learning material, improvement in collaborative work and building digital literacy across network and thus
has taken efforts to keep the disruption in the business to the minimum.
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In preparation of these financial statements, the Company has taken into account internal and external sources of information to assess possible impacts of
the pandemic, including not limited to the assessment of liquidity and going concern, recoverable values of its financial and non- financial assets, and the
impact on revenues. Based on the current indicators of future economic conditions, the Company has sufficient liquidity and expects to fully recover the
carrying amount of its assets. Basis the Company’s projected cash flows for the next one year, management has concluded that the Company will have
sufficient liquidity to continue its operations, although it expects possible delays with respect to collections from its customers. Accordingly, necessary
provision have been made under the Expected Credit loss.
The extent of the impact of the Company’s operations remains uncertain and may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial
statements and will be dictated by the length of time that such disruptions continue, which will, in turn, depend on the currently unknowable duration of
COVID-19 and among other things, the impact of governmental actions imposed in response to the pandemic. The Company is monitoring the rapidly
evolving situation and its potential impacts on the Company’s financial position, results of operations, liquidity and cash flows.
47

Earnings per share (EPS)

Profit after Tax (` lakhs)
Weighted Average number of equity shares for Basic EPS (in numbers)
Weighted Average number of equity shares for Diluted EPS (in numbers)
Face value of equity shares (`)
Basic EPS (`)
Diluted EPS (`)
48

III.
1
2

Net Asset / (Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet as at 31 March
Present value of defined benefit obligation (DBO)
Net Asset / (Liability)

31 March 2020
148.77
(148.77)

31 March 2019
128.05
(128.05)

IV.

Reconciliation of Net Asset / (Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet as at

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

1
2
3
4

Net Asset / (Liability) at the beginning of year
Expense as per I above
Other comprehensive income as per II above
Benefits paid

(128.05)
(44.84)
(18.09)
42.21

(119.20)
(45.40)
24.17
12.38

Net Asset / (Liability) at the end of the year

(148.77)

(128.05)

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

11.93
47.49
62.30

18.54
105.66
246.55

VI. Actuarial Assumptions

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

1
2
3

6.55%
6.00%
IALM (2006-08)

7.64%
6.00%
IALM (2006-08)

(` Lakhs)
31 March 2020

31 March 2019

V.

The following payments are expected to defined benefit plan in future years :

6,861.92
326,086,681
326,086,681
1
2.10
2.10

6,169.59
326,032,212
326,171,836
1
1.89
1.89

1
2
3

Expected benefits for year 1
Expected benefits for year 2 to year 5
Expected benefits beyond year 5

Employee Benefits
The Disclosures as per Ind AS 19 - Employee Benefits is as follows:
A

Defined Contribution Plans
“Contribution to provident and other funds” is recognized as an expense in Note 28 “Employee benefit expenses” of the Statement of Profit and Loss.

B

Defined Benefit Plans
The present value of gratuity obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises each
period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The
obligation for leave benefits (non funded) is also recognised using the projected unit credit method.

Discount rate
Expected rate of salary increase
Mortality

VII. Sensitivity Analysis
The key actuarial assumptions to which the benefit obligation results are particularly sensitive to are discount rate and future salary escalation rate. The
following table summarizes the impact in percentage terms on the reported defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period arising on account of
an increase or decrease in the reported assumption by 50 basis points.
(` Lakhs)

(` Lakhs)
I.

Expenses recognised during the year

31 March 2020

Discount Rate

31 March 2019

Gratuity (Non Funded)
1
2
3

II.

3

Impact of increase in 50 bps on DBO

137.05

161.63

Impact of decrease in 50 bps on DBO

162.25

137.39

Current Service Cost
Interest Cost
Past Service cost

36.67
8.17
-

37.15
8.25
-

Notes:

Total Expenses

44.84

45.40

(a) The current service cost recognized as an expense is included in Note 28 ‘Employee benefits expense’ as gratuity. The remeasurement of the net
defined benefit liability is included in other comprehensive income.

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

(52.19)

(28.02)

Amount recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI)
1
2

Salary Escalation rate

Opening amount recognized in OCI
Remeasurement during the period due to experience adjustments
- Changes in financial assumptions
- Changes in experience charges
Closing amount recognized in OCI

12.70
5.39
(34.10)

(3.36)
(20.81)
(52.19)

(b) The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors including supply and demand in the employment market. The above information is certified by the Actuary.
Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The
sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the
reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.
C

Other long term benefits
The obligation for leave benefits (non funded) is also recognised using the projected unit credit method and accordingly the long term paid absences
have been valued. The leave encashment expense is included in Note 28 ‘Employee benefits expense’.
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(` Lakhs)
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Related party transactions

(i)
a)

List of parties where control exists
Wholly owned subsidiary companies
Digital Ventures Private Limited
Academia Edificio Private Limited
Liberium Global Resources Private Limited

b)

Subsidiary company
MT Educare Limited (Acquired on 25 May 2018) (extent of holdings - 59.12% [59.12%])
Fellow subsidiary companies
Lakshya Forrum for Competitions Private Limited (formerly known as Lakshya Educare Private Limited)
MT Education Services Private Limited
Chitale's Personalised Learning Private Limited
Sri Gayatri Educational Services Private Limited
Robomate Edutech Private Limited
Letspaper Technologies Private Limited
Labh Ventures India Private Limited (Acquired on 01 September 2018)

(ii) Key Managerial Personnel
Mr. Ajey Kumar - Managing Director (Resigned w.e.f. 18 August 2020)
Ms. Sangeeta Pandit - Non-Executive Independent Director (Resigned w.e.f. 1 October 2019)
Mr. Himanshu Modi - Chairman and Non-Executive Director (Resigned w.e.f. 7 January 2020)
Dr. Manish Agarwal - Non-Executive Independent Director (Resigned w.e.f. 31 March 2020)
Mrs. Nandita Agarwal Parkar - Non-Executive Independent Director
Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj - Non-Executive Independent Director (Appointed w.e.f. 17 May 2019)
Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar - Additional Director (Appointed w.e.f. 30 December 2019)
Ms. Nanette D'sa - Additional Director (Appointed w.e.f. 31 March 2020)
Mr. Umesh Pradhan - Chief Financial Officer (Resigned w.e.f. 7 October 2019)
Mr. Debshankar Mukhopadhyay - Chief Executive Officer (Resigned w.e.f. 23 April 2020)
Mr. Vikash Kar - Chief Executive Officer and Whole-Time Director (Appointed w.e.f. 24 April 2020 as CEO and Appointed w.e.f 19 August 2020 as WholeTime Director)
Mr. Surender Singh - Non-Executive Non-Independent Director (Appointed w.e.f. 31 July 2020)
Mr. Rakesh Agarwal - Chief Financial Officer (Appointed w.e.f. 7 April 2020)
Mr. Bhautesh Shah - Company Secretary (Resigned w.e.f. 12 May 2020)
Mr. Prashant Parekh - Company Secretary (Appointed w.e.f. 31 July 2020)
(iii) Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year and balance outstanding as on the last day of the year.

A)

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

5,755.00

5,700.00

5,755.00

5,700.00

35.00

5,700.00

35.00

5,700.00

506.11

206.94

506.11

206.94

6,364.71

12,490.10

5,647.84
715.85
1.02

12,489.05
1.05

1,094.21

5,414.00

519.36
574.85

5,414.00
-

-

27,812.22

-

27,812.22

456.00

336.95

220.00
60.00
120.00

125.00
60.00
103.95

56.00

48.00

Transactions with related parties
Long- term borrowings
Other related parties
Asian Satellite Broadcast Private Limited
Repayment of Long- term borrowings
Other related parties
Asian Satellite Broadcast Private Limited
Interest expense
Other related parties
Asian Satellite Broadcast Private Limited
Loans, advances and deposits given
Subsidiary company
Digital Ventures Private Limited
Liberium Global Resources Private Limited
Academia Edificio Private Limited
Loans, advances and deposits given repaid
Subsidiary company
Digital Ventures Private Limited
Liberium Global Resources Private Limited
Investment in equity share capital
Subsidiary company
MT Educare Limited
Sales and services
Subsidiary company
Digital Ventures Private Limited
Liberium Global Resources Private Limited
MT Educare Limited
Other related parties
Himgiri Zee University

Asian Satellite Broadcast Private Limited, Direct Media Distribution Ventures Private Limited, Diligent Media Corporation Limited, Digital Satellite Holdings
Private Limited, Evenness Business Excellence Services Private Limited, Pan India Network Infravest Private Limited, Pri-Media Services Private Limited,
Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited, Dr Subhash Chandra Foundation, Essel Infra Projects Private Limited, Essel Corporate Resources Private Limited,
Himgiri Zee University, Essel Vision Production Limited, Zee Media Corporation Limited, Essel Corporate LLP, Digital Subscriber and Management
Consultancy Services Private Limited.
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(` Lakhs)

31 March 2020
Other income
Dividend received
Subsidiary company
Digital Ventures Private Limited
Premium on redemption of preference shares
Subsidiary company
Digital Ventures Private Limited
Interest on compulsorily convertible debentures
Subsidiary company
Digital Ventures Private Limited
Interest on intercorporate deposits
Subsidiary company
Digital Ventures Private Limited
Academia Edificio Private Limited
Liberium Global Resources Private Limited
Reversal of provision / liabilities no longer required
Other related parties
Diligent Media Corporation Limited
Purchase of Intangibles (content development)
Other related parties
Essel Corporate LLP
Purchase of Services
Subsidiary company
Digital Ventures Private Limited
Liberium Global Resources Private Limited
Other related parties
Pan India Network Infravest Private Limited
Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited
Digital Subscriber Management and Consultancy Services Private Limited
Diligent Media Corporation Limited
Zee Media Corporation Limited
Essel Infra Projects Private Limited
Essel Corporate LLP
Essel Vision Production Limited
Evenness Business Excellence Services Private Limited
Remuneration
Key Managerial personnel
Mr. Debshankar Mukhopadhyay
Mr. Umesh Pradhan
Mr. Bhautesh Shah
Directors sitting fees
Key Managerial personnel
Dr. Manish Agarwal
Ms. Sangeeta Pandit
Mrs. Nandita Agarwal Parkar
Mr. Dattatryaya Kelkar
Mr. Roshanlal Kamboj
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1,682.87

31 March 2019

(` Lakhs)
B) Balances outstanding as at 31 March

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

7,661.35

1,485.85

7,661.35

1,485.85

60,170.14

60,173.73

10,601.00
9,572.00
11,324.05
860.67
27,812.22
0.10
0.10

10,601.00
9,572.00
11,327.64
860.67
27,812.22
0.10
0.10

15,745.83

9,173.46

15,495.15
3.67
141.75

9,065.85
2.35
-

10.00
15.26
80.00

10.00
15.26
80.00

863.02

723.01

863.00
0.02

723.00
0.01

1.15

1.15

1.15

1.15

280.59

252.67

179.55
11.76
-

135.00
16.20
69.07

89.28

32.40

757.33

0.01

0.01

140.00

140.00

1.14

1.13

1,445.69
0.33
7.68

615.97
0.22
-

88.02

-

61.17

-

61.17

-

1,227.10

1,520.07

178.75
87.17

65.34

8.66
101.51
13.09
112.00
29.63
15.00
30.00
21.19
630.10

10.62
83.56
10.95
372.93
71.34
119.75
77.00
43.29
665.29

145.97

147.61

74.32
54.64
17.01

70.56
60.18
16.87

5.54

5.20

2.20
1.00
0.60
0.54
1.20

2.40
2.40
0.40
-

Long- term borrowings
Other related parties
Asian Satellite Broadcast Private Limited
Investment
Subsidiary company
Equity shares of Digital Ventures Private Limited
Preference shares of Digital Ventures Private Limited
Compulsorily Convertible Debentures of Digital Ventures Private Limited
Fair value of financial guarantee issued of Digital Ventures Private Limited
Equity shares of MT Educare Limited
Equity shares of Academia Edificio Priavte Limited
Equity shares of Liberium Global Resources Private Limited
Loans, advances and deposits given
Subsidiary company
Digital Ventures Private Limited
Academia Edificio Priavte Limited
Liberium Global Resources Private Limited
Other related parties
Essel Infra Projects Private Limited
Essel Vision Production Limited
Evenness Business Excellence Services Private Limited
Other financial assets
Subsidiary company
Digital Ventures Private Limited
- Premium on redemption of Preference Shares
- Dividend receivable on Preference shares
Advance from customer
Other related parties
Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited
Trade receivables
Subsidiary company
Digital Ventures Private Limited
Liberium Global Resources Private Limited
MT Educare Limited
Other related parties
Himgiri Zee University
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(` Lakhs)

Other payables
Other related parties
Pan India Network Infravest Private Limited
Digital Subscriber Management and Consultancy Services Private Limited
Diligent Media Corporation Limited
Zee Media Corporation Limited
Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited
Essel Infra Projects Private Limited
Essel Vision Production Limited
Evenness Business Excellence Services Private Limited
Guarantees given
Subsidiary company
Digital Ventures Private Limited
Guarantees received
Other related parties
Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited
Jointly Corporate Guarantee given by Direct Media Distribution
Ventures Private Limited and Digital Satellite Holdings Private Limited
Note: 1)
2)
50

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

666.89

649.55

2.64
10.56
281.02
41.77
177.26
22.27
40.73
90.64

3.87
14.10
158.09
73.89
82.16
33.28
284.16

15,000.00

15,000.00

15,000.00

15,000.00

(` Lakhs)

As on 31 March 2020
As on 31 March 2019
2)

+ 50 / - 50
+ 50 / - 50

29.05
35.48

The Company enters into transactions in currency other than its functional currency and is therefore exposed to foreign currency risk. The Company
analyses currency risk as to which balances outstanding in currency other than the functional currency of that Company. The management has taken a
position not to hedge this currency risk.
The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise. Exchange rate
exposures are not hedged considering the insignificant impact and period involved on such exposure.
The following table sets forth information relating to foreign currency exposure:
(` Lakhs)

5,300.00

Assets as at

5,300.00

Liabilities as at

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

-

-

2.14

2.00

United States Dollar (USD)
5,300.00

Effect on Profit
before tax

Foreign currency risk

Currency
5,300.00

Increase / decrease in
basis points

Foreign Currency sensitivity analysis
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a 10% increase / decrease in foreign currencies with all other variable held constant. The below impact on
the Company's profit before tax is based on changes in the fair value of unhedged foreign currency monetary assets and liablities at balance sheet date.

Details of remuneration to director are disclosed in Note 37.
Figures considered based on the IND AS financials of the company

(` Lakhs)

Financial instruments
Currency

(i) Financial risk management objective and policies
The Company’s principal financial liabilities, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, lease liabilities and other financial liabilities.
The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include investments,
loans, trade receivables, other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances and other financial assets that derive directly from its
operations.

Sensitivity Analysis
31 March 2020
` decrease by
10%

United States Dollar (USD)

0.21

31 March 2019

` increase by
10%
(0.21)

` decrease by
10%
0.20

` increase by
10%
(0.20)

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s management oversees the management of these risks.
a) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and other price risk such as equity price risk. Financial instruments affected by
market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, other financial instruments.
1) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of changes in fair value of
fixed interest bearing investments because of fluctuations in the interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of floating
interest bearing investments will vary because of fluctuations in interest rates.
The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term loan from banks. NonRedeemable Debentures and Intercorporate deposits carries fixed coupon rate and hence is not considered for calculation of interest rate sensitivity of
the company.
Interest rate sensitivity

3)

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises
principally from the Company's receivables from customers, deposits and loans given, investments and balances at bank. The Company measures the
expected credit loss of trade receivables based on historical trend, industry practices and the business enviornment in which the entity operates. Expected
Credit Loss is based on actual credit loss experienced and past trends based on the historical data.
Ageing of trade receivables

(` Lakhs)

Trade Receivables (Unsecured)
Over six months
Less than six months
Total

As at 31 March 2020

As at 31 March 2019

1,257.85
1,202.56

732.63
1,969.88

2,460.41

2,702.51

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected. With
all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact of change in interest rate of borrowings, as follows:
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(` Lakhs)

As at 31 March 2020

As at 31 March 2019

(ii) Capital management
For the purpose of the Company' s capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves. The Company manages its capital
structure to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to the stakeholders.

Movement in allowance for credit loss during the year was as follows :
Opening Balance
Add :- Provided during the year
Less :- Reversal during the year
Closing balance as at
Net Trade receivable

417.90
242.21
660.11

199.04
218.86
417.90

1,800.30

2,284.61

The Company monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is total debt divided by total capital plus debt

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invest in deposits with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings
assigned by credit rating agencies. Investments primarily include investment in liquid mutual fund units, non convertible debentures, certificates of deposit
and other debt instruments.
b)

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The Company's principal source of liquidity are cash and cash
equivalents and the cash flow i.e. generated from operations. The Company consistently generated strong cash flows from operations which together with
the available cash and cash equivalents and current investment provides adequate liquidity in short terms as well in the long term.

Financial Liabilities
Trade payable and other financial liabilities
Borrowings*
Lease liabilities
Total

Less than1 year

2 to 5 year

more than 5 years

6,204.02
4,384.66
549.70

174.12
11,508.25
1,486.86

521.11
-

11,138.38

13,169.23

521.11

* Current maturities of borrowings aggregating `/lakhs 1,952.73 from part of other financials liabilities hence the same is not consider separately in
borrowings.
The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities including estimated interest payments as at 31 March 2019
(` Lakhs)

Financial Liabilities
Trade payable and other financial liabilities
Borrowings*
Total

Less than1 year

2 to 5 year

more than 5 years

5,771.94
4,361.52

174.12
12,436.60

581.73
-

10,133.46

12,610.72

581.73

* Current maturities of borrowings aggregating `/lakhs 1,322.92 from part of other financials liabilities hence the same is not consider separately in
borrowings.

As at 31 March 2019

Gross Debt (inclusive long term and short term debt) *
Less: Cash and cash equivalents and Other Bank Balances

17,845.64
(164.44)

18,121.04
(995.01)

Net Debt
Total Equity

17,681.20
47,753.05

17,126.03
41,276.09

Total Capital
Gearing ratio

65,434.25
27.02%

58,402.12
29.32%

* does not inclued current maturities of borrowings.
(iii) Categories of financial instruments and fair value thereof

(` Lakhs)

Particulars
The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities including estimated interest payments as at 31 March 2020
(` Lakhs)

(` Lakhs)
As at 31 March 2020

Carrying amount
A)

As at 31 March 2020
Fair value

Carrying amount

As at 31 March 2019
Fair value

Financial assets
(other than investment in subsidiary companies)
i) Measured at amortised cost
Trade Receivables
Cash and cash equivalents and bank balances
Other financial assets
Loans

1,800.30
164.44
1,202.03
15,724.46

1,800.30
164.44
1,202.03
15,724.46

2,284.61
995.01
1,128.20
9,067.90

2,284.61
995.01
1,128.20
9,067.90

B) Financial liabilities
i) Measured at amortised cost
Trade Payables
Borrowings (Non current)
Borrowings (Current)
Lease Liabilities
Other Financial Liabilities

1,574.60
11,508.25
4,384.66
2,036.56
5,324.65

1,574.60
11,508.25
4,384.66
2,036.56
5,324.65

2,365.48
12,436.60
4,361.52
4,162.30

2,365.48
12,436.60
4,361.52
4,162.30

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents and bank balances, trade receivables, other financial assets, certain investments, trade
payables and other current liabilities approximate their fair value largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. Difference between carrying
amount and fair value of bank deposits, other financial assets, other financial liabilities and borrowings subsequently measured at amortised cost is not
significant in each of the year presented.
iV) Fair value hierarchy
All other financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost are in Level 1 of fair value hirarchy and have been considered at carrying amount .
The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities included in the level 1 categories above have been determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on a discounted cash flow analysis, with the most significant inputs being the discount rate that reflects the credit risk of
counterparties.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Collateral / Security Pledged
The carrying amount of assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings of the company and subsidiary company are as under ;
(` Lakhs)
31 March 2020

52

53

31 March 2019
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Property, plant and equipment (includes Capital work in progress, Investment property,
Intangible assets and Intangible assets under development)
Inventories
Other current and non-current assets

776.73
1,769.93
29,712.65

709.56
1,314.48
24,462.20

Total assets pledged

32,259.31

26,486.24

Reconciliation between opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities as required by Ind AS 7
"Statement of Cash Flows" is as under:
(` Lakhs)

Long Term Borrowings (Including Current maturities)
Short Term Borrowings
(For Bank, Financial Institution and intercorporate
deposits etc.)
Dividend paid (including dividend distribution tax)

To
The Members of
Zee Learn Limited

Non Cash Changes

As at
31 March 2019

Cash
Inflows

Cash
outflows

12,436.60
5,684.44

5,755.00
-

(6,683.36)
-

652.95

-

11,508.25
6,337.39

-

-

393.12

-

-

393.12

Interest
Accured

Other
Charges

As at
31 March 2020

Prior year comparatives
Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified / rearranged wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's classifications /
disclosures, figures in brackets pertain to previous year.

1. Qualified Opinion
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of
Zee Learn Limited (‘the Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries (the
Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the
Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March
2020, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements including a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (herein after referred to as “consolidated financial
statements”).
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us and based on the consideration of reports of the
other auditors on separate financial statement except for the effects of
the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph and on
other financial information of subsidiaries referred to in the Other Matters
paragraph below, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give
the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended, of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2020, and its
consolidated profit, consolidated total comprehensive income, the
consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the
year ended on that date.
2. Basis for qualified opinion
a) The consolidated financial statements as at 31 March, 2020 include
goodwill having carrying value of Rs 31,323.64 lakhs on acquisition of its
subsidiary company viz MT Educare Limited (MTEL). Due to the
prevailing unprecedented Covid19 pandemic situation and the
uncertainty connected to it, the Company has not been able to carry out a
detailed and comprehensive assessment of the asset in accordance with
the principles of Indian Accounting standard – 36 “Impairment of Assets”
and hence no adjustments have been considered by the Company to the
carrying value of goodwill as at 31 March, 2020. In the absence of
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sufficient and appropriate audit evidence by way of such detailed and
comprehensive assessment due to the current COVID-19 pandemic
situation, we are unable to comment upon adjustments, if any, that may
be required to the carrying value of goodwill.
b) In one of the subsidiaries viz. MT Educare Limited (MTEL), the other
auditor who audited the consolidated financial statements of the
subsidiary reported that the subsidiary has recognized net deferred tax
assets of Rs 8,154.54 Lakhs based on the estimate that sufficient taxable
profits would be available in future years against which deferred tax asset
can be utilized. In the opinion of the other auditor, due to uncertainty over
the estimated profits for the future years arising out of the outbreak of
COVID -19 and the existence of unutilized tax losses available, it is highly
uncertain that MTEL and its subsidiaries would have sufficient taxable
profits in future against which deferred tax asset can be utilized.
Accordingly, the other auditor is unable to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to corroborate the Management’s assessment of
recognition of deferred tax assets as at 31 March 2020. Had the deferred
tax asset not been recognised the profit for the year ended 31 March
2020 and total equity would have been lower by Rs.8,154.54 lakhs.
c) The Group has not complied with the provisions of Regulation 33 of
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015 relating to the submission of
the results for the quarter ended 31 March 2020 to Securities and
Exchange Board of India (SEBI) within the stipulated time. Penalties on
account of such non compliances are presently not ascertainable and not
provided for in the books of account. Consequently, we are unable to
comment on the impact, if any, on the consolidated financial statements.
We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) prescribed under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained and the audit evidence obtained
by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other
Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our qualified opinion.
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Key audit matters
Description of Key Audit Matter
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2020. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to
be communicated in our report.
Description of Key Audit Matter

Accuracy of recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosures of
revenues and other related balances in view of adoption of Ind AS 115
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers” (new revenue accounting
standard)
•
•
•
•

Sales are recognized when the control of the goods and services is
transferred to the customer.
Revenue is recognized at the amount that reflects the considerations to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods
or services to customer.
Revenue is recognized over a time or point in time.
The Group focuses on revenue as a key performance measure which
could create an incentive for revenue to be recognized before the control.

Recoverability of Loans
Loans and advances includes certain loans aggregating Rs. 19,902.79
lakhs given to various trusts as on 31 March 2020 by a subsidiary
company viz. MT Educare Limited. Out of the above, provision recognized
amounted to Rs. 12,357.16 lakhs as at 31 March 2020 which involves
significant management’s estimate and judgment. As the assessment of
recoverability of loans and deposits requires management to make
significant estimation, exercise judgement on customer payment
behavior, other relevant risk characteristics, we determined this to be a
key audit matter.

Recoverability and valuation of Government trade receivables
•

Government Trade receivables (Net) amounting to Rs. 2,599.45 lakhs as
of 31 March 2020 of a subsidiary company viz. MT Educare Limited are
recognised at their anticipated realisable value, which is the original
invoiced amount less an estimated allowance based on Expected Credit
Loss model.
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•

Description of Auditor’s Response

Valuation of trade receivables is considered as a key audit matter by the •
other auditors due to the magnitude of the balance and the significant
management judgement used in determining the impairment provision.

Analysing the list of outstanding receivables and assessing the
recoverability of these through inquiry with management and verifying
corroborative evidence to support the conclusions drawn.

•

Assessing management’s estimate and related policies with respect to
provision on account of credit loss.

•

Verification of calculation of provisions for credit loss.

•

Verifying the related disclosures provided in the financial statements.

Description of Auditor’s Response
Principal Audit Procedures
We assessed the Group’s process to identify the impact of adoption of the new
revenue accounting standard.
Our audit approach consisted testing of the design and operating
effectiveness of the internal controls and substantive testing as follows:
•

Evaluated the design of internal controls relating to implementation of the
new revenue accounting standard.

•

Assessing the application of Group’s accounting policies over revenue
recognition and comparing the Group’s accounting policies over revenue
recognition with applicable accounting standards.

•

Identifying the nature of the revenues and identification of any unusual
contract terms.

•

Testing the revenue recognized including testing of Group’s control on
revenue recognition, when applicable. Our testing included tracing the
information to agreements and payments.

•

Assessing the revenue recognized with substantive analytical procedures, and

•

Assessing the Group’s disclosure on revenue recognition.

Principal Audit Procedures by other auditors

4. Emphasis of Matter
a) We draw attention to note 45 to the consolidated financial statements that
state that the management has made an assessment of the impact of COVID19 on the Group’s operations, financial performance, and position as at and for
the year ended 31 March 2020 and has concluded that there is no impact
which is required to be recognized in the financial statements. Accordingly, no
adjustments have been made to the consolidated financial statements.
However, the extent of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the
Company’s result is dependent upon future developments.
b) We draw attention to note 58 to the consolidated financial statements
which states that the contracts for revenue from management services has
been negotiated and the new arrangement is applicable from retrospective
effect. Consequently, the revenue from management services recorded
during the quarter ended 31 December 2019 amounting to Rs 910.00 lakhs
has been re-measured based on renegotiation of contracts with customers
which has resulted in the reversal of revenue amounting to Rs 745.33 lakhs by
the management in the quarter ended 31 March 2020.

•

Obtaining an understanding of Group's processes and controls relating to
the monitoring of loans given and review of credit risk of borrowers.

•

Reviewing underlying documents and supporting evidences.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

•

Obtaining Balance confirmations and evidence of receipts from the
borrower subsequent to the year end.

5. Other information

•

Reviewing ageing report to identify collection risks, assessing overdue
receivables and where applicable, reviewing payment history and
correspondence with the borrowers on expected settlement dates.

•

Discussing with the management with respect to collectability of the
amount lent and adequacy of provision for doubtful advance, including
whether any dispute or concerns have been noted by management.

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to
Board Report and Chairman’s Statement but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

•

Evaluating management’s assumptions and estimates used to determine
the provision for doubtful advances.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

•

Assessing the adequacy of the disclosure on receivables and the related
risks such as credit risks and liquidity risks in the financial statements.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Principal Audit Procedures by other auditors
• Reading through the agreements and correspondence with the
Government authorities and understanding the key terms.
• Analysing the ageing of trade receivable.

6. Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with
Governance for the Standalone Financial Statements
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation
and presentation of these consolidated financial statements in terms of the
requirement of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position, consolidated financial performance ( including other
comprehensive income), consolidated changes in equity and consolidated
cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.
The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the
Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of
Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The
respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.
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7. Auditor’s responsibility for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
•

•

•

•

•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(If the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company and its subsidiary
Companies which are companies incorporated in India has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by management.
Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
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transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
•

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit
of the financial statements of such entities included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial
statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other
auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding
Company and such other entities included in the consolidated financial
statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
8. Other Matters
We did not audit the financial statements of ten subsidiaries whose financial
statements / consolidated financial statements reflect total assets of Rs
119,719.22 lakhs as at 31 March 2020, total revenues of Rs 36,157.46 lakhs,
total net loss after tax of Rs 4,646.30 lakhs, total comprehensive loss of Rs
4,181.79 lakhs and total cash outflows of Rs. 360.83 Lakhs for the year ended
on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These
financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have
been furnished to us by the management and our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of these subsidiaries and our report in terms of Section
143(3) of the Act, in so far as it relates to these subsidiaries is based solely on
the reports of the other auditors.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Holding Company
to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of
Section 197of the Act

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above, and our Report on
Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of
the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports
of the other auditors.
9. Report on other Legal and Regulatory requirements
I.

As required by Section143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) we have sought and except for the possible effects of the matters
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, obtained all the
information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

h) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Group and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”,
i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:
i.

b) except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis
for Qualified Opinion section, in our opinion, proper books of account as
required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from
our examination of those books;
c) The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and
loss (including other comprehensive income), the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements;
d) except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for
Qualified Opinion section , in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;
e) The matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, in
our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Group;
f)

On the basis of written representations received from the directors of the
Holding Company as on 31 March 2020 and taken on record by the Board
of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory
auditors of the subsidiary companies, none of the directors of the Group
companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 March 2020 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

g) With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197 (16) of the act, as
amended:

The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending
litigations on the consolidated financial position of the Group and its
subsidiaries- refer note 37 to the consolidated financial statements;

ii. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts; and
iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) by
the Group except in case of one of its subsidiary viz. MT Educare Limited.
The other auditor who audited the consolidated financial statements of the
subsidiary reported the following instances of delay in transferring
amounts, required to be transferred to the IEPF :

Year

Amount

Due Date

Transferred
to IEPF on

Delay in
number
of days

F.Y.
2011-2012

1,260

13 November
2019

1 January
2020

49

F.Y.
2012-2013

72,493

30 December
2019

7 March
2020

68

For MGB & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 101169W/W-100035
Sanjay Kothari
Partner
Membership Number 048215
Mumbai, 7 October 2020
UDIN: 20048215AAAAGO2319
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditor’s Report
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section
3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) as referred to in
paragraph 9(I) (g) under “Report on other Legal and Regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date to the members of the
Company on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2020
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Zee
Learn Limited (“the Holding Company”), its subsidiary companies,
incorporated in India as of 31 March 2020, in conjunction with our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls
over financial reporting of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies
incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on “Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting” (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed
under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
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plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence
obtained by the other auditors of the subsidiary companies incorporated in
India, in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Holding
Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A Holding company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Qualified Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the reports of the
other auditors as referred to in Other Matters paragraph below, the following
material weaknesses have been identified as at March 31, 2020:
In one of the subsidiaries of the Company, the other auditor who audited the
financial statements of the subsidiary reported the following material
weaknesses have been identified as at March 31, 2020:
The Information Technology General Controls in terms of the access controls
and change management controls with respect to accounting for student
revenue and controls on the financial statement closure process were
operating ineffectively which could potentially lead to material misstatement in
the financial statements.
A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
financial control with reference to financial statements, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the group's annual or
interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.
In our opinion, except for the effects of the material weaknesses described
above on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Group
has maintained, in all material respects, internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with

reference to financial statements were operating effectively as of March 31,
2020, based on the internal control with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Group considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note.
The other auditors have considered the material weaknesses identified and
reported above in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests
applied in audit of the consolidated financial statements of the said Subsidiary
Company, and these material weaknesses do not affect our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements of the Company.
The other auditors have considered the “qualified opinion” reported above in
determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the said Subsidiary Company, and the
qualified opinion has not affected our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Company.
Other Matters
Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3) (i) of the Act on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting in so far as it relates to ten subsidiary companies incorporated in
India, is based on corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies
incorporated in India. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter
except otherwise stated above.
For MGB & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 101169W/W-100035
Sanjay Kothari
Partner
Membership Number 048215
Mumbai, 7 October 2020
UDIN: 20048215AAAAGO2319
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Note
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment
3
(b) Right-of-use assets
4
(c) Capital work-in-progress
3
(d) Investment property
5
(e) Investment property under development
5
(f)
Goodwill
6
(g) Intangible assets
7
(h) Intangible assets under development
7
(i)
Financial assets
(i)
Investments
8
(ii) Loans
9
(ii) Other financial assets
10
(j)
Deferred tax assets (net)
11
(k) Income tax assets (net)
12
(l)
Other non-current assets
13
Total non-current assets
Current assets
(a) Inventories
14
(b) Financial assets
(i) Investments
15
(ii) Trade receivables
16
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents
17 (A)
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above
17 (B)
(v) Loans
9
(vi) Other financial assets
10
(c) Other current assets
13
(d) Assets classified as held for sale
18
Total current assets
Total Assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital
19
(b) Other Equity
20 (A)
Equity attributable to equity holder of the parent (a+b)
Non-controlling Interests
20 (B)
Total Equity
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
21
(ii) Lease liabilities
22
(iii) Other financial liabilities
23 (B)
(b) Provisions
24
(c) Other liabilities
25
Total non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
21
(ii) Lease liabilities
22
(iii) Trade payables
23 (A)
(1) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(2) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities
23 (B)
(b) Other current liabilities
25
(c) Provisions
24
(d) Current tax liabilities (net)
26
Total current liabilities
Total Liabilities
Total Equity and Liabilities
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
1-59
As per our attached report of even date
For and on behalf of the board
For MGB & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN - 101169W/W100035
Vikash Kumar Kar
Whole-Time Director & CEO
Sanjay Kothari
Partner
Membership Number 048215
Rakesh Agarwal
Chief Financial Officer
Place : Mumbai
Date : 7 October 2020
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31 March 2020

( lakhs)



31 March 2019

( lakhs)
Note

4,391.88
8,820.89
676.11
25,744.27
29,553.91
31,323.64
7,168.54
5,270.02

5,239.01
343.25
26,824.79
28,928.34
31,323.64
7,827.59
5,300.86

0.34
8,920.17
877.30
8,697.47
3,266.76
1,613.39
136,324.69

0.34
4,477.59
2,199.43
9,176.69
2,818.94
2,141.73
126,602.20

1,769.93

1,314.48

1,051.94
6,670.91
809.40
743.64
1,936.04
2,088.13
791.19
64.25
15,925.43
152,250.12

211.44
5,253.83
2,070.21
673.65
9,856.00
1,228.89
629.06
64.25
21,301.81
147,904.01

3,260.93
43,817.19
47,078.12
16,231.25
63,309.37

3,260.79
39,853.77
43,114.56
18,103.75
61,218.31

27,412.60
6,572.75
1,267.03
636.04
18,289.36
54,177.78

33,539.94
1,541.73
512.97
21,468.82
57,063.46

4,384.66
2,281.71

4,361.52
-

551.86
4,641.10
9,810.62
12,636.34
215.50
241.18
34,762.97
88,940.75
152,250.12

529.61
4,233.25
9,509.62
10,757.25
230.86
0.13
29,622.24
86,685.70
147,904.01

Prashant Parekh
Company Secretary

31 March 2019

27
28

51,482.78
4,155.40
55,638.18

51,724.64
3,200.46
54,925.10

29
30
31
32
33

13,753.89
14,137.98
5,904.91
6,410.60
6,751.87
46,959.25

14,537.24
13,981.38
4,730.99
2,788.54
7,435.38
43,473.53

8,678.93
3,114.65
5,564.28

11,451.57
11,451.57

Total Tax Expenses

2,558.49
(25.29)
519.61
3,052.81

2,621.04
46.30
504.20
(57.32)
3,114.22

(A)

2,511.47

8,337.35

4,369.30
(1,857.83)

7,609.97
727.38

(48.93)
(48.93)

49.32
49.32

(34.26)
(14.67)

36.66
12.66

2,462.54

8,386.67

4,335.05
(1,872.51)

7,646.63
740.04

1.34
1.34

2.33
2.33

Income
Revenue from operations
Other income
Total Income
Expenses
Operational cost
Employee benefits expense
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses
Total Expenses
Profit before exceptional item and tax
Less: Exceptional item (refer note 51)
Profit before tax
Less : Tax expense
Current tax - current year
- earlier period
Deferred tax (including MAT credit entitlement) - current year
- earlier period
Profit for the year
Profit / (Loss) for the year attributable to
Equity holder of the parent
Non-controlling interest

34

Other comprehensive income / (loss) (including tax effect)
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss
(ii) Items that will be reclassified to statement of profit and loss
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income / (loss) attributable to
Equity holder of the parent
Non-controlling interest

(B)

Total comprehensive income for the year

(A+B)

Total comprehensive income / (loss) attributable to
Equity holder of the parent
Non-controlling interest
Earnings per equity share (face value ` 1 each)
Basic (`)
Diluted (`)
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
As per our attached report of even date
For MGB & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN - 101169W/W100035

Nanette D'sa
Director

31 March 2020

Sanjay Kothari
Partner
Membership Number 048215

46
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For and on behalf of the board

Vikash Kumar Kar
Whole-Time Director & CEO

Nanette D'sa

Rakesh Agarwal

Prashant Parekh
Company Secretary

Chief Financial Officer

Director

Place : Mumbai
Date : 7 October 2020
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( lakhs)

A.

B.

Equity share capital
Balance as at 01 April 2018
Changes in equity share capital
Balance as at 31 March 2019
Changes in equity share capital
Balance as at 31 March 2020

Note

( Lakhs)
3,258.95
1.84
3,260.79
0.14
3,260.93

19a
19a

Other equity

A.

( Lakhs)
Reserves and surplus
Debenture Share based
redemption
payment
reserve
reserve

Capital
reserves

Securities
Premium

-

12,447.58
-

812.50
-

Transferred from Statement of Profit and Loss Account
Dividend paid
Dividend distribution tax paid
Gain on bargain purchase
17.49
Excercise of shares options
Share options outstanding account
Balance as at 31 March 2019
17.49
Profit for the year
Re-measurement gains / (losses) on
defined benefit plans (net of tax)
Total comprehensive income for the year
17.49
Transferred from Statement of
Profit and Loss Account
Dividend paid
Dividend distribution tax paid
Excercise of shares options
Share options outstanding account
Balance as at 31 March 2020
17.49

12,447.58
510.38
12,957.96

Balance as at 01 April 2018
Profit for the year
Re-measurement gains / (losses) on
defined benefit plans (net of tax)
Total comprehensive income for the year

31 March 2020

General
reserves

Retained
earnings

Non
Controlling
interest

Total other
equity

523.02
-

13,971.80
-

4,325.26
8,337.35

(727.38)

32,080.16
7,609.97

812.50
406.25
1,218.75
-

523.02
(202.94)
212.63
532.71
-

13,971.80
13,971.80
-

31.83
8,369.18
12,694.44
(406.25)
(326.07)
(67.02)
11,895.10
2,511.47

(12.66)
(740.04)
(740.04)
(740.04)
1,857.83

19.17
7,629.14
39,709.30
(326.07)
(67.02)
17.49
307.44
212.63
39,853.77
4,369.30

12,957.96

1,218.75

532.71

13,971.80

(48.93)
2,462.54
14,357.64

14.67
1,872.50
1,132.46

(34.26)
4,335.04
44,188.81

4.63
4.63
12,962.59

203.13
203.13
1,421.88

(73.94)
18.70
(55.24)
477.47

72.11
72.11
14,043.91

(203.13)
(326.09)
(67.03)
(596.25)
13,761.39

1,132.46

(326.09)
(67.03)
(69.31)
90.81
(371.62)
43,817.19

1)
2)
3)
4)
5)

Capital Reserve is created on account of Gain on bargain purchase of fellow subsidiary (refer note 54)
Securities premium is used to record premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisons of Companies Act, 2013.
Debenture redemption reserve is created out of the profits which is available for payment of dividend for the purpose of redemption of debentures.
Share option outstanding account is related to share options granted by the group to its employee under its employee share option plan.
General Reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. General Reserve includes `/Lakhs 8,881.25 (`/Lakhs 8,881.25)
pursuant to the scheme of Amalgamation, sanctioned by the Hon'ble Court of Bombay and shall not be used for the purpose of declaring dividend.
6) Retained earnings represent the accumulated earnings net of losses if any made by the group over the years.
.
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
1-59
As per our attached report of even date
For MGB & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN - 101169W/W100035

Sanjay Kothari
Partner
Membership Number 048215
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For and on behalf of the board

Vikash Kumar Kar
Whole-Time Director & CEO

Nanette D'sa
Director

Rakesh Agarwal
Chief Financial Officer

Prashant Parekh
Company Secretary

Cash flow from operating activities
Net Profit before tax
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Liabilities no longer required / excess provision written back
Employee share based payment expenses
Net gain on Investments measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Bad debts / advance written off
(Profit) / Loss on sale / discard of property, plant and equipment / intangibles
Net gain on sale of investments
Net loss on foreign exchange transaction and translation
Interest expenses
Allowances for doubful debts and advances
Amortization of anciliary borrowing cost
Unwinding of discount on security deposit
Dividend income
Interest income
Operating profit before working capital changes
Changes in working capital :
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories
(Increase) / Decrease in trade and other receivables
Increase / (Decrease) in trade and other payables
Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid (net)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A)

31 March 2019

5,564.28

11,451.57

6,410.60
(88.02)
18.70
(8.31)
396.80
27.91
(13.68)
0.69
5,783.91
3,385.11
6.26
335.11
(14.34)
(2,827.25)
18,977.77

2,788.54
(418.26)
212.64
130.67
43.14
(4.93)
4,637.38
67.65
6.26
394.50
(241.30)
(1,811.39)
17,256.47

(455.45)
(2,206.50)
(1,402.41)
14,913.41
(2,739.63)

(380.34)
(18,588.88)
6,704.64
4,991.89
(2,925.15)

12,173.78

2,066.74

B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment / intangible assets / investment property /
capital work-in-progress
Sale of property, plant and equipment / intangible assets
Proceed from/(Investments) in deposits with bank
Investments in margin money deposit with bank
Purchase of current investments
Sale of current investments
Purchase of controlling stake in fellow subsidiary company
Loans given to others
Receipt of loans given to others
Dividend received
Interest received

(876.85)

(6,481.84)

2.43
1,297.55
(9.76)
(2,847.73)
2,025.00
(537.14)
1,198.90
14.33
1,271.86

22.64
248.09
(33.25)
(100.13)
1,277.45
(1,628.00)
(283.48)
241.30
1,853.92

Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B)

1,538.59

(4,883.30)
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( lakhs)
31 March 2020
C.

Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity shares (including securities premium)
Proceeds from non-current borrowings
Repayment of non-current borrowings
Proceeds from current borrowings
Payment of lease liabilities
Dividend paid (including dividend distribution tax)
Interest paid
Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities (C) .

31 March 2019

2.92
5,755.00
(9,108.72)
(3,134.28)
(393.12)
(8,094.98)
(14,973.18)

537.67
14,024.10
(12,351.72)
4,660.11
(381.13)
(3,763.20)
2,725.83

(1,260.81)
2,070.21
809.40
743.64
1,553.04

(90.73)
2,160.94
2,070.21
673.65
2,743.86

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Cash and cash equivalents

809.40

2,070.21

Bank Balances

743.64

673.65

1,553.04

2,743.86

Net cash flow during the year (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Net cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
Add : Balances earmarked
Cash and bank balances at the end of the year
Notes:
1.

Component of cash and cash equivalents as follows

Total
2.
3.
4.
5.

As required by Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”, a reconciliation between opening and closing balances inthe balance sheet for liabilities arising from
financing activities is given in note 56
The above cash flow statement has been prepared in accordance with the " Indirect Method " as set out in the Ind AS -7 on " Cash Flow Statements".
The impact of non-cash transactions have not been given in the above cash flow statement details of which are given in note 56.
Previous year's figures have been regrouped, recast wherever necessary.
As per our attached report of even date

For and on behalf of the board

For MGB & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN - 101169W/W100035
Sanjay Kothari
Partner
Membership Number 048215

Place : Mumbai
Date : 7 October 2020
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Functional and Presentation currency

1 A Corporate Information
Zee Learn Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated in State of
Maharashtra on 4 January, 2010. The Company along with its
subsidiaries ("Group") is one of the most diversified premium education
Group which delivers learning solutions and training through its multiple
products viz. Kidzee, Mount Litera Zee Schools, Mount Litera World
Preschool, Zee Institute of Media Arts (ZIMA), Zee Institute of Creative
Arts (ZICA) and E - Learning Online Education and Testing. The Group
is also in the business of providing and servicing school infrastructure
on long-term lease agreements. It also provides education support and
coaching services for students in the secondary and higher secondary
school and for students pursuing graduation degree in commerce,
preparing for various competitive examinations and undertaking
chartered accountancy examinations.
The consolidated financial statements (hereinafter referred to as
"financial statements") of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020,
were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors at their meeting held
on 7 October 2020
B Basis of preparation of Consolidated financial statements
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) as
notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, as and when amended and other
relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed there under and
guidelines issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI).
These financial statements have been prepared and presented under
the historical cost convention, on the accural basis of accounting except
for certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair
values at the end of each reporting period, as stated in the accounting
policies stated out below.

Name of the Subsidiaries

These Consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian
Rupees , which is also the Group's functional currency.
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been
rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule III
(except per share data), unless otherwise stated. Zero '0' denotes
amount less than ` 50,000/Current non-current classification
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current
as per the group’s normal operating cycle (twelve months) and other
criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Act.
C Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of Zee Learn Limited and entities controlled by Zee Learn
Limited.
Control exists when the parent has power over the entity, is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns by using its power over the entity.
Power is demonstrated through existing rights that give the ability to
direct relevant activities, those which significantly affect the entity's
returns. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date control
commences until the date control ceases.
The financial statements of the Group companies are consolidated on a
line-by-line basis and intra-group balances and transactions including
unrealized gain / loss from such transactions are eliminated upon
consolidation. These financial statements are prepared by applying
uniform accounting policies in use at the Group.
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the group, its subsidiaries (as listed in the table below).

Principal activities

Proportion of Interest
(including beneficial
interest) / Voting Power
(either directly / indirectly
or through Subsidiaries)

Principal place
of business

Construction and leasing for education

100(100)

India

Direct Subsidiaries
Digital Ventures Private Limited
Academia Edificio Private Limited

Education support and coaching services

100(100)

India

Liberium Global Resources Private Limited

Training Manpower and related activities

100(100)

India

MT Educare Limited

Education support and coaching services

59.12(59.12)

India
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Name of the Subsidiaries

Proportion of Interest
(including beneficial
interest) / Voting Power
(either directly / indirectly
or through Subsidiaries)

Principal activities

India

100(100)

India

Education support and
coaching services

100(100)

India

Education support and
coaching services

75(75)

India

Robomate Edutech Private Limited

Education support and
coaching services

100(100)

India

Letspaper Technologies Private Limited

Education support and
coaching services

100(100)

India

Acquiring and leasing
properties

100(100)

India

Chitale's Personalised Learning Private Limited
Sri Gayatri Educational Services Private Limited

Labh Ventures India Private Limited (Refer note 54)

Property, plant and equipment
(i)

100(100)

Education support and
coaching services

MT Education Services Private Limited

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current
assets and liabilities.
b

Education support and
coaching services

* The subsidiary Company has changed the name from Lakshya Educare Private Limited to Lakshya Forrum for Competitions Private Limited from 25
January, 2019.
2

based on current/ non-currentclassification. An asset is classified
as current when it is:

Significant Accounting Policies
a

Basis of preparation
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as
the ‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, as and when
amended and other relevant provisions of the Act and rules
framed there under and guidelines issued by Securities and
Exchange Board of India (SEBI).

•

Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in
normal operating cycle

•

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

•

Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting
period, or

•

complete such sale indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes
to the plan to sell will be made or that the decision to sell will be
withdrawn. Also, such assets are classified as held for sale only if the
management expects to complete the sale within one year from the
date of classification. Non-current assets classified as held for sale
are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and the fair value
less cost to sell. Non-current assets classified as held for sale are
not depreciated or amortized.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Principal place
of business

Indirect Subsidiaries
Lakshya Forrum for Competitions Private
Limited (formerly known as Lakshya Educare
Private Limited)*



(ii)

c

Freehold land is carried at cost. Other property, plant and
equipment acquired are measured on initial recognition at cost.
Subsequent to initial recognition, property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the
cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing
costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria
are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the group depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives. The carrying
amount of the replaced part accounted for as a separate asset
previously is derecognised. Likewise, when a major inspection is
performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the
plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria
are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised in statement of profit and loss when incurred. The
present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an
asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if
the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Investment property / investment property under
development
f

Current non-current classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet
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Expenditure incurred on acquisition / development of investment
property which are not ready to use at the reporting date is
disclosed under investment property under development.

A liability is classified as current when:
•

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

•

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

•
•

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting
period, or
There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

d

with the requirements of Ind AS 38, “Intangible Assets”.

Non-current assets held for sale
The Group classifies non-current assets as held for sale if their
carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sale rather
than through continuing use of the assets and actions required to

Intangible assets/Intangible assets under development
Intangible assets acquired or developed are measured on initial
recognition at cost and stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment loss, if any. Expenditure incurred on
acquisition / development of intangible assets which are not put /
ready to use at the reporting date is disclosed under intangible
assets under development.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
These financial statements have been prepared and presented
under the historical cost convention, on the accural basis of
accounting except for certain financial assets and liabilities that
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
stated in the accounting policies stated out below.

Goodwill and impairment of goodwill
Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred over the net of acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business less accumulated impairment losses, if any. For the
purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of
the Group’s cash generating units (or groups of cash-generating
units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then
to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying
amount of each assets in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised directly in Statement of Profit and Loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

Capital work-in-progress comprises cost of property, plant and
equipment and related expenses that are not yet ready for their
intended use at the reporting date.

Investment property is land held for capital appreciation.
Investment property is measured initially at cost including
purchase price. It is measured and carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment, if any.

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or
used to settle a liability for at leasttwelve months after the reporting
period

e

g

Depreciation / amortisation on property, plant and equipment
/ intangible assets / investment property
Depreciable amount for property, plant and equipment / intangible
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assets / investment property is the cost of an asset, or other
amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual value.
(i) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment(except
freehold land which is stated at cost) is provided on straightline method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to
the Companies Act, 2013.

I

(ii) Leasehold Improvements are amortised over the period of
Lease.

The useful lives of intangible assets are as follows ;
Intangible assets
Brand

Useful life (in years)
7

Software including SAP

3-5

Content development

3

Development rights

30

h

Impairment of Property, plant and equipment / intangible
assets/ investment property
The carrying amounts of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting
date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If
there are indicators of impairment, an assessment is made to
determine whether the asset’s carrying value exceeds its
recoverable amount. Where it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the
asset belongs.
An impairment is recognised in statement of profit and loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher of net selling price, defined as the fair value less costs
to sell, and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market rates and risks
specific to the asset.
An impairment loss for an individual asset or cash generating unit
are reversed if there has been a change in estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount since the last impairment loss
was recognised and is only reversed to the extent that the asset’s
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carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised. Impairment loss are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the
lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They
are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Derecognition of property, plant and equipment / intangibles
assets / investment property

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement
date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and
useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are
evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. The lease liability is initially measured at amortized
cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental
borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease
liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the
related right of use asset if the group changes its assessment if
whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment /
intangibles / investment property is derecognised on disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an
item of property, plant and equipment / intangibles is measured as
the difference between the net disposal in proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss when the item is derecognised.

(iii) Intangible assets are amortised on straight line basis over
their respective individual useful lives estimated by the
management.

j



Leases
(i) The Group’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases
for building premises. The Group assesses whether a
contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset, the group assesses whether: (i) the contract involves
the use of an identified asset (ii) the group has substantially
all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the
period of the lease and (iii) the group has the right to direct the
use of the asset.
At the date of commencement of the lease, the group recognizes
a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for
all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases
with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low
value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the
group recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on
a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or
terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets
and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably
certain that they will be exercised.
The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any

Transition: Ind AS 116 Lease is applicable for financial reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019 and replaces existing
lease accounting guidance, namely Ind AS 17 Leases. Ind AS 116
introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for
lessees. A lessee recognises a Right-of-Use (“ROU”) asset
representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease
liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. The
nature of expenses related to those leases will change as Ind AS
116 replaces the operating lease expense (i.e., rent) with
depreciation charge for ROU assets and interest expense on
lease liabilities. There are recognition exemptions for short-term
leases and leases of low-value items. Lessor accounting remains
similar to the current standard – i.e. lessors continue to classify
leases as finance or operating leases.
Accordingly, the Group has adopted Ind AS 116 - Leases and
applied it to all lease contracts existing on April 01, 2019 using the
modified retrospective method. Consequently, the cumulative
adjustment has been taken on the date of initial application i.e.
April 01, 2019. As permitted under the specific transitional
provisions in the standard, the group is not required to restate the
comparative figures. On transition, due to the adoption of the new
Ind AS, it resulted in recognition of Right-of-Use asset (ROU) of
`/lakhs 9,274.73 and a lease liability of `/lakhs 8,704.58. Since
the group has adopted modified restrospective method, no impact
would arise in the opening retained earnings.

(ii) Operating lease / Short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
its short-term leases of rented premises (i.e., those leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the
lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office
equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised
as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
k

l

Cash and cash equivalents
(i)

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at
banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

(ii)

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents consist of cash at bank and on hand, short-term
deposits and balances earmarked, as defined as they are
considered as integral part of Group's cash management.
Inventories
Educational goods and equipments are valued at lower of cost or
estimated net realizable value. Cost comprises cost of purchase,
freight and other expense incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Costs are taken on weighted
average basis and specific identification method

m

Fair value measurement
The Group has an established control framework with respect to
the measurement of fair values. The management regularly
reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation
adjustments.
All financial assets and financial liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole:
-Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities;
-Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
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that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable, or
-Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.
If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability
fall into different levels of a fair value hierarchy, then the fair value
measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the
fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to
the entire measurement.

(A) Financial assets
Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories:
amortised cost, financial assets ‘at Fair value through profit and loss'
(FVTPL), ‘Fair value through other comprehensive income' (FVTOCI).
The classification depends on the Group's business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of cash flows.\
Debt instrument
(a) Amortised cost
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it
is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the
asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding. This category generally applies to
trade and other receivables.

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value
hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the
change has occurred.
n

Financial instruments
Financial instruments is any contract that gives rise to a financial
asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.
(i) Initial recognition and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities
Financial assets are recognized when the group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the financial
instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit and loss are recognised immediately in
the statement of profit and loss.
(ii) Subsequent measurement
For the purposes of subsequent measurement, financial
assets are classified in four categories:
i) Debt instruments measured at amortised cost
ii) Debt instruments measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
iii) Debt instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL)
iv) Equity instruments measured at FVTOCI or FVTPL
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(b) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the
following criteria are met:
a)

The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets.

b)

The asset’s contractual cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest.
Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are
measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value.
Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive
income (OCI). However, the Group recognizes interest income,
impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or
loss in the statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the
asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified from the equity to statement of profit and loss. Interest
earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as
interest income using the EIR method.

( c) Fair value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)FVTPL is a residual
category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does
not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as
FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. In addition, the Group may
elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such
election is considered only if doing so reduces or eliminates a


measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch’). Debt instruments included within the
FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
(d) Equity investments
The Group measures equity investments at fair value through
profit and loss. Where the Group's management has elected to
present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of
fair value gains and losses to statement of profit and loss.
Dividends from such investments are recognised in statement of
profit and loss as other income when the Group's right to receive
payment is established.
(iii) Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised only when
a) The Group has transferred the rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or the rights have expired or
b) The Group retains the contractual rights to receive the cash
flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients in
an arrangement.
Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Group evaluates
whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset
is derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.
(iv) Impairment of financial assets
The Group measures the expected credit loss associated with its
assets based on historical trend, industry practices and the
business enviornment in which the entity operates or any other
appropriate basis. The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a signifcant increase in credit risk.
Repurchase of the Group's own equity instruments is recognised
and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised on
the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group's own
equity instruments.

(v) Expected credit loss :
The Group applies expected credit losses (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of loss allowance on the following.
i .)

Trade receivables

ii)

Financial assets measured at amorised cost (other than trade
receivables)

iii)

Financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

In case of trade receivables, the Group follows a simplified approach
wherein an amount equal to lifetime ECL measured and recognised as
loss allowance. Loss allowances for trade receivable are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.
Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that
result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. 12 month expected credit losses are the portion of
expected credit losses that result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the
expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).
ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the
original effective interest rate. Lifetime ECL are the expected credit
losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of
a financial asset. 12-month ECL are a portion of the lifetime ECL which
result from default events that are possible within 12 months from the
reporting date.
In case of other assets, the Group determines if there has been a
significant increased in credit risk of the financial assets since initial
recognition. If the credit risk of such assets has not increased
significantly, an amount equal to 12 months ECL is measured and
recognised as loss allowance. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, an amount equal to lifetime ECL is measured and
recognised as loss allowance.
(vi) Financial liabilities
Classification
Financial liabilties are recognized when group becomes party to
contractual provisions of the instrument. The Group classifies all
financial liabilities at amortised cost or fair value through profit or loss.
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Subsequent measurement

o

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification,
as described below:

(i)

(ii)

p

q

b) Franchise fees is recognized as per the agreed terms of
the agreement.

Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of
qualifying assets till the time such assets are ready for intended
use are capitalised as part of cost of the assets. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur.

(iii) Interest income from financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

The Group’s contracts with customers may include multiple
performance obligations. For such arrangements, the Group
allocates revenue to each performance obligation based on
its relative standalone selling price, which is generally
determined based on the price charged to customers.
Contract assets and liabilities
Contract assets relate primarily to the Group’s rights to
consideration for work completed but not billed at each
reporting date. Contract assets are transferred to
receivables when the rights become unconditional. This
usually occurs when the Group issues an invoice to a
customer. Contract liabilities primarily relate to
consideration received in advance from customers, for
which the performance obligation is yet to be satisfied.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received
or receivable. Revenue is recognised only when it can be reliably
measured and it is probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the Group. Transaction price is accounted net of GST. Since
GST is not received by the group on its own account, rather, it is
collected by the Group on behalf of the government. Accordingly,
it is excluded from revenue.
r

Retirement and other employee benefits
(i)

The Group operates both defined benefit and defined
contribution schemes for its employees. For defined

Short term employee benefits: All employee benefits
payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service
are classified as short term employee benefits and they are
recognized in the period in which the employee renders the
related service. The Group recognizes the undiscounted
amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid
in exchange for services rendered as a liability.

Transactions in foreign currencies
(i)

The functional currency of the Group is Indian Rupees (“ ` ”).
Foreign currency transactions are accounted at the
exchange rate prevailing on the date of such transactions.

(ii)

B. Arrangements with Multiple Performance
Obligations

C.

Sales - Educational goods and equipments /content is recognised
upfront at the point in time when the goods/ equipments/ content is
delivered to the customer via online/offline delivery, wherever

s

(iv) Dividend income is recognised when the Group's right to
receive dividend is established.

A. Revenue -

(i)

(ii)

c) Revenue from other services is recognised as and
when such services are completed/performed.

Revenue recognition

(vii) Determination of fair value
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a) Course fees and Royalty income is recognized over the
duration of the course and as per agreed terms

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a
possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably
will not require an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits or the amount of such obligation cannot be measured
reliably. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.
Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements,
however they are disclosed where the inflow of economic
benefits is probable. When the realisation of income is virtually
certain, then the related asset is no longer a contingent asset and
is recognised as an asset.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an ordinary transaction between
market participants at the measurement date.In determining the
fair value of its financial instruments, the Group uses a variety of
methods and assumptions that are based on market conditions
and risks existing at each reporting date. The methods used to
determine fair value include discounted cash flow analysis and
available quoted market prices. All methods of assessing fair
value result in general approximation of value, and such value
may never actually be realized.

(ii) Services

The Group recognizes provisions when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of a past event exists and it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle such obligation and the amount of such
obligation can be reliably estimated.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Borrowings are initially recognised at net of transaction costs
incurred and measured at amortised cost. Any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the
period of the borrowings using the EIR.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

contribution schemes the amount charged as expense is
equal to the contributions paid or payable when employees
have rendered services entitling them to the
contributions.For defined benefit plans, actuarial valuations
are carried out at each balance sheet date using the
Projected Unit Credit Method. All such plans are unfunded.

applicable, while the Group retains neither managerial
involvement nor the effective control.

Borrowings and borrowing costs

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization
process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fee or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.



Foreign currency monetary items are translated using the
exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Exchange
differences arising on settlement of monetary items or on
reporting such monetary items at rates different from those
at which they were initially recorded during the period, or
reported in previous financial statements are recognised as
income or as expenses in the period in which they arise.

(iii) Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at
historical cost and translated at the exchange rate prevelant
at the date of the transaction.
t

Accounting for taxes on income
Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax.
(i)

Current tax
Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable in
respect of taxable profit for a period. Current tax for current
and prior periods is recognized at the amount expected to be
paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax
rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable
income in the years in which those temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled.

v

w

Share based payments
The Group recognizes compensation expense relating to share-based
payments in net profit using fair-value in accordance with Ind AS 102,
Share-Based Payment. The estimated fair value of awards is charged
to statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the requisite
service period for each separately vesting portion of the award as if the
award was in-substance, multiple awards with a corresponding
increase to share based payment reserves.

Current and deferred tax are recognized as income or an expense
in the statement of profit and loss, except to the extent they relate
to items recognized in other comprehensive income, in which
case, the current and deferred tax income / expense are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

y

The fair value of the options granted under the “"Employee Stock Option
scheme (ZLL ESOP 2010) to ZLL ESOP 2010 - AMENDED 2015"" is
recognised as an employee benefits expense with a corresponding
increase in equity. The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted:

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with tax laws,
which give rise to future economic benefits in the form of
adjustment of future tax liability, is recognised as an asset only
when, based on convincing evidence, it is probable that the future
economic benefits associated with it will flow to the Group and the
assets can be measured reliably.

-

including any market performance conditions

-

excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance
vesting conditions, and

Impairment of non-financial assets

-

including the impact of any non-vesting conditions.

The carrying amounts of non financial assets are reviewed at each
balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on
internal/external factors. An asset is treated as impaired when the
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable value. The recoverable
amount is the greater of an asset’s or cash generating unit's, net selling
price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to the present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money
and risks specific to the assets. An impairment loss is charged to the
statement of profit and loss in the year in which an asset is identified as
impaired. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised
carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life. The

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the
period over which all of the specifiedvesting conditions are to be
satisfied. At the end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-market
vesting and service conditions. Itrecognises the impact of the revision
to original estimates, if any, in the statement of profit and loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.
x

Business combinations
Business combinations have been accounted for using the acquisition
method under the provisions of Ind AS 103, Business Combinations.
The cost of an acquisition is measured at the fair value of the assets

Dividend

liabilities that have a low probability of crystallising or are very
difficult to quantify reliably, are treated as contingent liabilities.
Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not provided for in
the financial statements. There can be no assurance regarding
the final outcome of these legal proceedings.
b

z

c

Impairment testing

i

Judgment is also required in evaluating the likelihood of collection
of customer debt after revenue has been recognised. This
evaluation requires estimates to be made, including the level of
provision to be made for amounts with uncertain recovery profiles.
Provisions are based on historical trends in the percentage of
debts which are not recovered, or on more detailed reviews of
individually significant balances.

ii

Determining whether the carrying amount of these assets has any
indication of impairment also requires judgment. If an indication of
impairment is identified, further judgment is required to assess
whether the carrying amount can be supported by the net present
value of future cash flows forecast to be derived from the asset.
This forecast involves cash flow projections and selecting the
appropriate discount rate.

d

Tax

i

The Group’s tax charge is the sum of the total current and deferred
tax charges. The calculation of the Group’s total tax charge
necessarily involves a degree of estimation and judgment in
respect of certain items whose tax treatment cannot be finally
determined until resolution has been reached with the relevant tax
authority or, as appropriate, through a formal legal process.

ii

Accruals for tax contingencies require management to make
judgments and estimates in relation to tax related issues and
exposures.

iii

The recognition of deferred tax assets is based upon whether it is
more likely than not that sufficient and suitable taxable profits will
be available in the future against which the reversal of temporary
differences can be deducted. Where the temporary differences
are related to losses, the availability of the losses to offset against

Contributed equity
Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as
a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

aa

Exceptional items
Certain occassions, the size, type, or incidences of the item of income or
expenses pertaining to the ordinary activities of the Group is such that
its disclosure improves the understanding of the performance of the
Group, such income or expenses is classified as an exceptional item
and accordingly, disclosed in the financial statements.
Critical accounting judgment and estimates
The preparation of financial statements requires management to
exercise judgment in applying the Group’s accounting policies. It also
requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the
accompanying disclosures including disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, with
revisions recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised
and in any future periods affected.
a

Contingencies
In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise
from litigation and other claims against the Group. Potential

Useful lives and residual values
The Group reviews the useful lives and residual values of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at each
financial year end.

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared on or before
the end of the reporting period but remaining undistributed at the end of
the reporting period, where the same has been appropriately
authorised and is no longer at the discretion of the entity.

Employee stock options

(iii) Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)
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Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is computed and disclosed using the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Dilutive
earnings per share is computed and disclosed using the weighted
average number of equity and dilutive equity equivalent shares
outstanding during the period, except when the results would be antidilutive.

Presentation of current and deferred tax

u

transferred, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or
assumed at the date of acquisition, which is the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. The cost of acquisition also includes the fair
value of any contingent consideration. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair value on the date of acquisition.
Business combinations between entities under common control is
accounted for at carrying value. Transaction costs that the Group incurs
in connection with a business combination such as finder’s fees, legal
fees, due diligence fees, and other professional and consulting fees are
expensed as incurred.

impairment loss recognized in prior accounting periods is reversed by
crediting the statement of profit and loss if there has been a change in
the estimate of recoverable amount.

(ii) Deferred tax
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the financial statements except
when the deferred tax arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability that effects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss at the time of transition. Deferred tax assets are reviewed
at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.
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Recent accounting pronouncements

The standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet
effective up to the date of issuance of the financial statements are
disclosed below. The Group intends to adopt these standards, if
applicable, when they become effective.
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs notifying amendments to Ind AS
116 “Leases ”, Ind AS 103 "Business Combination" , Ind AS 107
"Financial Instruments Disclosures " , Ind AS 109 " Financial
Instruments ", Ind AS 1 " Presentation of Financial Statements " ,Ind
AS 8 “Accounting policies, Changes in Accounting , Estimates and
Errors ”, Ind AS 10 " Event after the Reporting Period, Ind AS 34 "
Interim Financial Reporting "and Ind AS 37 " Provisions , Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets ", and these above amendments
are applicable to the Group w.e.f. 1 April 2020.

99.04
657.99
757.03
67.55
824.58

-

upto 31 March 2019
Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals during the year
Depreciation on acquisition

Details of Capital work-in-progress

Net carrying value
Balance as at 31 March 2020
Balance as at 31 March 2019

Opening balance
Add : Addition during the year
Less : Capitalized during the year
Closing balance

1,651.24
1,718.79

417.19
595.56

1,980.86

221.88
22.18
-

1,781.16

176.75
36.17
1,640.58

2,398.05

2,376.72
45.07
23.74
-

2,422.96
46.24
-

Plant and
Machinery

For details of property, plant and equipment pledged as security, refer note 55

Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress

445.49
445.49

2,475.82

445.49

Balance as at 31 March 2020
Accumulated depreciation
II. Depreciation upto 01 April 2018
Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals during the year
Depreciation on acquisition

2,475.82
-

445.49
-

Balance as at 31 March 2019
Additions during the year
Disposals during the year
Transfer to investment property

5,419.77
2,943.95

Building

1,484.97
1,039.48

Freehold Land
I. Gross carrying amount as at
01 April 2018
Additions during the year
Disposals during the year
Transfer to investment property

Description
of Assets

Net carrying value

The costs of providing pensions and other post-employment
benefits are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in
accordance with Ind AS 19 ‘Employee benefits’ over the period
during which benefit is derived from the employees’ services. The
costs are assessed on the basis of assumptions selected by the
management. These assumptions include salary escalation rate,
discount rates, expected rate of return on assets and mortality
rates. The same is disclosed in Note 47, ‘Employee benefits’.

Particulars

Defined benefit obligation

upto 31 March 2020

e

995.29
1,523.98

3,394.85

597.53
114.46
-

2,911.78

8.87
214.11
47.40
2,736.20

4,390.14

4,435.76
96.78
142.40
-

13.45
4,509.27
86.96
-

Furniture
and Fixtures

21.26
30.27

36.31

9.01
-

27.30

4.31
2.11
25.10

57.57

57.57
-

62.37
4.80
-

Vehicles

425.44
640.82

2,452.19

306.58
8.10
-

2,153.71

55.77
276.43
208.94
2,030.45

2,877.63

2,794.53
91.42
8.32
-

143.23
2,886.07
234.77
-

Computers

4,391.88
5,239.01

8,899.50

1,317.81
150.82
-

7,732.51

114.37
823.06
295.24
7,090.32

13,291.38

12,971.52
500.72
180.86
-

31 March 2019

31 March 2020

5,239.01
343.25

4.98
338.27
343.25
4,391.88
676.11

Total

300.89
17,027.81
373.75
3,983.43

31 March 2019

177.14
111.10

90.58

47.64
-

42.94

20.61
22.33
-

267.72

154.04
113.68
-

57.98
96.06
-

Leasehold
Improvements

343.25
433.43
100.57
676.11

31 March 2020

258.83
173.00

120.13

67.62
6.08
-

58.59

29.12
30.09
0.62
-

378.96

231.59
153.77
6.40
-

86.23
146.34
0.98
-

Office
Equipments

( lakhs)

On 24th July, 2020 the Ministry of Corporate Affair (MCA) vide
notification dated 24th July, 2020 has exercised the powers
conferred by section 133 read with section 469 of the Companies
Act, 2013, the Central Government, in consultation with the
National Financial Reporting Authority, hereby makes the
following rules further to amend the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

3. Property, plant and equipment

forecast taxable profits is also considered. Recognition therefore
involves judgment regarding the future financial performance of
the particular legal entity or tax Group in which the deferred tax
asset has been recognized.
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I.

(` Lakhs)

Right-of-use asset
Description of Assets



Leased Premises

Description of Assets

-

-

Balance as at 31 March 2019

-

-

9,274.73
2,903.46
186.38

9,274.73
2,903.46
186.38

11,991.81

11,991.81

Balance as at 31 March 2020

Investment property

Total

Gross carrying amount as at 01 April 2018
Additions during the year
Disposals during the year

Assets created on transition date
Additions during the year
Disposals during the year

5

16,751.08
8,406.49
3,983.43

Balance as at 31 March 2019

26,079.65

1,687.64

676.79

505.71

191.21

29,141.00

-

-

15.03
-

37.58
-

3.45
-

56.06
-

26,079.65

1,687.64

691.82

543.29

194.66

29,197.06

823.15
877.66
-

-

121.29
69.68
-

190.46
96.04
-

103.88
34.05
-

1,238.78
1,077.43
-

1,700.81

-

190.97

286.50

137.93

2,316.21

977.07
-

-

69.76
-

74.39
-

15.36
-

1,136.58
-

2,677.88

-

260.73

360.89

153.29

3,452.79

23,401.77
24,378.84

1,687.64
1,687.64

431.09
485.82

182.40
219.21

41.37
53.28

25,744.27
26,824.79

Additions during the year
Disposals during the year
Transfer from Property, plant and equipment

-

-

upto 31 March 2019

Amortisation for the year
Disposals during the year

3,185.88
14.96

3,185.88
14.96

upto 31 March 2020

3,170.92

3,170.92

Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals during the year
upto 31 March 2020
Net carrying value
Balance as at 31 March 2020
Balance as at 31 March 2019

Details of Investment property under development
Particulars

Right-of-use asset

31 March 2019

8.820.89

-

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Opening balance
Add : Addition during the year
Less : Capitalized during the year
Less : Expensed off during the year

28,928.34
1,434.75
809.18

35,795.04
2,126.38
8,172.85
820.23

Closing balance

29,553.91

28,928.34

Net book value
Investment property
Investment property under development
Fair value
Balance as at 31 March 2020
Balance as at 31 March 2020
Balance as at 31 March 2019
Balance as at 31 March 2019
#
*
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Total

158.74
32.47
-

upto 31 March 2019

31 March 2020

Computer

409.38
96.33
-

II. Depreciation upto 01 April 2018
Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals during the year

Net carrying value

Office
Equipment

571.95
104.84
-

-

8,820.89
-

Furniture &
Fixtures

648.16
1,039.48

-

8,820.89
-

Freehold
Land (#)

14,962.85
8,172.85
2,943.95

Amortization upto 01 April 2018
Amortisation for the year
Disposals during the year

Net carrying value
Balance as at 31 March 2020
Balance as at 31 March 2019

Building

I. Gross carrying amount as at 01 April 2018
Additions during the year
Disposals during the year
Transfer from Property, plant and equipment

Balance as at 31 March 2020
II.

(` Lakhs)

31 March 2020
25,744.27
29,553.91

31 March 2019
26,824.79
28,928.34

Land

Building

Category

2,103.75
1,051.82
1,088.88
1,051.43

34,546.23
2,828.58
21,442.87
2,935.97

Level 2
Level 3 *
Level 2
Level 3 *

Mortgaged against the Secured Debentures.
The fair value of the Group’s investment property has been arrived by the management on the basis of a appropriate ready reckoner rate/book value rate.
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Additions during the year
Disposals during the year

Balance as at 31 March 2020

Net carrying value
Balance as at 31 March 2020
Balance as at 31 March 2019

* Arising on acquisition of MT Educare Limited (refer note 53)
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31,323.64
-

Balance as at 31 March 2019
31,323.64

-

31,323.64

II. Amortization upto 01 April 2018
Amortisation for the year
Disposals during the year
-

upto 31 March 2019
-

Amortisation for the year
Disposals during the year
-

upto 31 March 2020
-

31,323.64
31,323.64

457.68
839.09

Amortisation for the year
Disposals during the year
upto 31 March 2020

Details of Intangible Assets under development

130.44
183.01

147.84

5,300.86
30.84
5,270.02

31 March 2020

90.28
9.93

819.32

21.43
-

797.89

548.08
249.81
-

909.60

101.78
-

807.82

799.16
8.66
-

7,168.54
5,270.02

31 March 2020

67.60
-

80.24

52.54
27.70
-

278.28

15.03
-

263.25

64.35
198.90
-

7,168.54
7,827.59

2,399.99

775.86
-

1,624.13

736.05
888.08
-

9,568.53

116.81
-

9,451.72

2,890.36
6,561.36
-

7,827.59
5,300.86

31 March 2019

8,424.99
3,124.13
5,300.86

31 March 2019

4,583.11
4,812.26

593.74

229.15
-

364.59

135.43
229.16
-

5,176.85

-

5,176.85

2,026.85
3,150.00
-

Total

Expenses incurred for execution of work as per terms of arrangement under development rights yet to be ready to use is shown as intangible assets under development.

*Developments rights is a (i) right to execute development work, (ii) right to set up, run, operate and administer, and manage the school, institutes and units set up on the
allocated plot and undertake other ancillary operations in accordance with the terms of this Agreements; (iii) the first right to receive all funds, receivables, revenues,
profits and other incomes in respect of the operations of the school, institutes and Units from all parties in accordance with terms of arrangement between parties.

Intangible Assets
Intangible Assets under Development

Net carrying value

Opening balance
Add : Addition during the year
Less : Capitalized during the year
Closing balance

2,364.71
2,822.39

381.41

upto 31 March 2019

Net carrying value
Balance as at 31 March 2020
Balance as at 31 March 2019

381.41
-

3,203.80
II. Amortization upto 01 April 2018
Amortisation for the year
Disposals during the year

Balance as at 31 March 2020

-

3,203.80

Balance as at 31 March 2019
Additions during the year
Disposals during the year

3,203.80
-

I. Gross carrying amount as at 01 April 2018
Additions during the year
Disposals during the year

Content
Development
Development
Rights *

-

Particulars

Additions during the year
Disposals during the year

Software

I. Gross carrying amount as at 01 April 2018
Goodwill *

Bands



Description of Assets

Description of Assets
(` Lakhs)

Goodwill

7 Intangible assets

6
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(` Lakhs)

Non-current investments - Unquoted
31 March 2020

11

1,250 (1250) Equity Shares of ` 25 each fully paid up of The Shamrao Vithal Co-operative Bank Limited

0.31

0.31

290 (290) Equity shares of ₹10/- each fully paid up The Shamrao Vithal Co-operative Bank Limited

0.03

0.03

0.34

0.34

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

333.64
1,545.01
6,680.07
25.37
168.09
8,752.18

364.49
1,799.51
6,911.04
40.19
9,115.23

Total (C.)

146.43
146.43
91.72
91.72

9.01
9.01
70.47
70.47

Deferred tax assets (net) (A-B+C)

8,697.47

9,176.69

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

3,266.76

2,818.94

3,266.76

2,818.94

Deferred tax assets
Employee benefits obligation
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for doubtful debts
Disallowance under section 40(a)
Difference in Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
Total (A)
Deferred tax liabilities
Depreciation and amortization

(All the above securities are fully paid up)
31 March 2020
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments
9

(` Lakhs)

31 March 2019

Investments in equity instrument (fully paid up)
Investment carried at fair value through profit and loss (at FVTPL)

Total

Deferred tax assets (net)
The components of deferred tax balances are as under:

31 March 2019

0.34

Total (B)
MAT credit entitlement

0.34

Loans

(` Lakhs)
31 March 2020

Security deposits
477.61
Loans receivables
Others - considered good (Unsecured)
17,714.23
Less: Provision for doubtful deposits and loans and advances * (9,271.67)
Net Loans receivables
8,442.56
Total

8,920.17

Non-Current
31 March 2019

31 March 2020

Current
31 March 2019

713.94

743.79

7,520.56

11,886.24
(8,122.59)
3,763.65

4,306.89
(3,114.64)
1,192.25

2,952.81
(617.37)
2,335.44

4,477.59

1,936.04

9,856.00

12

Income tax assets (net)

Balances with government authorities
- Direct taxes (net of provisions)
Total

13

(` Lakhs)

Other assets
Non-Current

* Loans are given to others for their business purposes. Out of the above, provision recognised amounted to `/lakhs 12,357.15 as at March 31, 2020.
# in case of one subsidiary viz Liberium Global Resources Private Limited the loan of `/lakhs 453.52 carried interest @ 12.5% p.a. given to four educational trust
and is repayable on or before 31 March 2024.
10

Other financial assets

(` Lakhs)
Non-Current
31 March 2020
31 March 2019

Deposit with banks having maturity period of more
than twelve months (refer note 17 B) #
Other advances - considered good
Advances and deposits - unsecured and considered good
- to related parties
- to others
Claims Receivable
Contract assets (refer note 42)
Other Receivables
Total

630.52
-

1,949.18
-

15.25
231.53
-

15.25
235.00
-

877.30

Current
31 March 2020
31 March 2019
29.94

-

-

90.00
29.81
1.10
546.96
1,390.32

88.54
43.01
20.00
570.10
507.24

2,199.43

2,088.13

1,228.89

Current

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Capital advances (unsecured)

678.28

744.04

-

-

Other loans and advances (unsecured)
- Considered good
- Considered doubtful

834.00
33.71

834.00
33.71

321.08
-

295.71
-

Less: Allowances for credit losses

867.71
(33.71)

867.71
(33.71)

321.08
-

295.71
-

Prepaid expenses

834.00
0.84

834.00
459.40

321.08
121.46

295.71
227.51

-

4.02

4.27

-

100.27

100.27

344.38

105.84

1,613.39

2,141.73

791.19

629.06

Gratuity Fund
Balance with government authorities
- Advance indirect taxes
Total

# Held as lien by bank against bank guarantees issued `/lakhs Nil (`/lakhs 1327.46).
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(` Lakhs)

Inventories
31 March 2020
Educational goods and equipments (refer note below)
Total

17

Cash and bank balances

A

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks - In Current accounts
- In Deposit accounts
Cash on hand

31 March 2019

1,769.93

1,314.48

1,769.93

1,314.48

Inventories were written down to net realisable value by ` /lakhs 407.68 (` /lakhs 612.56)

15

Current investments

(` Lakhs)
31 March 2020

Investments carried at fair value through Profit and loss
Mutual funds - Quoted (at face value of ` 1000 each)

Total

Total (A)

799.98
9.42
809.40

2,069.41
0.69
0.11
2,070.21

Total (B)

25.04
718.60
630.52
1,374.16
(630.52)
743.64

13.58
660.07
1,949.18
2,622.83
(1,949.18)
673.65

Total (A+B)

1,553.04

2,743.86

31 March 2019
B

10,473 (Nil) units of HDFC Liquid Fund -Direct Plan - Growth Option
16,465 (Nil) units of HDFC Liquid DP - Growth Option
Nil (11,666) units of Axis Liquid Fund -Direct Plan - Daily dividend reinvestment
Nil (4,616) units of Essel Liquid fund - Regular Plan Growth

(` Lakhs)
Current
31 March 2020
31 March 2019

409.16
642.78
-

116.83
94.61

1,051.94

211.44

Other balances with banks
Balances with banks - Unclaimed dividend account - Bank balance @
- In deposits with banks having maturity period upto twelve months #
- In deposits with banks having maturity period of more than twelve months #
Disclosed under "Other non-current financial assets"

@ The Company can utilise these balances only towards settlement of unclaimed dividend.

(All the above securities are fully paid up)
Aggregate amount of quoted Investments and market value thereof

1,051.94

211.44

# a) Lien for Government authorities `/lakhs 0.50 (`/lakhs 0.50) Lien for others `/lakhs 33.10 (`/lakhs 43.10)
b) Held as lien by bank against bank guarantees issued `/lakhs 684.90 (`/lakhs 644.83)

16

Trade receivables

(` Lakhs)

Considered good - secured

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

499.27

-

Considered good - unsecured *

5,632.22

6,399.61

Significant increase in credit risk

5,579.69

3,740.93

Credit impairment

6,753.65

6,259.35

18,464.83
(11,793.92)

16,399.89
(11,146.06)

6,670.91

5,253.83

Less: Allowances for credit losses
Total

18

Assets classified as held for sale

(` Lakhs)

Assets classfied as held for sale
Total

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

64.25

64.25

64.25

64.25

The Group intends to dispose off property at Gazipur, as it no longer intends to utilise and hence classified as asset held for sale.

* include due from related parties `/lakhs 441.75 (`/lakhs 935.39)
For transactions relating to related party receivables, refer note 48
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and the credit period extended to them is 0-180 days.
There are no debts due by directors or other officers of the Company or any of them either severally or jointly with any other person or debts due by firms or
private companies in which any director is a partner or a director or a member.
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(` Lakhs)

Equity share capital

Authorised
1,000,000,000 (1,000,000,000) Equity Shares of ` 1/- each
Issued, subscribed and paid up
326,092,725 (326,078,725) Equity Shares of ` 1/- each fully paid up
Total
a)

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

10,000.00
10,000.00

10,000.00
10,000.00

3,260.93

3,260.79

3,260.93

3,260.79

e)

Employees Stock Option Scheme (ESOP)
The Group has amended its Employee Stock Option Scheme (ZLL ESOP 2010) to ZLL ESOP 2010- AMENDED 2015 to align the scheme with provisions of
Companies Act 2013 and the SEBI (Shared Bases Employee Benefits) Regulations 2014 for issuance of upto 16,007,451 stock options (increased from
6,136,390) convertible into equivalent number of equity shares of ` 1 each not exceeding the aggregate of 5% of the issued and paid up capital of the Group
to the employees of the Group and its susbsidiary viz Digital Ventures Private Limited as amended in board resoultion dated 30 September 2016 at the
market price determined as per the SEBI (Shared Bases Employee Benefits) Regulations 2014. The said Scheme is administered by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the Board.

f)

Summary of options granted under the Scheme
31 March 2020

Reconciliation of number of Equity shares and Share capital
31 March 2020

b)



31 March 2019

Number of
equity shares

` Lakhs

Number of
equity shares

` Lakhs

At the beginning of the year
Add : Allotted on exercise of Employee Stock Option

326,078,725
14,000

3,260.79
0.14

325,895,472
183,253

3,258.95
1.84

Outstanding at the end of the year

326,092,725

3,260.93

326,078,725

3,260.79

Terms / rights attached to equity shares

Grant date

In the event of liquidation of the group, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the group, after distribution of preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Equity Shares allotted as fully paid for consideration other than cash, pursuant to
Scheme(s) of Amalgamation / Arrangement
d)

31 March 2019

262,238,599

262,238,599

Details of Equity Shareholders holding more than 5 % of the aggregate Equity shares
Name of the Shareholders

31 March 2020
Number of
equity shares

Jayneer Capital Private Limited
Asian Satellite Broadcast Private Limited
Essel Holdings Limited
Polus Global Fund
Moon Capital Trading Pte. Ltd

61,210,000
57,393,250
28,874,238
20,627,966
20,955,327

% Shareholding
18.77%
17.60%
8.85%
6.33%
6.43%

31 March 2019
Number of
equity shares

% Shareholding

76,875,375
63,052,512
57,97,315
20,856,608
20,955,327

23.58%
19.34%
1.78%
6.40%
6.43%

Number of
options

31.56
18.70
30.49
30.62
-

5,172,625
3,962,181
14,000
1,453,110
7,667,696
3,858,717

34.96
36.90
31.54
36.82
-

5,694,720
25,000
183,253
363,842
5,172,625
3,730,205

Expiry date

Exercise price

27/Jan/2018
30/Jan/2019
9/Oct/2020
2/Apr/2021
29/Sep/2021
28/Oct/2022
25/Jul/2023
30/Sep/2023
15/Jan/2025
19/Feb/2025
9/Aug/2025
22/Oct/2026

31 March 2020

26.05
14.50
20.85
27.55
35.25
31.80
31.40
34.15
46.50
42.20
36.90
18.70

9,701
135,637
2,152,490
50,000
905,134
712,703
3,702,031
7,667,696

47,367
467,286
2,152,490
50,000
1,271,299
25,000
1,134,183
25,000
5,172,625

6.08

6.05

Total

h)

Share options

`

Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at end of period

As per the records of the company, including its register of shareholders / members and other declaration received from shareholders regarding beneficial
interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

236

27/Jan/2011
30/Jan/2012
9/Oct/2013
2/Apr/2014
29/Sep/2014
28/Oct/2015
25/Jul/2016
30/Sep/2016
15/Jan/2018
19/Feb/2018
9/Aug/2018
22/Oct/2019

The group has not issued any bonus shares or bought back equity shares during the five years preceding 31 March 2020. Details of aggregate
number of shares issued for consideration other than cash during the five years preceding 31 March 2020 is as under:
31 March 2020

Average exercise price
per share option `

Expiry date and exercise prices of the share options outstanding at the end of the year:

The group has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 1 each. The group declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The final dividend
proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

c)

Number of
options

Opening balance
Granted during the year
Exercised during the year (Refer Note (i) below)
Forfeited during the year
Closing balance
Vested and exercisable
g)

31 March 2019

Average exercise price
per share option `

31 March 2019

The fair value of each option granted is estimated on the date of grant using the black scholes model with the following assumptions
Scheme
Grant date
Weighted average fair value of options granted `
Exercise price `
Share price at the grant date `
Expected volatility
Risk free interest rate
Dividend yield
Expected life of the options (years)

1st Grant

2nd Grant

3rd Grant

4th Grant

5th Grant

27/Jan/2011
23.82
26.05
24.70
41.56%
6.89%
0.00%
0.66

30/Jan/2012
6.89
14.50
14.50
38.53%
6.93%
0.00%
0.92

9/Oct/2013
7.98
20.85
22.25
36.90%
7.01%
0.00%
1.72

2/Apr/2014
400.48
27.55
26.85
37.02%
7.10%
0.00%
1.92

29/Sep/2014
13.3
35.25
35.30
38.82%
7.15%
0.00%
2.25
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20. (A) Other equity

The fair value of each option granted is estimated on the date of grant using the black scholes model with the following assumptions
Scheme

6th Grant

7th Grant

8th Grant

9th Grant

10th Grant

28/Oct/2015

25/Jul/2016

30/Sep/2016

15/Jan/2018

19/Feb/2018

3.03
31.80
32.15
38.87%
7.21%
0.00%
2.79

200.24
31.40
31.35
37.56%
6.36%
0.00%
2.57

4.80
34.15
35.20
35.81%
6.38%
0.00%
2.75

922.16
46.50
46.80
35.05%
7.04%
0.00%
3.3

15.15
42.20
42.75
35.05%
7.04%
0.00%
3.4

Scheme

11th Grant

12th Grant

Grant date
Weighted average fair value of options granted `
Exercise price `
Share price at the grant date `
Expected volatility
Risk free interest rate
Dividend yield
Expected life of the options (years)

9/Aug/2018
11.99
36.90
36.90
35.02%
7.98%
0.00%
3.86

22/10/2019
10.05
18.70
17.80
79.00%
6.30%
0.00%
3.72

Grant date
Weighted average fair value of options granted `
Exercise price `
Share price at the grant date `
Expected volatility
Risk free interest rate
Dividend yield
Expected life of the options (years)

Expense arising from share based payments transactions

Capital Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet
Add: Gain on bargain purchase
Securities premium
As per last Balance Sheet
Add: On issue of Shares under Employee Stock Option Plan
Debenture redemption reserve
As per last Balance Sheet
Add: Transferred from Statement of Profit and Loss Account
Shared based payment reserve
As per last Balance Sheet
Add: Share options outstanding account
Less : Transfer to securities premium on allotment of shares
Less : Transfer to general reserve on allotment of shares
General reserve
As per last Balance Sheet
Add: On issue of Shares under Employee Stock Option Plan

Gross expense / (reversal) arising from share based payments
Less: Options granted/(forfeited) to/(from) employees of subsidiaries
recognised as deemed investment in subsidiaries
Employee share based payment expense /(reversal) recognised in
statement of profit and loss (Refer note 30)

(` Lakhs)
31-Mar-20

31-Mar-19

18.70

212.64

-

-

18.70

212.64

Retained earnings
Opening Balance
Add : Profit for the year
Re-measurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit plans (net of tax)
Less : Appropriations
Transferred to Debenture redemption reserve
Dividend paid
Dividend Distribution tax paid

Notes:
(IThe weighted average share price at the date of exercise of options exercised during the year ended 31 March 2020 was ` 30.49 (` 31.54).

Total
20

31 March 2019

17.49
17.49

17.49
17.49

12,957.95
4.63
12,962.58

12,447.58
510.37
12,957.95

1,218.75
203.13
1,421.88

812.50
406.25
1,218.75

532.71
18.70
(1.85)
(72.11)
477.45

523.02
212.63
(202.94)
532.71

13,971.80
72.11
14,043.91

13,971.80
13,971.80

11,155.07
4,383.99
(48.93)

4,325.26
7,597.32
31.82

(203.13)
(326.09)
(67.03)
14,893.88
43,817.19

(406.25)
(326.07)
(67.02)
11,155.07
39,853.77

(B) Non-Controlling Interest

(` Lakhs)

As per last Balance Sheet
Add : Non-controlling interest arising on account of acquisition of subsidiary
Add : Profit / (Loss) for the year
Total

238

31 March 2020
Reserves and surplus

The expected price volatility is based on the historic volatility (based on the remaining life of the options), adjusted for any expected changes to future
volatility due to publicly available information.
i.

(` Lakhs)

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

18,103.75
(1,872.50)

17,363.71
740.04

16,231.25

18,103.75
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(` Lakhs)

Borrowings

31 March 2020

Non-Current
31 March 2019

31 March 2020

Current
31 March 2019

Debentures (Refer note (i) below)

3,484.18

9,540.01

890.22

-

Intercorporate deposits - Unsecured (Refer note (ii) below)
[(Including interest `/lakhs 455.50 ( `/lakhs 186.24)]

7,661.35

1,485.85

-

-

Total (A)
Others - Secured
Term loan from banks (Refer note (iii), (vi) and (viii) below)

11,145.53

11,025.86

890.22

-

14,847.23

17,749.35

2,430.98

2,424.22

Working Capital Loan (Refer note (iv) below)

-

-

-

800.70

Bank overdraft facility (Refer note (v) and (viii) below)

-

-

4,384.66

3,560.82

3,227.99

7,606.37

-

-

(1,808.15)

(2,841.64)

(3,321.20)

(2,424.22)

16,267.07

22,514.08

3,494.44

4,361.52

27,412.60

33,539.94

4,384.66

4,361.52

Term loan from other parties (Refer note (vii) and (viii) below)
Less: Amount disclosed under the head
"Other current financial liabilities" (Refer Note 23 b)
Total (B)
Total (A+B)
For transactions relating to related party, refer note 48.
(i.) Debentures

400 (650) 10.40% Rated, Unlisted, Secured, Redeemable Non- Convertible Debentures (NCD) of Rs. 10.00 lakhs each fully paid up aggregating to `/lakhs
4,374.40 (`/lakhs 9,540.01) [including interest of `/lakhs 374.40 (`/lakhs 3,040.01), are issued for a period of 5 years and 3 months from the date of
allotment. Debentures will be redeemed on 8 July 2020 in single tranche. Part of it repaid during the year. The terms of the Debentures have been revised
dated 14 July 2020. As per the revised terms 400, 10.02% (revised coupon rates) NCD of Rs. 6.85 lakhs (revised face value) will be redeemable by 13
January 2022 in 3 installments starting from 13 January 2021. The debentures are secured by first pari passu charge on all the fixed and current assets, all
the rights, titles and interests to provide security cover of 1.1 times on outstanding amount and DSRA Undertaking by a related party.
(ii) Intercorporate deposits - Unsecured

assignment of all insurance policies taken for the Project with the Bank as loss payee, all present and future rights, titles and interests of the Project
from all contracts, insurances, documents, which the subsidiary company is party to including contractor guarantees, liquidated damages and all other
contracts or letter of credit, guarantee, performance bond provided by any party to the subsidiary company and registered mortgage on lease hold land
of the project. The loan is collaterally secured by corporate guarantee from holding company and pledge of 51% shares held by the holding company in
Digital Ventures Private Limited subject to adherence to BR Act, to be held pari passu with RTL II (` 102.21 Cr). The loan carries interest @ bank's base
plus spread of 2.65% p.a viz., 12.90% p.a. The loan is repayable in 37 quarterly installments begining from 4th year i.e FY 2018
c)

Term loan from Tamilnad Mercantile Bank Limited `/lakhs 2,210.78 (`/lakhs 2,337) [including interest of `/lakhs 23.78 (`/lakhs Nil)for BKC schools
Project.
Secured by first charge on over all present and future immovable, movable and intagible assets of the BKC School Project, the entire current assets of
the BKC School Project, including first charge on all the escrow accounts and TRAs held by TALEEM and subsidiary company for the Project, as well
as assignment of all insurance policies taken for the Project with the Bank as loss payee. All present and future rights, titles and interests of the Project
from all contracts, insurances, documents, which the subsidiary company is party to including contractor guarantees, liquidated damages and all other
contracts or letter of credit, guarantee, performance bond provided by any party to the subsidiary company. The loan is collaterally secured by
corporate guarantee from holding company and pledge of 51% shares held by the holding company in Digital Ventures Private Limited subject to
adherence to BR Act, to be held pari passu with RTL II (` 102.21 Cr). The loan carries interest @ bank's base plus spread rate of 1.75% p.a viz., 12.50%
p.a. The loan is repayable in 37 quarterly installments begining from 4th year i.e FY18.

d)

Term loan from Axis Bank ` /lakhs 1,260.49 (` /lakhs 1,891.64) is secured by, first pari passu hypothecation charge on the entire current assets,
movable, immovable and intangible assets (except vehicle) of the subsidiary company both present and future, pledge of shares and personal
guarantee by one of the promoter of the subsidiary company. The loan is repayable in 8 half yearly installments starting from September 2018. Last
installment due in April 2022. Rate of interest is 1.75% to 2.75% over banks 12 months MCLR (Range from 9.90% to 11.00% per annum as on March
31, 2020 and March 31, 2019)
Term loan from SVC Co-operative Bank Limited ` /lakhs 3,537.03 (`/lakhs 3759.97) is secured by mortgage of immovable property at Mangalore,
securitisation of lease rentals and personal guarantee of shareholders. SVC bank loan is repayable in monthly installments of Rs. 51.56 lakhs per
month. Last installment due in March 2029. Rate of interest is 10.55% per annum (10.55% per annum).

(iv) Working capital loan from YES Bank Nil (` /lakhs 800.00) Secured by way of first pari passu charge on all movable assets including current assets,
loans and advances with minimum coverage of 1.25% for the entire tenor facility which includes charge on the accounts that receives cash revenue
from franchisee, plus DSRA equivalent to 1 month interest to be maintained up front and one immediate installment to maintained one month prior to its
schedule payment. The loan carries interest of 10.20% and is repayable in 90 days on demand. The loan has been fully repaid during year and charge
has been satisfied.
(v) Overdraft from YES Bank and Development Credit Bank (DCB) ` /lakhs 4384.66 ( ` /lakhs 3560.82) is secured by way of first pari passu charge on all
the movable assets (including current assets, loans and advances) of the holding company and cross collateralization of pledge of shares given for
term loan. The loan carries interest rates ranges from 10.20% to 12%.

The loan carries Interest @12.5% p.a and is repayable on or before 31 March 2023.
(iii) Term loans from banks

(vi) Vehicle loan from Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited `/lakhs 17.01 (`/lakhs 20.99) is secured against hypothecation of respective vehicle. The rate of
interest is 8.92% p.a and repayable upto 05 February 2023.

a)

Term loan from Development Credit Bank (DCB) `/lakhs 1,408.22 (`/lakhs 2,712.67) [including interest of `/lakhs 8.22 (`/lakhs 25.31) is secured by
way of first ranking charge over movable assets including current assets, loans & advances with minimum coverage of 1.25x for entire tenor of the
facility which includes charge on the accounts that receive cash from franchisee/revenue of the Company plus DSRA equivalent to 1 months interest
to be maintained up front and one immediate installment to be maintained one month prior to its schedule payment. The loan carries interest of 9.95%
and is repayable in 12 quarterly installments beginning from financial year 2018-19.

(vii) Term loan from other party `/lakhs 3,227.98 (`/lakhs 7606.37) is secured by way of first pari passu hypothecation charge on the entire current assets
and movable assets of the subsidiary company both present and future; pledge of shares owned by the promoter of the subsidiary company; and
personal guarantee given by the promoter of the subsidiary company. Repayable in 10 half yearly installments starting from October 2018. Last
installment due in March 2023. This has been revised in December 2019, to 26 monthly installments on balance outstanding amount starting from
August 2020 and last installment due in September 2022. Rate of interest has been revised to 13.75% from 14.5% per annum.

b)

Term loan from Axis Bank `/lakhs 8,844.69 (`/lakhs 9,451.30 ) [including interest of `/lakhs 94.69 (`/lakhs 101.30) for BKC school Project.

(viii) The Group has availed to defer scheduled Term Loan / Overdraft servicing payments as per RBI Circular of 27 March 2020 and 23 May 2020 on
Moratorium for debt servicing for period 1 March 2020 till 31 August 2020. Accordingly, the Group has deferred interest on term loan amounting to
`/lakhs 1,102.37 and interest on bank overdraft facility amounting to `/lakhs 232.35 and which shall be repayable not later than 31 March 2021 . Also,
the tenure of term loan / working capital limits has been extended by six months from their original dates of maturity.

Secured by first charge on over all present and future immovable, movable and intangible assets of the BKC School Project, the entire current assets of
the BKC School Project, including first charge on all the escrow accounts and TRAs held by TALEEM and subsidiary company for the Project, as well as
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(` Lakhs)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities (refer note 36)
Total
23



31 March 2020

Non-Current
31 March 2019

31 March 2020

Current
31 March 2019

6,572.75

-

2,281.71

-

6,572.75

-

2,281.71

-

25

Other liabilties

A.

B.

Trade payables (Refer note 40)
(1) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises
(2) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises
Total (A)
Other financial liabilities
Current maturities of long-term borrowings
Deposits payable - Customers
Deposits payable - Others
Unclaimed dividend payable
Employee benefits payable
Creditors for capital expenditure (Refer note 40)
(1) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises
(2) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises
Other payables (Refer note 40)
(1) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises
(2) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

-

-

551.86

529.61

-

-

4,641.10

4,233.25

-

5,192.96

4,762.86

10.45
1,256.58
-

10.45
1,531.28
-

5,129.35
2.00
26.84
25.04
1,219.46

5,265.86
2.00
37.14
13.58
1,443.07

-

-

12.00

35.22

-

-

247.59

351.49

-

-

20.44

7.01

-

-

3,127.90

2,354.25

Total (B)

1,267.03

1,541.73

9,810.62

9,509.62

Total (A+B)

1,267.03

1,541.73

15,003.58

14,272.48

31 March 2020

Current
31 March 2019

322.39
17,966.97
-

313.62
21,155.20
-

6,476.54
685.79
1,489.69
3,984.32

6,606.85
880.37
1,599.75
1,670.28

18,289.36

21,468.82

12,636.34

10,757.25

# Fees collected in advance from students to the extent of revenue which will not be recognised within the Group's operating cycle have been classified as "Other
non current liabilites".
26

-

Non-Current
31 March 2019

Total

(` Lakhs)
Current

31 March 2020
Contract liabilities (refer note 42) #
Deferred deposit
Statutory dues payable
Others

Financial liabilities
Non-Current

(` Lakhs)

Current tax liabilities
31 March 2020
Provision for taxation (net of advances)
Total

27

(` Lakhs)

Provision for employee benefits
- Gratuity
- Leave benefits
Total

242

31 March 2020

Non-Current
31 March 2019

31 March 2020

Current
31 March 2019

485.13
150.91

345.91
167.06

133.35
82.15

135.14
95.72

636.04

512.97

215.50

230.86

241.18

0.13
0.13

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

8,008.30
989.25
3,001.15
6,697.26
3.92
1,901.75
19,848.19
402.46
9,857.88
344.27
428.35

7,398.57
1,167.03
3,380.61
6,542.82
5.34
2,268.35
17,828.56
48.96
12,003.69
951.42
129.29

51,482.78

51,724.64

(` Lakhs)

Services
- Course fees/royalty
- Franchisee fees
- Lease rental
- Manpower supply & reimbursement of expensees
- Onboarding / recruitment charges
- Sale of municipal waste
- Coaching and teaching services (net of discount and concession)
- Others
Sales - Educational goods and equipments
Sales - Hardware and content
Other operating revenue
Total

Provisions

31 March 2019

241.18

Revenue from operations

For transactions relating to related party payables, refer note 48
Trade payable and others are non-interest bearing and the credit term the for same is generally in the range of 0-90 days.
24

(` Lakhs)

* Other operating revenue mainly includes royalty income.
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(` Lakhs)

Other income
31 March 2020
Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost
- on bank deposits
- on loans and advances to others *
Interest income others
- Others
Dividend income on financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
Gain on sale of current investments
Financial guarantee commission
Unwinding of discount of Interest free deposits / Financial guarantee obligation
Profit on sale of property, plant & equipment (net)
Net gain on foreign currency transactions and translation
Reversal of provision / liabilities no longer required
Miscellenous income
Total

31

31 March 2019

52.68
2,489.22

314.15
1,252.46

285.36
14.33
13.68
283.45
335.11
88.01
593.56

244.78
241.29
4.93
312.56
394.50
4.49
0.56
418.27
12.47

4,155.40

3,200.46

Interest expenses on financial liabilities at amortised cost
- Borrowings
Net Interest on net defined benefit liability
Interest on lease liability
Other interest cost
Unwinding of discount on interest free deposits
Other financial charges
Total
32

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of right-of-use assets
Depreciation on investment property
Amortisation of intangible assets
Total
33

A)

Operational cost

Educational goods and equipments
Opening - Inventory
Add: Purchases
Less: Closing - Inventory
Total (A)

B)

Other educational operating expenses
- Rent
- Electricity
- Manpower cost and other professional fees
- Student material and test expenses
- Others
Total (B)
Total (A+B)

30

1,314.48
3,236.56
(1,769.93)

934.14
4,328.18
(1,314.48)

2,781.11

3,947.84

289.82
671.76
7,877.05
1,708.83
425.32

2,955.07
571.55
5,863.07
901.41
298.30

10,972.78
13,753.89

10,589.40
14,537.24

Employee benefits expense

(` Lakhs)

Salaries and allowances
Share based payment expense
Contribution to provident and other funds
Training and recruitment cost
Staff welfare expenses
Total
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31 March 2019

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

12,652.29
18.70
1,151.41
157.00
158.58

12,565.88
212.64
962.72
127.29
112.85

14,137.98

13,981.38

31 March 2019

4,308.03
8.17
1,056.29
94.59
316.83
121.00

4,029.61
9.99
224.30
373.49
93.60

5,904.91

4,730.99

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

1,312.28
3,185.88
1,136.58
775.86
6,410.60

823.05
1,077.42
888.07
2,788.54

Other expenses

(` Lakhs)

(` Lakhs)
31 March 2020

31 March 2020

Depreciation and amortisation expense

* Interest income is net of provision made towards doubtful interest receivable amounting to `/lakhs 2,164.96 (`/lakhs 492.49)
For transactions relating to related party, refer note 48
29

(` Lakhs)

Finance costs

Rent
Repairs and maintenance - others
Insurance
Rates and taxes
Electricity and water charges
Communication expenses
Printing and stationery
Travelling and conveyance expenses
Legal and professional charges
Payment to auditors (refer note 39)
Freight and packaging charges
Directors sitting fees
Bad debts / advances written off
Loss on sale / discard of Property, plant and equipments
Provision for allowances for credit losses
Marketing, advertisement and publicity expenses
Net loss on foreign exchange transactions and translations
Corporate social responsibility expenditure
Miscellaneous expenses
Total

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

51.49
1,177.48
63.10
102.39
33.09
158.63
257.17
1,170.31
404.98
60.48
773.79
9.14
567.72
27.91
99.54
1,136.59
0.69
14.01
643.36

338.90
840.02
64.86
53.80
45.04
231.37
162.28
1,304.63
1,042.41
47.43
902.84
9.24
130.67
43.14
67.65
1,815.94
12.29
322.87

6,751.87

7,435.38
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(` Lakhs)

34

Tax expense
The major components of income tax for the year are as under:

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets / (liabilities) net:

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

(204.82)

461.06

Total

(519.61)
19.14
(705.29)
9,311.04
91.72

(504.20)
(161.68)
(204.82)
9,311.04
70.47

Grand Total

8,697.47

9,176.69

(` Lakhs)

Income tax related to items recognised directly in the statement of profit and loss
Current tax - current year
- earlier period
Deferred tax (including MAT credit entitlement) - current year
- earlier period
Total
Effective tax rate

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

2,558.49
(25.29)
519.61
3,052.81
54.86

2,621.04
46.30
504.20
(57.32)
3,114.22
27.19

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before income tax at statutory rate to the income tax expense at Group’s effective income
tax rate for the year ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 is as follows:
(` Lakhs)
31 March 2020

31 March 2019

5,564.28

11,451.57

1,425.88

3,334.70

Profit before tax
Income tax
Statutory income tax rate of 25.63% (29.12%) on profit
Undistributed earnings of subsidiaries
Tax effect on non-deductible expenses
Additional allowances for tax purposes
Other temporary difference
MAT Credit entitlement - earlier period
Effect of change in tax rate
Effect of exempt income and income tax at lower rates

591.83
(603.94)
519.61
1,123.10
(3.67)

510.88
(1,120.47)
561.52
(57.32)
(44.83)
(70.26)

Tax expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss

3,052.81

3,114.22

Opening balance
Deferred tax (charge)/credit recognised in
- Statement of profit and loss
- Recognised in other comprehensive income
Other temporary difference (on acquisition of MT Educare Limited)
MAT Credit entitlement

35
A.

Leases
Operating leases taken by the group :
The Group has taken office, residential facilities and plant and machinery (including equipments) etc. under cancellable / non-cancellable lease agreements
that are renewable on a periodic basis at the option of both the Lessor and the Lessee. The initial tenure of the lease generally is for 11 months to 120 months.
(` Lakhs)

Lease rental charges for the year
Future Lease rental obligation payable (under non-cancellable lease)
Not later than one year
Later than one year but not later than five years
Later than five years
B.

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

341.31

3,647.95

-

818.90
1,500.70
9,579.06

Operating leases granted by the group :
The group has given property under cancellable lease agreement that are renewable on a periodic basis at the option of both the Lessor and the Lessee.

(` Lakhs)

Deferred tax recognized in statement of other comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 March
Employee retirement benefits obligation

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

19.14

(161.68)

The applicable tax rate is the standard effective corporate income tax rate in India. The tax rate is 25.63% (29.12%) for the year ended 31 March 2020.
During the year, the Group elected to exercise the option permitted under section 115BAA of the Income-tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the Taxation
Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019. Accordingly, the Company has recognized provision for income tax for the year ended 31 March 2020 and remeasured its net deferred tax liabilities basis the rate prescribed in the said section. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where the Group has
a legally enforceable right to do so. For analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset) for financial reporting purposes refer note 11.

Description of significant leasing arrangements

Rent income as per Statement of Profit & Loss
Gross carrying value of asset (Including premises in Investments)
Accumulated depreciation
Depreciation recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss
Impairment losses

(` Lakhs)
31 March 2020

31 March 2019

3,001.15
31,195.36
4,741.12
1,299.23
-

3,380.61
31,139.30
3,482.78
1,301.76
-

The group does not have any temporary differences in respect of unutilized tax losses.

(` Lakhs)

Deferred tax recognized in statement of profit and loss

(` Lakhs)

For the year ended 31 March
Employee benefits obligation
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for doubtful debts
Difference in Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
Other temporary difference
Total
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31 March 2020

31 March 2019

49.99
254.50
230.97
(168.09)
152.24

(395.71)
7,893.42
(6,842.15)
(151.36)

519.61

504.20

Lease rental Income for the year
Future Lease rental receivable (under non-cancellable lease)
Not later than one year
Later than one year but not later than five years
Later than five years

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

3,001.15

3,380.61

3,385.96
15,169.00
104,413.41

3,250.75
14,591.36
108,377.01
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Disclosure as per Ind-AS 116 (Leases)
Right of Use Asset
(a) ROU asset' comprises leased assets of office/branch premises that do not meet the definition of investment property.
31 March 2020
Opening Balance
Assets created on transition date
Additions during the year
Depreciation charged / Amortisation during the year
Disposal during the year
Closing Balance

9,274.73
2,903.46
3,185.88
171.42
8,820.89


37

Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts (Refer note (i) and (ii) below)
Disputed direct taxes
Disputed indirect taxes
Corporate guarantees to others to the extent of loans availed/
outstanding `/lakhs 38,687.62 (`/lakhs 40,530.55) @
e) Guarantees given in favour of Government bodies

-

#

Total

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

2,281.71
6,572.75

-

8,854.46

-

The following is the movement in lease liabilities

46.98
499.65
2,114.32

46.98
437.39
2,129.93

49,435.00
78.65

49,435.00
439.61

income tax demands mainly include appeals filed by the group before appellate authorities against the disallowance of expenses/claims etc. The
manangement is of the opinion that its tax cases will be decided in its favour and hence no provision is considered necessary at this stage.

(i) Amount represents the best possible estimates. The Group has engaged reputed professionals to protect its interest and has been advised that it
has firm legal position against such disputes.
(ii) The Group has received legal notices of claims/law suits filed against it relating to other matters. In the opinion of the management, no material
liability is likely to arrive on account of such claims/law suits.
b) The Group has withdrawn the merger with Tree House Education and Accessories Limited (THEAL)and has reserved its rights for suitable actions
against adverse allegations by THEAL. The Group has received and filed legal notices of claims. The management is of the view that no material
liability is likely to arrive on account of these claims.
38

Capital and other commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account not provided for (net of advances) is `/lakhs 4,865.99 (`/lakhs
5,153.78)

39

Payment to auditors
For standalone

(` Lakhs)

(` Lakhs)
31 March 2020

31 March 2019

8,704.58
2,966.80
1,056.29
3,697.73
175.48
8,854.46

-

Audit fees (including limited review)
Tax audit fees
Tax representation
Certification and Others
Total

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

3,209.87
6,168.99
9,269.02

-

18,647.88

-

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

17.00
2.00
1.27
4.29

17.00
2.00
1.27
1.03

24.56

21.30

For subsidiaries

(` Lakhs)

(` Lakhs)

(d) Lease liabilities Maturity Analysis

Total undiscounted lease liabilities

31 March 2019

(` Lakhs)

Current
Non current lease liabilities

Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flows
Less than one year
One to five years
More than five years

31 March 2020

@ Group has provided Corporate guarantees to various trusts pursuant to the long term partnership arrangement entered. Corporate Guarantee is
utilised for business purposes.

On transition to Ind AS 116, the Group recognised `/lakhs 9,274.73 of right-of-use assets and `/lakhs 8,704.58 of lease liabilities. When measuring lease
liabilities, the Group discounted lease payments using its incremental borrowing rate at 1 April 2019. The weighted-average rate applied is between 10.65%
to 12.85%

Opening Balance (As on the date of transition)
Additions during the year
Interest on lease liability
Payment of lease liabilities
Disposal / Dereognition of Lease Liability
Closing Balance

(` Lakhs)

a)
b)
c)
d)

31 March 2019

Effective 1 April, 2019, the Group adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard to all lease contracts existing on 1 April 2019 using the modified
retrospective method on the date of initial application. Consequently, the Group recorded the lease liability and right of use at the present value of the lease
payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate.

(c)

Contingent liabilities

(` Lakhs)

The aggregate depreciation charged / amortisation expense on right-of-use asset is included under depreciation and amortisation expense in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

(b) The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities

a)

Audit fees
Tax audit fees
Certification and Others
Total

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

32.10
0.50
3.32

22.58
3.46
0.09

35.92

26.13

(e) Lease rental of `/lakhs 341.31 pertaining to short term leases and low value asset has been charged to statement of profit and loss.
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Micro, small and medium enterprises

Revenue Disaggregation by Industrial Vertical & Geography is as follows :

Trade and other payables - Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMEDA), which came into force from 2 October
2006, certain disclosures are required to be made relating to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises. On the basis of information and records available with
the management, the following disclosures are made for the amounts due to the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, which have registered with the
competent authorities.
(` Lakhs)
31 March 2020

31 March 2019

602.27

896.78

55.54

81.05

(` Lakhs)

Revenue by offerings :
Educational Services / India
Construction and leasing (for education) / India
Training, Manpower and related activities / India
Total

a) The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year
b) The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year
c) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to
the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year
d) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment
(which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding
the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
e) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year
f) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years,
until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the
purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

Total
-

135.80

81.05

-

-

39,878.70
3,001.15
8,602.93

39,527.52
3,380.61
8,816.51

51,482.78

51,724.64
(` Lakhs)

Services transferred at point in time
Services transferred over period in time

-

-

31 March 2019

Timing of Revenue Recognition :
Revenue by offerings :

-

31 March 2020

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

13,927.88
37,554.90

16,574.08
35,150.56

51,482.78

51,724.64

Contract Balances :

Advances received and unearned revenue (contract liabilities) as at
Unbilled receivables (contract assets) as at
Trade receivables as at

(` Lakhs)
31 March 2020

31 March 2019

6,798.93
546.96
6,670.91

6,920.47
570.10
5,253.83

Management expect that 100 % of the transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied contracts as of 31 March 2020 will be recognised as revenue till the year
ended 31 March 2021.
41

42

Dividend
Explanation for contract assets/contract liabilities.

No Dividend on equity shares declared by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on 07 October 2020. Final dividend on equity shares for the year
ended on 2019: Rs 0.1 per equity share which aggregates to `/lakhs 393.12/- (including DDT)

a)

Disclosures as required by Ind AS 115

b)

Revenue consists of following :

(` Lakhs)

Services
- Course fees/Royalty
- Franchisee fees
- Lease rental
- Manpower supply and reimbursement of expensees
- Onboarding/Recruitment charges
- Sale of Municipal Waste
- Coaching and teaching services
- Others
Sales - Educational goods and equipments
Sales - Hardware and content
Other operating revenue
Total
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31 March 2020

31 March 2019

8,008.30
989.25
3,001.15
6,697.26
3.92
1,901.75
19,848.19
402.46
9,857.88
344.27
428.35

7,398.57
1,167.03
3,380.61
6,542.82
5.34
2,268.35
17,828.56
48.96
12,003.69
951.42
129.29

51,482.78

51,724.64

Revenue earned from customers but yet to be billed is initially recognised as contract assets and classified to trade receivables when right to considerations
becomes unconditional.
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer services to customer for which the group has received consideration ( or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.
Management expect that 100 % of the transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied contracts as of 31 March 2020 (`/lakhs 6,798.93) will be recognised as
revenue upto 31 March 2022.

43

Corporate social responsibility (CSR)
As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a CSR Committee has been formed by the Group. The Group is required to spend `/lakhs 122.86 (`/lakhs
72.23) for the year against which Nil ( Nil ) has been spent on activities specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

44

Minimum Public Shareholding
Mr. Mahesh Shetty and Zee Learn Limited form the promoter group of MT Educare Limited (‘MTEL’). As per the provisions of the Securities Contracts
(Regulations) Rules, 1957 (as amended) (SCRR), MTEL is required to maintain a public shareholding of 25% of the aggregate paid up equity share capital
(Minimum Public Shareholding (MPS) Threshold). As per the Share holders agreement entered into between Zee Learn Limited, MT Educare Limited and
Mr. Mahesh Shetty, Mr. Mahesh Shetty is required to sell such number of shares to meet the MPS requirement. As at March 31, 2020, the public
shareholding of MTEL falls short of the required Minimum Public Shareholding by 2.47%. In order to comply with MPS, MTEL has identified among other
options, Sale of shares held by Promoter through the secondary market (Offer for Sale) as the more feasible options to comply with requirement of MPS.
However, in view of the low volume of trading in shares of MTEL, Mr. Mahesh Shetty will seek more time to meet the MPS requirement.
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Covid 19 - Impact

II.

The World Health Organisation announced a global health emergency because of new strain of coronavirus (COVID-19) and classified its outbreak as a
pandemic on 11 March 2020. The outbreak of COVID -19 globally and in India continues to cause significant disruption in the operations which has resulted
in slowdown in the economic activity. Due to nation wide lockdown announced by the Government, the Group’s offices, educational schools, coaching
centers and learning centers had to be closed and physical services were suspended since then. However during the period the Group adopted varied
measures to ensure seamless delivery of learning needs and to further strengthen its commitment to education delivery by, enhanced Blended Learning,
Robust Learning Management Systems, enhanced use of digital learning material, online coaching, improvement in collaborative work and building digital
literacy across network and thus has taken efforts to keep the disruption in the business to the minimum.
In preparation of these financial statements, the Group has taken into account internal and external sources of information to assess possible impacts of the
pandemic, including not limited to the assessment of liquidity and going concern, recoverable values of its financial and non- financial assets, and the impact
on revenues. Based on the current indicators of future economic conditions, the Company has sufficient liquidity and expects to fully recover the carrying
amount of its assets. Basis the Group’s projected cash flows for the next one year, management has concluded that the Company will have sufficient liquidity
to continue its operations, although it expects possible delays with respect to collections from its customers. Accordingly, necessary provision have been
made under the Expected Credit loss.

1
2

3
III.

Profit/ (Loss) after Tax (` lakhs)
Weighted Average number of equity shares for Basic EPS (in numbers)
Weighted Average number of equity shares for Diluted EPS (in numbers)
Face value of equity shares (`)
Basic EPS (`)
Diluted EPS (`)
47

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

4,369.30
326,086,681
326,086,681
1
1.34
1.34

7,609.97
326,032,212
326,171,836
1
2.33
2.33

The Disclosures as per Ind AS 19 - Employee Benefits is as follows:
Defined Contribution Plans
Defined Benefit Plans
The present value of gratuity obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises each
period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The
obligation for leave benefits (non funded) is also recognised using the projected unit credit method.
(` Lakhs)
I.

Expenses recognised during the year
1
2

Current Service Cost
Interest Cost
Total Expenses

(31.18)

13.12
78.43
14.07

(3.37)
(42.93)
(77.48)

31 March 2020
542.21
(542.21)

31 March 2019
520.35
(520.35)

Reconciliation of Net (Asset) / Liability recognised in the Balance Sheet as at
1 Net (Asset) / Liability at the beginning of year
2 Expense as per I above
3 Other comprehensive income as per II above
4 Benefits paid
Net (Asset) / Liability at the end of the year

31 March 2020
(481.05)
(111.96)
(91.55)
66.08
(618.48)

31 March 2019
(458.51)
(112.56)
46.29
43.73
(481.05)

V.

The following payments are expected to defined benefit plan in future years :
1 Expected benefits for year 1
2 Expected benefits for year 2 to year 5
3 Expected benefits beyond year 5

31 March 2020
247.09
224.08
207.34

31 March 2019
112.65
330.03
433.11

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

6.83%
6.25%
IAL (2006-08)

7.50%
6.25%
IAL (2006-08)

VI. Actuarial Assumptions
1
2
3

Discount rate
Expected rate of salary increase
Mortality

“Contribution to provident and other funds” is recognized as an expense in Note 30 “Employee benefit expenses” of the Statement of Profit and Loss.
B

(77.48)

VII. Sensitivity Analysis
The key actuarial assumptions to which the benefit obligation results are particularly sensitive to are discount rate and future salary escalation rate. The
following table summarizes the impact in percentage terms on the reported defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period arising on account of
an increase or decrease in the reported assumption by 50 basis points.
(` Lakhs)

Employee Benefits
A

Net (Asset) / Liability recognised in the Balance Sheet as at
1 Present value of defined benefit obligation (DBO)
2 Net (Asset) / Liability

31 March 2019

IV.

(` Lakhs)

Earnings per share (EPS)

Opening amount recognized in OCI
Remeasurement during the period due to
- Changes in financial assumptions
- Changes in experience charges
Closing amount recognized in OCI

31 March 2020

(` Lakhs)

The extent of the impact of the Group’s operations remains uncertain and may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial
statements and will be dictated by the length of time that such disruptions continue, which will, in turn, depend on the currently unknowable duration of
COVID-19 and among other things, the impact of governmental actions imposed in response to the pandemic. The Group is monitoring the rapidly evolving
situation and its potential impacts on the Group’s financial position, results of operations, liquidity and cash flows.
46

Amount recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI)

31 March 2020
31 March 2019
Gratuity (Non Funded)
76.47
76.48
35.49
36.08
111.96
112.56

Discount Rate
Impact of increase in 50 bps on DBO
Impact of decrease in 50 bps on DBO

130.68
176.80

Salary
Escalation rate
174.95
131.92

Notes:
(a) The current service cost recognized as an expense is included in Note 30 ‘Employee benefits expense’ as gratuity. The remeasurement of the net
defined benefit liability is included in other comprehensive income.
(b) The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors including supply and demand in the employment market. The above information is certified by the Actuary.
Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The
sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of
the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.
C

Other long term benefits
The obligation for leave benefits (non funded) is also recognised using the projected unit credit method and accordingly the long term paid absences
have been valued. The leave encashment expense is included in Note 30 ‘Employee benefits expense’.
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(` Lakhs)

48
(i)
a)

Related party transactions
List of parties where control exists
Wholly owned subsidiary companies
Digital Ventures Private Limited
Academia Edificio Private Limited
Liberium Global Resources Private Limited
b) Subsidiary company
MT Educare Limited (Acquired on 25 May 2018) (extent of holdings - 59.12% [59.12%])
Fellow subsidiary companies
Lakshya Forrum for Competitions Private Limited (formerly known as Lakshya Educare Private Limited)
MT Education Services Private Limited
Chitale's Personalised Learning Private Limited
Sri Gayatri Educational Services Private Limited
Robomate Edutech Private Limited
Letspaper Technologies Private Limited
Labh Ventures India Private Limited (Acquired on 01 September 2018)
(ii) Key Managerial Personnel
Mr. Ajey Kumar - Managing Director (Resigned w.e.f. 18 August 2020)
Ms. Sangeeta Pandit - Non-Executive Independent Director (Resigned w.e.f. 1 October 2019)
Mr. Himanshu Modi - Chairman and Non-Executive Director (Resigned w.e.f. 7 January 2020)
Dr. Manish Agarwal - Non-Executive Independent Director (Resigned w.e.f. 31 March 2020)
Mrs. Nandita Agarwal Parkar - Non-Executive Independent Director
Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj - Non-Executive Independent Director (Appointed w.e.f. 17 May 2019)
Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar - Additional Director (Appointed w.e.f. 30 December 2019)
Ms. Nanette D'sa - Additional Director (Appointed w.e.f. 31 March 2020)
Mr. Umesh Pradhan - Chief Financial Officer (Resigned w.e.f. 7 October 2019)
Mr. Debshankar Mukhopadhyay - Chief Executive Officer (Resigned w.e.f. 23 April 2020)
Mr. Vikash Kar - Chief Executive Officer and Whole-Time Director (Appointed w.e.f. 24 April 2020 as CEO and Appointed w.e.f 19 August 2020 as WholeTime Director)
Mr. Surender Singh - Non-Executive Non-Independent Director (Appointed w.e.f. 31 July 2020)
Mr. Rakesh Agarwal - Chief Financial Officer (Appointed w.e.f. 7 April 2020)
Mr. Bhautesh Shah - Company Secretary (Resigned w.e.f. 12 May 2020)
Mr. Prashant Parekh - Company Secretary (Appointed w.e.f. 31 July 2020)
(iii) Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year and balance outstanding as on the last day of the year.
Asian Satellite Broadcast Private Limited, Direct Media Distribution Ventures Private Limited, Diligent Media Corporation Limited, Digital Satellite Holdings
Private Limited, Evenness Business Excellence Services Private Limited, Pan India Network Infravest Private Limited, Pri-Media Services Private Limited,
Taleem Research Foundation, Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited, Subhash Chandra Foundation, Essel Infra Projects Private Limited, Essel Corporate
Resources Private Limited, Pan India Infrastructures Private Limited, Zee Media Corporation Limited, Essel Finance Business Loans Limited, Essel
Highways Limited, Living Entertainment Enterprise Private Limited, Essel Finance AMC Limited, Essel Finance Home Loans LLP, Essel Finance Wealth
Services Private Limited, Essel Green Mobility Limited, GNEX Realtech Private Limited, Pan India Infra Project Private Limited Ranhil Utilities SDN BHD
Consortium, Pan India Infra Projects Limited, Pan India Utilities Distribution Company Limited, SITI Networks Limited, Zee Akash News Private Limited,
Amritsar MSW Limited, Digital Subscriber-Management and consultancy services private limited, Essel Corporate LLP, Essel Green Charge Private
Limited, Essel Green LMC Private Limited, Jabalpur MSW Private Limited, Jabalpur Waste Collection and Transportation Management Private Limited, Jay
Properties Private Limited, Nagpur Solid Waste Processing And Management Private Limited, NRSS XXXI B Transmission Limited, NRSS XXXVI
Transmission Limited, Pallavpuram Tambaram Msw Private limited, Rama Associates Limited, Ranchi MSW Private Limited, Tonk Water Supply Limited,
Varanasi STP Projects Private Limited, Warora-Kurnool Transmission Limited, Western Mp Infrastructure & Toll Roads Private Limited, Zee Unimedia
Limited, Zen Cruises Private Limited, Himgiri Zee University, Essel Vision Production Limited, EZ-Mall Online Limited, Darbhanga Motihari Transmission
Company Limited, Essel Finance Management LLP, Essel Realty Private Limited, Sarthak Entertainment Private Limited..
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31 March 2020
A) Transactions with related parties
Long- term borrowings
Other related parties
Asian Satellite Broadcast Private Limited
Repayment of Long- term borrowings
Other related parties
Asian Satellite Broadcast Private Limited
Interest expense
Other related parties
Asian Satellite Broadcast Private Limited
Sales and services
Other related parties
Himgiri Zee University
Amritsar MSW Limited
Darbhanga Motihari Transmission Company Limited
Digital Subscriber Management and Consultancy Services Private Limited
Evenness Business Excellence Services Limited
Essel Corporate LLP
Essel Finanace AMC Limited
Essel Finance Business Loans Limited
Essel Finance Home Loans Limited
Essel Finance Management LLP
Essel Finance Wealth Services Private Limited
Essel Green Charge Private Limited
Essel Green LMC Private Limited
Essel Green Mobility Limited
Essel Highways Limited
Essel Realty Private Limited
EZ-Mall Online Limited
Gnex Realtech Private Limited
Jabalpur MSW Private Limited
Jabalpur Waste Collection and Transportation Management Private Limited
Jay Properties Private Limited
Living Entertainment Enterprise Private Limited
Nagpur Solid Waste Processing And Management Private Limited
NRSS XXXI B Transmission Limited
NRSS XXXVI Transmission Limited.
Pallavpuram Tambaram Msw Private Limited
Pan India Infra Project Private Limited Ranhil Utilities SDN BHD Consortium
Pan India Infraprojects Limited
Pan India Utilities Distribution Company Limited
Rama Associates Limited
Ranchi MSW Private Limited
Sarthak Entertainment Private Limited
SITI Networks Limited
Subhash Chandra Foundation

31 March 2019

5,755.00

5,700.00

5,755.00
35.00

5,700.00
5,700.00

35.00
506.11

5,700.00
206.94

506.11

206.94

8,657.87

8,852.26

56.00
882.03
0.22
1.18
42.38
30.57
6.12
60.79
14.84
3.29
1.98
322.45
28.28
116.31
960.57
382.29
1.23
4.04
15.52
116.02
3.36
68.62
1,819.84
1.75

48.00
484.32
0.88
98.37
5.30
11.27
96.24
38.03
6.11
3.91
0.57
2.07
2.51
381.59
8.34
7.06
13.99
132.19
834.08
23.36
202.40
2.46
5.01
3.36
28.49
40.59
379.38
6.98
23.58
949.95
1.69
1,877.82
0.76
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(` Lakhs)
Balances outstanding as at 31 March

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

7,661.35

1,485.85

7,661.35

1,485.85

1,556.32

1,549.70

1,451.06
10.00
15.26
80.00

1,444.44
10.00
15.26
80.00

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Tonk Water Supply Limited
Varanasi STP Projects Private Limited
Warora-Kurnool Transmission Limited
Western Mp Infrastructure & Toll Roads Private Limited
Zee Akaash News Private Limited
Zee Entertainment Enterprise Limited
Zee Media Corporation Limited
Zee Unimedia Limited
Zen Cruises Private Limited

12.30
6.81
6.97
54.86
23.46
1,708.05
1,899.29
6.45

38.33
7.39
26.07
63.66
31.86
1,028.88
1,933.99
0.33
1.09

Other income
Reversal of provision / liabilities no longer required
Other related parties
Diligent Media Corporation Limited

88.02

-

Advance from customer
Other related parties
Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited

1.15

1.15

1.15

1.15

88.02

-

0.21

-

61.17

-

Advance to vendor
Other related parties
Diligent Media Corporation Limited

61.17

-

961.60

1,494.60

8.66
101.51
13.09
112.00
29.63
15.00
30.00
21.19
630.10
0.42

10.62
83.56
10.95
372.93
71.34
119.75
77.00
43.29
665.29
36.29
3.58

6.62

367.55

6.62

367.55

145.97

147.61

74.32
54.64
17.01

70.56
60.18
16.87

5.54

5.20

2.20
1.00
0.60
0.54
1.20

2.40
2.40
0.40
-

Purchase of Intangibles (content development)
Other related parties
Essel Corporate LLP
Purchase of Services
Other related parties
Pan India Network Infravest Private Limited
Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited
Digital Subscriber Management and Consultancy Services Private Limited
Diligent Media Corporation Limited
Zee Media Corporation Limited
Essel Infra Projects Private Limited
Essel Corporate LLP
Essel Vision Production Limited
Evenness Business Excellence Services Private Limited
Prosynapse Consultants Private Limited
Diligent Media Corporation Limited
Capital advance given
Other related parties
Pan India Infrastructure Private Limited
Remuneration
Key Managerial personnel
Mr. Debshankar Mukhopadhyay
Mr. Umesh Pradhan
Mr. Bhautesh Shah
Directors sitting fees
Key Managerial personnel
Dr. Manish Agarwal
Ms. Sangeeta Pandit
Mrs. Nandita Agarwal Parkar
Mr. Dattatryaya Kelkar
Mr. Roshanlal Kamboj
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(` Lakhs)
B)

Long-term borrowings
Other related parties
Asian Satellite Broadcast Private Limited
Loans, advances and deposits given
Other related parties
Pan India Infrastructure Private Limited
Essel Infra Projects Private Limited
Essel Vision Production Limited
Evenness Business Excellence Services Private Limited

Trade receivables
Other related parties
Himgiri Zee University
Amritsar MSW Limited
Darbhanga Motihari Transmission Company Limited
Digital Subscriber Management and Consultancy Services Private Limited
Evenness Business Excellence Services Limited
Essel Corporate LLP
Essel Finanace AMC Limited
Essel Finance Business Loans Limited
Essel Finance Home Loans Limited
Essel Finance Management LLP
Essel Green Charge Private Limited
Essel Green LMC Private Limited
Essel Highways Limited
Gnex Realtech Private Limited
Jabalpur MSW Private Limited
Jabalpur Waste Collection and Transportation Management Private Limited
Living Entertainment Enterprise Private Limited
Nagpur Solid Waste Processing And Management Private Limited
NRSS XXXI B Transmission Limited
NRSS XXXVI Transmission Limited
Pallavpuram Tambaram Msw Private Limited
Pan India Infra Project Private Limited Ranhil Utilities SDN BHD Consortium
Pan India Infraprojects Limited
Pan India Utilities Distribution Company Limited
Rama Associates Limited
Ranchi MSW Pvt Limited
SITI Networks Limited
Subhash Chandra Foundation

0.21

-

501.16

965.46

89.28
180.36
0.26
0.06
2.09
0.01
0.00
0.30
0.31
81.94
2.40
14.37
37.99
27.69
0.45
1.23
32.52
0.05
1.34
0.37

32.40
94.03
0.40
0.16
0.01
0.27
0.19
1.07
42.31
2.98
14.06
103.54
40.78
0.48
1.00
0.47
4.79
4.10
23.71
0.12
0.05
71.07
252.42
0.17
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(` Lakhs)

31 March 2020
Tonk Water Supply Limited
Varanasi STP Projects Private Limited
Warora-Kurnool Transmission Limited
Western Mp Infrastructure & Toll Roads Private Limited
Zee Akaash News Private Limited
Zee Entertainment Enterprise Limited
Zee Media Corporation Limited
Other payables
Other related parties
Pan India Network Infravest Private Limited
Digital Subscriber Management and Consultancy Services Private Limited
Zee Media Corporation Limited
Diligent Media Corporation Limited
Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited
Essel Infra Projects Private Limited
Essel Vision Production Limited
Evenness Business Excellence Services Private Limited
Zee Media Corporation Limited
Diligent Media Corporation Limited
Guarantees received
Other related parties
Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited
Jointly Corporate Guarantee given by Direct Media Distribution Ventures Private Limited
and Digital Satellite Holdings Private Limited
Note: 1) Figures considered based on the IND AS financials of the company.
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31 March 2019

2.74
1.31
1.66
20.61
1.82

4.14
1.12
3.50
7.39
3.85
21.05
233.83

707.89

690.77

2.64
10.56
41.77
281.02
177.26
22.27
40.73
90.64
41.00
-

3.87
14.10
158.09
73.89
82.16
33.28
284.16
41.00
0.21

5,300.00

5,300.00

5,300.00

5,300.00
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Segment reporting
The Group follows Ind AS 108 ""Operating Segment"" relating to the reporting of financial and descriptive information above their operating segments in
financial statements:
The Group's reportable operating segments have been determined in accordance with the business operations, which is organised based on the operating
business segments as described below.
1 “Educational” which principally provides learning solutions and delivers training.
2 “Construction and leasing for education” which principally consists of constructing and leasing of properties for commercial use.
3 "Training Manpower and related activities" which principally provides services related to consultancy and advisory in areas of human resources, viz.
manpower placement, recruitment, selection, business process and others.
There being no business outside India, the entire business is considered as a single geographic segment.
Primary segment disclosure - Business segment for the year ended 31 March 2020
Particulars
Segment revenue
- Educational services and related activities
- Construction and leasing (for education)
- Training, Manpower and related activities
Total segment revenue
Less: Inter segment revenue
Net Sales / Income from operations
Segment results (Profit before tax and interest from ordinary activities)
- Educational services and related activities
- Construction and leasing (for education)
- Training, Manpower and related activities
Total segment results
Add / (Less) :
Finance cost
Interest income
Exceptional items (refer note 51)
Unallocable
Total profit before tax from ordinary activities
Less : Tax expenses
Current tax - current year
- earlier period
Deferred tax (including MAT credit entitlement) - current year
- earlier period
Profit after tax
Capital employed (Segment assets less Segment liabilities)
- Educational services and related activities
- Construction and leasing (for education)
- Training, Manpower and related activities
- Unallocable (net)
Total capital employed in segments
Less: Inter segment eliminations
Total capital employed

(` Lakhs)
31 March 2020

31 March 2019

39,953.71
3,504.90
8,735.64
52,194.25
711.47
51,482.78

39,816.47
3,380.61
8,898.80
52,095.88
371.24
51,724.64

9,870.23
277.37
280.84
10,428.44

11,866.76
768.55
346.79
12,982.10

(5,904.91)
3,445.82
(3,114.65)
709.58
5,564.28

(4,730.99)
2,518.45
682.01
11,451.57

2,558.49
(25.29)
519.61
2,511.47

2,621.04
46.30
504.20
(57.32)
8,337.35

78,324.64
42,370.02
541.45
(42,291.54)
78,944.57
31,866.45
47,078.12

85,381.40
43,094.94
486.61
(51,189.03)
77,773.92
34,659.36
43,114.56
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(` Lakhs)

31 March 2020
Capital expenditure
- Educational services and related activities
- Construction and leasing (for education)
- Training, Manpower and related activities
Depreciation
- Educational services and related activities
- Construction and leasing (for education)
- Training, Manpower and related activities

50

51

52

31 March 2019

757.50
650.80
1,408.30

52,276.24
1,565.66
0.27
53,842.17

5,003.89
1,406.62
0.09
6,410.60

1,478.76
1,309.74
0.04
2,788.54

2)

Foreign currency risk
The group enters into transactions in currency other than its functional currency and is therefore exposed to foreign currency risk. The group analyses
currency risk as to which balances outstanding in currency other than the functional currency of that group. The management has taken a position not to
hedge this currency risk.
The group undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise. Exchange rate
exposures are not hedged considering the insignificant impact and period involved on such exposure.
The following table sets forth information relating to foreign currency exposure:
Currency

Assets as at

Liabilities as at

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

7.88

7.81

2.14
-

2.00
-

United States Dollar (USD)
Arab Emirates Dirham (AED)

Educational Infrastructure Projects under execution
During the previous year, the Group had taken lands at four locations on lease and has acquired land at one location for the purposes of setting up of
educational infrastructures. The Group has also acquired development rights to develop a piece and parcel of land, from Taleem Research Foundation at
Mumbai, to build educational infrastructure. This development right is acquired for 30 years w.e.f 1 January 2010 against a lump sum development fee of
`/lakhs 10,500. The civil work for construction of all these educational infrastructures is in progress and are at different stages of construction.

(` Lakhs)

Foreign Currency sensitivity analysis
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a 10% increase / decrease in foreign currencies with all other variable held constant. The below impact on
the group's profit before tax is based on changes in the fair value of unhedged foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities at balance sheet date.
(` Lakhs)
Currency
Sensitivity analysis
31 March 2020
31 March 2019

Exceptional items
The Group had, during earlier years, given loan to a Trusts to support its business operations. On account of delays in recovery of the same (including
interest accrued thereon), the Group has made provision of `/lakhs 3,114.65 against the loan receivable (including interest accrued thereon) during the year
and disclosed the same as an ‘Exceptional item’.

` decrease by 10%

` increase by 10%

` decrease by 10%

` increase by 10%

0.21
(0.79)

(0.21)
0.79

0.20
(0.78)

(0.20)
0.78

United States Dollar (USD)
Arab Emirates Dirham (AED)

Financial Instruments
i)

Financial risk management objective and policies
The group’s principal financial liabilities, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, lease liabilities and other financial liabilities. The
main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the group’s operations. The group’s principal financial assets include investments, loans, trade
receivables, other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances and other financial assets that derive directly from its operations.
The group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The group’s management oversees the management of these risks.

a)

1)

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and other price risk such as equity price risk. Financial instruments affected by
market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, other financial instruments.
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of changes in fair value of
fixed interest bearing investments because of fluctuations in the interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of floating
interest bearing investments will vary because of fluctuations in interest rates.
The group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the group’s long-term loan from banks. Non-Redeemable
Debentures and Intercorporate deposits carries fixed coupon rate and hence is not considered for calculation of interest rate sensitivity of the group.
Interest rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected. With
all other variables held constant, the group’s profit before tax is affected through the impact of change in interest rate of borrowings, as follows:
(` Lakhs)
Increase / decrease
in basis points

As on 31 March 2020
As on 31 March 2019
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+ 50 / - 50
+ 50 / - 50

Effect on Profit
before tax
124.45
160.71

3)

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises
principally from the group's receivables from customers, deposits and loans given, investments and balances at bank. The group measures the expected
credit loss of trade receivables based on historical trend, industry practices and the business enviornment in which the entity operates. Expected Credit Loss
is based on actual credit loss experienced and past trends based on the historical data.
Ageing of trade receivables

(` Lakhs)
As at 31 March 2020

As at 31 March 2019

Trade Receivables (Unsecured)
Over six months
Less than six months

12,447.59
6,017.24

3,911.20
12,488.69

Total

18,464.83

16,399.89

As at 31 March 2020

As at 31 March 2019

11,146.06
647.86
11,793.92

417.90
10,728.16
11,146.06

6,670.91

5,253.83

(` Lakhs)
Movement in allowance for credit loss during the year was as follows :
Opening Balance
Add :- Provided during the year
Less :- Reversal during the year
Balance as at
Net Trade receivable

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the group generally invest in deposits with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings
assigned by credit rating agencies. Investments primarily include investment in liquid mutual fund units, non convertible debentures, certificates of
deposit and other debt instruments.
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iii)

Liquidity risk

Categories of financial instruments and fair value thereof

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the group cannot meet its financial obligations. The group's principal source of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and
the cash flow i.e. generated from operations. The group consistently generated strong cash flows from operations which together with the available cash and
cash equivalents and current investment provides adequate liquidity in short terms as well in the long term.
The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities including estimated interest payments as at 31 March 2020
(` Lakhs)

Financial liabilities
Trade payable and other financial liabilities
Borrowings*
Lease liabilities
Total

Less than
1 year

2 to 5th year

more than
5 years

15,047.11
4,384.66
2,281.71

174.12
27,412.60
6,572.75

1,049.38
-

21,713.48

34,159.47

1,049.38

* Current maturities of borrowings aggregating `/lakhs 5,129.35 from part of other financial liabilities hence the same is not consider separately in
borrowings.
The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities including estimated interest payments as at 31 March 2019
(` Lakhs)

Financial Liabilities
Trade payable and other financial liabilities
Borrowings*
Total

Less than
1 year

2 to 5 year

more than
5 years

14,316.02
4,361.52

174.12
33,539.94

1,324.08
-

18,677.54

33,714.06

1,324.08

* Current maturities of borrowings aggregating `/lakhs 5265.86 from part of other financial liabilities hence the same is not consider separately in
borrowings.
ii)

Particulars

As at 31 March 2020
Carrying amount
Fair value

A) Financial assets
i) Measured at amortised cost
Trade Receivables
Cash and cash equivalents and bank balances
Other financial assets
Loans and Advances
ii)

(` Lakhs)
As at 31 March 2019
Carrying amount
Fair value

6,670.91
1,553.04
2,965.43
1,284.85

6,670.91
1,553.04
2,965.43
1,284.85

5,253.83
2,743.86
3,428.32
9,856.00

5,253.83
2,743.86
3,428.32
9,856.00

Measured at Fair value through profit and loss account
Non-Current Investments
0.34
Current Investment
1,051.94

0.34
1,051.94

0.34
211.44

0.34
211.44

5,192.96
27,412.60
4,384.66
11,077.65

4,762.86
33,539.94
4,361.52
11,051.34

4,762.86
33,539.94
4,361.52
11,051.34

B) Financial liabilities
i) Measured at amortised cost
Trade Payables
Borrowings (Non current)
Borrowings (Current)
Other Financial Liabilities

5,192.96
27,412.60
4,384.66
11,077.65

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents and bank balances, trade receivables, other financial assets, certain investments, trade
payables and other current liabilities approximate their fair value largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. Difference between carrying
amount and fair value of bank deposits, other financial assets, other financial liabilities and borrowings subsequently measured at amortised cost is not
significant in each of the year presented.
(iv) Fair value hierarchy
The following table provides the fair value measurment hierarchy of the group's assets and liabilities.

Capital Management

Quantative disclosures of fair value measurement hiererchy for assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2020
For the purpose of the group' s capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves. The group manages its capital structure to
ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to the stakeholders.
The group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is total debt divided by total capital plus debt.

(` Lakhs)
As at 31 March 2020

(` Lakhs)
Financial assets

Fair Value as at
31 March 2020
31 March 2019

Investment in Mutual funds

1,051.94

211.44

1,051.94

211.44

Fair Value
Hierarchy

Valuation Technique(s)
& key inputs used

Level 1

Quoted in an active market

As at 31 March 2019
Total

Gross Debt (inclusive long term and short term debt) *
Less: Cash and cash equivalents and Other Bank Balances

31,797.26
(1,553.04)

37,901.46
(2,743.86)

Net Debt
Total Equity

30,244.22
47,078.12

35,157.60
43,114.56

Total Capital
Gearing ratio

77,322.34
39.11%

78,272.16
44.92%

Investments measured at fair value are tabulated above. All other financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost are in Level 3 of fair value hierarchy.
The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities included in the level 1 categories above have been determined in accordance with quoted in
acive market.

* does not include current maturities of borrowings.
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Acquisition of MT Educare Limited

55

During the previous year Company has acquired 3,19,64,200 shares @ 62.57 [including premium of Rs.52.57] through Share Subscirpiton agreement and
1,07,36,973 Shares @ 72.76 [including premium of Rs. 62.76] through Open offer of "MT Educare Limited" and subsequently it has become subsidiary
(extent of holding 59.12% ) of the company with effect from 25 May 2018.

(` Lakhs)

The details of purchase consideration, the net assets acquired are as follows:
Particulars

54

(` Lakhs)

Net worth as on May 2018
Add : Brand of MT Educare Limited (as per valuation report)
Add : Brand Lakshya (as per valuation report)
Add : Robomate Content (as per valuation report)
Less : Goodwill on consolidation
Less : Other intangible assets
Less : Intangible assets under development
Less : Current asset
Net asset taken over
Purchase Consideration
Market Value for Non Controlling interest @ 59.55 for shares 29083811
Consideration Paid by Zee Learn Limited (through Preferential and Equity Allotment)
Total Fair Value of company

20,048.57
1,095.00
595.10
1,513.70
1,627.52
1,397.72
69.14
6,350.00
13,807.99 (A)
17,319.41
27,812.22
45,131.63 (B)

Goodwill

31,323.64 (B-A)

Acquisition of Labh Ventures Private Limited
On 1 September 2018, the MT Educare Limited, subsidiary company purchased 100% shareholding of Labh Ventures India Private Limited by way of
execution of Share Purchase Agreement. Accordingly, Labh Ventures India Private Limited has become wholly owned subsidiary of the MT Educare
Limited. This acquisition is being accounted in accordance with the acquisition method as described under Ind AS 103 “Business Combinations".

Collateral / Security Pledged
The carrying amount of assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings of the group are as under ;
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31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Property, plant and equipment (includes Capital work in progress, Investment property, Investment
property under development, Goodwill, Intangible assets and Intangible assets under development)
Inventories
Other current and non-current assets

70,704.71
1,769.93
24,724.02

72,289.86
1,314.48
29,012.72

Total assets pledged

97,198.66

102,617.06

Reconciliation between opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities as required by Ind AS 7
"Statement of Cash Flows" is as under:
(` Lakhs)
Non Cash Changes

Long Term Borrowings (Including Current maturities)
Short Term Borrowings
(For Bank, Financial Institution and
intercorporate deposits etc.)
Dividend paid (including dividend distribution tax)

As at
31 March 2019

Cash
Inflows

Cash
outflows

33,539.94
9,627.38

5,755.00
-

(11,882.34)
(766.31)

-

-

393.12

Other
Changes

As at
31 March 2020

652.95

-

27,412.60
9,514.01

-

-

393.12

Interest
Accured

The details of purchase consideration, the net assets acquired and bargain purchase are as follows:
Particulars
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)

Property, plant and equipment
Non-current investments
Cash and cash equivalents
Current Tax assets
Other current assets

(` Lakhs)
5,935.79
0.03
48.80
67.33
1.10

Total Assets acquired (A)
(a)
Non current Borrowings
(b)
Other current and non current financial liabilities
(c)
Other current and non current liabilities
(d)
Deferred tax liability
(d)
Trade payables
Total Liabilities acquired (B)

6,053.05
3,652.87
308.37
262.42
183.18
0.72
4,407.56

Net Asset(A-B)
Purchase Consideration

1,645.49
1,628.00

Bargain purchase ( C )

17.49

As the consideration transferred is lower than the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed, the difference is recorded as a gain
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as ‘Capital Reserve’.
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Additional Information as required by Schedule III of the Companies Act 2013
(` Lakhs)

Name of the entity

I

II

Net Assets, i.e.,
Total Assets minus
Total Liabilities
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"During the quarter ended 30 September 2019, the MT Educare Limited a subsidiary of the company entered into contracts with a few education trusts to
provide management services in respect of operation of their respective educational activities. Based on the scope of work and the corresponding
consideration as laid out in the respective contracts, revenue of `/lakhs 910.00 from management services was recorded by the subsidiary company in the
third quarter ended 31 December 2019. However, subsequently, on the requests of these Trusts, the “scope of work” and the basis of measurement of
corresponding “consideration” have been renegotiated and redefined which are detailed in the addendums executed to the existing contracts. The new
arrangement is applicable from retrospective effect (inception of the contracts).The change in the basis of measurement of revenue from management
services has given rise to reversal of revenue recorded in the third quarter to the extent of `/lakhs 745.33. The reversal entry has been recorded in the fourth
quarter ended 31 March 2020.The resultant management services revenue for the year, recorded in these financial statements aggregate `/lakhs 164.67.

Share in Profit or loss

% of
consolidated
net assets

Amount

% of
consolidated
Profit

Amount

Parent Zee Learn Limited

42.53%

47,753.05

248.30%

6,861.91

Subsidiaries MT Educare Limited
Digital Ventures Private Limited
Academia Edificio Private Limited
Liberium Global Resources Private Limited
Non Controlling Interest in subsidiaries

13.36%
29.02%
0.00%
0.62%
14.46%

15,001.34
32,583.85
(2.89)
701.14
16,231.25

-164.45%
7.32%
-0.03%
8.85%
0.00%

(4,544.60)
202.38
(0.88)
244.70
-

Management fees
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Prior year comparatives
Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified / rearranged wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's classifications /
disclosures, figures in brackets pertain to previous year.

(` Lakhs)

Name of the entity

Shares in Other
Comprehensive
Income
% of
consolidated
Profit

I

II

Amount

Share in Total
Comprehensive
Income
% of
consolidated
Profit

Amount

Parent Zee Learn Limited

27.50%

(13.45)

252.28%

6,848.46

Subsidiaries MT Educare Limited
Digital Ventures Private Limited
Academia Edificio Private Limited
Liberium Global Resources Private Limited
Non Controlling Interest in subsidiaries

73.35%
-1.54%
0.00%
0.70%
0.00%

(35.89)
0.75
(0.34)
-

-168.74%
7.48%
-0.03%
9.00%
0.00%

(4,580.49)
203.13
(0.88)
244.36
-

Note: Net assets / Share of Profit of subsidiary are considered based on the respective audited standalone financial statements without considering
eliminations / consolidation Ind As adjustments.
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Notice
NOTICE is hereby given that the Tenth Annual General Meeting of the
members of Zee Learn Limited will be held on Wednesday, December 30,
2020 at 04.00 P.M. through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio Visual
Means (“OAVM”) facility to transact the following businesses:
ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited Financial Statements of the
Company– on standalone and consolidated basis, for the financial year
ended March 31, 2020 including the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020,
the Statement of Profit & Loss for the financial year ended on that date,
and the Reports of the Auditors and Directors thereon.
2. To appoint statutory auditors and fix their remuneration by passing
following resolution, if thought fit, as an Ordinary Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139, 142 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) thereto or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force)
and pursuant to the recommendations of the Audit Committee and Board of
Directors of the Company, the approval of Members of the Company be and is
hereby accorded to the appointment of M/s. Ford Rhodes Parks & Co. LLP,
Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 102860W/W100089) as
Statutory Auditors of the Company, in place of retiring auditors M/s. MGB &
Co. LLP., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 101169W/W100035), for an initial term of Five (5) consecutive years, commencing from
the Financial Year 2020-21 and to hold office from the conclusion of the10th
Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 15th Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be held for the financial year 2024-25, at such
remuneration and out of pocket expenses, as may be mutually agreed
between Board of Directors and M/s. Ford Rhodes Parks & Co. LLP, with
liberty to revise the said terms and conditions and remuneration.”
SPECIAL BUSINESS:
3. To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) thereto or
re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), the members hereby ratify
and confirm the remuneration of Rs. 55,000/- (Rupees Fifty-FiveThousand)
plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses payable
to M/s.Vaibhav P. Joshi, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No. 101329) for
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conduct of audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year
ending March 31, 2021 as recommended by the Audit Committee and
approved by the Board of Directors.”
4. To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 read with
Schedule IV and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
(‘Act’) and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules,
2014 and the applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(including any statutory modification(s) or amendment(s) thereto or reenactment(s) thereof for time being in force), Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar (DIN:
00118037), who was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company in
the category of Independent Director by the Board of Directors, based on the
recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee with effect
from December 30, 2019 and who holds office up to the date of this Annual
General Meeting in terms of Section 161(1) of the Act and in respect of whom
the Company has received a notice in writing from a member under Section
160 of the Act proposing his candidature to the office of Director, be and is
hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company not liable to
retirement by rotation for a period of 3 (three) consecutive years up to
December 29, 2022.”
5. To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 read with
Schedule IV and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
(‘Act’) and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules,
2014 and the applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(including any statutory modification(s) or amendment(s) thereto or reenactment(s) thereof for time being in force), Ms. Nanette D’sa (DIN:
05261531), who was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company in
the category of Independent Director by the Board of Directors, based on the
recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee with effect
from March 31, 2020 and who holds office up to the date of this Annual
General Meeting in terms of Section 161(1) of the Act and in respect of whom
the Company has received a notice in writing from a member under Section
160 of the Act proposing her candidature to the office of Director, be and is
hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company not liable to
retirement by rotation for a period of 3 (three) consecutive years up to March
30, 2023.”

6. To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

excess of limits prescribed under the applicable law without obtaining
requisite approvals;

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 152, 161 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time
being in force), Mr. Vikash Kumar Kar (DIN: 07418787), who was appointed
as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from August 19, 2020,
and who holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting of the
Company, and who is eligible for being appointed and has consented to act as
a Director of the Company and in respect of whom the Company has received
a notice in writing from a Member under Section 160 of the Act proposing his
candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as a Director
of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to take
such steps as may be necessary, to give effect to the above resolution including
agreeing to such amendments/ modifications in the aforesaid clauses as may
be required by any authority or as may be deemed fit by the Board.”

7. To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198, 203
read with Schedule V and any other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and other
applicable rules made thereunder, the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), the
Articles of Association of the Company and subject to such other approvals as
may be necessary, approval of the Members be and is hereby accorded for
appointment of Mr. Vikash Kumar Kar (DIN: 07418787), as an Executive
Director designated as Whole-Time Director (“WTD”) of the Company, w.e.f.
August 19, 2020 for a period of 5 (five) years on such terms and conditions
and at such remuneration not exceeding 5% of Net Profits of the Company
calculated as per Section 198 of the Act, as set out in the Explanatory
Statement annexed hereto;
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company
(hereinafter referred to as “the Board” which shall be deemed to include any
Committee constituted / to be constituted by the Board) be and is hereby
authorized to vary, alter, enhance, or widen the scope of remuneration
(including fixed salary, incentives, allowances and perquisites) payable to Mr.
Vikash Kumar Kar during his tenure as WTD to the extent permitted under
Section 197 read with Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Act, without being required to seek any further consent or approval of the
Members of the Company or otherwise to the end and intent that they shall be
deemed to have given their approval thereto expressly by the authority of this
resolution, provided however that any such variation, alteration,
enhancement or widening shall not result in payment of remuneration in

8. To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:
"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules 2014
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time
being in force) and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 2015, Mr. Surender Singh (DIN: 08206770), who
was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from July
31, 2020 and whose term of office expires on the date of this Annual General
Meeting and in respect of whom a notice is received in writing under the
provisions of Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, from a member
proposing his candidature for office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as
a Non-Independent Non- Executive Director of the Company whose term of
office shall be liable to retire by rotation."
9. To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a
Special Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with rules thereunder, the Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company, Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 as amended from
time to time (hereinafter referred to as “SEBI SBEB Regulations”) and other
applicable Regulations, if any, consent and approval of the members be and
is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter
referred to as “the Board” which term shall be deemed to include any duly
constituted Committee of the Directors including the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the Board constituted to exercise its powers
conferred under this resolution) to modify / reprice 82,70,157 outstanding
stock options granted (whether vested or not but yet to be excercised) to
option grantees, in one or more tranches under the Employees' Stock Option
Scheme 2010 as amended in 2015 (hereinafter referred to as “the Scheme”),
exercisable into not more than 82,70,157 fully paid-up equity shares of face
value of Re. 1/- (Rupee one) each upon payment of the Exercise price ranging
from Rs. 18.70 to Rs.42.20 per option, as under, to Rs.14.10 per option w.e.f.
April 24, 2020 and as a consequence thereof and as connected therewith,
extend the exercise period by four years from the date of shareholders
approval.

269

Notice

Number of
Outstanding Options

Exercise Price per option
at the time of Grant (Rs.)

15,701

20.85

1,57,887

35.25

21,52,490

31.80

50,000

31.40

10,83,654

34.15

9,21,959

42.20

38,88,466

18.70

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT consent of the Members be and is hereby
accorded for necessary amendment be made in the Scheme to give effect to
implement the above mentioned resolution.
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the exercise price for the 82,70,157 stock
options proposed to be repriced be considered at Rs.14.10 per option being
the closing price on a recognized Stock Exchange on which higher trading
volume were transacted on the date immediately prior to the date of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee/Board meeting held on April 24,
2020, having considered the proposal for re-pricing.
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized at any
time to modify, change, vary, alter or amend the Scheme subject to the
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations and to do all such acts,
deeds, matters and things as it may deem fit at its absolute discretion, for such
purpose and also to settle any issues, questions, difficulties or doubts that
may arise in this regard without being required to seek any further consent or
approval of the Shareholders to the end and intent that they shall be deemed
to have given their approval thereto expressly by the authority of this
resolution.”

10. To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 197 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’), Regulation 17
and such other applicable regulations of the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(including any statutory modification(s) or amendment(s) thereto or reenactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and subject to such approvals
as may be necessary, the Independent Directors of the Company be paid,
annually for a period of five (5) financial years commencing from the financial
year ended March 31, 2021, commission up to an amount not exceeding one
percent of the net profits of the Company computed in the manner referred to
in Section 198 of the Act, in addition to the sitting fees for attending the
meeting(s) of the Board of Directors of the Company or any Committee
thereof, to be divided amongst the Directors aforesaid in such manner and
subject to such ceiling as the Board of Directors of the Company may from
time to time determine.”
By order of the Board
Prashant Parekh
Company Secretary
Place : Mumbai
Date : October 7, 2020

Registered Office:
Continental Building,
135, Dr. Annie Besant Road,
Worli, Mumbai – 400 018
CIN: L80301MH2010PLC198405
E-mail : investor_relations@zeelearn.com

Notes:
1. In view of the continuing COVID-19 Pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs (“MCA”) has vide its Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020 read
with Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020 and Circular No. 17/2020
dated April 13, 2020 (hereinafter collectively referred to as “MCA
Circulars”) permitted the holding of Annual General Meeting through VC
or OAVM without the physical presence of Members at a common venue.
In compliance with these MCA Circulars and the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Annual General Meeting of the
Members of the Company is being held through VC/OAVM. The deemed
venue for the Annual General Meeting of the Company shall be the
Registered Office of the Company. The detailed procedure for participating
in the meeting through VC/OAVM is explained at Note No. 19 below.
2. The Notice of the Annual General Meeting along with the Annual Report
for the financial year 2019-20 is being sent only by electronic mode to
those Members whose email addresses are registered with the
Company/ Depositories in accordance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars
and circular issued by SEBI dated May 12, 2020. Members may note that
the Notice of Annual General Meeting and Annual Report for the financial
year 2019-20 will also be available on the Company’s website
www.zeelearn.com; websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. National Stock
Exchange of India Ltd and BSE Limited at www.nseindia.com and
www.bseindia.com respectively. Members can attend and participate in
the Annual General Meeting through VC/OAVM facility only.
3. Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, a Member entitled
to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a
proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a
Member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the
MCA Circulars through VC/OAVM, physical attendance of Members has
been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies
by the Members will not be available for the Annual General Meeting and
hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to the Notice.
4. Members attending the meeting through VC/OAVM shall be counted for
the purposes of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the
Companies Act, 2013.
5. In case of joint holders attending the AGM, the Member whose name
appears as the first holder in the order of names as per the Register of
Members of the Company will be entitled to vote.
6. Members may note that the VC/OAVM Facility, provided by NSDL, allows
participation of 1,000 Members on a first-come-first served basis. The
large shareholders (i.e. shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding),
promoters, institutional investors, directors, key managerial personnel,
the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination cum Remuneration
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Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, auditors, etc. can
attend the AGM without any restriction on account of first-come-first
served principle.
7. Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act,
2013, relating to the Special Business to be transacted at the Annual
General Meeting is annexed hereto. The relevant details as required
under Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard on General
Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, of the
person seeking appointment/ re-appointment as Director are also
annexed.
8. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will
remain closed from Thursay, December 24, 2020 till Wednesday,
December 30, 2020 (both days inclusive).
9. Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their
name, postal address, email address, telephone/ mobile numbers,
mandates, nominations, power of attorney, bank details such as, name of
the bank and branch details, bank account number, MICR code, IFSC
code, etc., to their DPs in case the shares are held by them in electronic
form and to the Company’s Registrars and Transfer Agents, Link Intime
India Pvt. Ltd. in case the shares are held by them in physical form. SEBI
has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by
every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in
electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the PAN to their
depository participants with whom they are maintaining their demat
accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN
details to Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.
10. As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, securities
of listed companies can be transferred only in dematerialized form with
effect from April 1, 2019, except in case of request received for
transmission or transposition of securities. In view of this and to eliminate
all risks associated with physical shares and for ease of portfolio
management, members holding shares in physical form are requested to
consider converting their holdings to dematerialized form. Members can
contact the Company or Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. for assistance in this
regard.
11. Registration of email ID and Bank Account details:
In case the shareholder’s email ID is already registered with the Company/ its
Registrar & Share Transfer Agent “RTA”/ Depositories, log in details for eVoting are being sent on the registered email address.
In case the shareholder has not registered his/ her/ their email address with
the Company/ its RTA/ Depositories and or not updated the Bank Account
mandate for receipt of dividend, the following instructions to be followed:
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(i) In case Shares held in physical form:
The Shareholders may register their email address with the Registrar and
Share Transfer agent of the Company to receive all communications by
the Company including Annual Report and Notice of Meeting(s) by email,
by sending appropriate communication on
rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in.
OR
(ii) In the case of Shares held in Demat mode:
The shareholder may please contact the Depository Participant (“DP”)
and register the email address and bank account details in the demat
account as per the process followed and advised by the DP.
12. As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, nomination facility is
available to the Members in respect of the shares held by them. Members
holding shares in single name and physical form may send duly
completed and signed nomination form to the Registrar and Share
Transfer Agent. Members holding shares in dematerialised form may
contact their respective Depository Participant/s.
13. Members who wish to obtain information on the Financial Statements for
the year ended March 31, 2020, may send their queries at least seven
days before the Annual General Meeting to the Compliance Officer &
Company Secretary at the registered office of the Company or at email id
investor_relations@zeelearn.com.
14. All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice of the AGM and
explanatory statement shall be open for inspection without any fee at the
registered office of the Company during normal business hours on any
working day upto and including the date of the AGM of the Company.
15. The notice is being sent to all Members, whose names appear in the
Register of Members/Statement of beneficial ownership maintained by
the Depositories i.e. National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and
Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) as on the close of
business hours on December 4, 2020.
16. A person who is not a Member as on the cut-off date should treat this
Notice for information purposes only.
17. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the Route Map is not
annexed with Notice.
18. Instructions for voting through electronic means (e-voting)
I.

In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules,
2014 and Regulation 44 of the Listing Regulations, the Company is
pleased to provide to its Members facility to exercise their right to vote on
resolutions proposed to be passed in the Meeting by electronic means.
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II. The Company has engaged the services of NSDL as the Agency to
provide remote e-Voting facility and e-Voting during the AGM.

X. Process and manner for Remote e-Voting and e-voting during the
AGM:

III. Ms. Mita Sanghavi, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No.
FCS 7205, COP 6364) has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to
scrutinize the e-Voting during the AGM and remote e-Voting in a fair and
transparent manner.

Members are requested to follow the below instructions to cast their vote
through e-Voting:

IV. The Results of voting will be declared within 48 hours from the conclusion
of the AGM. The declared Results, along with the Scrutinizer’s Report will
be submitted with the Stock Exchanges where the Company’s equity
shares are listed (BSE Limited & National Stock Exchange of India
Limited) and shall also be displayed on the Company’s website
www.zeelearn.com and NSDL’s website www.evoting.nsdl.com.

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two
Steps” which are mentioned below:
Step 1: Log-in to NSDL e-Voting system at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting System
Details on Step 1 are mentioned below:
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

V. Voting rights of the Members for voting through remote e- Voting and
voting during the AGM shall be in proportion to shares of the paid-up
equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date i.e.
Wednesday, December 23, 2020. A person, whose name is recorded in
the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial owners (as at the
end of the business hours) maintained by the depositories as on the cutoff date shall only be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-Voting and
voting during the AGM.
VI. The remote e-Voting facility will be available during the following period:
a. Commencement of remote e-Voting: 09:00 A.M. (IST) on Sunday,
December 27, 2020.
b. End of remote e-Voting: 05:00 P.M. (IST) on Tuesday, December 29,
2020.
c. The remote e-Voting will not be allowed beyond the aforesaid date and
time and the remote e-Voting module shall be disabled by NSDL upon
expiry of aforesaid period.
VII. Those Members, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM
facility and have not cast their vote on the Resolutions through remote eVoting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote
through e- Voting system during the AGM.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon
“Login” which is available under ‘Shareholders’ section.
3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your
Password and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can login at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you login to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and
you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below :
Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or Physical

Your User ID is:

a)

For Members who hold shares in demat account with NSDL.

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 12****** then your user ID
is IN300***12******.

b)

For Members who hold shares in demat account with CDSL.

16 Digit Beneﬁciary ID
For example if your Beneﬁciary ID is 12************** then your user ID is
12**************

c)

For Members holding shares in Physical Form.

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the company
For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is
101456001***

5.

Your password details are given below:

a.

If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can use your existing password to login and cast your vote.

b. If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the ﬁrst time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve
your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password.
c.

How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?
(i)

If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the
email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf ﬁle. Open the .pdf ﬁle. The password to open the
.pdf ﬁle is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf ﬁle
contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.

(ii)

If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned in the Notice for registering your email address.

VIII. The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-Voting prior to the
AGM may also attend/ participate in the AGM through VC/OAVM but shall
not be entitled to cast their vote again.
IX. Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a
Member of the Company after sending of the Notice and holds shares as
of the cut-off date, may obtain the login ID and password by sending a
request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning their demat account number/
folio number, PAN, name and registered address. However, if he/ she is
already registered with NSDL for remote e-Voting then he / she can use
his/ her existing User ID and password for casting the vote.

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile.

6.

If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your password:
a. Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com.
b. Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.
c. If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account
number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address
d. Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL.
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7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by
selecting on the check box.

19. INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS TO ATTEND THE AGM THROUGH
VC / OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

1. Member will be able to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM provided by
NSDL at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com under shareholders/members
login by using their remote e-voting credentials and selecting the EVEN
for Company’s AGM. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in
shareholder/members login where the EVEN of Company will be
displayed.

Item No 2

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.
Details on Step 2 are given below:
How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system?
1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see the Home page of
e-Voting. Click on e-Voting. Then, click on Active Voting Cycles
2. After click on Active Voting Cycles, you will be able to see all the
companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares and whose voting
cycle is in active status.
3. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote.
4. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.
5. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent,
verify/modify the number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote
and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.
6. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be
displayed.
7. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the
print option on the confirmation page.
8. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to
modify your vote.
General Guidelines for shareholders
1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are
required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board
Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the
duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the
Scrutinizer by e-mail to mita.sanghavi@yahoo.in with a copy marked to
evoting@nsdl.co.in.
2. It is recommended not to share your password with any other person and
take utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the evoting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in
the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the
“Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?”
option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.
3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions
(FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders
available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll
free no.: 1800-222-990 or send a request at evoting@nsdl.com.
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Members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have
forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following
the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last
minute rush. Further members can also use the OTP based login for
logging into the e-Voting system of NSDL.
2. Facility of joining the AGM through VC/OAVM shall open 30 minutes
before the time scheduled for the AGM and will be available for Members
on first come first served basis.
3. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better
experience.
4. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a
good speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.
5. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets
or through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience
Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is
therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

Section 139(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) states that no listed company
shall appoint or re-appoint an audit firm as auditor for more than two terms of
five consecutive years. It further provides that an audit firm which has
completed its two terms of five consecutive years, shall not be eligible for reappointment as auditor in the same company for five years from the
completion of such terms.
M/s. MGB & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.
101169W/W-100035) were appointed as statutory auditors of the company,
since inception i.e. from FY 2010-11 and at the 9th Annual General Meeting of
the Company held on September 26, 2019, M/s. MGB & Co. LLP was reappointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for the second and last
term of 1(one) year i.e. for the financial year 2019-20, to hold office till the
conclusion of the 10th Annual General Meeting to be held in the Financial Year
2020-21. Since M/s. MGB & Co. LLP will complete its two terms of five
consecutive years as Statutory Auditors of the Company at this AGM, the
Company is required to appoint a new auditor in place of retiring auditors from
the Financial Year 2020-21.
In view of the above and pursuant to the recommendation of the Audit
Committee, and subject to the approval of the shareholders, the Board of
Directors of the Company at their meeting held on July 31, 2020, had
approved the appointment of M/s. Ford Rhodes Parks & Co. LLP, Chartered
Accountants (Firm Registration No. 102860W/W100089), as Statutory
Auditors of the Company, in place of the outgoing Statutory Auditor, M/s. MGB

6. Members who need assistance before or during the AGM, can contact
NSDL on evoting@nsdl.co.in / 1800-222-990.
7. Members seeking any information with regard to the annual accounts for
2019-20 or any business to be dealt at the AGM, are requested to send an
e-mail on investor_relations@zeelearn.com on or before December 23
along with their name, DP ID and Client ID/ folio number, PAN and mobile
number. The same will be replied by the Company suitably
8. Further, members who would like to express their views or ask questions
during the AGM may register themselves as a speaker by sending their
request from their registered e-mail address mentioning their name, DP
ID and Client ID/Folio Number, PAN and mobile number at
investor_relations@zeelearn.com from December 21, 2020 to
December 25, 2020. Those Members who have registered themselves
as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ ask questions
during the AGM. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of
speakers depending on the availability of time for the AGM.

& Co. LLP, for the first term of five(5) consecutive years commencing from the
Financial Year 2020-21, i.e. to hold office from the conclusion of the 10th
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held during the year 2020 till
the conclusion of the 15th Annual General Meeting to be held during the Year
2025.
The Company has received written consent and certificate from the proposed
statutory auditors stating that they satisfy the eligibility criteria provided under
Section 141 of the Act read with the rules made thereunder and that the
appointment, if approved by the members of the Company, shall be within the
limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013, and confirming that they are
not disqualified for such appointment pursuant to the applicable provision of
the Act and rules made thereunder.
M/s. Ford Rhodes Parks & Co. LLP has confirmed that it has been subjected to
the peer review process of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI) and it holds a valid certificate issued by Peer Review Board of ICAI.
In this respect, the members are requested to approve the appointment of M/s.
Ford Rhodes Parks & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants as the Statutory
Auditors of the Company for the first term of five (5) consecutive years
commencing from the Financial Year 2020-21 till the Financial Year 2024-25
i.e to hold office from the conclusion of the 10th Annual General Meeting till the
conclusion of 15th Annual General Meeting to be held in year 2025 and to fix
their remuneration in this regard.
Pursuant to Regulation 36(5) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the
details of the Statutory Auditors proposed to be appointed is given below:

Particulars

Details

Category of Auditor

Statutory Auditor (Audit Firm)

Name of the Auditor or Auditor’s Firm

M/s. Ford Rhodes Parks & Co. LLP

ICAI Firm Registration No.

102860W/W100089

Address

312/313, Sai Commercial Building, BKS Devshi Marg, Govandi, Mumbai
400088.

Number of Financial Year(s) to which appointment relates

5 (Five)

Period of account for which appointed

April 1, 2020 to March 31, 2025

Date of appointment made by Board of Directors

July 31, 2020

Proposed fees payable to the Statutory Auditors along with terms of
appointment

The fees / remuneration of the Statutory Auditor shall be Rs. 17.00 Lakhs (plus
out of pocket expenses on actual basis and applicable taxes) for the Financial
Year 2020-21 for Statutory Audit, issue of audit reports, issue of limited review
reports and services relating thereto, with liberty to revise the said terms and
conditions and remuneration as may be mutually agreed between the Board
of Director and Statutory Auditors. Aforesaid Audits and Reports shall include
standalone and consolidated ﬁnancial statements.

275

Notice

Particulars

Details

In case of new auditor, any material change in the fee payable to such auditor
from that paid to the outgoing auditor along with the rationale for such change

The fees payable to the new auditor for FY 2020-21 are same that were paid to
the outgoing auditors.

Basis of recommendation for appointment including the details in relation to
and credentials of the statutory auditor(s) proposed to be appointed

M/s. Ford Rhodes Parks & Co. LLP was selected as Statutory Auditors after a
comprehensive review process. The appointment of M/s. Ford Rhodes Parks
& Co. LLP was approved by the Board based on recommendations of the
Audit Committee.
Credentials: Ford Rhodes Parks & Co. LLP is a Chartered Accountancy ﬁrm
incorporated in India in the year 1919 in association with Ford, Rhodes,
Williams & Co., of United Kingdom (UK), that was succeeded by Robson
Rhodes of UK.
Ford Rhodes Parks & Co. LLP has been rendering Professional Services in
India for more than 100 years. The ﬁrm is head quartered out of Mumbai with
operations in major cities of India – Mumbai (Govandi and Parel), Bengaluru,
Chennai, Hyderabad, Kolkata and a camp ofﬁce at Coimbatore.
The Firm has been carrying out professional services, since its inception,
relating to Audit, Taxation, Corporate and Allied Laws and Management
Consultancy Services to Indian corporate houses, Multinational
Corporations, its branches and subsidiaries in India.

Your Board recommends the ordinary resolution as set out in Item No. 2 for
approval of Members.

their relatives is in any way concerned or interested in this ordinary resolution
set out in Item no. 3.

None of the Directors and /or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or
their relatives is in any way concerned or interested in this ordinary resolution
set out in Item no. 2.

Item No. 4

Item No. 3
The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, had approved the
appointment of M/s. Vaibhav P. Joshi, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration
No. 101329) to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company relating
to its Education Services for the Financial Year ending March 31, 2020 on a
remuneration of Rs. 55,000/- (Rupees Fifty-Five Thousand) plus applicable
taxes and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses.
In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the
Cost Auditor has to be ratified by the shareholders of the Company.
Accordingly, consent of the members is sought by passing an ordinary
resolution as set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice for ratification of the
remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor for the Financial Year ending March
31, 2021.
Your Board recommends the ordinary resolution as set out in Item No. 3 for
approval of Members.
None of the Directors and /or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or
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Based on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee
of the Board and after reviewing confirmation of independence received, the
Board of Directors of the Company had appointed Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar (DIN
00118037) as an Additional Director of the Company, in the category of
Independent Director with effect from December 30, 2019. Pursuant to
Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’), Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar holds
office till the date of this Annual General Meeting.
In accordance with the provisions of Section 149 read with Schedule IV to the
Act, appointment of Independent Directors requires approval of the Members.
Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar has consented to act as Independent Director and has
confirmed that he is not disqualified from being appointed as Director in terms
of Section 164 of the Act. The Company has also received notice in writing
from Member of the Company under Section 160 of the Act proposing the
candidature of Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar for the office of Director of the Company.
The Company has also received declarations from Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar
stating that he meets the criteria of independence as prescribed under
Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”).
In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar who is proposed to be
appointed as an Independent Director of the Company for the period of 3

consecutive years up to December 29, 2022 fulfils the conditions in the Act
and Rules made thereunder and is Independent of the management of the
Company. A copy of the letter of appointment of Mr. Dattatraya Kelkaras an
Independent Director setting out the terms and conditions is available for
inspection without any fee payable by the Members at the Registered Office of
the Company during the normal business hours on working days.

years up to March 30, 2023 fulfils the conditions specified in the Act and Rules
made thereunder and is Independent of the management of the Company. A
copy of the letter of appointment of Ms. Nanette D’saas an Independent
Director setting out the terms and conditions is available for inspection without
any fee payable by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company
during the normal business hours on working days.

Brief profile and other details of Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar are provided in the
Annexure to the Notice pursuant to the provisions of (i) Listing Regulations
and (ii) Secretarial Standard on the General Meeting issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India.

Brief profile and other details of Ms. Nanette D’sa are provided in the
Annexure to the Notice pursuant to the provisions of (i) Listing Regulations
and (ii) Secretarial Standard on the General Meeting issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India.

Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar shall be paid remuneration by way of Sitting Fee for
attending meetings of the Board or Committees thereof or for any other
purpose as may be decided by the Board; reimbursement of expenses
incurred for participating in the Board and other meetings and profit related
commission within the limits stipulated under Section 197 of the Act.

Ms. Nanette D’sa shall be paid remuneration by way of Sitting Fee for
attending meetings of the Board or Committees thereof or for any other
purpose as may be decided by the Board, reimbursement of expenses for
participating in the Board and other meetings and profit related commission
within the limits stipulated under Section 197 of the Act.

The Board of Directors recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item
no. 4 of the Notice for approval by the members.

The Board of Directors recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item
no. 5 of the Notice for approval by the members.

None of the other Directors and/or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
or their relatives except Mr.Dattatraya Kelkar (whose appointment is
proposed in this resolution) are, in any way, concerned or interested,
financially or otherwise in this resolution.

None of the other Directors and / or Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company or their relatives except Ms. Nanette D’sa (whose appointment is
proposed in this resolution) are, in any way, concerned or interested,
financially or otherwise in this resolution.

Item No. 5

Item No. 6 and 7

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee
of the Board and after reviewing confirmation of independence received, the
Board of Directors of the Company had appointed Ms. Nanette D’sa (DIN
05261531) as an Additional Director of the Company, in the category of
Independent Director with effect from March 31, 2020. Pursuant to Section
161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’), Ms. Nanette D’sa holds office till the
date of this Annual General Meeting.

Based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
of the Board, Mr. Vikash Kumar Kar, Chief Human Resource Officer of the
Company was elevated and appointed as Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of
the Company at the meeting of the Board of Directors held on April 24, 2020.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 149 read with Schedule IV to the
Act, appointment of Independent Directors requires approval of the Members.
Ms. Nanette D’sa has consented to act as Independent Director and has
confirmed that she is not disqualified from being appointed as Director in
terms of Section 164 of the Act. The Company has also received notice in
writing from Member of the Company under Section 160 of the Act proposing
the candidature of Ms. Nanette D’sa for the office of Director of the Company.
The Company has also received declarations from Ms. Nanette D’sa stating
that she meets the criteria of independence as prescribed under Section
149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”).
In the opinion of the Board, Ms. Nanette D’sa who is proposed to be appointed
as an Independent Director of the Company for the period of 3 consecutive

Further, pursuant to provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act 2013
(“the Act”), the Board of Directors of the Company basis the recommendation
of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board, approved the
appointment of Mr. Vikash Kumar Kar (DIN 07418787), as an Additional
Director on the Board of the Company, with effect from August 19, 2020, liable
to retire by rotation. He was also appointed as the Executive Director
designed as Whole-Time Director of the Company for a period of five years
with effect from August 19, 2020, subject to approval of the Members at the
Annual General Meeting.
In accordance with the provisions of Section 161 of the Act read with the
applicable rules made thereunder Mr. Vikash Kumar Kar holds office upto the
date of this Annual General Meeting and is eligible to be appointed as a
Director of the Company. The Company has received his consent to act as a
Director and declaration in the specified form that he is not disqualified from
being appointed as a Director of the Company. The Company has also
received notice in writing from a member under Section 160 of the Act
proposing his candidature for office of Director of the Company.
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Mr. Vikash Kumar Kar will continue to draw the same remuneration as payable
to him as CEO post his appointment as Executive Director designated as
Whole-Time Director. The proposed remuneration payable to Mr. Vikash
Kumar Kar, as Whole-Time Director of the Company shall be within the limit of
5% of net profit as prescribed under Section 197 of Companies Act, 2013 read
with Schedule V.
The terms and conditions for appointment of Mr. Vikash Kumar Kar are
proposed keeping in line with the objective of attracting and retaining
professional with expertise and high competence on the Board.
The material terms of appointment and remuneration are given below:
a) Basic Salary: The Basic Salary of Mr. Vikash Kumar Kar shall be Rs.
1,57,500 per month with the authority to the Board of Directors to determine
any increments from time to time during the term of his appointment as per the
recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.
b) Allowance, Perquisites and other items
In addition to the basic salary, Mr. Vikash Kumar Kar shall be entitled to:
(i) Allowances as per rules of the Company including Personal Allowance,
City Compensatory Allowance, House Rent Allowance, Children Education
Allowance etc. which in the aggregate shall not be exceeding Rs. 1,03,384/per month, with an authority to the Board of Directors to determine any
increase from time to time as recommended by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee.
(ii) Perquisites as per rules of the Company including Club fees, Personnel
accident, Medical insurance, Life insurance, Company provided housing,
meal & gift vouchers, use of chauffeur driven company car, company provided
communication & IT equipment, telecommunication facilities at residence etc.
He will also be entitled to travel, boarding and lodging for business purposes
as per company’s applicable rules. As Executive Director or otherwise, he
shall be eligible to such number of stock options as may be granted and
recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee from time to
time which will be over and above stock options already granted earlier.
Perquisites shall be evaluated as per Income Tax Rules, wherever applicable.
In the absence of any such rules, perquisites shall be evaluated at actual cost;
(iii) Other Perquisites, Allowances and Reimbursements like Books &
periodicals, Uniform, Entertainment, Car / Driver / Maintenance / related
costs, Communication, White Goods, Professional Development, Leave
Travel, Medical reimbursement etc. as per the policy of the Company.
(iv) Company’s contribution to Provident fund, Gratuity, Leave encashment,
Superannuation, National Pension Scheme etc. as per the rules of the
Company; and
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(v) Variable Pay as approved by the Board based on the recommendation of
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.
Other Terms:
Mr. Vikash Kumar Kar shall not be paid any sitting fees for attending meetings
of the Board or Committee thereof.
Further details relating to Mr. Vikash Kumar Kar including his qualifications,
other Directorships, membership of Committees of other Boards are given in
Annexure forming part of this Notice. This explanatory statement together
with the accompanying Notice and annexure thereto may also be regarded as
a disclosure under Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial
Standard-2 on General Meeting issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India.
The Board of Directors is of the opinion that Mr. Vikash Kumar Kar brings in
significant experience which will play an important role to guide and manage
the day to day affairs of the Company and considering his vast knowledge and
varied experience will be of great value to the Company and has
recommended the Resolution at Item No.6 &7 of this Notice relating to his
appointment as an Executive Director designated as Whole-Time Director,
liable to retire by rotation as Ordinary Resolution for approval of Shareholder.
None of the other Directors and/or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
or their relatives except Ms. Vikash Kumar Kar (whose appointment is
proposed in this resolution) are, in any way, concerned or interested,
financially or otherwise in this resolution.

None of the other Directors and/or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
or their relatives except Ms. Surender Singh (whose appointment is proposed
in this resolution) are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or
otherwise in this resolution.

Considering that the proposed re-pricing of outstanding Stock Options would
be beneficial to the Option grantees and will be in line with the intent of the
Scheme, your Board recommends the Special Resolution set out at Item no. 9
of the Notice for approval by the members.

Item No. 9

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their
relatives is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution
except to the extent of the Stock Options granted to them under the ESOP
Scheme and to the extent of their Shareholding in the Company.

Your Company had in accordance with the approval granted by the
Shareholders vide resolution passed on October 13, 2010 and October 28,
2015, instituted an Employees Stock Option Scheme 2010, as amended in
2015 (Scheme).
As per the said Scheme, the Board was authorized to grant up to maximum
1,60,07,451 Stock Options (equivalent to 5% of Paid-up Capital) as on
October 28, 2015. Accordingly, the Board had from time to time granted
options at different exercise prices. An aggregate of 82,70,157 Stock Options
(convertible into equivalent number of equity shares) were outstanding, which
were issued from time to time at various exercise price (linked to market price
of the Shares of the company on Stock Exchanges) ranging from Rs. 18.70 to
Rs. 42.20.
Due to inherent volatility in the stock market and fall in the market price of the
Equity Shares of the Company, the outstanding options (i.e. options granted,
whether vested or not but yet to be exercised) have become unattractive. As a
result, the option grantees may not derive any benefit out of the options
granted to them.

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee, the Board of Directors of the Company had appointed Mr.
Surender Singh (DIN 08206770) as an Additional Director in the category of
Non-Executive Non Independent Director with effect from July 31, 2020.
Pursuant to Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’), Mr. Surender
Singh holds office till the date of this Annual General Meeting.

In view of this, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the
Board at the meeting held on April 24, 2020, w.e.f. the same date,
recommended re-pricing of 82,70,157 outstanding Stock Options issued from
time to time at Exercise price in the range of Rs. 18.70 to 42.20 per Option, to
Rs. 14.10 per Option, being last closing market price of the equity shares of the
Company on the recognized Stock Exchange where the volume and turnover
is high on April 23, 2020. Further with a view to enable option grantee to
exercise their Options, it is proposed to extend the exercise period by four
years from the date of shareholders’ approval for re-pricing.

Mr. Surender Singh, being eligible has offered himself for appointment as a
Director. The Company has also received notice in writing from Member of the
Company under Section 160 of the Act proposing the candidature of Mr.
Surender Singh for the office of Director of the Company.

As per Regulation 7 of SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations,
2014, the Company can vary the terms of ESOP Scheme and/or re-price Stock
options granted, subject to approval of Shareholders by way of Special
Resolution.

Item No. 8

Item No. 10
Shareholders of the Company had vide resolution passed on December 18,
2015 approved payment of Commission of up to 1% of the Net Profits of the
Company to Independent Directors for a period of 5 financial years
commencing from March 31, 2016. The said commission was in addition to the
sitting fees payable to the Directors for attending the meeting of the Board of
Directors of the Company or any Committee thereof. With the focus on
Corporate Governance, the roles and responsibilities of Independent
Directors have undergone significant changes demanding greater
involvement in the supervision of the Company. It is therefore desirable that
the compensation payable to the Independent Directors should be reasonably
adequate to attract independent professionals to guide the Company. It is
therefore proposed that the Independent Directors be paid Commission upto
1% of Net Profits of the Company for a period of five financial years
commencing from financial year ended March 31, 2021.
Such commission would be in addition to the sitting fees for attending the
Meetings of the Board or any Committee thereof. In accordance with the
provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, payment of remuneration by way of Commission to
Independent Directors of the Company, in addition to sitting fees, shall require
approval of the Members.
Your Board recommends the ordinary resolution as detailed in Item No. 10 for
your approval.

Brief profile and other details of Mr. Surender Singh are provided in the
Annexure to the Notice pursuant to the provisions of (i) Listing Regulations
and (ii) Secretarial Standard on the General Meeting issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India.
The Board of Directors recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item
no. 8 of the Notice for approval by the members.

279

Notice

Annexure to the Notice dated October 7, 2020

Name of Director

Ms. Nenette D’sa

Details of Directors seeking Appointment/Re-appointment at the 10th AGM to be held on December 30, 2020.

DIN

05261531

(Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) and 26(4) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard 2
on General Meeting)

Age

65

Date of First Appointment on the Board

March 31, 2020

Qualiﬁcation

- EDP from Northwestern University, USA and
- Masters in Marketing Management from NMIMS

Experience and Expertise

Ms. Nanette D'sa has approx. 3 decades of rich experience in Academics,
Business, Marketing, Branding, Franchising and Licensing with leadership
roles in organizations she has worked with including the Education sector. She
has been recognized as an Achiever for marketing, licensing and franchising
with several awards and has been associated with international brands like
Disney, Mattel, Star TV and leading Indian brands, Pre-schools with
Brainworks (a Kangaroo Kids associated company) and Sanjeev Kapoor
Restaurants.

Name of Director

Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar

DIN

00118037

Age

67

Date of First Appointment on the Board

December 30, 2019

Qualiﬁcation

BA, MA (PM & LW) - TISS, LLB

Experience and Expertise

Mr. Kelkar has his own business in the ﬁelds of real estate, manufacturing and
trading and was earlier associated as a Director in real estate venture of
Kirloskar Group. He was also a visiting facility for teaching Industrial Relations
at the Karve Institute of Social Sciences and University of Pune.

No. of Equity shares held in the Company

Nil

No. of Equity shares held in the Company

Nil

Terms and Conditions of Appointment

As per resolution set out in Item No. 4 of the Notice convening the AGM read
with explanatory statement

Terms and Conditions of Appointment

As per resolution set out in Item No. 5 of the Notice convening the AGM read
with explanatory statement

Last drawn Remuneration

For details of remuneration please refer Corporate Governance Report

Remuneration proposed to be paid

Sitting fees and commission in accordance with provisions of applicable laws

Last drawn Remuneration

For details of remuneration please refer Corporate Governance Report

Number of Board Meeting attended during the ﬁnancial year 2019-20

1

Remuneration proposed to be paid

Sitting fees and commission in accordance with provisions of applicable laws

Number of Board Meeting attended during the ﬁnancial year 2019-20

-

Directorship held in other public companies (excluding Private and Section 8
Companies) as on March 31, 2020

MT Educare Limited

Membership/Chairmanship held in committees of other public companies
(excluding Private and Section 8 Companies) as on March 31, 2020

MT Educare Limited
Audit Committee – Member
Nomination and Remuneration Committee – Member
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee – Member
Stakeholders Relationship Committee - Member

Directorship held in other public companies (excluding Private and Section 8
Companies) as on March 31, 2020

MT Educare Limited
Vidli Restaurants Limited

Relationship with any other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel

None

Membership/Chairmanship held in committees of other public companies
(excluding Private and Section 8 Companies) as on March 31, 2020

MT Educare Limited
Audit Committee – Member
Nomination and Remuneration Committee – Member
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee – Member
Stakeholders Relationship Committee – Member
Vidli Restautants Limited
Audit Committee – Chairman
Nomination and Remuneration Committee - Member

Relationship with any other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel
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Notice

Name of Director

Mr. Vikash Kumar Kar

Name of Director

Mr. Surender Singh

DIN

07418787

DIN

08206770

Age

41

Age

64

Date of First Appointment on the Board

August 19, 2020

Date of First Appointment on the Board

July 31, 2020

Qualiﬁcation

B.Sc, MBA

Qualiﬁcation

Experience and Expertise

Mr. Vikash Kumar Kar is a senior Human Resources and Business
professional. He is a business management graduate with 19 years of
professional experience in conceptualizing and integrating best in class
practices to facilitate building a sustainable high-performance organization.
He has extensive HR generalist experience with leading multinationals and
Indian organizations in a variety of industries including Pharmaceuticals,
Manufacturing, Financial Technology, Educational Services and Stafﬁng. He
has signiﬁcant experience in successfully partnering multi-functional and
cross cultural business teams to deliver growth.

-BA (Hons) in Political Science
-MA in History

Experience and Expertise

Mr. Surender Singh is a retired IPS with experience in all matters pertaining to
Security management including cyber security and forensic; risk analysis;
data analysis; intelligence; security audit; protection of intellectual property
and people/asset management.
Apart from the education qualiﬁcation mentioned above and after graduating
from the National Police Academy, Hyderabad, Mr. Singh had attended many
courses / development programs including inter alia Course of Indian
Revenue Services – Income Tax, Basic Course at Civil Defence and Fire
Service, Management Development Program at Indian Institute of Public
Administration, Overseas Command Course at Wakeﬁeld, UK; Major Case
Management Course at Washington DC under the aegis of Federal Bureau of
Investigation (FBI) etc.

In his current role he is a member of the Senior Leadership of the Zee Learn
Limited in the capacity of Chief Human Resources Ofﬁcer of the company and
its associated entities; Zee Learn is India’s leading diversiﬁed Education
Company with its network having multiple offerings from Pre K, K12, Higher
Education, Test Prep, Tutorials, Vocational, Skilling, Manpower & Training and
Digital Education. He also serves as the Director and Business Head of
Liberium Global Services, the Manpower Services venture of Zee Learn.
Prior to joining Zee Learn, Vikash’s employment history includes working with
MSCI India, BP Ergo Limited (now HNI Ofﬁce India Limited), Wyeth Limited (a
Pﬁzer company) and Famy Care Limited.

Mr. Surender Singh had an illustrious career of over three decades in Indian
Police Services (IPS), including inter alia as
• Head/ Joint Director/ Additional Director/ Special Director of Intelligence
Bureau;
• First Secretary (Consular) in the High Commission of India at DhakaBangladesh;
• Director General of CISF etc.
No. of Equity shares held in the Company

Nil

Terms and Conditions of Appointment

as per resolution set out in Item No. 8 of the Notice convening this AGM read
with explanatory statement

Last drawn Remuneration

NA

No. of Equity shares held in the Company

Nil

Terms and Conditions of Appointment

as per resolution set out in Item No. 6 & 7 of the Notice convening this AGM
read with explanatory statement

Remuneration proposed to be paid

Sitting fees in accordance with provisions of applicable laws

Last drawn Remuneration

NA

Number of Board Meeting attended during the ﬁnancial year 2019-20

-

Remuneration proposed to be paid

as per resolution set out in Item No. 6 & 7 of the Notice convening this AGM
read with explanatory statement

Directorship held in other public companies (excluding Private and Section 8
Companies) as on March 31, 2020

MT Educare Limited
Zee Media Corporation Limited

Membership/Chairmanship held in committees of other public companies
(excluding Private and Section 8 Companies) as on March 31, 2020

Nil

Relationship with any other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel

None

Number of Board Meeting attended during the ﬁnancial year 2019-20

NA

Directorship held in other public companies (excluding Private and Section 8
Companies) as on March 31, 2020

Nil

Membership/Chairmanship held in committees of other public companies
(excluding Private and Section 8 Companies) as on March 31, 2020

Nil

Relationship with any other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel

None
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By order of the Board
Place : Mumbai
Date : October 7, 2020
Prashant Parekh
Company Secretary
Registered Ofﬁce:
Continental Building, 135, Dr. Annie Besant Road,
Worli, Mumbai – 400 018
CIN: L80301MH2010PLC198405 | E-mail : investor_relations@zeelearn.com
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